

City of Pleasanton Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plan



Prepared by

2018

Table of Contents

| EXEC | UTIVE S | SUMMARY | I | |
|------|------------------------------------|---|----|--|
| | Visio | n Statement | V | |
| 1. | WHY PLAN FOR ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION | | | |
| | 1.1 | Active Transportation Planning in Context | 1 | |
| | 1.2 | Pleasanton Today | 1 | |
| | 1.3 | Updating the Plan | 2 | |
| | 1.4 | Community Involvement | 3 | |
| 2. | GOA | LS, POLICIES, & ACTIONS | 10 | |
| 3. | WAL | KING AND BICYCLING IN PLEASANTON TODAY | 17 | |
| | 3.1 | Destinations and Desire Lines | | |
| | 3.2 | Active Transportation Mode Share | | |
| | 3.3 | Walking Conditions in Pleasanton | | |
| | 3.4 | Bicycling Conditions in Pleasanton | | |
| 4. | OPPORTUNITY CORRIDORS | | 55 | |
| | 4.1 | Toolbox for Walking and Bicycling | | |
| | 4.2 | Corridors | | |
| | 4.3 | Walking and Bicycling Forecasts | | |
| 5. | PROJECT PRIORITIZATION | | | |
| | 5.1 | Connectivity (4 Points) | | |
| | 5.2 | Walking and Bicycling Demand (3 Points) | | |
| | 5.3 | Feasibility (3 points) | | |
| | 5.4 | Immediate Safety Need (4 Points) | | |
| | 5.5 | Safe Routes to School (4 Points) | | |
| 6. | SUPF | PORT PROGRAMS | | |

| 6.1 | Safe Routes to Schools | | |
|----------|---|----|--|
| 6.2 | Educational Programs | | |
| 6.3 | Enforcement Programs | | |
| 6.4 | Encouragement Programs | | |
| 6.5 | Maintenance Programs | | |
| 6.6 | Bicycle Parking Programs | | |
| 6.7 | Wayfinding | | |
| 6.8 | Evaluation | | |
| 7. FUI | FUNDING AND IMPLEMENTATION | | |
| 7.1 | Implementation Plan | | |
| 7.2 | Potential Funding Sources | | |
| 7.3 | Cost of the Plan | | |
| 7.4 | Past and Future Expenditures | | |
| 7.5 | Maintenance Costs | | |
| APPENDIX | A. DESIGN GUIDELINES | | |
| A.1 | Travel Lane Widths | 1 | |
| A.2 | Crosswalk Policy | | |
| A.3 | Crosswalk Fundamentals | | |
| A.4 | Uncontrolled Crossing Enhancement Toolbox | 9 | |
| A.5 | Controlled Crosswalk Treatment Toolbox | | |
| A.6 | Sidewalk Zones and Preferred Dimensions | | |
| A.7 | Pedestrians and Bicyclists at Interchanges | | |
| A.8 | Bicycle Design Guidelines | 46 | |
| APPENDIX | B. ALAMEDA CTC CHECKLIST | 1 | |
| APPENDIX | C. PRIORITIZED PROJECT LIST AND SCORING D. FUNDING SOURCES | 1 | |
| APPENDIX | | 1 | |
| APPENDIX | E. RELATED PLAN DOCUMENTS | 1 | |
| APPENDIX | F. SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROJECTS FROM 2010 PLAN | | |

List of Figures

| Figure 3-1: Land Use | |
|--|----|
| Figure 3-2: Pedestrian-Auto Collisions | |
| Figure 3-3: Existing Sidewalk Gaps | |
| Figure 3-4: Bicycle-Involved Collisions | 41 |
| Figure 3-5: Existing Bikeway Classifications | |
| Figure 3-6: Existing Bikeways | |
| Figure 3-7: Citywide Level of Traffic Stress | |
| Figure 3-8: Low Streets Bicycling Network | |
| Figure 4-1A: Bicycle Facility Types | |
| Figure 4-1B: Bicycle Facility Types | 59 |
| Figure 4-2: Pedestrian Vision Network | 61 |
| Figure 4-3: Near-Term Bicycle Network | |
| Figure 4-4: Vision Bicycle Vision Network | 63 |
| Figure 4-5: Arroyo Del Valle | |
| Figure 4-6: Bernal Avenue | |
| Figure 4-7: Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | 75 |
| Figure 4-8: Central Pleasanton | |
| Figure 4-9: Downtown | |
| Figure 4-10: Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | |
| Figure 4-11: East Side | |
| Figure 4-12: Foothill Road | |

| Figure 4-13: I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings | 97 |
|---|-----|
| Figure 4-14: Santa Rita Road | 101 |
| Figure 4-15: Stanley Boulevard | 104 |
| Figure 4-16: Stoneridge Drive | 106 |
| Figure 4-17: Sunol Boulevard | 109 |
| Figure 4-18: Valley Avenue | 114 |
| Figure 4-19: West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | 118 |
| Figure 4-20: W. Las Positas Boulevard | 121 |
| Figure 6-1: Existing Known Bicycle Parking and Support Facilities and Proposed Bicycle Parking Locations | 154 |
| Figure A-1: Marked Crosswalk Placement Flowchart | 7 |
| Figure A-2: Feasibility Analysis for Treatments at Uncontrolled Locations | 8 |
| Figure A-3: Actuated Signals Pedestrian Option Flow Chart | 41 |
| Figure A-4: Left-Turns on Two-Way Streets Pedestrian Options Flow Chart | 42 |
| Figure A-5: Right Turns on Two-Way Streets or Left Turns on One-Way Streets Pedestrian Options Flow Chart | 43 |
| Figure A-6: Pedestrian Scramble Flow Chart | 44 |
| Figure A-7: Preferred Separated Bikeways Dimensions | 50 |
| Figure A-8: Preferred Path Dimensions | 53 |
| Figure A-9: Bicycle Lanes Preferred Width | 56 |
| Figure A-10: Buffered Bicycle Lanes Preferred Width | 56 |
| Figure A-11: Bicycle Boulevard Typical Design | 58 |

List of Tables

| Table 3-1: Existing Trips in Pleasanton by Travel Mode | 20 |
|--|----|
| Table 3-2: Pleasanton Collision Rankings among Similar Cities, 2013 | 21 |
| Table 3-3: Locations With the Highest Frequency of Pedestrian Collisions In Or Near the Intersection | 24 |
| Table 3-4: Violation Category of Pedestrian Collisions | 25 |
| Table 3-5: Pedestrian Injury Severity | 26 |
| Table 3-6: Pleasanton Collision Rankings among Similar Cities, 2013 | |
| Table 3-7: Locations With the Highest Frequency of Bicycle Collisions in or Near The Intersection | |
| Table 3-8: Violation Category of Bicycle Collisions | |
| Table 3-9: Bicyclist Injury Severity | 40 |
| Table 4-1: Corridor Opportunity Projects | 64 |
| Table 4-2: Arroyo Del Valle | 67 |
| Table 4-3: Bernal Avenue | 70 |
| Table 4-4: Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | 73 |
| Table 4-5: Central Pleasanton | 77 |
| Table 4-6: Downtown | 81 |
| Table 4-7: Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | 85 |
| Table 4-8: East Side | |
| Table 4-9: Foothill Road | 93 |
| Table 4-10: I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings | 96 |
| Table 4-11: Santa Rita Road | |
| Table 4-12: Stanley Boulevard | |
| Table 4-13: Stoneridge Drive | |

| Table 4-14: Sunol Boulevard | |
|---|-----|
| Table 4-15: Valley Avenue | |
| Table 4-16: West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | |
| Table 4-17: West Las Positas Boulevard | |
| Table 4-18: Vision Network Projects | |
| Table 4-19: Pleasanton Walking and Bicycling Mode Share Forecasts | |
| Table 5-1: Prioritized Project Corridors | 131 |
| Table 6-1: Inventory of Projects Near Schools | |
| Table 6-3: Performance Measures | |
| Table 7-1: Implementation Plan | |
| Table 7-2: Estimated Construction Cost of the Vision Network | |
| Table 7-3: Citywide Conceptual Annual Maintenance Costs for Near-Term Buildout | |
| Table A-2: Uncontrolled Crossings – Geometric Treatments | 15 |
| Table A-3: Uncontrolled Crossings – Striping and Signage | |
| Table A-4: Uncontrolled Crossings – Beacon, Lighting, And Signal Treatments | 21 |
| Table A-5: Controlled Intersections – Geometric Treatments | |
| Table A-6: Controlled Intersections – Striping and Signage | |
| Table A-7: Controlled Intersections – Signal Hardware and Operational Measures | |
| Table A-8: Preferred Sidewalk Dimensions | |
| Table A-9: All Ages and Abilities Bicycle Facility Select Based on Speed and Number of Travel Lanes | 47 |
| Table B-1: Alameda CTC Bicycle Master Plan Guidelines Addressed in this Plan | 1 |



Glossary

The following are some of the terms and acronyms used in the City of Pleasanton Pedestrian & Bicycle Master Plan to describe existing and proposed biking and walking facilities and programs:

- Active Transportation any form of human-powered transportation, such as walking, bicycling, and using a wheelchair.
- Actuated Signals Traffic signals that detect the presence of automobiles, bicyclists, and/or pedestrians and then give them a green light or walk symbol.
- Advanced Yield Markings "Sharks teeth" or triangular markings the location where vehicles should yield to pedestrians in a crosswalk.
- ADA Americans with Disabilities Act, typically used to refer to accessible pedestrian facilities, such as curb ramps and pedestrian push buttons at signalized intersections.
- ADT Average Daily Traffic, which is the average total number of vehicles that use a roadway throughout the day.
- All Ages & Abilities Network An all ages and abilities network is one that meets the diverse needs of everyone who bikes, from the young to old and the less experienced to most experienced and everyone in between. In this Plan, the All Ages and Abilities Network is intended for implementation in 5-10 years to provide a safe, comfortable, and connected citywide bicycle network. The network primarily consists of paths, separated bikeways, and bicycle boulevards.
- Arterial Roadways Roadways that typically serve a high volume of traffic, may be higher speed, and provide citywide and possibly regional access. Arterials are fed by local streets, including collectors and sometimes residential streets.

- Bicycle Corral A group of bicycle racks that typically provide eight or more bicycle parking spaces. Corrals typically are located in the street, replacing one parking space.
- Bike East Bay A local bicycle advocacy group in Alameda and Contra Costa County.
- Bikeway A bikeway is a general term that refers to any type of bicycle infrastructure. Examples of bicycle infrastructure include bicycle lanes, shared-use paths, separated bikeways, bicycle routes, and bicycle boulevards.
- Buffer Striped area between a travel lane and a bicycle lane and/or a bicycle lane and on-street parking. It typically has arrows ("chevrons") or diagonal hatching to denote the buffer. It is used to provide separation and additional comfort between bicyclists and/or moving vehicles or parked cars.
- Bulb-Outs Extensions of the sidewalk environment at intersections, typically shadowing parking. They improve driverpedestrian visibility at crossings and shorten crossing distances.
- Caltrans The California state Department of Transportation.
- Clearance Intervals The amount of time required for an automobile, bicycle, or pedestrian to safely move through an intersection.
- Conflict Zone Portions of bicycle lanes where drivers frequently merge across, such as the portion of a bicycle lane that rightturning automobiles merge into before the intersection.





- Controlled Crosswalk A controlled crosswalk has a form of traffic control that forces vehicles to stop before the crosswalk some of the time (traffic signal) or all of the time (stop sign).
 Countdown Signal – These signals give pedestrians "Walk" and "Don't Walk" signals with a second-by-second countdown for each phase. Also known as "pedestrian countdown signal."
- Curb Extension see "bulb outs."
- EBRPD East Bay Regional Parks District, which manages trails within the regional parks in Pleasanton.
- Median Refuge a protected area denoted by raised curb, landscaping, and/or other materials where pedestrians can safely stop before completing their crossing of a roadway, typically located in the middle of the street.
- Mode Shift Changing the mode split over time, often in reference to increasing the percentage of trips made by walking, biking, and/or transit.
- Mode Split The percentage of travelers using a particular type of transportation, typically the percentage of trips made by bicycle, pedestrian, transit, and autos, respectively.
- Multi-modal The consideration of all modes of transportation in the planning, design, and use of a roadway or transportation facility. Multi-modal typically refers to four primary modes of travel: bicycles, pedestrians, transit, and autos.
- MUTCD Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. California has its own MUTCD which governs how traffic control devices, specifically signing, striping, and signals are implemented and operated.

- NACTO National Association of City Transportation Officials, which publishes two best practice resources guides: the <u>Urban</u> <u>Bikeway Design Guide</u> and the <u>Urban Streets Design Guide</u>.
- Path Spur A short path segment that provides a secondary point of access to a trail or path.
- Peak Hour The busiest hour(s) of the day for all modes, but typically used to refer to autos.
- Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons (PHBs) A pedestrian-activated warning device typically on mast arms over mid-block pedestrian crossings. The beacon head has two red balls on top and a single yellow ball below and require traffic to come to a complete stop when pedestrians have a walk sign, and allow for traffic to proceed once the pedestrian has cleared the travel lane.
- Policies The underlying principles that explain and justify how the city deals with walking and biking issues, typically established through adopted planning documents, directives form city officials, or similar means.
- Projects Capital improvements or infrastructural improvements that, in the context of this Plan, benefit people who walk and bike.
- Protected Intersection Protected intersections include design elements that improve sight lines between drivers and bicyclists and reduce pedestrian exposures to automobiles. They also facilitate left-turns for bicyclists.
- Public Right-Of-Way Areas controlled by the city, such as roadways inclusive of sidewalks.
- PAFBs (Pedestrian-Activated Flashing Beacons) A pedestrian-activated flashing beacon installed at crosswalks not

Glossary

otherwise controlled by a traffic signal or stop signs. Safety studies have shown they increase the number of drivers yielding to pedestrians where installed, and more research is expected on this topic in the upcoming years.

- Safe Routes to School Program A range of infrastructural and non-infrastructural improvements and activities targeting schools, typically with an emphasis on elementary schools. Noninfrastructural programs refer to activities including walking schools buses, walk and roll to school day events, and assemblies to encourage and educate students on walking and rolling safely.
- Separated Bikeway An exclusive bike facility that is located within or next to the roadway, but is made distinct from both the sidewalk and the general purpose roadway by markings, barriers, or elevation differences.
- Shared-Use Path A path for the exclusive use of bicyclists and pedestrians. Such paths typically require bicyclists and pedestrians to share the path space, but may have striping or signing that designate specific areas for exclusive use by bicyclists or pedestrians, respectively.
- Sharrows "Shared Lane Markings" are stencils on the pavement showing a bicycle symbol and two directional arrows or "chevrons". They denote bicycle routes where bicyclists and autos share the travel lane. They also demonstrate where bicyclists should ride in the travel lane.
- Signalized Intersections Where two roadways meet at a traffic signal.
- Slip Lane A right-turn lane at an intersection that allows drivers to make a turn without actually entering the intersection and that

is often not controlled by a traffic signal. Typically separated by a triangular "pork chop" island.

- Support Programs The strategies, campaigns, and on-going efforts to address issues such as walking and biking education, enforcement, and encouragement. They may be run by the city or by another agency operating in Pleasanton. An example may include a safe routes to school program, which provides educational content such as assemblies, Walk and Roll to School Days, and similar events to encourage students to walk to school and to educate them on how to do safely.
- Triple-Four Trail Crossings Similar to a ladder crosswalk with the middle of the crosswalk removed to make space for bicycle symbols with directional arrows. The intent is to highlight trail crossings and to indicate that bicyclists and pedestrians use the crossing.
- Vision Network In this Plan, the Vision Network refers to all projects recommended in the Plan, even those that may take many years to build. These projects can be implemented as opportunities arise; however, there may be significant engineering and funding barriers to implementing these projects in the near-term.
- Warrants (Stop Warrants or Signal Warrants) Based on standards set in the MUTCD, some traffic control devices, such as traffic signals, stop signs, and pedestrian hybrid beacons, require certain thresholds or "warrants" that must be met to justify the installation of the device. For example, one warrant for a pedestrian signal requires meeting a threshold for the number of pedestrians passing through an intersection in the peak hour.



Glossary

- **Wayfinding** –Guidance either on signs or striped on the ground to indicate locations and/or directions to destinations.
- Zone 7 Zone 7 Water Agency, which operated some canals and waterways in Pleasanton.

Executive Summary

The 2017 Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan (Plan) is an update to the 2010 Plan that contains goals, policies, and recommendations for developing and implementing a citywide pedestrian and bicycle network. Pleasanton has made tremendous progress in implementing the previous plan. Highlights include the extension of the Iron Horse Trail from Stoneridge Drive to the West Pleasanton/Dublin BART station, more than doubling the amount of Class I bicycle paths; achieving the Bronze-level recognition as a Bicycle Friendly Community; and increasing the amount of Class II bicycle lanes from 27 to 40 miles. However, much more work still needs to be done in order to provide a safe and comfortable network.

Community involvement was a key feature of the updated process. Through multiple workshops, residents expressed a strong desire for safety improvements. While Pleasanton ranks high for pedestrian and bicycle safety compared with similar cities in California, it still has room to improve safety for more vulnerable members of the community. A key change from the 2010 Plan is therefore a higher prioritization of safe routes to school and safety in general.

Overall, the goals for the non-motorized network remain consistent with the 2010 Plan and can be summarized in five general themes:

- 1. Safety: Improve safety for pedestrians and bicyclists, beginning with safe routes to schools.
- 2. All Ages and Abilities: Create a citywide network of trails, walkways, and bikeways that are safe and comfortable for people of all ages and abilities.
- 3. Close the Gaps: Promote alternatives to driving by enhancing walking and bicycling connections to transit hubs, schools and key destinations in Pleasanton.
- 4. Clever Design: Utilize best practices and innovative but tested pedestrian and bicycle design guidelines.
- 5. **Promotion**: Encourage and educate residents about walking and bicycling opportunities in Pleasanton, and monitor the progress against clear goals.

Unchanged from the 2010 Plan is a Vision Statement furthering the progress as a place with many safe and pleasant pedestrian and bicycle facilities, and a city that encourages walking and bicycling as healthful and enjoyable activities.



The City of Pleasanton General Plan sets forth a blueprint for a system of bikeways in Pleasanton. This Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan builds on the original blueprint with an evaluation of existing conditions and a prioritized list of improvements that include on- and off-street bicycle and pedestrian facilities. The Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan is the official policy document addressing the development of bicycle and pedestrian facilities for transportation and recreation purposes.

Additionally, this Plan incorporates items from a number of documents pertaining to walking and bicycling in Pleasanton, including the Community Trails Master Plan, the City of Pleasanton General Plan, the Downtown Specific Plan, the Downtown Parks and Trails System Master Plan, the Happy Valley Specific Plan, the Vineyard Avenue Corridor Specific Plan, and the Municipal Code. Finally, every effort was made to meet the requirements of the Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) Bicycle Master Plan Guidelines.

The goal of a connected network suitable for all ages and abilities is achievable and provides benefits to the entire community, not just those who walk or bicycle. Reduced traffic congestion for those who drive, increased business for local merchants, and overall improvement in quality of life will reinforce the many reasons people choose to live, work and play in Pleasanton. The main thoroughfares for vehicular traffic are also the main desire lines for pedestrian and bicycle traffic. That means Santa Rita Road, Hopyard Road and Foothill Road are the primary north-south routes, and Valley Avenue, Stoneridge Drive and West Las Positas Boulevard the east-west routes. However, these thoroughfares are not necessarily comfortable for all ages and abilities. The recent Iron Horse Trail extension to the north provides a great example of a low-stress alternative. The network should connect people in residential areas to local schools, parks and commercial areas as well as key destinations like the Downtown area, employers, and gateways to neighboring cities and regional parks. This Plan addresses this with low-stress alternatives, improved wayfinding, and separated bikeways on existing roads.

This document is intended as a conceptual guide for City staff and members of the public. The projects are detailed in **Chapter 4 Opportunity Areas**, and a full list is included in **Appendix C**. Individual projects may differ from the Plan's recommendations, but the main project alignments and policy recommendations should be implemented to the greatest degree possible. Pleasanton can implement portions of this Plan through public and private development, City-led programs, development of new roadway and transit facilities, and scheduled roadway maintenance.

This Plan is consistent with Alameda CTC's Countywide Bicycle Plan and Pedestrian Plan, bicycle and pedestrians plans and maps from the cities of Dublin and Livermore, and the East Bay Regional Park District's Trails Master Plan. The Plan should be updated every five years to allow the city to compete for Alameda CTC funding.



Key actions and performance metrics contained in the Plan include the following:

Master Plan Implementation

- Assign a City employee as a bicycle and pedestrian coordinator to manage all non-motorized transportation projects and prioritize implementation
- Implement at least two Class IV separated bikeway pilot projects and at least five of the high priority projects detailed in this Plan by 2021
- Complete the low-stress "All Ages and Abilities" network by 2030 and complete the Vision Network by 2040
- Adopt a citywide, multi-modal Vision Zero policy and reduce the percentage of severe bicycle and pedestrian collisions by 50% by 2030
- Pursue all funding sources for alternative transportation, and update the Plan every five years
- Prioritize maintenance of bikeways, including paved trails and separated bikeways, and ensure adequate sweeping and pavement repair
- Improve the percentage of all walking and bicycling trips by 2030
- Improve the percentage of walking and bicycling to schools by 2030

Best Practices for Design

- Plan and design for low traffic stress facilities for bicyclists wherever feasible, with appropriate intersection treatments such as signal detection and accommodations for bicyclists making left turns.
- Routinely identify and integrate bicycle and pedestrian improvements into all standard maintenance, planning studies, roadway redesign, and auto-focused CIP projects.

Education, Encouragement, and Enforcement Programs

- Seek funding from Safe Routes to School grants.
- Continue to develop and promote existing education and encouragement programs, including but not limited to Bike to Work Day, Bike to School Day, bicycle safety courses and a citywide bicycle user map.
- Work toward recognition as a Silver-level Bicycle Friendly Community and Walk Friendly Community.

Encouraging a Multi-modal Transportation System



- Provide safe, comfortable, convenient, and continuous bicycle and pedestrian facilities within one mile of the BART and ACE stations, and within an eighth of a mile of Wheels bus stops.
- Work with the Pleasanton Unified School District and commercial businesses to provide and actively maintain sufficient, convenient, safe, and attractive bicycle racks at all public schools and businesses, and provide a citywide bicycle rack request program.

Improving Safety

- Monitor and record bicycle and pedestrian-related collisions. At areas with high injury collisions, develop improvement plans to lower crash rates.
- Adopt and implement a multi-modal safety assessment methodology for all city transportation studies.
- Work with Pleasanton Unified School District to implement the school's traffic-calming and shared-parking solutions in the Rides-to-School Program.



Vision Statement

The City of Pleasanton is a pleasant, thriving, healthy, sustainable community that strives to meet the needs of all of its citizens in an environmentally sensitive manner. Walking and bicycling for recreation, fitness or as a means of transportation requires safe and accessible infrastructure. The quality of the infrastructure for walking and bicycling contributes to the overall quality of life in the city by encouraging active living and reducing automobile traffic with its associated noise, pollution, congestion, and global environmental impact. The purpose of the Pleasanton Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan is to make the city as pedestrian and bicycle friendly as possible in order to encourage people of all ages, abilities and means to walk and/or bike.

This Plan creates a guide for achieving a comprehensive system of bicycle routes, pedestrian routes, trails, and related facilities that will result in a safe and convenient circulation system for pleasant, active travel. It addresses goals, policies, standards, funding strategies, education and intermodal linkages throughout Pleasanton. The plan provides prioritized lists of specific projects for implementation of a system with a fair balance among all modes of travel.



1. Why Plan for Active Transportation

1.1 Active Transportation Planning in Context

This is an exciting time nationally and locally for active transportation planning. There are new countermeasures and design standards ready for implementation, new funding sources available for and prioritizing these modes, and a greater understanding of why people walk and bicycle – and why they do not. Cities are embarking on a next generation of plans that are much bolder, and much more likely to be implemented rather than sit on the shelf collecting dust. In this context, Pleasanton is updating its *Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan* (PBMP) and focusing on key opportunities locally for walking and bicycling. This Plan sets forth a community-driven, forward-thinking vision for walking and bicycling in the city, with a focus on quality of life, safety, and access for all residents, employees and visitors.

1.2 Pleasanton Today

Pleasanton is a sought-after community to live, work, and play. With excellent schools, thriving retail, the annual Alameda County Fair, and successful and accessible business parks, Pleasanton is both a bedroom community in the suburbs and a key destination on the I-580/680 corridors. Increasingly, walkability and bikability are seen as quality of life issues in Pleasanton, reflecting a desire to walk and bike to downtown, parks, community events, and schools. Like many communities, Pleasanton has a large share of "interested but concerned" bicyclists, those that own bikes and are eager to ride, but are concerned about high traffic levels and speeds, and difficult crossings. With a focus on health, community, and access for all ages and abilities the city embarked on a plan update to improve walking and bicycling conditions and opportunities.



1.3 Updating the Plan

The previous *Pleasanton Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan* was developed and adopted by the city in 2010 to provide a guide for city staff when developing transportation projects that are safe and convenient for all users, and provide the public with an understanding of how the city plans to grow, enhance, and maintain walking and bicycling facilities citywide. Approximately half of the high-priority projects have been built since the 2010 Plan. This includes a new segment of the Iron Horse Trail, an extension of the Arroyo Mocho Trail, and green and/or buffered bike lanes on multiple corridors. This update of the 2010 PBMP gives city staff and the public the tools to implement the new best practices of design for bicycle and pedestrian facilities in Pleasanton, and address changes that have occurred within the city since 2010, including the opening of an additional BART station. The PBMP address paths in the developed portions of the city. It is consistent with and complementary to the Community Trails Master Plan, which covers all paths and trails in the city.

The following diagram shows the project phases of the PBMP update, which began in September 2015. Each chapter of the Plan received a "refresh" to update statistics and ensure policies, programs, and practices continue to be relevant and to provide updates consistent with best practices. The key new elements of this Plan focus on a prioritized project list of the most important projects derived from the community outreach and data analysis efforts. Appendix A Design Guidelines features updated design guidelines that reference the latest best practices, many of which were invented or approved since the last Plan.



1.4 Community Involvement

With a focus on identifying and prioritizing projects that matter the most to the City – both in terms of need and community values – community involvement was a critical component of the Plan update. The City hosted three public workshops, one all-day walk audit, and six meetings with the Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Trails Commission (BPTAC) over the course of the PBMP update process to solicit input and feedback from the community.

Workshops and events were well attended even early in the process. Unfortunately, during the course of the Plan update, a bicycle-involved collision resulted in a fatality. This became a key organizing event for the community, and resulted in additional energy and commitments to bolder changes and a safety vision. This is reflected in the selection and prioritization of the projects included in the Plan.



Approximately 30 participants attended the first workshop to discuss existing needs and opportunities for bicycling.

1.4.1 Public Workshop #1 – Existing Conditions and Needs

The first workshop, held on December 8, 2015 at the Pleasanton Library, focused on existing conditions for walking and bicycling in Pleasanton. Approximately 30 community members attended. The workshop consisted of a presentation of existing conditions and potential design features for pedestrian and bicycle facilities that could be implemented in Pleasanton. The workshop then moved into an open house format to invite public feedback on the PBMP goals and policies, safety hotspot locations, key destinations important to the community, and other existing issues related to walking and bicycling. Community goals for prioritization of walking and bicycling improvements focused on safety and connectivity. Workshop attendees identified the following areas as top priorities for walking:

- Connecting to trails, such as the Centennial Trail and Arroyo Del Valle Trail
- Connecting to parks, such as Del Prado Park

Workshop attendees identified the following areas as top priorities for bicycling:

- Resolving challenging intersections/gaps, such as connecting the Iron Horse Trail in the south to Stanley Boulevard and even farther to Downtown
- Improving enforcement and maintenance of existing bicycle infrastructure, such as enforcement of parking prohibitions in bicycle lanes
- Making connections to neighboring jurisdictions in the Tri Valley, such as providing a high-quality, low-stress bicycle route between Dublin and Downtown Pleasanton
- Providing continuous bicycle facilities on popular bicycle routes, such as Foothill Road

Participants were also asked how they identify as a bicyclist, from among Four Types of Cyclists (a typology created by Roger Gellar for the City of Portland). The majority of workshop participants identified themselves as Enthused and Confident cyclists. This is in contrast to what the larger population of Pleasanton is likely to be, and illustrated the need to attract a broader range of community input through future outreach efforts. More information on the Four Types of Cyclists and how it relates to level of traffic stress and comfort for bicyclists is presented in **Section 3.3.3.6**.



Participants were invited to share general and sitespecific comments on topics such as bicycle infrastructure, safety, policies, and support programs.



The Four Types of Cyclists and their typical breakdown across the population are shown above. The breakdown of how bicyclists attending the second workshop is also shown above.

1.4.2 Walk Audits

A combination of windshield tours and walk audits was held throughout Pleasanton on Friday, June 24, 2016. The walk audit participants included one member of city staff, Fehr & Peers staff, and community members from the Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Trails Committee (BPTC). Audits focused on areas of high bicycle and pedestrian demand in the city and included:

- Dublin/Pleasanton BART
- West Dublin/Pleasanton BART
- Downtown
- Access to the Arroyo Mocho Trail and Iron Horse Trail
- Parallel route to Santa Rita Road

The discussion focused on improvements for safety and accessibility for bicyclists and pedestrians using potential treatments such as:

- Wider curb ramps at trail crossings
- Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons
- Parking protected cycle tracks
- Slip lane removal
- Curb extensions
- Bicycle Boulevards
- Median refuges
- Extended green clearance time

These techniques are further defined in **Appendix A.2** Crosswalk Policy. The day ended with a debrief at city offices where issues and potential solutions were drawn onto large maps for later incorporation into the project list in this Plan.



City staff and Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Trails Committee members discussing bicycle and walking access to BART issues on the walk audits.









The first walk audit (top images) focused on West Dublin/ Pleasanton and Dublin/Pleasanton BART Stations. The second walk audit focused on the Central Pleasanton bicycle boulevard project on Greenwood Road (bottom left). The third walk audit focused on accessing Downtown from the west, north, and south (bottom right).



1.4.3 Public Workshop #2 – Network Development

The second workshop was held at the Pleasanton Library on August 9, 2016. Approximately 50 community members attended and provided input

on draft improvements to the bicycle and pedestrian facilities in Pleasanton and the prioritization of those projects.

Community members were enthusiastic about opportunities the Plan update presents to improve biking and walking conditions. Key feedback included:

- Adjusting the relative prioritization of the various east-west corridor through the city, such as West Las Positas Boulevard and Stoneridge Drive
- Increasing the emphasis on safe routes to school projects and identifying how proposed projects benefit children walking and biking to school



Participants provided detailed feedback on each corridor project and its prioritization.

- Revising prioritization criteria to further prioritize proximity to schools and the vulnerability of children walking and biking to school
- Emphasizing improvements the Valley Avenue/Stanley Boulevard intersection
- Adding new projects on Stanley Boulevard and Santa Rita Road

1.4.4 Special City Council Meeting

On September 13, 2016, the City of Pleasanton held a special meeting to discuss biking issues in Pleasanton. The Council Chambers were at capacity and numerous speakers voiced their concern and support for bicycling in Pleasanton. Many middle school students were in attendance at the

meeting and came to the podium to discuss their bicycle commutes to school, express concern for their safety while biking, and state their interest in safe bicycling as a means to their own independence.

1.4.5 Public Workshop #3 – Plan Confirmation

The third workshop was held at the City of Pleasanton Operation Service Center on December 6, 2016 and was attended by approximately 20 community members. Workshop noticing information was provided to schools citywide to get greater input on the pedestrian and safe routes to school Plan elements. The purpose of the meeting was to review the revised draft Plan recommendations – from recommended projects to support programs and implementation considerations. Community members had the opportunity to comment on each individual project as well as to provide feedback on the general direction of the Plan. Attendees confirmed the direction of the Plan and provided comments on:

- Identifying the importance of multi-modal safety education programs, particularly those targeted at drivers, and making sure these campaigns have a reach beyond those already interested in biking and walking issues
- Emphasizing the importance of student safety and comfort and accommodating those who walk and bicycle to school today as well as those who might in the future
- Looking for opportunities to partner with other community groups, such as Bike Pleasanton



2. Goals, Policies, & Actions

Goals, policies, and actions create the foundation for the community's vision for developing a citywide bicycle and pedestrian network that is safe, comfortable, convenient, and accessible for all users. Goals are broad statements of purpose; policies are set within goals to provide the course of action; and actions are the required elements to implement the policies. These goals, policies, and actions have been updated and expanded from the 2010 PBMP based on best practices, and review and input by city staff, the BPTC and other stakeholders, to reflect current issues and objectives. The following goals, policies, and actions are consistent with the city's other adopted planning documents, such as the *Pleasanton General Plan* and *Pleasanton Community Trails Master Plan*.

Goal 1: Provide the citizens of Pleasanton with a citywide network of bikeways, walkways, and trails that are accessible, safe, comfortable, and convenient for people of all ages and abilities who walk and bicycle.

Policy 1-1: Implement the walking and bicycling networks presented in the 2016 Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan.

Action 1-1A: Pursue all potential and viable funding sources for active transportation, including sources such as Measure BB as well as funding for routine maintenance and Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget for typical roadway projects that can integrate active mode components.

Action 1-1B: Implement at least two Class IV separated bikeway pilot projects by 2021.

Action 1-1C: Implement at least five of the high priority projects detailed in this Plan by 2021.

Action 1-1D: Conduct complete streets studies on two key roadways for all modes: Foothill Road and Santa Rita Road.

Action 1-1E: Implement the *Downtown Specific Plan* and specifically all pedestrian and public space enhancements within that plan.

Action 1-1F: Continue to update the *PBMP* every five years to reflect the latest in active transportation planning and design.



Policy 1-2: Promote expansion and maintenance of a trail system serving Pleasanton's diverse population while respecting and protecting the integrity of its natural and cultural resources.

Action 1-2A: Update and implement the Community Trails Master Plan.

Action 1-2B: Cooperate with East Bay Regional Parks District in completing a regional trail system, and with Zone 7 in completing its Arroyo Management Plan.

Action 1-2C: Enhance access to trails from the city's roadway network through the provision of paths, walkways, trail crossings, and other infrastructure to integrate parks, open space, and trails with the city's on-street bicycle and sidewalk network.

Action 1-2D: Develop a citywide signage and wayfinding system for pedestrians and bicyclists, including distances to destinations and facility type indications that reflect the local culture and community.

Policy 1-3: Promote the development of a comprehensive system of pedestrian, bicycle, and hiking trails throughout open-space lands in the Planning Area consistent with the Trails Master Plan.

Action 1-3A: Continue to require developers to dedicate public-access easements for trails in private open-space areas, where feasible.

Action 1-3B: Retain all publicly-owned corridors and strive toward obtaining more – e.g., abandoned rail lines, utility corridors, water courses and canals, and other easements – for future open space and trail use.

Action 1-3C: Encourage separation of the East Bay Regional Park District's Iron Horse Trail from existing roadways and sidewalks, where feasible, particularly in the southern portion of the trail.



Action 1-3D: Develop the Downtown portion of the Alameda County Transportation Corridor for pedestrian, bicyclists and motor vehicle parking, consistent with the 2002 Master Plan for the Downtown Parks and Trails System and with the current update to the Downtown Specific Plan.

Action 1-3E: Create connections linking the trail system to Pleasanton schools, transit, and Downtown wherever possible.

Policy 1-4: Develop a maintenance program for bicycle and pedestrian facilities by 2021.

Action 1-4A: Maintain bikeways, including paved trails and separated bikeways, with adequate sweeping, pavement repairs and vegetation trimming on a monthly basis, or as directed by the City Traffic Engineer or Director of Engineering.

Action 1-4B: Work with the city's existing maintenance reporting system and increase public awareness of the existing system as a means to report bicycle and pedestrian facilities needing repair and/or clean-up.

Action 1-4C: Allocate a percentage of each year's CIP to trail, street maintenance and roadway improvements along bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

Goal 2: Use best practices and innovative but tested pedestrian and bicycle designs to build continuous, safe and comfortable walking and bicycling networks.

Policy 2-1: Plan and design for low traffic stress facilities for bicyclists wherever feasible on existing streets and in new developments.

Action 2-1A: Provide and maintain signal detection for bicyclists at all signalized intersections, including on side streets.

Action 2-1B: At intersections of designated bikeways, provide design accommodations for bicyclists making left-turns, such as detection in turn pockets, dedicated bicycle signal phases, bicycle boxes, or two-stage turn boxes where feasible.

Action 2-1C: On residential Class III bicycle boulevards, provide traffic calming to reduce speeds and, if feasible, traffic volumes.



Policy 2-2: Plan and design all streets as complete streets serving pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and transit riders, striving to accommodate people of all ages and abilities.

Action 2-2A: Routinely identify and integrate bicycle and pedestrian improvements into all standard maintenance (such as overlays and repaving), planning studies, roadway redesign, and auto-focused CIP projects (such as new signals or signal modifications).

Action 2-2B: Require design measures and facilities to accommodate access by pedestrians, bicycles, and transit in new developments and redevelopments, including bicycle parking facilities, low stress bicycle and pedestrian facilities along desire lines, and transit-friendly designs for the site perimeter and internal circulation patterns.

Goal 3: Coordinate across City departments to provide education, encouragement, and enforcement programs to improve safety for all users and increase the number of walking and bicycling trips.

Chapter 6 of this Plan presents more information on existing and recommended programs.

Policy 3-1: Increase bicycle and pedestrian mode share by increasing public awareness of the available pedestrian, bicycle, and trail facilities and programs.

Action 3-1A: Consider creating a city-sponsored self-service bicycle-sharing program.

Action 3-1B: Seek funding from Safe Routes to Schools grants.

Action 3-1C: Continue to develop and promote existing education and encouragement programs, including but not limited to Bike to Work Day, Bike to School Day, bicycle safety courses and a citywide bicycle user map. Continue Police Department programs such as Bicycle Rodeos, bicycle and pedestrian pamphlets, and classroom education.

Action 3-1D: Evaluate the success and effectiveness of each program and introduce targeted new initiatives. Promote and accommodate bicycle events such as the Pleasanton Bicycle Safety Festival and Bike to Work and School Day.



Action 3-1E: Work towards recognition as a Silver-level Bicycle Friendly Community and recognition as a Walk Friendly Community.

Policy 3-2: Promote traffic safety, bicycle safety, and pedestrian safety education in Pleasanton.

Action 3-2A: Coordinate across city departments and with community partners such as Bike East Bay and the Alameda Safe Routes Partnership to promote safety education and awareness for all modes in Pleasanton.

Goal 4: Maximize multi-modal transportation options for people who live, work, and/or play in Pleasanton by enhancing walking and bicycling connections to transit including BART, ACE, and bus connections, as well as parks, schools, shopping, and other key destinations.

Policy 4-1: Provide safe, comfortable, and convenient bicycle and pedestrian connections and support facilities at transit stations.

Action 4-1A: Provide safe, comfortable, convenient, and continuous bicycle and pedestrian facilities within one mile of the BART and ACE stations, and within an eighth of a mile of Wheels bus stops.

Action 4-1B: Provide short-term bicycle racks and longer-term secure bicycle parking, such as bicycle lockers or a bicycle station, at the two BART stations and the ACE station.

Policy 4-2: Ensure secure, adequate and easily accessible bicycle parking at destinations throughout Pleasanton.

Action 4-2A: Provide a citywide bicycle rack request program, siting racks in locations out of the pedestrian through zone and in highly visible locations, as described in the PBMP Design Guidelines. Consider Pleasanton-specific branding of the bicycle racks.

Action 4-2B: Update the Municipal Code to provide adequate and secure bicycle parking (i.e., a combination of outdoor racks, covered or indoor storage at workplaces and residences, etc.) with new development and at existing locations where long-term parking is desirable, such as in Downtown and near the three transit stations, consistent with the PBMP Design Guidelines.



Action 4-2C: Request the Pleasanton Unified School District and commercial businesses provide and actively maintain sufficient, convenient, safe, and attractive bicycle racks.

Action 4-2D: Implement a pilot on-street bicycle parking corral in Downtown.

Policy 4-3: Integrate land-use and transportation planning to ensure patterns facilitate safe and convenient mobility of people and goods at a reasonable cost, and to increase travel alternatives to single-occupant automobiles.

Action 4-3A: Prioritize projects that provide bicycle and pedestrian connections at BART, ACE, and major bus stops.

Goal 5: Improve traffic safety for all modes, and particularly the most vulnerable roadway users - bicyclists and pedestrians.

Policy 5-1: Work to reduce the number of severe injury and fatal bicycle and pedestrian crashes to zero.

Action 5-1A: Adopt a multi-modal citywide Vision Zero policy and systemic safety strategy to proactively identify safety issues and implement safety countermeasures, utilizing best practice engineering, enforcement, and public education tools.

Action 5-1B: Monitor and record bicycle and pedestrian-related collisions. At areas with high injury collisions, develop improvement plans to lower crash rates.

Action 5-1C: Implement the continuous network of low-traffic stress bicycle facilities proposed in this PBMP with high levels of protection (such as Class IV separated bikeways) on arterials, and shared lanes with traffic calming on low-volume residential streets (such as residential bicycle routes).

Action 5-1D: Allocate staff time to applying for and developing improvement plans for Caltrans Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) or other grant funding to install walking and bicycling safety improvements at areas with high numbers of high injury collisions in order to lower the crash rate.

Policy 5-2: Proactively improve safety for bicyclists, pedestrians, transit users and drivers.



- Action 5-2A: Implement the proposed Vision Zero Strategy and monitor and evaluate on an ongoing basis.
- Action 5-2B: Adopt and implement a multi-modal safety assessment methodology for all city transportation studies.
- Action 5-2C: Provide sidewalks on both sides of arterial streets, as detailed in the PBMP design guidelines.
- Action 5-2D: Restrict parking near intersections to ensure pedestrian visibility.
- Action 5-2E: Explicitly prohibit parking in bicycle lanes and work with the Police Department to provide enforcement.

Action 5-2F: Work with Pleasanton Unified School District to implement the school's traffic-calming and shared-parking solutions in the Rides-to-School Program.

Action 5-2G: Provide marked crosswalks to serve key desire lines where demand and engineering considerations in **Appendix A Crosswalk Policy** are met.

Action 5-2H: Where feasible, tighten corner radii at arterial intersections to slow turning vehicular traffic and improve pedestrian and bicycle safety at intersections.

Action 5-2I: Routinely consult the Crosswalk Policy in **Section A.2** to identify crosswalk improvements at signalized, stopcontrolled, and uncontrolled locations for all development review, planning studies, signal modifications and new signal projects.



3. Walking and Bicycling in Pleasanton Today

3.1 Destinations and Desire Lines

Residents, employees, and visitors in Pleasanton walk and bicycle for both recreational and utilitarian reasons. Understanding popular destinations and desire lines (efficient routes of travel) is essential for identifying and prioritizing improvement projects that best meet the needs of the most users. The diverse mix of land uses in the city, and range of development types and densities, results in varying levels of access for pedestrians and bicyclists. This offers opportunity areas but also major challenges.

With numerous trails, parks, and open space areas, and on-street cycling loops, climbs and group rides, walking, bicycling, running and hiking for exercise is popular, and enjoyed year-round in Pleasanton. Key destinations for recreation include the skate park at Stoneridge, the BMX park at Stanley, Pleasanton Ridge, Augustin Bernal Park, Alviso Adobe Community Park, the Senior Center on Sunol Boulevard, Aquatic Center on Black Avenue, Pleasanton Library on Old Bernal Avenue, Pleasanton Sports and Recreational Park along Parkside Drive, and the Iron Horse Trail.

The heat map from the Strava exercise app illustrates some of the on-street routes used by recreational cyclists in Pleasanton and nearby areas. Popular routes shown include the Vineyard Avenue into Livermore, as well as Foothill Road and Sunol Boulevard.

Walking and bicycling are also important modes for travel to and from home, work, school, and shopping/errands/entertainment. Pleasanton has many residential neighborhoods around the historic downtown area, as well as reaching north toward I-580 and west, just beyond I-680 to Pleasanton Ridge. Residential areas typically have landscaped medians, local parks, and local schools. Most have sidewalks and are walkable internally, but often require major arterial crossings for access to other neighborhoods or major destinations.

In addition to neighborhood elementary schools, three public junior high schools and three public high schools, as well as several private schools, are key destinations for walking and bicycling in the city.



The city also boasts significant commercial and office centers on its northern edge along I-580 and near the West Dublin/Pleasanton and Dublin/Pleasanton BART Stations. This includes the commercial development near Stoneridge Mall, Hacienda Business Park, Dublin/Pleasanton Park and Rose Pavilion. Several other office parks, including Bernal Corporate Park, are located throughout central Pleasanton.

Downtown Pleasanton is a significant destination for dining and shopping, and is also where city offices, the ACE train station, and community facilities, such as the senior center and library, and Firehouse Arts Center, are located. Other retail hubs include Stoneridge Mall and Pleasanton Gateway Shopping Center, as well as several neighborhood retail centers and strip malls. In the summer, the Alameda County Fairgrounds is an important local and regional destination. **Figure 3-1** presents existing citywide land use patterns per the General Plan.



Many bicyclists in Pleasanton ride long distances for recreation. Some of the popular routes that provide important regional connections include Foothill Road, Dublin Canyon Road, Sunol Boulevard, and Vineyard Avenue. Some Pleasanton bicyclists use the Strava app to document their rides, as shown in the heat map at left. Orange and red lines indicate more Strava riders.

Source:

http://labs.strava.com/heatmap/#13/-121.91279/37.66779/yellow/bike




3.2 Active Transportation Mode Share

Table 3-1 presents the 2015 Citywide Travel Demand Model estimates of the number of existing trips taken each day by travel mode. Another data source, the California Household Travel Survey, which is a statewide survey on travel patterns, is presented as a point of comparison. Both show a walking mode share of just under 8% and a bicycling mode share of around 0.5%. The total person trips represents the sum of each individual trip taken on a typical day across Pleasanton. These estimates include all trip purposes, such as travel to/from home, work, and other destinations as well as recreational activities.

| Table 3-1: Existing Trips in Pleasanton by Travel Mode | | | |
|--|--|------------|---------------------------|
| | City of Pleasanton Existing Trip Estimate ¹ | | CUTS Made Salit Fatimate? |
| Travel Mode | Person Trips | Mode Split | |
| Auto | 1,448,032 | 90.5% | 89.8% |
| Transit | 15,226 | 1.0% | 2.2% |
| Bike | 12,822 | 0.8% | 0.4% |
| Walk | 123,632 | 7.7% | 7.6% |
| Total | 1,599,711 | 100.0% | 100.0% |

1. Per the City of Pleasanton Citywide Travel Demand Model (2015).

2. Statistics presented from the California Household Travel Survey (CHTS) (2013).



3.3 Walking Conditions in Pleasanton

This section presents a baseline of current issues and opportunities for walking in Pleasanton. With a goal of more and safer walking, future year comparisons versus this baseline can be used to illustrate progress in these areas.

3.3.1 Pedestrian Safety

The following summarizes pedestrian-involved collisions that occurred between 2010 and 2015, identifying trends and collision hot spots. In general, the total number of collisions is lower than other California cities similar in size to Pleasanton. Although the collision rates are low, pedestrian-related collisions result in injuries 88 percent of the time.

3.3.1.1 Pedestrian Safety in a Statewide Context

The California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) maintains a database of collision injuries and fatalities across the state. Cities are grouped by size according to total population. Pleasanton is in a population cohort with 103 total cities ranging in size from 50,001 to 100,000 residents. Pleasanton's rankings from 2013, the most recent year available for OTS rankings, are summarized in **Table 3-2**.

| Table 3-2: Pleasanton Collision Rankings among Similar Cities, 2013 | | | |
|---|----------------------|--|-----------------------------|
| Type of Collision | Injures ¹ | Percentage of All Injury Collisions ¹ | OTS Ranking (of 103 cities) |
| Total ² Fatal and Injury | 320 | 100% | 76 th |
| Pedestrians | 12 | 4% | 90 th |
| Pedestrians <15 | 1 | <1% | 77 th |
| Pedestrian 65+ | 2 | 1% | 71 th |



1. Injury figure includes all types of injuries: complaint of pain, other visible injury, severe injury, and fatality. Per the City of Pleasanton's crossroads database, one fatal pedestrian collision in 2013.

2. Total includes fatal and injury collisions for all travel modes, including auto-auto, auto-pedestrian, and auto-bicycle. Source: California Office of Traffic Safety 2013 OTS Rankings

Key findings from the OTS rankings include:

- Pleasanton ranked favorably for pedestrian safety overall, with fewer reported collisions than 87 percent of similarly sized California jurisdictions.
- Pleasanton also ranked favorably for pedestrian safety for students (those under 15 years of age) and for seniors (those over 65 years of age), with only one reported collision.



3.3.1.2 Pedestrian-Involved Collisions

Pedestrian-involved collision records in the City of Pleasanton Crossroads database from September 2010 to August 2015 show 68 pedestrian-involved collisions were reported during this period. On average, 13 pedestrian-involved collisions were reported annually with a high of 15 collisions in both 2013 and 2014. The location of collisions was split fairly evenly, with 53 percent occurring mid-block and 47 percent occurring at intersections.

Figure 3-2 identifies the location, severity, and frequency of these pedestrianinvolved collisions. The highest injury corridors for pedestrians are:

- Santa Rita Road/Main Street, including one fatal and two severe injury collisions
- Hopyard Road, including two severe injury collisions
- Owens Drive, including two severe injury collisions
- Hacienda Drive
- Bernal Avenue

Seventy-four percent of all pedestrian-involved collisions occurred on the following 13 roadways: Bernal Avenue, Chabot Drive, First Street, Gibraltar Avenue, Hacienda Drive, Hopyard Road, Las Positas Boulevard, Main Street, Owens Drive, Santa Rita Road, Stoneridge Road, Stoneridge Mall Road, and Valley Avenue

Table 3-3 identifies locations where more than one pedestrian collision was recorded in or near the intersection over the five-year period.





Table 3-3: Locations With the Highest Frequency of Pedestrian Collisions In Or Near the Intersection

| Intersection | Number of Collisions | |
|---|----------------------|--|
| Foothill Road and Oak Creek Drive | 2 | |
| Stoneridge Mall Road and Deodar Way | 2 | |
| Stoneridge Mall Road and Embarcadero Court | 2 | |
| Hacienda Drive and Park Hacienda Driveway | 2 | |
| Santa Rita Road and Rosewood Drive | 2 | |
| Santa Rita Road and Sutter Gate Avenue | 2 | |
| Santa Rita Road and Valley Avenue | 2 | |
| Santa Rita Road and Francisco Street | 2 | |
| Valley Avenue and Paseo Santa Cruz | 2 | |
| Source: City of Pleasanton Crossroads database, 2010-2015 | | |

Table 3-4 identifies the reported violations for pedestrian-involved collisions in Pleasanton for 2010-2015. Driver violation of pedestrian right-ofway represented the majority of the reported collisions, at 57 percent. Of those collisions, 64 percent happened at intersections. Elevating the visibility of pedestrians, protecting turn movements, and driver education campaigns could be targeted at these locations.

The second most common violation category was pedestrian violations, accounting for 16 percent of collisions. Support programs that target pedestrian behaviors through enforcement and education campaigns could be opportunities to reduce these collision types.

The third most common violation category was unsafe starting or backing violations. All four of these collisions occurred at midblock locations.



| Table 3-4: Violation Category of Pedestrian Collisions | | | | | |
|---|----|-----|--|--|--|
| Violation Category Number of Collisions Percent of Collisions | | | | | |
| Auto Violation of Pedestrian Right of Way | 39 | 57% | | | |
| Pedestrian Violation | 11 | 16% | | | |
| Not Stated/Unknown | 5 | 7% | | | |
| Unsafe Starting or Backing | 4 | 6% | | | |
| Other Improper Driving | 3 | 4% | | | |
| Auto Right of Way Violation | 3 | 4% | | | |
| Improper Turning | 2 | 3% | | | |
| Unsafe Speed | 1 | 1% | | | |
| Source: City of Pleasanton Crossroads database, 2010-2015 | | | | | |

As shown in **Table 3-5**, approximately 88 percent of all pedestrian-involved collisions in 2010-2015 resulted in an injury.



| Table 3-5: Pedestrian Injury Severity | | | |
|--|----------------------|----------------|-----------------------|
| Injury Severity Number of Collisions Per | | | Percent of Collisions |
| Property Da | amage Only | 8 | 12% |
| s | Other Visible Injury | 28 | 41% |
| ollision | Complaints of Pain | 21 | 31% |
| ury Co | Severe Injury | 10 | 15% |
| i[n] | Fatal | 1 ¹ | 1% |

1. Note that as shown on Figure 1, an additional pedestrian fatality occurred at First Street/Abbie Street in November, 2015. Source: City of Pleasanton Crossroads database, 2010-2015







3.3.2 Pedestrian Infrastructure

Pedestrian-related issues and opportunities were identified in the following focus areas, which generally have the highest concentration of walking in the city:

- Downtown Pleasanton
- Alameda County Fairgrounds
- ACE and Dublin/Pleasanton BART Train stations
- Stoneridge Mall/ West Dublin/Pleasanton BART station
- Areas surrounding all schools and parks

In each area, presence and quality of sidewalks were inventoried. Signalized, stop-controlled, and uncontrolled crossings were also examined.

3.3.3 Sidewalks

Walking can be a utilitarian activity that ranges in distance from relatively short (from a parked car to a business) to longer trips. Walking also has an important social function – walking children to school or walking with friends to shop or exercise. Therefore, sidewalks should be comfortable enough for people to walk side-by-side and pass each other. Other important variables in pedestrian comfort include landscaping and street trees: these provide a horizontal and vertical buffer from busy roadway traffic, and shade during Pleasanton's warm summers. Good quality of the sidewalk surface – with no cracks in the surface, few driveways, and where driveways are present, cross-slopes and level areas that provide continuity of the sidewalk environment – supports people of all abilities successfully navigating and enjoying the city as pedestrians.

Sidewalks in Pleasanton are typically continuous and in good condition, allowing people to generally walk to destinations. Portions of the city have sidewalks narrower than five feet and, in a few areas, no sidewalk is provided. As mapped on **Figure 3-3**, key sidewalk deficiencies include:

• The Stoneridge Mall area: significant sidewalk gaps within 1/2 mile of the West Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station.



- Foothill Road: significant sidewalk gaps along the length of the corridor. County pockets on Foothill Road also contribute to sidewalk discontinuity.
- Downtown: Outdoor seating and street furnishings encroach on the usable sidewalk space.
- Residential streets: sidewalks are less than five feet or no sidewalk is provided in some areas.

3.3.4 Paths and Trails

Paths and trails in Pleasanton provide a great resource for both utilitarian and recreational trips. They are located citywide, often along waterways as well as in the open space areas. This Plan focuses on the paths and trails within the developed portions of the city, with an emphasis on access to those paths and trails. The Community Trails Master Plan is an important document that addresses all paths and trails citywide.

Some trails in Pleasanton are not paved, such as the Arroyo de Laguna and Arroyo Del Valle Trails, which may limit the usability of those trails for people of all abilities and utilitarian bicycling trips. Off-street facilities are more expensive and more difficult to maintain, particularly in terms of maintaining surface quality. The city is currently testing various paving treatments for Arroyo Mocho Trail to better understand a preferred trail design to maximize durability and minimize maintenance costs.

In addition to different paving types, the width of paths throughout the city can vary, typically ranging from 8-10 feet. At newer trail crossings, such as the Iron Horse Trail extension near Dublin/Pleasanton BART, the city has signalized trail crossings, which provides high quality support for trail users to cross major roadways.



Figure 3-3 Existing Sidewalk Gaps



3.3.5 Crosswalks

Signalized intersections in Pleasanton are frequently large with many lanes of traffic in each direction, particularly where arterial and/or collector roadways intersect. At these locations, crosswalks are typically marked but have very long crossing distances. In some cases a fourth leg may not be marked, in favor of vehicle traffic operations. Many intersections have slip lanes which may further lengthen the crossing distance and, where those right-turn slip lanes are not signalized, may allow autos to make free, and often higher speed, turns across the crosswalk. Even without slip lanes, curb radii at these locations often allow vehicles to make higher speed right-turns and further lengthen crossing distances.

All signals in the city have pedestrian countdown indicators to warn those crossing of time remaining before the signal changes. Many signals in the city are designed with protected left turns. This design is generally safer for pedestrians as it removes the conflict between the crosswalk and left turn movements. Pedestrian push buttons are also used at signalized intersections throughout the city. In areas with high pedestrian demand, placing the signal on a pedestrian recall setting during peak periods (where the walk signal is provided automatically each cycle) can be a preferred operation.

At all-way stop-controlled intersections, vehicles stop and give the rightof-way to pedestrians crossing the street. Some all-way stop-controlled intersections in the city do not have marked crosswalks. Vehicles typically stop at the stop bar and can impede the pedestrian travel way in these cases. Advanced stop bars and marked crosswalks can encourage vehicles to stop in advance of the pedestrian crossing area. All-way stop-controlled locations with multiple lanes per approach, as shown at right, can cause sight distance issues for pedestrians in the crosswalk.



Bent or angled crosswalks, such as the one shown above, create longer crossing distances for pedestrians and pose challenges for those with visual impairments who typically cannot detect the change in crosswalk alignment, making navigation difficult.



Uncontrolled crosswalks do not have a stop sign or signal for vehicles. Marking crosswalks can be important for improving the perception of the legitimacy of pedestrian crossings and designating preferred crossing locations. When uncontrolled crosswalks are located on two-lane roadways in residential areas, signing and striping are typically sufficient to signal drivers to yield to pedestrians in the crosswalk. However, in more auto-dominated environments, such as multi-lane or higher-speed roadways, signing and striping alone may not be enough to ensure safety and remind drivers to yield to pedestrians. On multi-lane roadways, "multiple threat" collisions, where a driver yields to a pedestrian and a car in the adjacent travel lane cannot see



the pedestrian, the pedestrian is obscured by the yielding vehicle, are the most common crash type.¹ As a result, additional devices such as flashing beacons or signals may be required. Flashing beacons, such as pedestrian hybrid beacons (PHBs), have demonstrated safety benefits.

Pleasanton has uncontrolled crosswalks in areas with high pedestrian activity that could benefit from additional treatments. Installing PAFBs and PHBs at uncontrolled crossing locations near schools, parks, BART stations and downtown could increase the awareness of drivers to the presence of pedestrians.

3.3.6 Other Walkability Considerations

3.3.6.1.1 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Non-Compliance Locations

The best practice for ADA curb ramps at crossings is typically to provide directional curb ramps orienting those with mobility and visual impairment directly into the crosswalk. This often requires curb extensions or tighter curb radii. Pleasanton typically has diagonal ramps – one per corner – at

¹ Zeeger, et al. "Safety Effects of Marked Versus Unmarked Crosswalks at Uncontrolled Locations." FHWA, 2005.



most locations. In some cases, these may need to be upgraded to include truncated domes to signal those with visual impairments they are approaching a crossing.

3.3.6.1.2 Wide, High-speed Arterial Roadways

In Pleasanton, as is the case in many areas with suburban development patterns, a major barrier to pedestrian travel is crossing and walking along wide, high-speed arterial roadways. Many arterials have been built wide to accommodate peak traffic levels. High vehicle speeds are problematic for pedestrians by limiting the opportunities where pedestrians can safely cross the street and making them vulnerable to more severe injuries in a collision. While arterials allow for good auto access, they can create inhospitable environments for pedestrians, particularly when these roadways are close to major destinations, such as schools, Downtown, and the BART stations.

The presence of wide multi-lane arterials means large intersections and long pedestrians crossing distances. Signal cycle lengths at large intersections can be upwards of two minutes to account for the heavy volumes traveling through the intersection and the long time required for pedestrians to cross. Pedestrian delay at these intersections can be very high, especially if they are crossing more than one leg of the intersection. To avoid delay for autos, many of these intersections also have uncontrolled or yield-controlled channelized right-turn lanes, allowing higher speed turns through the crosswalk, such as the example from the Stanley Boulevard/Bernal Avenue/Valley Avenue intersection. Walking along these roads can also be stressful to pedestrians, especially if parking or landscape barriers are

not present as a buffer.

3.3.6.1.3 Barriers to Access and Connectivity

Because Pleasanton is located at the junction of I-680 and I-580, the city is well-connected to destinations throughout the Bay Area. The two Dublin/Pleasanton BART stations further serve residents' and employees' regional transportation needs. However, both the freeway and BART system present challenges to walking in Pleasanton. Many freeway interchanges do not have specific accommodations for



pedestrians. In some cases, sidewalks end or substantially narrow before the interchange or the overpass. For example, the sidewalk on the south



side of West Last Positas Boulevard drops in advance of the I-680 overpass, often resulting in pedestrians walking in the bicycle lane. The city recently closed sidewalk gaps at Santa Rita Road and I-580; however, the multi-lane westbound on-ramp crossing, for example, still poses a significant barrier to pedestrian travel. In all cases, wide travel lanes and high speed vehicular traffic at on- and off-ramps create difficult crossing points for pedestrians. This affects access between Pleasanton neighborhoods across I-680 and to/from destinations in Dublin across I-580.

3.3.7 Pedestrian Connections to Key Destinations

3.3.7.1 Schools and Parks

Pedestrian activity is high around Pleasanton schools, as many schools are conveniently located in neighborhoods. The pedestrian challenges in these neighborhoods can include auto traffic during pick-up and drop-off times, and conflict points at pedestrian crossings. Improvements for safe routes to schools and parks could include installing high visibility crosswalks with flashing beacons at uncontrolled locations, creating clear expectations between parents driving to pick-up/drop-off students and those walking, and providing traffic calming near schools.

While elementary schools are neighborhood-based, middle and high schools are often located on arterials and collectors. Examples include Pleasanton Middle School off of Case Avenue, shown at right, where students frequently cross Bernal Avenue to get to the library and other Downtown destinations after school. Other examples include Amador Valley High



School on Santa Rita Road, Harvest Park Middle School on Valley Avenue, Foothill High School on Foothill Road, and Thomas S. Hart Middle School on West Las Positas Boulevard.

3.3.7.2 Transit

Pleasanton has three major transit stations in addition to bus service. Pedestrian access to and from these stations has major barriers and opportunity areas.



- West Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station Lack of pedestrian wayfinding signage and continuous sidewalk creates a challenge for pedestrians accessing the station. Key destinations near the stations, such as employment centers and the Stoneridge Mall, provide the potential for significant pedestrian activity with the improvement of infrastructure in the area.
- **Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station** Wide roadways with long blocks and vehicles traveling at high speeds create barriers for pedestrians accessing the station. The Iron Horse Trail provides access mid-block on Owens Drive and connects to the station area. A pedestrian plaza and transit waiting area are located south of I-580 and the fare gates.
- ACE Train Station The ACE train station is located downtown, directly adjacent to the fairgrounds. This creates a great opportunity for visitors to access key destinations in Pleasanton. The station is at-grade, on the opposite side of the tracks from downtown, which creates challenges for connecting pedestrians to the downtown neighborhood and businesses on Main Street. Pedestrian scale wayfinding to safe crossings could improve the connectivity between ACE and the rest of the neighborhood.

3.4 Bicycling Conditions in Pleasanton

This section describes the existing bicycling conditions in Pleasanton, including a review of bicycle-involved collisions and an inventory of infrastructure and associated connectivity.

3.4.1 Bicycle Safety

3.4.1.1 Pleasanton Bicycle Safety in Context

The California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) maintains a database of collision injuries and fatalities across the state. Cities are grouped by size according to total population. Pleasanton is in a population cohort with 103 total cities ranging in size from 50,001 to 100,000 residents. Pleasanton's rankings for 2013, the most recent year available for OTS rankings, are summarized in **Table 3-6**.

Table 3-6: Pleasanton Collision Rankings among Similar Cities, 2013

Walking and Bicycling in Pleasanton Today | 3

| Type of Collision | Injuries ¹ | Percentage of All Injury Collisions ¹ | OTS Ranking (of 103 cities) |
|-------------------------------------|-----------------------|--|-----------------------------|
| Total ² Fatal and Injury | 342 | 100% | 76 th |
| Bicyclists | 25 | 8% | 79 th |
| Bicyclists <15 | 6 | 2% | 21 st |

1. Injury figure includes all types of injuries: complaint of pain, other visible injury, severe injury, and fatality. Per the City of Pleasanton's crossroads database, one fatal bicycle collision in 2013.

2. Total includes fatal and injury collisions for all travel modes, including auto-auto, auto-pedestrian, and auto-bicycle.

Sources: Pleasanton Crossroads Database; California Office of Traffic Safety 2013 OTS Rankings

Key findings from the 2013 OTS rankings include:

- Pleasanton ranked favorably for overall bicyclist safety, with only 25 reported bicycle injury collisions, fewer than about 77 percent of similarly-sized cities. However, bicycle collisions still represented 8 percent of all injury collisions, a significantly larger percentage than Pleasanton's 1 percent bicycling mode share.
- Pleasanton ranked less favorably for collisions involving bicyclists under 15 years of age. The 6 injury collisions involving young bicyclists ranked in the top 20 percent largest number of collisions for similarly-sized cities. This number represents only 2 percent of total injury collisions, though, and can vary significantly from year to year, given the small sample size. Potential solutions include biking improvements along popular routes to school, expanded participation in Safe Routes to School education programs to improve bicycle safety skills of students, and driver education about safely interacting with bicyclists, particularly children.



3.4.1.2 Bicycle-Involved Collisions

Between 2010 and 2015, 132 bicycle-involved collisions were reported per the city's Crossroads database. On average, Pleasanton had 26 bicycle collisions each year, with a high of 33 collisions in 2014. **Figure 3-4** identifies the locations, severity, and frequency of these collisions. Key findings from the analysis include the following:

- The highest injury concentration areas for bicyclists are:
 - Santa Rita Road/Main Street, including one fatal and two severe injury collisions
 - o Downtown Pleasanton area
 - Valley Avenue, including one severe injury collision
 - o Stoneridge Drive
 - o Owens Drive
- Eighty-two percent of all bicyclist collisions occurred on the following nine roadways: Bernal Avenue, First Street, Hopyard Road, Las Positas Boulevard, Owens Drive, Santa Rita Road, Stoneridge Road, Valley Avenue, and Vineyard Avenue

Table 3-7 identifies locations where more than one bicycle-involved collision was recorded in or near the intersection over the five-year period.





Table 3-7: Locations With the Highest Frequency of Bicycle Collisions in or Near The Intersection

| Intersection | Number of Collisions | Intersection | Number of Collisions |
|--|----------------------|---------------------------------------|----------------------|
| Santa Rita Road and Valley Avenue | 4 | Hacienda Drive and Stoneridge Drive | 2 |
| Stoneridge Drive and Johnson Drive | 4 | Hopyard Road and Del Valle Pkwy | 2 |
| First Street and W Angela Street | 3 | Hopyard Road and Inglewood Drive | 2 |
| Hopyard Road and Valley Avenue | 3 | Hopyard Road and Owens Drive | 2 |
| W Las Positas Boulevard and Owens Drive | 3 | Owens Drive and Rosewood Drive | 2 |
| Santa Rita Road and Francisco Street | 3 | Peters Avenue and St. Marys Street | 2 |
| Santa Rita Road and Morganfield Road | 3 | Pleasanton Avenue and W Angela Street | 2 |
| Santa Rita Road and Old Santa Rita Road | 3 | Santa Rita Road and Black Avenue | 2 |
| Willow Road and Gibraltar Drive | 3 | Santa Rita Road and Rosewood Drive | 2 |
| Bernal Avenue and Case Avenue | 2 | Santa Rita Road and Stoneridge Drive | 2 |
| Bernal Avenue and I-680 NB Ramps | 2 | Stoneridge Drive and I-680 SB Ramps | 2 |
| Bernal Avenue and Koll Center Drive | 2 | Stoneridge Mall Road and Workday Way | 2 |
| Bernal Avenue and Stanley Blvd | 2 | Valley Avenue and Case Avenue | 2 |
| First Street and Neal Street | 2 | | |
| Foothill Road and Muirwood Drive | 2 | | |
| Greenwood Road and Valley Avenue | 2 | | |
| Source: City of Pleasanton Crossroads database, 2010-2 | 015 | | 1 |



3.4.1.2.1 Reported Violations

Table 3-8 details the reported vehicle-code violations for all bicycle-involved collisions in the city from 2010-2015. Most common is auto right-ofway violations. Auto right-of-way violations were widely distributed across violation categories, including speeding, not obeying traffic signals and signs, improper turning, vehicles starting/backing up in unpredictable ways, and unsafe lane changes, among others. Only a small number of collisions – three percent – were due to wrong-way bicycle riding.

| Table 3-8: Violation Category of Bicycle Collisions | | | |
|---|----------------------|-----------------------|--|
| Violation Category | Number of Collisions | Percent of Collisions | |
| Auto Right of Way Violation | 51 | 39% | |
| Not Stated/Unknown | 13 | 10% | |
| Unsafe Speed | 12 | 9% | |
| Improper Turning | 11 | 8% | |
| Other Hazardous Movement | 10 | 8% | |
| Traffic Signal and Signs | 9 | 7% | |
| Auto Violation of Bicycle Right of Way | 6 | 5% | |
| Unsafe Starting or Backing | 6 | 5% | |
| Wrong Side of Road | 4 | 3% | |
| Other Improper Driving | 4 | 3% | |
| Unsafe Lane Change | 3 | 2% | |
| Bicycle Violation | 2 | 2% | |

Walking and Bicycling in Pleasanton Today | 3

| Table 3-8: Violation Category of Bicycle Collisions | | | | |
|--|---|----|--|--|
| Violation Category Number of Collisions Percent of Collisi | | | | |
| Other than Driver | 1 | 1% | | |
| Source: City of Pleasanton Crossroads database, 2010-2015 | | | | |

3.4.1.2.2 Injury Severity

Table 3-9 shows bicyclists sustained an injury in **90 percent** of the reported collisions. The majority of injuries (86%) was lower-order – other visible injury or complaints of pain. Severe injuries occurred in three percent of collisions. One bicyclist was killed in Pleasanton between 2010 and 2015, on Foothill Road 1000 feet south of the intersection with Golden Eagle Way.

Bicyclists were injury in 90% of reported collisions

| Table 3-9: Bicyclist Injury Severity | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------|-----------------------|--|
| Injury Severity | Number | Percent of Collisions | |
| Property Damage Only | 13 | 10% | |
| Other Visible Injury | 66 | 50% | |
| Complaints of Pain | 48 | 36% | |
| Severe Injury | 4 | 3% | |
| Fatal | 1 | 1% | |

Source: City of Pleasanton Crossroads database, 2010-2015







3.4.2 Existing Bicycle Infrastructure

3.4.2.1 Class I Paths

Class I Bikeways (Bicycle Path or Multi-Use Path) provide a completely separate right-ofway and are designated for the exclusive use of bicycles and pedestrians with vehicle and pedestrian cross-flow minimized. The city has a variety of paved and unpaved multi-use paths connecting Pleasanton to other cities in the region. Approximately 13 miles of paved bicycle paths exist in the city. These include the following:

- Iron Horse Trail
- Centennial Trail
- Arroyo Mocho Trail
- Pleasanton Canal Trail
- Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail

With the recent Iron Horse Trail gap closure project south of the Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station, the city installed signalized trail crossings to support pedestrians and bicyclists, such as the one shown at right at Hacienda Drive.

3.4.2.2 Class II Bicycle Lanes

Class II Bikeways (Bicycle Lanes) provide a restricted right-of-way and are designated for the use of bicycles with a striped lane on a street or highway. Bicycle lanes are generally at least five feet wide. Vehicle/pedestrian cross-flow is permitted as required. Where these







conflict zones occur, the bicyclist path of travel can be highlighted with green paint, similar to what the city installed at Sunol Boulevard through the I-680 interchange.

Approximately 40 miles of Class II bicycle lanes exist in the city.

3.4.2.3 Class III Bicycle Routes

Class III Bikeways (Bicycle Route) are designated by signs or pavement markings for shared use with motor vehicles. A sharrow is typically marked on a Class III route to show the suggested path of travel for bicyclists. This is often done when the route has onstreet parking to encourage cyclists to ride a safe distance away from the parked vehicles' "door zone" and/or to show the recommended path of travel for the bicyclist. Sharrows also inform drivers that cyclists should be expected on the street and given sufficient room. Approximately seven miles of Class III bicycle routes exist in the city.

Approximately 13 miles of paved bicycle paths,40 miles of Class II bicycles lanes and 7 miles ofClass III bicycle lanes exist in the city.



CLASS I BIKEWAY (Bike Path) Provides a completely separated right-of-way for the exclusive use of bicycles and pedestrians with cross flow minimized.





8'-10" TYPICAL TOTAL WIDTH 2' graded shoulders recommended

CLASS II BIKEWAY (Bike Lane) Provides a striped lane for one-way bike travel on a street or highway.





CLASS III BIKEWAY (Signed Bike Route) With Optional Sharrow Pavement Marking Provides for shared use with motor vehicle traffic.





11' minimum from curb where parallel parking is present; center of travel lane is preferred Center of optional sharrow pavement marking should be 4' minimum from curb where no parking is present



Figure 3-5 Existing Bikeway Classifications





Figure 3-6 Existing Bicycle Facilities



3.4.2.4 Barriers to Bicycling

Based on community input and field reviews, the following primary barriers to bicycling in Pleasanton were identified:

- 1. Inadequate North-South Bicycle Routes
- 2. Challenging BART Station Area Access
- 3. Limited Signage and Wayfinding
- 4. Maintenance Issues
- 5. Large Intersections and Interchanges
- 6. High-stress Bicycle Facilities (discussed in Section 3.3.3.6 Bicycle Comfort)

3.4.2.4.1 Inadequate North-South Bicycle Routes

Foothill Road is an important asset to Pleasanton's bicycle network. Tree cover, gentle hills and curves make the two-lane road ideal for more experienced road cyclists. However, short sight distances, narrow lanes and lack of shoulder may discourage less experienced and/or capable bicyclists, who feel less comfortable riding on roads without dedicated space for bicycles. Widening the shoulder and improving signage could be priorities. In particular, areas south of Bernal Avenue would benefit from such improvements. In the short-term, Foothill Road should be swept regularly to keep brush and fallen branches out of the roadway.

Local and regional destinations like the Stoneridge Mall, Hacienda Business Park, and the Pleasanton BART stations are primarily served by northsouth arterials, particularly Hopyard Road and Santa Rita Road. Current conditions on these roads include fast moving vehicular traffic, insufficient signage for bicyclists, and wide intersections with multiple turning lanes and right-turn pockets that are difficult to navigate by bicycle. While several sections of these roads are designated Class III routes, comfort and access for bicyclists on these roads could be improved.



3.4.2.4.2 Challenging BART Station Area Access

Current conditions in and around the two Pleasanton BART stations can create an inhospitable or inconvenient environment for those accessing the stations. Once at the station, short- and long-term bicycle parking is available, including 40 Bicycle Link electronic lockers, and bicycles are allowed on BART trains.

At the **Dublin/Pleasanton BART station**, bicycle access is from Owens Drive, which has Class II bicycle lanes, and the Iron Horse Trail, which provides access directly to the station area. Upon entering the station area, signage indicates bicyclists must dismount their bicycles. According to BART's *Bicycle Access and Parking Plan*, the Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station has a high priority for bicycle parking improvements based on current bicycle locker use. The Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station Access Plan recommends installing at least 34 additional lockers, as well as bicycle-sensitive loop detectors and signage on key bicycle routes.

BART has recently developed wayfinding signage for bicyclists in station areas and on surrounding bikeways and other roads. These signs help direct bicyclists to the station as well as to bicycle parking, stairs, and elevators. This station is located along the Iron Horse Trail, which provides an important connection to the all ages and abilities bicycle network of Pleasanton.

The BART station is also used as a hub by the Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA) Wheels bus service, Amtrak, and Contra Costa County's County Connection bus service. Wheels operates approximately 24 bus routes through Pleasanton, and all buses are equipped with bicycle racks. County Connection operates four bus routes connecting at the Dublin BART station, all with bicycle racks. Wheels bus service connects a park-and-ride lot at the Dublin Corporate Center at the southwest corner of Tassajara Road and Dublin Boulevard to the BART station.

At the **West Dublin/Pleasanton BART station**, bicycle access to the station is through the parking structure off of Stoneridge Mall Road as well as a path along the east side of the BART parking garage. Bicycle parking, including 16 secure bicycle lockers, is available at the station. Bus service is provided to this station by Wheels and Tri-Delta Transit on the Pleasanton side and LAVTA on the Dublin side only.

The West Dublin/Pleasanton station lacks a gateway and wayfinding information from Stoneridge Mall Drive. Connectivity to the bicycle network is limited, as there are no bicycle facilities on Stoneridge Mall Road. The many driveways and lack of facilities on Stoneridge Mall Road, which provides



the main access to the station, create an uncomfortable environment for bicyclists accessing the station. Enhanced wayfinding signage and connectivity to the Pleasanton bicycle network from both stations could improve the experience for bicyclists.

3.4.2.4.3 Limited Signage and Wayfinding

Pleasanton's bikeway routes have basic signage indicating where bicycle lanes and routes are present, begin, and end. In several areas signs are missing or obscured by trees and other barriers. Trail access from the roadway is often difficult to identify and once found, trail names are often missing or obscured. The City of Pleasanton does not currently have a signed route system to indicate destinations, distances and directions.

The wayfinding and signage system could be enhanced to make the bicycle network more visible and easy to navigate. In particular, wayfinding improvements are needed to better connect the on-street and off-street bicycle network. While trail maps are clearly marked at the access gates to the off-street network, the access gates are often hidden from street view and difficult to find. On-street signage and pavement markings would help to create better connections to the off-street network. From within the trails system, additional signage would enhance connections back to the on-street network.

3.4.2.4.4 Maintenance Issues

Existing bicycle facilities are typically narrow bicycle lanes next to the curb and gutter, which can collect debris. The City has an ongoing maintenance contract for regular street sweeping, but this contract does not address or contain provisions specific to bicycle lanes or trails. Prioritization of street

cleaning in the bicycle lanes and design of new bicycle lanes with a larger width and a buffer where possible could create a lower stress, easier to maintain environment with more space for cyclists to maneuver without entering the vehicle travel lanes. Any new street sweeping contract should incorporate provisions for sweeping bicycle lanes, separated bikeways, and paved trails. Some existing bicycle facilities were observed to have faded striping. Fresh paint for bicycle facility striping could reduce confusion for bicyclists and vehicles.

Finding long-term funding streams for path maintenance should be a priority.

Walking and Bicycling in Pleasanton Today | 3

Path maintenance is also a major concern for the city. The city's extensive trails network is partially operated by the city and partially by the East Bay Regional Park District. In some cases, Zone 7 may operate the trails. The maintenance burden of providing smooth, crack-free pavement is high. Finding long-term funding streams for path maintenance should be a priority.

3.4.2.4.5 Large Intersections and Interchanges

The City has programmed all of its video cameras to detect bicyclists in bicycles lanes. Where video programming has not yet been installed, in-pavement loop detector technologies for actuating signal changes can be challenging, as some may not register the presence of bicyclists and therefore not trigger a green light. When that is the case, bicyclists must wait through lengthy signal cycles until a car triggers the detection or risk proceeding through the intersection against the light. At some signals, bicyclists have minimal time to cross the intersection, and signals should be able to detect and distinguish a bicycle from a car and provide the minimum clearance interval as necessary.

The crossings of I-580 and I-680 on the northern and western edge of Pleasanton are key barriers for bicyclists. Stressful, conflicting movements and high speed turns at on- and off-ramps are prevalent. Best practices for retrofitting interchanges to accommodate pedestrians and bicyclists are included in the Design Guidelines



Improvements should focus on extending bicycle lanes all the way to intersections through appropriate design

section. The city has recently retrofitted the Foothill Road/I-580 interchange, providing substantial bicyclist and pedestrian improvements including striped Class II bicycle lanes. However, given the speeds, traffic volumes, and wide cross-section, these bicycle facilities are still likely only used by the most confident and traffic tolerant of bicyclists. Additional improvements such as protected bicycle lanes and green pavement would improve the comfort level for those "Interested but Concerned" bicyclists.



In some cases in Pleasanton, bicycle lanes end in advance of intersections. While this is acceptable practice according to the *Highway Design Manual* (Caltrans), this practice discontinues bicycle lanes at the point where bicycles encounter the most conflicts with vehicles. Improvements should focus on extending bicycle lanes all the way to intersections through appropriate design as outlined in the Design Guidelines section of this Plan. With the many intersections in the city providing right turn slip lanes, lengthy right-turn pockets are also common. Reducing the length of these turn pockets would create a shorter transition zone, an area of high exposure for bicyclists.

3.4.2.5 Bicycle Comfort

Level of Traffic Stress (LTS) analysis seeks to measure how much stress is experienced by bicyclists across a city's street network due to various characteristics of roads and bicycle facilities. The Level of Traffic Stress (LTS) methodology was developed by Merkuria, Furth, and Nixon in *Low-stress Bicycling and Network Connectivity* (2012).² LTS methodology is based on an application of Dutch bicycling standards and existing research in bicycle The low-stress bicycle network must have a broad reach with continuous facilities and comfortable crossings to promote new bicycling trips

transportation. LTS rankings range from 1 (very low-stress; tolerable by all) to 4 (very high-stress; tolerable to only a few). LTS is closely related to the Four Types of Cyclists theory³. While the Four Types of Cyclists theory focuses on willingness to bicycle, LTS measures the quality of a person's experience while bicycling. The two are inter-related: low-stress bikeways (LTS 1 and 2) are generally tolerated by Strong and Fearless, Enthused and Confident, and most Interested but Concerned cyclists; in contrast, high-stress bikeways are tolerated by only Strong and Fearless cyclists. The development of a low-stress network and elimination of high-stress barriers is critical to broadening the appeal of bicycling, especially for "Enthused and Confident" and "Interested but Concerned Cyclists," who represent a large share of the population. The low-stress bicycle network must therefore have a broad reach with continuous facilities and comfortable crossings to promote new bicycling trips. **Figure 3-7** presents the LTS score for each roadway in Pleasanton.

² Methodology available here: <u>http://transweb.sjsu.edu/PDFs/research/1005-low-stress-bicycling-network-connectivity.pdf</u>

³ Roger Geller, "Four Types of Cyclists," undated. <u>https://www.portlandoregon.gov/transportation/article/264746</u>

Walking and Bicycling in Pleasanton Today | 3



Roadway characteristics and type of bicycle infrastructure are the primary variables influencing the Level of Traffic Stress (LTS). The LTS score enables the public and the City to understand who is likely to feel comfortable riding on a given roadway.





3.4.2.5.1 Pleasanton's All Ages and Abilities ("Low-stress") Network

One of the primary goals of this Plan is to greatly expand and create a continuous low-stress network, so analyzing the bicycle comfort of the existing network is critical. Pleasanton's existing low traffic stress network is presented on **Figure 3-8**. The low-stress bicycling network in Pleasanton today is highly discontinuous. The low-stress network includes some east-west connections through Downtown, though stress at some intersections may be high where local streets cross busy roadways, such as Bernal Avenue or First Street. With Pleasanton's suburban land use patterns, most bicycle routes traversing the city are part of the high traffic stress network, shown in orange, with either shared lanes or basic bicycle lanes present on major roadways. These types of facilities are suitable only for the most confident of riders, such as the many riders who traverse Foothill Road today.

Several "spines" or "corridors" will be needed in Pleasanton to connect the many low-stress, residential streets into an all ages and abilities network. Connecting major destinations through all ages and abilities corridors can help Pleasanton build out its bicycle network to have the most impact and serve the most demand. For example, the two BART stations can be connected with Downtown and the ACE Station through east-west and northsouth spines. The spines may consist of improved Class I path connections and low-stress on-street bikeway improvements, such as separated bikeways, bicycle boulevards, and bicycle lanes on low-stress roadways. A one-mile buffer is highlighted around each of the three transit stations on Figure 3-8.

Several "spines" or "corridors" will be needed in Pleasanton to connect the many low-stress, residential streets into an all ages and abilities network.



Note: One mile buffer shown around transit stations.

Opportunity Corridors | 4

4. **Opportunity Corridors**

This chapter identifies opportunity areas to enhance the walking and bicycling environments across Pleasanton. These improvements focus on engineering solutions to enhance safety, comfort, and connectivity for people who walk and bicycle. As discussed earlier in the Plan, the major emphasis is on creating walking and bicycling networks that meet the needs of people of "all ages and abilities", which is to say biking and walking infrastructure that meet the needs of the young, the old, the less experienced, the more experienced, and everyone in between. Designing

The major emphasis is on creating walking and bicycling networks that meet the needs of people of "all ages and abilities."

for people of all ages and abilities makes streets safer and more comfortable for everyone, including both people who walk and bicycle today and those who may walk and bicycle in the future as infrastructure improves. This chapter defines the walking and biking network and outlines the projects that will continue to make Pleasanton a great place for people of all ages and abilities to walk and bicycle.

4.1 Toolbox for Walking and Bicycling

To implement the all ages and abilities network, new walking and bicycling tools need to be incorporated to maximize comfort and safety for people who walk and bicycle. The section outlines the walking and biking tools that are new to Pleasanton. For more information on the tools already used in Pleasanton, refer to **Chapter 3** and **Appendix A Design Guidelines**.

4.1.1 New Walking Tools

A variety of walking improvements are identified in this chapter, many of which Pleasanton already use today. In addition to those, the following tools are considered:


- **Removal or modification of slip lanes** reduce the speeds of right-turning drivers as they enter the crosswalk and may lead to increase driver yielding at the crosswalk.
- Reduced curb radii require drivers to take turns at slower speeds as they turn through crosswalks at intersections.
- **Extended pedestrian crossing times at traffic signals near schools, senior centers**, or other locations if necessary to accommodate people who walk at slower speeds.
- **Directional curb ramps** (two per corner) improve accessibility for those with mobility and visual impairments, directing them into the crosswalk.
- **Staggered advanced stop bars** to define where vehicles should stop in advance of the crosswalk to reduce risk of multiple-threat collisions when pedestrians are in the crosswalk but not visible to cars waiting at the stop bar.
- **Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons (PHBs)** are similar to a traffic signal. They require autos to come to a complete stop when pedestrians push a button that triggers the beacon to become a flashing yellow ball and then a solid red ball, indicating that drivers must stop completely to yield to pedestrians. California requires that certain conditions be met in order to install a PHB. More information can be found in the CAMUTCD and **Appendix A Design Guidelines**.

4.1.2 New Biking Tools

Bicyclists in Pleasanton are already familiar with the paths, bicycle lanes, buffered bicycle lanes, and green bicycle lanes throughout the city. In addition to those, the following are the new bicycling tools:

- Separated Bikeways (Class IV) are bicycle lanes that are fully protected from auto traffic through raised elements, such as curbs, plastic bollard, landscaping, or parking. They are a key element of the all ages and abilities network due to their comfort and safety benefits. They are also known as protected bike lanes or cycle tracks.
- **Bicycle Boulevards (Class III)** are similar to bicycle routes, where bicyclists and drivers share the travel lane. However, while bicycle routes can be indicated on a wide variety of street types, bicycle boulevards must be located on residential streets with low auto volume and low speeds. They typically include traffic calming measures to create, safe, comfortable streets, together with enhanced signage and pavement parkings. They are important element of the all ages and abilities network and often provide important safe routes to school connections for children.

Figure 4-1A and **Figure 4-1B** present cross-sections for each bikeway type. For more information on these and other bicycle intersection treatments refer to **Appendix A Bicycle Guidelines.**





Example separated bikeway (top) and Bicycle Boulevard (bottom).



Figure 4-1A: Bicycle Facility Types



Figure 4-1B: Bicycle Facility Types



4.2 Corridors

To achieve the Plan's goals of creating safe and comfortable streets for everyone who walks and bicycles, the bicycle and walking opportunity areas identified in the 2010 Plan were updated with the following considerations:

- **Connectivity**: Closing gaps in existing walkways or bikeways and providing new routes to create a comprehensive citywide network.
- **Demand**: Improving walking and bicycling access to the great places in Pleasanton that people enjoy going to today.
- Safety: Using reported collisions and areas of safety concern to address site-specific safety issues for walking and bicycling.
- **Comfort**: Refining recommended biking and walking projects to provide highly comfortable infrastructure for people of all ages and abilities.
- Feasibility: Refining and identifying feasibility considerations, such as community-support, engineering issues, and fundability.

Through multiple public workshops and Pleasanton BPTC meetings, the walking and bicycling opportunity areas were refined through extensive community feedback. The recommended pedestrian projects are presented in **Figure 4-2**. The recommended near-term "All Ages and Abilities Network" of walking and biking improvements is presented in **Figure 4-3**, and the long-term "Vision Network" of walking and biking improvements is presented in **Figure 4-3**, and the long-term "Vision Network" of walking and biking improvements is presented in **Figure 4-3**.





\\Fpok03.fpainc.local\data\Projects\2015\OK15-0076.00_Pleasanton_Bicycle_and_Pedestrian_Master_Plan\Graphics\GIS\MXD\Fig4-3_Near-Term_Abilities_Network.mxd





Because Pleasanton's roadway network relies heavily on arterial and collector roadways to provide neighborhood and citywide access, the bicycle and pedestrian opportunity areas are organized into corridor projects. Each corridor project is designed with the all ages and abilities approach at the forefront. As projects are implemented over time, the corridor projects will stitch together an all ages and abilities walking and biking network for Pleasanton. **Table 4-1** presents each corridor project and identifies the primary purpose of each project. For example, some projects serve both bicyclists and pedestrians, and some

Each corridor project is designed with the all ages and abilities approach at the forefront.

projects also benefit students walking and biking to school or people walking to BART and ACE stations. Sections 4.2.1 – 4.2.17 present both walking and biking projects for each opportunity corridor. Each corridor should install pedestrian countdown signals wherever missing; ensure pedestrian walk speeds of 3.5 feet/second and as low as 2.5 feet/second near schools, parks, or senior centers; and install two direction curb ramps per corner wherever feasible. For more information on pedestrian signal improvements, refer to **Appendix A** Crosswalk Policy.

In addition to the corridor projects, a smaller group of "vision" projects will improve connectivity and close gaps in the network across the city. For bicycle projects, these are either designed for more experience bicyclists or have major engineering and funding feasibility challenges that make them impractical to implement in the near-term. **Chapter 5** explains how projects are prioritized for implementation.

| Table 4-1: Corridor Opportunity Projects | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|--------------|---------|--------------------------|---------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Project Title | | Project Type | | | | | | | | |
| | Project Extents | Pedestrian | Bicycle | Safe Routes to School | Safe Routes to Transit | | | | | |
| Arroyo Del Valle | Extension of the Arroyo Del Valle trail to the north and east to connect with the Iron Horse Trail | 次 | 540 | | | | | | | |
| Bernal Avenue | Foothill Road to Stanley Boulevard | 次 | 540 | | | | | | | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Johnson Drive at the Centennial Trail to the Iron Horse Trail Access at Ithaca Way | 次 | 540 | | | | | | | |

| Table 4-1: Corridor Opportunity Projects | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|--------------|---------|--------------------------|---------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | | Project Type | | | | | | | | |
| Project Title | Project Extents | Pedestrian | Bicycle | Safe Routes to School | Safe Routes to Transit | | | | | |
| Central Pleasanton | Arroyo Mocho Trail at Sutter Gate and the Iron Horse Trail at Kolln Street to the Arroyo de Laguna Trail access to downtown | Ŕ | 50 | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Throughout Downton Pleasanton | × | 540 | | | | | | | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Owens Drive at the BART Driveway to Main Street | Ŕ | 540 | | | | | | | |
| East Side | East end of the Arroyo Mocho Trail at Stoneridge Drive to Santa Rita Road at School Street | | 50 | | | | | | | |
| Foothill Road | I-580 Interchange and Castlewood Drive | × | 540 | | | | | | | |
| I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings | Interchanges citywide | Ŕ | 540 | | | | | | | |
| Santa Rita Road | I-680 Interchange to Bernal Avenue | Ŕ | 54 | | | | | | | |
| Stanley Boulevard | First Street to Valley Avenue | Ŕ | 540 | | | | | | | |
| Stoneridge Drive | Foothill Road to Santa Rita Road | | 540 | | | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Castlewood Drive to Bernal Avenue | Ŕ | 540 | <u>►</u> | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue | Neighborhood Connections from Arroyo Mocho Trail at Sutter Gate and Kolln Street at Francisco Street to Hopyard Road and Valley Avenue from Hopyard Road to Sunol Boulevard | Ŕ | 540 | | | | | | | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Stoneridge Mall Road at BART to the Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail | Ŕ | 540 | Þ | A | | | | | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | Foothill Road to the North Pimlico Drive Intersection | Ŕ | 540 | | | | | | | |



4.2.1 Arroyo Del Valle

This project would improve and extend the existing Arroyo Del Valle Trail to improve the Arroyo de Laguna Trail connection and extend the trail to the Iron Horse Trail. The proposed Arroyo Del Valle Trail would run along the Arroyo Del Valle Creek from the Arroyo de Laguna Trail to the Shadow Cliffs Recreation Area, connecting to the Iron Horse Trail. The trail currently ends at Main Street. The first phase of this project is a feasibility study to examine repaving the existing trail and extending it east to connect with the proposed Iron Horse Trail extension to the east at Stanley Boulevard.

4.2.1.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed in the feasibility study include:

- Paving the existing trail near Downtown, where the existing surface and pavement is in poor condition.
- Improving the existing trail connection to Downtown via St. John Circle, which has a steep ramp up from the creek to Downtown
- Studying a bridge over the creek to connect the Arroyo Del Valle Trail, Arroyo de Laguna Trail, and Downtown
- Studying a grade separated crossing of the railroad tracks north of Stanley Boulevard on the Iron Horse Trail extension portion
- Studying a signalized trail crossing of Stanley Boulevard
- Consideration of a access to Downtown, BMX Sports Park, Shadow Cliff Recreation Area, and the on-street bicycle network on either side of the Trail



4.2.1.2 Recommendations

Table 4-2 details the components of the project. Figure 4-5 presents the location of the proposed study.

| | Table 4-2: Arroyo Del Valle | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------------------|------------------------|---|---|----------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Arroyo Del Valle Trail | Arroyo de Laguna Trail | Shadow Cliffs Regional Park | <i>ক</i> ক্ত্ র | Study feasibility of paving trail, providing trail access points and connections, and extending the existing trail east to the Iron Horse Trail and Shadow Cliffs. Study opportunity for a bridge between Arroyo Del Valle Trail and Downtown. | Implement improvements and crossings identified in the Study | \$\$\$\$ | | | | |





Figure 4-5: Arroyo Del Valle

4.2.2 Bernal Avenue

Buffered bicycle lanes are proposed for Bernal Avenue in the near-term between I-680 and Valley Avenue. As a phased strategy, the buffered bicycle lanes can later become a physically separated bikeway to maximize protection for cyclists. This project also includes crosswalk enhancements where Bernal Avenue intersects the Kottinger Community Park paths.

4.2.2.1 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities to be addressed in the project include:



Example buffered bicycle lanes on Stoneridge Drive.

- Improving the bicycling experience on high volume and high speed arterials
- Providing a more comfortable connection for experienced riders to Downtown and destinations to the south
- Creating a complete east-west connection for bicyclists in south Pleasanton
- Improving crossings on the Kottinger Park paths
- Consider phasing in posts/curbs to convert buffered bicycle lanes to separated bikeways

4.2.2.2 Recommendations

Table 4-3 details the projects. Figure 4-6 maps the proposed projects.



| | Table 4-3: Bernal Avenue | | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------|--|----------------------|---------------|--|---|----------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | |
| Bernal Avenue | I-680 Interchange | Stanley Boulevard | 676 | Provide buffered bicycle lanes. Transition bicycle lanes from curbside to between through and right lane no farther than 150' back from the intersection ⁴ | Install separated bikeways with separated bikeway intersection treatments | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Main Street | | <i>5</i> €® | Install traffic signal to facilitate bicyclist turns and improve pedestrian connectivity | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Kottinger Drive | | Ŕ | Enhance or modify slip lane | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Kottinger Community Park Path | | \$ @\$ | Enhance crosswalk with flashing beacons ¹ ; Widen sidewalk on east side to improve path connection | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Tawny Drive | Norton Way | Touriga Drive | 540 | - | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | \$ | | | | | |

1. Prevailing speed, number of travel lanes, and presence of median are key factors in determining the need for crosswalk safety enhancements. In addition that, PHBs have specific volume warrants requirement per the CAMUTCD that must be met. Crosswalk installation and enhancements should be determined according to Appendix A Crosswalk Policy and engineering judgment.

⁴ 150' minimum based on existing engineering national best practices per ITE Recommended Design Guidelines to Accommodate Pedestrians and Bicycles at Interchanges.



Figure 4-6: Bernal Avenue



4.2.3 Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail

The Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail project provides an important east-west connection in the northern part of the city on Johnson Drive and Owens Drive. The project provides a low-stress bicycle connection between the Centennial Trail, Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station, area employers, and the Iron Horse Trail. The project also improves pedestrian safety and connectivity through improved crossing opportunities near BART.

4.2.3.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by this project include:

- Considering converting an existing travel lane to a separated bikeway with the low auto volumes on Owens Drive
- Increasing the frequency of pedestrian crossing opportunities near BART Station, given the long block sizes
- Addressing the need for a continuous east-west connection in northern Pleasanton that integrates the on-street bikeway network with the trails network
- Identifying countermeasures to address the numerous reported bicycle and pedestrian collisions occurred on Owens Drive between 2010-2015, including two severe pedestrian injuries
- Addressing need for biking and walking connections between regional trails, major employers, and the Dublin/Pleasanton BART

4.2.3.2 Recommendations

Table 4-4 details the project components. Figure 4-7 maps the proposed project.

| | Table 4-4: Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------|--|------------------|-------------------------|--|--|--------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | |
| Owens Drive | Hopyard Road | lthaca Way | 5 & \$ | Provide separated bikeways with lane reduction | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| lthaca Way | Owens Drive | Iron Horse Trail | <i>5</i> ∕8∂⁄λ ■ | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment, including wayfinding to the Iron Horse Trail | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Owens Drive | Intersection with West Las Positas Boulevard/Ithaca Way | | <i>∱</i> @∿∂ | Install cut through to provide access between Owens Drive/W Las Positas Boulevard and the Iron Horse Trail. Complete with Ithaca Way improvements. Coordinate with W. Las Positas Boulevard separated bikeway project | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Owens Drive | Intersection with West Las Positas Boulevard | | <i>5</i> €\$ ■ | Install marked crosswalks across W Las Positas Boulevard at all approaches and modify signal to allow pedestrian crossing. ¹ Complete with Ithaca Way improvements. | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Owens Drive | Intersection with Iron Horse Trail | | 5€0 ■ | Improve trail wayfinding and widen curb ramp | - | \$ | | | | | |
| Owens Drive | Intersection with Willow Road | | <i>ক</i> ক্ত র্ম | - | Reduce curb radius and remove acceleration lane. Install protected intersection at Owens Drive/Willow Road. | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Owens Drive | Between Owens Ct and Willow Road | | <i>5</i> ∕20∕7 | Enhance marked crosswalk with signal or PHB ¹ | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Owens Drive | Intersection with Hacienda Drive | | 5€0 ₩ | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |



| | Table 4-4: Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|---|----------------|-------------------------|--|--|--------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Owens Drive | Johnson Drive | Hopyard Road | 676 | Provide separated bikeways with lane reduction. If lane reduction is infeasible, stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. Consider widening sidewalk to provide directional paths on either side of this short segment if lane reduction is infeasible. | Provide separated bikeways or shared-use path | \$\$ | | | | |
| Johnson Drive | Centennial Trail | Owens Drive | 676) 🗖 | Stripe buffered bicycle lanes | Install separated bikeways | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| Johnson Drive | Centennial Trail | | <i>ক</i> ক্ত র্ম | Install new bicycle ramp to sidewalk at the western Club Sport/Double Tree driveway, mark high visibility crosswalk to new ramp on west side of driveway intersection; install wayfinding to Centennial trail | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| lron Horse Trail | Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station Area and Parking Lot | | <i>চ</i> ক্র র্ম | Implement the wayfinding, trail enhancements, and bicycle and pedestrian BART and Iron Horse Trail access improvements in the Iron Horse Trail Feasibility Study. Requires coordination with East Bay Regional Park District, BART, and the City of Dublin | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |

1. Prevailing speed, number of travel lanes, and presence of median are key factors in determining the need for crosswalk safety enhancements. In addition that, PHBs have specific volume warrants requirement per the CAMUTCD that must be met. Crosswalk installation and enhancements should be determined according to Appendix A Crosswalk Policy and engineering judgment.



Figure 4-7: Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail



4.2.4 Central Pleasanton

The Central Pleasanton project connects trails and schools in residential Central Pleasanton neighborhoods, with bicycle boulevards routing bicyclists on low-stress residential streets. The project consists of two bicycle boulevard connections: Greenwood Road and Mohr Avenue.

4.2.4.1 Issues and Opportunities

The issues and opportunities to be addressed in the project include:

- Utilizing existing low-volume and low-speed residential streets to providing a low-stress bicycle route through neighborhoods in Central Pleasanton
- Improving connections between the Arroyo Mocho Trail and the on-street bicycle network
- Providing a Safe Routes to Schools biking and walking spine to Harvest Park Middle School, Walnut Grove Elementary School, and Amador Valley High School
- Improving wayfinding to off-street paths and parks
- Providing an all ages and abilities alternative to Santa Rita Road through the neighborhoods on the west side of Santa Rita

4.2.4.2 Recommendations

Table 4-5 details the components of the project. Figure 4-8 maps the proposed projects. The projectsare broken down into segment and intersection components; however, the projects are intended tobe implemented at the same time to provide continuous bicycle boulevard segments.





Example Bicycle Boulevard and Sample Wayfinding

| | Table 4-5: Central Pleasanton | | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|--|---------------------------|---------------|---|-----------------------|------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | |
| Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Greenwood Road | Arroyo Del Valle Trail | ₫₽₽ | Bicycle boulevard treatment | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Harvest Circle | Intersection with Arroyo Del Valle Trail | | ℰ⅌ⅉ⅃ | Install raised crosswalk/speed table across Harvest Circle aligning to daylight the trail and provide access | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Intersection with Del Valle Parkway | | ₫₽₽ | Reduce crossing distances at Del Valle Parkway intersection with bulb-outs and median refuge | - | \$ | | | | | |
| Greenwood Road | Mohr Avenue | Harvest Road | ℰ⅌ⅉ⅃ | Bicycle boulevard treatment; Install wayfinding to destinations and routes such as Downtown, Alameda Drive/Northway Road bicycle boulevard, BART, Arroyo Mocho, and Iron Horse Trail. | - | \$ | | | | | |
| Greenwood Road | Intersection with Mohr Avenue | | 50 × L | Consider traffic circle at Mohr Avenue | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Greenwood Road | Intersection with Harvest Road | | ⊥\$ && | Evaluate need to provide traffic control. Consider adding traffic circle and/or yield or stop control at Greenwood Road intersection to support bicyclists turning movements from Greenwood to Harvest. | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Greenwood Road | Intersection with Alameda Drive | | 500 L | Reduce crossing distances of school crosswalks at Alameda Drive through curb extensions and reduced curb radii | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Greenwood Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | 50X | Reduce curb radii at Valley. | - | \$\$ | | | | | |
| Greenwood Road | Intersection with Canary Drive | | 570 × 1 | Consider traffic circle at Canary Drive | - | \$ | | | | | |



| Table 4-5: Central Pleasanton | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|----------------------------------|--------------|---|---------------------------------------|------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Mohr Avenue | Sutter Gate Avenue Gate to Arroyo Mocho Trail | Santa Rita Road | 5 6 1 | Bicycle boulevard treatment; improve gate/access at Sutter Gate for bicyclists including those with trailers | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Laramie Gate Circle | Paths on southwest corner of Santa Rita Road/Stoneridge Road | | <i>6</i> ™ | Improve trail wayfinding (to Arroyo Mocho and Iron Horse Trails) and widen curb ramp | Connect to the Iron Horse Trail | \$ | | | | |
| Ross Gate Way/Laramie Gate Cir | Mohr Avenue | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | 570 X | Bicycle boulevard treatment to Arroyo Mocho Trail connector entrance. Install wide trail curb ramp onto sidewalk at opening in wall with wayfinding signage | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Sutter Gate Avenue and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | Ŕ | Improve trail wayfinding (to Arroyo Mocho and Iron Horse Trails) and widen curb ramp | - | \$ | | | | |
| Mohr Avenue | Intersection with Iron Horse Trail | | Ŕ | Restripe existing trail crossing as high-visibility trail crossing. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Mohr Avenue | Santa Rita Road | Kolln Street | £1000 | Stripe bicycle lanes between Santa Rita Road and Kolln Street. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Mohr Avenue | Kolln Street | Iron Horse Trail | 530 X L | Bicycle boulevard treatment OR remove existing on-street parking and stripe buffered bicycle lanes (to Kamp Drive); install median refuge at Iron Horse Trail crossing. | - | \$\$ | | | | |



Figure 4-8: Central Pleasanton



4.2.5 Downtown

The Downtown project enhances walking and biking routes to and within Downtown through bicycle boulevards, sidewalk gap closures, and pedestrian crossing enhancements. This project also includes a study to repurpose the old Southern Pacific Railroad right-of-way into a shared-use path through and to the south of Downtown.

4.2.5.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Converting the old Southern Pacific Railroad to a "rail to trail" providing a shared-use path into Downtown, as an alternative to the Sunol Boulevard/First Street corridor
- Providing an all ages and abilities alternative to Main Street for biking
- Improving pedestrian safety and visibility at existing crosswalks in Downtown
- Providing continuous sidewalks near the ACE Station and Pleasanton Library

4.2.5.2 Recommendations

Table 4-6 details the project components. Figure 4-9 maps the proposed projects.

| Table 4-6: Downtown | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|----------------------|-------------------------|--|--|----------|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | |
| Southern Pacific Railroad/Alameda County Transportation Corridor | Castlewood Drive | Bernal Avenue | 530X | Conduct Trail Feasibility Study to convert old railroad right-of-way to shared-use path | Install pedestrian/bicycle path with decomposed granite jogging path. Install intersection and trail crossing improvements. | \$\$\$\$ | | | |
| Old Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bernal Court | 5€ ■ | Stripe bicycle lanes. Close 500' sidewalk gap on west side. | - | \$\$\$ | | | |
| Old Bernal Avenue | Bernal Court | Main Street | <i>6</i> ™ ∂ | Stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. | - | \$ | | | |
| Angela Street | Pleasanton Avenue | Bernal Avenue | <i>5</i> ∕ € ∕ | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | - | \$\$\$ | | | |
| Angela Street | Intersection with Pleasanton Avenue | | <i>ক</i> ক্ত র্ম | Evaluate traffic circle or all-way stop control to facilitate bicycle turning movements and pedestrian access to the ACE Station and Downtown | - | \$\$ | | | |
| Peters Avenue | St. John Street | Old Bernal Avenue | ক ্ষ | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | \$\$ | | | |
| Peters Avenue | Intersection with Old Bernal Avenue | | 5 ™ ■ | Narrow intersection with curb extension/pocket park; mark high- visibility crosswalks | - | \$\$\$ | | | |
| Peters Avenue | Intersection with Rose Avenue | | 5°₽\$ | Mark new high-visibility crosswalk ¹ | - | \$ | | | |
| Peters Avenue | Intersection with W Angela Street | | <i>6</i> ™ ∂ | Mark new high-visibility crosswalk ¹ | - | \$ | | | |



| Table 4-6: Downtown | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------|---------------------------------------|-------------------|------------------------|---|--------------------|------|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | |
| Peters Avenue | Intersection with St. Marys Street | | <i>6</i> ₹ 0 ₹0 | Install curb extensions and mark new high-visibility crosswalk ¹ | - | \$\$ | | |
| St. John Street | Peters Avenue | Main Street | ক্ ট | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | \$\$ | | |

1. Prevailing speed, number of travel lanes, and presence of median are key factors in determining the need for crosswalk safety enhancements. In addition that, PHBs have specific volume warrants requirement per the CAMUTCD that must be met. Crosswalk installation and enhancements should be determined according to Appendix A Crosswalk Policy and engineering judgment.



Figure 4-9: Downtown



4.2.6 Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown

The Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown project provides a key north-south connection from Dublin BART to Downtown along Willow Road, West Last Positas Boulevard, and Hopyard Road. The project also includes safe routes to school improvements and provides all ages and abilities bikeway along the corridor.

4.2.6.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Replacing high-stress bicycle lanes with all ages and abilities separated bikeways
- Providing safe routes to school for Thomas S. Hart Middle School
- Improving pedestrian access across Hopyard Road to provide safe routes to schools, parks, and businesses
- Improving access between the BART Station, employers on Willow Road, and Downtown PleasantonProviding bicycle and pedestrian access to Downtown from neighborhoods north of the Arroyo del Valle Creek

4.2.6.2 Recommendations

Table 4-7 details the components of the project. Figure 4-10 presents the proposed project.



Example separated bikeway

| Table 4-7: Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--------------------------------------|----------------------------------|-----------------|---|---|--------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | | | | |
| Hopyard Road | West Las Positas Boulevard | Black Avenue | 5 5 \$ | Convert existing bicycle lanes to separated bikeways | | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | Hopyard Road | Willow Road | 54 | Convert existing bicycle lanes to separated bikeways, including intersection improvements. | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| Hopyard Road | Black Avenue | Del Valle Parkway | 54 | Improve existing shared-use path on west side of street. Remove bollards, install wide curb ramps, wayfinding and improved crossings. Spot improve pavement quality. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Hopyard Road | Intersection with Hansen Drive | | 5 4 7 | Mark high-visibility crosswalk with median refuge and flashing beacons ¹ . Provide cut through to Hopyard Road frontage on the east side. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Willow Road | Owens Drive | West Las Positas Boulevard | 670 X | Consider designating and east sidewalk as a path and provide wayfinding directing less-experienced bicyclists to use the path. Maintain existing bicycle lanes. | Consider removing a travel lane in each direction, and add dedicated left-turn pockets for autos at each intersection; use remaining space to add raised buffer to existing bicycle lanes to create separated bikeways Enhance uncontrolled crosswalks across Willow with high visibility striping and median refuges | \$ | | | | |
| Willow Road | Intersection with Gibraltar Drive | | উক্ট | Reduce curb radius | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Willow Road | Intersection with Inglewood Drive | | উক্ট | Install new high-visibility crosswalk with flashing beacons or PHB ¹ and median refuge | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |



| | Table 4-7: Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------|--|--------------------|-----------------------|---|--------------------|--------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Willow Road | Intersection with West Las Positas Boulevard | | উক্ ঠ | Reduce curb radii and install improvements to support bicyclists turning onto/off-of Willow Road | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Hopyard Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | <i>ক</i> কু র্ | Enhance or modify slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for improved bicycle and pedestrian circulation. Improve connection to the Sports Park, Tennis Park, and the Pleasanton Canal Trail, including wayfinding. | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| Hopyard Road | Intersection with Black Avenue | | 540 X | Enhance or modify slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for improved bicycle and pedestrian circulation. Install high visibility striping and median refuges. Provide separated bikeway intersection improvements, such as a protected intersection. | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| Hopyard Road | Intersection with Golden Road | | Ŕ | Restripe existing crosswalk as high visibility crosswalk | - | \$ | | | | |
| Hopyard Road | Intersection with Del Valle Parkway/Division Street | | Ŕ | Modify westbound approach. Enhance or modify slip lane to allow right turns at the intersection. Install curb extension on southeast corner of intersection. Rebuild northeast corner and refuge on east crosswalk to improve accessibility for pedestrians and bicyclists. Improve connection to the Arroyo Valle Trail. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Division Street | Del Valle Parkway | St. Mary Street | 676 | Stripe sharrows and install bicycle route signage; install wayfinding to Downtown; work with neighbors to not place trash cans in roadway shoulder. Consider Rose Avenue/Fair Street as an alternative bicycle boulevard route to Downtown. | - | \$ | | | | |



| Table 4-7: Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|-----------------|-------------------|-----------------|---|--------------------|------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | |
| St. Mary Street | Division Street | Main Street | 540 | Stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. Complete with Division Street bicycle route. | - | \$ | | | | | |

1. Prevailing speed, number of travel lanes, and presence of median are key factors in determining the need for crosswalk safety enhancements. In addition that, PHBs have specific volume warrants requirement per the CAMUTCD that must be met. Crosswalk installation and enhancements should be determined according to Appendix A Crosswalk Policy and engineering judgment.





Figure 4-10: Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown

4.2.7 East Side

The East Side project connects Amador Valley High School, Alisal Elementary School, Orloff Park, Iron Horse Trail, and Mohr Elementary School with a bicycle boulevard along residential streets in the neighborhoods east of Santa Rita Road. It also provides access from the east side neighborhoods to Downtown. The bicycle boulevard begins on School Street, continues on Kolln Street, and connects with the Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard in order to provide a bicycle boulevard alternative to Santa Rita Road.

4.2.7.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Addressing the needs of students walking and biking to Mohr Elementary School, Alisal Elementary School and Amador Valley High School
- Improving access to existing shared use paths through wayfinding and installation of new neighborhood bicycle routes
- Providing an all ages and abilities alternative to Santa Rita Road through the neighborhoods on the east side of Santa Rita

4.2.7.2 Recommendations

Table 4-8 details the components of the project. Figure 4-11 presents the proposed project.



Example traffic circle, a traffic calming device that could be considered on a bicycle boulevard



| Table 4-8: East Side | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------------------------------------|--|------------------|--|-----------------------|----------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Guzman Parkway | Amaral Park/Dennis Drive | Arroyo Mocho Trail /Stoneridge Drive | €68 € | Install separated bikeways between Amaral Park/Dennis Drive and Stoneridge Drive/Arroyo Mocho Trail | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| Dennis Drive | Intersection with Carrisa Court | | 570 x - L | Restripe existing crosswalk as high-visibility | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Martin Avenue | At Amaral Park | | ₹ \$ | Install wayfinding between Martin Avenue Path, Amaral Park, Mohr Elementary School, and Arroyo Mocho Trail | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Mohr Avenue | Iron Horse Trail | Martin Avenue | ₫ \$ | Extend existing Class I path on north side of the street; stripe trail crossing at all cross-streets: Kamp Drive, Courtney Avenue, and Martin Avenue; install wayfinding between Iron Horse Trail and Martin Avenue path | - | \$\$\$\$ | | | | |
| Kolln Street | Mohr Avenue | School Street | €®\$ \$ | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. Add wayfinding to Downtown (southbound) and access to BART, Arroyo Mocho Trail, and Iron Horse Trail (northbound). | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Kolln Street | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | 570 X L | Add bicycle cut through with signal detection at Valley Avenue. Complete with Kolln Street bicycle boulevard treatments. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| School Street | Kolln Street | Santa Rita Road | ₼₺₽₽ | Install bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to Amador Valley High School. Use sharrows and wayfinding signs to identify the preferred route between the School Street intersection and the signal at Santa Rita Road, which are offset. | - | \$\$ | | | | |



Figure 4-11: East Side


4.2.8 Foothill Road

The Foothill Road project consists of safe routes to school projects and a complete streets study of the entire length of Foothill Road. The near-term improvements include walking and biking access for students at Lydiksen Elementary School and Foothill High School. The complete streets study is expected to identify a low-stress bicycle facility for Foothill Road.

4.2.8.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Studying the feasibility of providing a continuous and low-stress north to south bicycle facility in west Pleasanton
- Addressing the inconsistent cross-section and gaps in existing bicycle facilities on Foothill Road
- High speeds on Foothill Road require separated bikeways or a path to be considered part of the all ages and abilities network
- Providing crosswalk improvements to support safe routes to school

4.2.8.2 Recommendations

Table 4-9 details the components of the project. Figure 4-12 presents the proposed project.

| | Table 4-9: Foothill Road | | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------|---|---------------------|----------------------|--|--|--------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | ocation Cross Street 1 Cross Street Project 2 Type | | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | |
| Foothill Road | I-580 | Castlewood Drive | 540 | Prepare bikeway feasibility/complete streets study focused on providing continuous, protected bikeways and separated bikeway intersection improvements. Coordinate with County to address portions outside of Pleasanton. | Install continuous separated bikeways and separated bikeway intersection improvements | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Foothill Road | Intersection with Highland Oaks Drive | | ጵ上 | Enhance existing crosswalk with ladder striping and PHB ¹ | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Foothill Road | Lydiksen Elementary School Safe Routes to School Projects | | <i>ক</i> ু র্ | Provide crossing, bicycle rack, and access improvements on Highland Oaks Drive and Driftwood Way. Coordinate with Muirwood Drive and West Las Positas Boulevard Improvements | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Foothill Road | Intersection with Oak Creek Drive | | ጵ上 | Enhance existing crosswalk with ladder striping and PHB ¹ | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |

1. Prevailing speed, number of travel lanes, and presence of median are key factors in determining the need for crosswalk safety enhancements. In addition that, PHBs have specific volume warrants requirement per the CAMUTCD that must be met. Crosswalk installation and enhancements should be determined according to Appendix A Crosswalk Policy and engineering judgment.





Figure 4-12: Foothill Road



4.2.9 I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings

In the near-term, the I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings project will examine multi-modal improvements, including bicycle and pedestrian improvements, at each interchange in the city. The study is funded and anticipated to be completed in 2017. Improvements recommended by the study will be implemented in the long-term; the study will also identify lower-cost solutions to improve bicycle and pedestrian safety through interchanges.

4.2.9.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by this project include:

- Addressing existing ramp geometries that provide high speed turns across crosswalks and bicycle lanes onto and off of the highways
- Providing context-sensitive solutions for different ramp geometry types on the I-580 and I-680 crossings
- Addressing the risk of multiple-threat collisions at on-ramps with more than one travel lane
- At uncontrolled ramps, apply the Citywide Crosswalk Policy in Appendix A to identify crosswalk enhancements
- Consideration of near-term improvements such as improving bicycle lane geometries, using green skip-striping, installing bicycle "escape ramps" before and after the ramp, and restriping high-visibility crosswalks where drivers are at the lowest speed in their turn while still providing short paths of travel
- Consideration of long-term improvements, such as redesigning ramp geometries to intersect at 90-degrees to the roadway

4.2.9.2 Recommendations

Table 4-10 details the components of the project. Figure 4-13 presents the proposed project.



| Table 4-10: I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------------|--|---|----------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| All I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings | - | - | <i>ক</i> ক্ত র্ম | Prepare bicycle and pedestrian improvements feasibility study, utilizing best practices such as the <i>ITE</i> <i>Recommended Practices on Accommodating Pedestrians</i> <i>and Bicyclists at Interchanges</i> report | Implement Feasibility Study recommendations | \$\$\$\$ | | | | |



Figure 4-13: I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings



4.2.10 Santa Rita Road

The Santa Rita Road project consists of near-term improvements to close walking and bicycling gaps on the corridor in addition to a complete streets study along the entire length of Santa Rita Road to identify long-term solutions. The long-term study should consider traffic operations, parking regulations and utilization, and bicycle and pedestrian safety and comfort needs to assist in identifying feasible improvements for all travel modes. With many schools and parks nearby, this an important safe routes to school corridor, which should be addressed through the complete streets study.

4.2.10.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and Opportunities to be addressed by this project include:

- Addressing the need for separated bikeways in order to include Santa Rita Road in the all ages and abilities network given high speeds and the number of travel lanes
- Considering the importance of Santa Rita Road in the bicycle network, as it is the most direct and desirable route to many locations, such as Downtown
- Closing gaps in the bicycle facility on Santa Rita Road in the near term where feasible
- Improving access to Alisal Elementary School and Amador Valley High School by providing crosswalk improvements
- Provide a portion of all ages and abilities bikeway in the near term by creating a bicycle boulevard with wayfinding on the frontage road on the east side of Santa Rita Road





Example Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon (top) and separated bikeway with parking (below).

• Address pedestrian desire lines between schools, shopping centers, and residential areas on both sides of Santa Rita and the need for enhanced crosswalks due to the speed and number of traffic lanes

4.2.10.2 Recommendations

Table 4-11 details the components of the project. Figure 4-14 presents the proposed project.

| | Table 4-11: Santa Rita Road | | | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------|--------------|--|--|----------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | | |
| Santa Rita Road/Main Street | Del Valle Parkway | I-580 | 545 | Close gaps in existing bicycle facility with bicycle lane or sharrows where dedicated spaces cannot be provided. Stripe bicycle lanes between Old Santa Rita Road and Stoneridge Drive and Valley Avenue and Francisco Street NB. Stripe sharrows centered on the travel lane or remove parking where there is not enough space for a bicycle lane between Sutter Gate Avenue and Mohr Avenue and Mohr Avenue to Valley Avenue NB; . At intersections, transition bicycle lanes from curbside to between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the intersection. Install a bicycle boulevard on the Santa Rita Frontage Road between Francisco Street and Stanley Avenue; direct bicyclists traveling on Santa Rita Road north of Stanley Avenue and south of Francisco Street to use bicycle boulevard through wayfinding Install wayfinding encouraging use of sidewalk between the end of the Santa Rita Road frontage road near Jensen Street to Stanley Boulevard. Prepare complete streets study to provide continuous, protected bicycle facilities and pedestrian safety and comfort improvements, including parking inventory and utilization to understand where parking can be removed; closing the existing gap in the Iron Horse Trail in the most direct way; improving the 1-580 interchange biking and walking improvements; | Install separated Bikeway; streetscape and crosswalk improvements | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | | |



| | Table 4-11: Santa Rita Road | | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|--|----------------------|---|--|--|---|--|--------|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | |
| | | | | improving pedestrian environment and crosswalks; and addressing safe routes to school considerations. Coordinate with the Iron Horse Trail improvements project | | | | | | | |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with W Las Positas Boulevard | | Intersection with W Las Positas Boulevard | | 530 × L | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | \$ | | | |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | ₹ \$ | Enhance or modify slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for improved bicycle and pedestrian circulation | Consider protected intersection with Valley Avenue and Santa Rita bicycle improvements | \$\$\$ | | | |
| Santa Rita Road/Main Street | South end of Santa Rita frontage Road | Stanley Boulevard | ৵ ঌ৾৵ | - | Realign existing path on east side of Main Street and south side of the railroad. Add bicycle/pedestrian crossing gate at the railroad crossing from Santa Rita frontage road southbound. | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Santa Rita Road | Alisal Elementary | | ৵ ৵৵ | Provide crosswalk ¹ , bicycle rack, accessibility, and pathway improvements near Santa Rita Road frontage road and Nevis Street. | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Francisco Street | | ₫ | Enhance existing crosswalk with PHB or signal ¹ | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |

1. Prevailing speed, number of travel lanes, and presence of median are key factors in determining the need for crosswalk safety enhancements. In addition that, PHBs have specific volume warrants requirement per the CAMUTCD that must be met. Crosswalk installation and enhancements should be determined according to Appendix A Crosswalk Policy and engineering judgment.



Figure 4-14: Santa Rita Road



4.2.11 Stanley Boulevard

The Stanley Boulevard project consists of a separated bikeway between Valley Avenue and First Street with additional bicycle and pedestrian improvements at the intersection with Valley Avenue.

4.2.11.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Providing a safe, comfortable connection between the Iron Horse Trail and Stanley Boulevard bikeways through the Valley Avenue/Stanley Boulevard intersection
- Improving access to Downtown from neighborhoods to the north and east
- Creating a safe, low-stress bicycle route to Downtown from east Pleasanton and the Iron Horse Trail

4.2.11.2 Recommendations

Table 4-12 details the project components. Figure 4-15 maps the proposed projects.



Example separated bikeway (Source: FHWA Guide, Dianne Yee)

| | Table 4-12: Stanley Boulevard | | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---|----------------------|-----------------|---|---|----------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | |
| Stanley Boulevard | Valley Avenue | First Street | 540 | Install separated bikeway | - | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue/ Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Stanley Boulevard | | <i>б</i> ъл̀ | Near-term improvements include: install trail wayfinding and shared path markings; enhance or modify slip lane; install upgrades to allow for improved bicycle/pedestrian circulation; stripe crosswalks as trail crossings and stripe green bicycle lanes on approaches and through the intersection; Install two stage bicycle turn boxes and install cyclist detection from sidewalk/paths Medium-term improvement is to construct a protected intersection | Close 200' sidewalk gap on east side of Valley Avenue and install east crosswalk at Valley Avenue/Stanley Boulevard; widen underpass to provide protected bicycle lanes on Valley Avenue | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | |





Figure 4-15: Stanley Boulevard

4.2.12 Stoneridge Drive

The Stoneridge Drive project would convert existing bicycle lanes to buffered bicycle lanes along the whole corridor in the near-term, with installation of separated bikeways in the long-term.

4.2.12.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Improving east-west connections on the north side of Pleasanton
- Upgrade the existing bicycle lanes to buffered bicycle lanes for improved comfort
- In the long-term, considering upgrading the buffered bicycle lanes with installation of posts in the painted buffer to convert buffered lanes to separated bikeways, making Stoneridge Drive part of the all ages and abilities network

4.2.12.2 Recommendations

Table 4-13 details the project components. Figure 4-16 maps the proposed projects.

| | Table 4-13: Stoneridge Drive | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------|------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------|---|---|--------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Stoneridge Drive | Foothill Road | Santa Rita Road | 55 | Stripe buffered bicycle lanes, and transition bicycle lanes from curbside to between through and right lane no farther than 150' back from the intersection | Install separated bikeways with separated bikeway intersection treatments | \$\$\$ | | | | |





Figure 4-16: Stoneridge Drive



4.2.13 Sunol Boulevard

The Sunol Boulevard project provides a continuous buffered bicycle lane in the near-term and includes bicycle and pedestrian improvements at signalized intersections. In the long-term, separated bikeways are recommended for Sunol Boulevard.

4.2.13.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Upgrading the existing bicycle lanes to provide a more comfortable, continuous, north to south bikeway for experienced riders
- Improving bicycle and pedestrian access to Pleasanton Middle School, Village High School, Hearst Elementary School, Centennial Park, and Downtown
- Addressing the large slip lane on the southwest corner of Bernal Avenue/Sunol Boulevard intersection that creates a barrier to bicycling
- Addressing the need to improve existing bicycle lanes on Sunol Boulevard near the First Street/Bernal Avenue intersection

4.2.13.2 Recommendations

Table 4-14 details the project components. Figure 4-17 maps the proposed projects.



Example bicycle box Source: Inhabit.com



| | Table 4-14: Sunol Boulevard | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------|---|-------------------|-----------------|---|---|----------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Sycamore Road | Bernal Avenue | 570 R | Stripe buffered bicycle lanes | Install separated bikeways with separated bikeway intersection improvements | \$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Castlewood Drive | Sycamore Road | 500 X | Close gap with buffered Class II bicycle lanes Restripe existing bicycle lanes as buffered bicycle lanes Transition bicycle lane from curbside to between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the northbound and southbound I-680 On-Ramps | Install sidewalk/path on the north and south sides of Sunol Boulevard for use by bicyclists and stripe high-visibility crosswalks across all on-ramps. Convert buffered bicycle lanes to separated bikeways with raised islands through interchange. Enhance or modify slip lane westbound and bring right-turns into the intersection. Coordinate with recommendations of I-580/I-680 Improvements Feasibility Study | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Intersection with Bernal Avenue/First Street | | 540 X | Enhance or modify slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for improved bicycle and pedestrian circulation and stripe bicycle lane and right-turn pocket on southbound approach; continue northbound bicycle lane to the intersection; stripe bicycle boxes and/or two stage left turns to support bicycle turning movement | Separated bikeway on northbound approach | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | |



Figure 4-17: Sunol Boulevard



4.2.14 Valley Avenue

Valley Avenue is an important roadway in Pleasanton's overall transportation network, but portions of it are high traffic stress for cyclists due to high speeds and volumes. Given the constrained roadway width in many places, a low-stress bikeway is not feasible in the near-term. However, bicycle lanes on Valley Avenue between Hopyard Road and Sunol Boulevard are feasible, and between Hopyard Road and Santa Rita Road, bicycle boulevard alternatives are possible. The Valley Avenue alternatives are bicycle boulevard connections to the north and south of Valley Avenue between Hopyard Road and Santa Rita Road. The alternatives will utilize low-volume residential streets and existing paths through parks to provide access to schools and parks, including Harvest Park Middle School, Walnut Grove Elementary School, Amador Valley Community Park, Ken Mercer Sports Park, and Woodthrush Park. The Valley Avenue bicycle boulevard projects also connect to the Central Pleasanton bicycle boulevards project.

4.2.14.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Addressing need for all ages and abilities bikeways on or near the Valley Avenue corridor
- Providing a continuous bikeway around Downtown, connecting residential neighborhoods and schools
- Improving access to the Arroyo Mocho Trail in the Parkside neighborhood
- Improving bicycle and pedestrian access to Case Middle School, Harvest Park Middle School, Alisal Elementary School and Amador Valley High School with crosswalk improvements and traffic calming
- Integrate on-street bikeways with the trail networks

4.2.14.2 Recommendations

Table 4-15 details the components of the project. Figure 4-18 maps the proposed projects.



Example curb extensions Source: pedbikeimages.org

| Table 4-15: Valley Avenue | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|---------------------------------|-------------------------|---|---|--------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Amador Valley Community Park Path | Alameda Drive | Santa Rita Road | & & ≹ | Install wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools and Kolln Street bicycle boulevard and widen path | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Black Avenue | Amador Valley Community Park | Santa Rita Road | শ ম ঙ্গু | - | Widen sidewalk on north side of Black Avenue to create Class I Path next to Amador Valley Community Park | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| Canary Drive - Raven Road - Crestline Road - Woodthrush Road - Skylark Way - Existing Path on south side of the Sports Park | Greenwood Road | Hopyard Road | ৵ঌ৵৾ | Install bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Northway Road | Valley Avenue | Walnut Grove Park Path | ⊥ \$ && | Install bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Northway Road (at both West and East intersections) | Intersection with Val | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Enhance or modify slip lanes for pedestrian and bicycle safety at both intersections with Northway Road/Valley Avenue | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| Walnut Grove Elementary School Safe Routes to School Project | Harvest Road, Black Avenue, Northway Road | | <i>5</i> €\$\$ | Improve accessibility, bicycle racks, pathways, and access around Walnut Grove Elementary School. | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |



| Table 4-15: Valley Avenue | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|--|-------------------------|--|--------------------|--------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Walnut Grove Park Path/Harvest Park Middle School Path | Northway Road | Greenwood Road | ⊥ \$ && | Install wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. | - | \$ | | | | |
| Alameda Drive | Harvest Park Middle School Path/Greenwood Road | Amador Valley Community Park Path | £676 | Install bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Alameda Drive | Intersection with Greenwood Road | | ≜ \$ && | Part of Central Pleasanton Bicycle Boulevard project: improve connection between Harvest Park Path and Alameda Drive; reduce crossing distances of school crosswalks through curb extensions and reduced curb radii | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Amador Valley Community Park Path | Intersection at Francisco Street/Santa Rita Road | | & & ≹ | Widen sidewalk on west side of Santa Rita Road to improve connection between the Park and the proposed PHB/signal at Francisco Street. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Omega Circle | Parkside Drive | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | ⅆ⅃ℷⅆ | Install bicycle/pedestrian cut through and wayfinding at end of Parkside Drive connecting to the Sports Park and at the path spur to the Arroyo Mocho Trail. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail Access Improvements from Parkside Drive | Hopyard Road | Omega Circle | Ŕ | Work with community and EBRPD to provide access at Marilyn Court, Anastacia Court, and/or Glenda Court | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |

| Table 4-15: Valley Avenue | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------------------|----------------|---|--|--------|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | |
| Valley Avenue | Hopyard Road | Koll Center Parkway/ Road 12 | 540 | Review ability to reduce auto travel lanes to provide minimum 6' bicycle lanes; Stripe bicycle lanes continuously up to intersections | Install separated bikeways and separated bikeway intersection improvements | \$\$ | | | |
| Valley Avenue | Intersection with Busch Road | | কৰ্ফ 🛱 | Install stripe crossbike/trail crossing and wide curb ramps for path extension. Install wayfinding and utilize the existing sidewalks on Valley Avenue to direct north/westbound bicyclists to Quarry Lane intersection and south/eastbound bicyclists to Boulder Street. | Install missing crosswalks at intersection. | \$\$ | | | |
| Valley Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Sunol Boulevard | র্ক ক্ট | Restripe existing NB bicycle lane as buffered bicycle lane and close gaps: (1) at signals, bring bicycle lane up to intersection, and (2) at roundabouts, continue striping to within 50' of intersection and install bicycle ramps up to sidewalk; stripe sharrows through roundabouts; mark all crosswalk at roundabouts. Close bicycle lane gaps westbound between Case and Sunol. | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeways | \$\$ | | | |
| Valley Avenue | Koll Center Parkway/ Road 12 | Bernal Avenue | 540 | Install separated bikeway to 500' north of Koll Center; buffered bicycle lanes SB; stripe sharrows northbound | Install separated bikeways and separated bikeway intersection improvements | \$\$ | | | |
| Sports Park Drive | Parkside Drive | Omega Circle | ⅆ⅃ⅉⅆ | Consider bicycle boulevard on Parkside Drive or two-way separated bikeway on Sports Park Drive | - | \$\$\$ | | | |





Figure 4-18: Valley Avenue



4.2.15 West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown

The West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown project provides a north-south connection between BART through the residential neighborhoods on the west side of I-680 to the Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail and Bernal Avenue, ultimately connecting to Downtown. This route relies on shared-use paths and bicycle boulevards. In doing so, this project provides a near-term low-stress bikeway alternative to Foothill Road, which cannot easily be improved in the near-term. This project improves biking and walking access to school for students at Lydiksen Elementary School and Foothill High School.

4.2.15.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by this project include:

- Improving bicycle and pedestrian access to West Dublin/Pleasanton BART
- Creating a continuous, north to south bikeway through west Pleasanton
- Improving bicycle and pedestrian access to Foothill High School and Lydisken Elementary School with traffic calming and improved crosswalks
- Closing sidewalk gaps near Stoneridge Mall and the West Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station
- Studying a bridge over I-680 to connect the neighborhoods and the Muirwood bicycle boulevard to the west of the freeway to Centennial Trail and Val Vista Park
- Studying the feasibility of installation of a mixed use path through the county parcel south of Muirwood Drive
- Studying a grade separated crossing of I-680 to the Centennial Trail
- Studying a grade separated crossing over the Arroyo Valle Creek to connect to the Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail. As an alternative, evaluate a bicycle boulevard on Regency Drive/Paragon Circle with a path connection to Bernal Avenue connecting to the Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail. This may require widening of the existing Bernal Avenue bridge over Arroyo Valle Creek.



4.2.15.2 Recommendations

Table 4-16 details the project components. Figure 4-19 maps the proposed projects.

| Table 4-16: West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--|----------------------|-----------------------|--|--------------------|--------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| Foothill Road | Dublin Canyon Road | Stoneridge Drive | ক্ ষ ্ঠ | Repair/repave asphalt sidewalk/path on the east side of Foothill Road | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Stoneridge Mall Road | West Dublin/ Pleasanton BART Driveway | Stoneridge Drive | 6740 | Designate east side sidewalk as Class I path; widen path as feasible with concrete sidewalk or decomposed granite, particularly at intersections. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Stoneridge Drive | Intersection with Stoneridge Mall Drive | | 5 ™ ■ | Review ability to install east leg marked crosswalk at signal | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| Stoneridge Mall Road | Intersection with BART Driveway | | 5€0 ₩ | Improve BART path and wayfinding to BART and the West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown bikeway | - | \$ | | | | |
| Stonedale Drive | Stoneridge Mall Road/Stoneridge Drive Intersection | Springdale Avenue | <i>67</i> 0∕ ⊼ | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. Install cut through between Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mall Road intersection and Stonedale Drive for bicyclists and pedestrians. Stripe ladder crosswalk across Stonedale Drive to provide access to Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mall Road intersection. | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| Springdale Avenue | Stonedale Drive | Muirwood Drive | | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment. Install enhanced marked crosswalk with flashing beacons and extend median to provide minimum 6' wide refuge wide enough for bicyclists at Stonedale Drive/Springdale Avenue. | - | \$\$ | | | | |

| | Table 4-16: West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|----------------------------|-----------------------|---|--|----------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | | | | | |
| Muirwood Avenue | Springdale Avenue | Eastwood Way | | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | \$\$ | | | | | | |
| Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I- 680 Overcrossing | Muirwood Drive | Denker Drive | <i>5</i> €0 ▲ 🛱 | Conduct Feasibility Study of a grade-separated I-680 crossing connecting Val Vista Park and Muirwood Park. Complete in tandem with Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Crossing Feasibility Study and Arroyo de Laguna Trail Feasibility Study | Install grade-separated I-680 crossing | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | | |
| Arroyo de Laguna/Centennial Trail Connection | Centennial Trail | Bernal Avenue | <i>ক</i> কু র্ | Connect Centennial Trail to Meadowlark Park/Minton Court bicycle boulevard/paths. | Install path connecting Muirwood Drive and Foothill Knolls Drive Path | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | | |
| Connection over Arroyo de Laguna | End of Minton Ct | Meadowlark Park Path | <i>ক</i> কু র্ | Connect Meadowlark Park/Minton Court connection with Centennial Trail and Arroyo Valley Trail via I-680 grade separation. Complete in tandem with Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Crossing Feasibility Study | Provide shared-use path with overcrossing of Arroyo de la Laguna to connect Bicycle boulevards | \$\$\$\$ | | | | | | |
| County Parcel Trail Connection | Muirwood Drive | Meadowlark Drive | 54 | Conduct Trail Feasibility Study and/or coordinate with Alameda County and property owner | Provide shared-use path to connect bicycle boulevard treatments | \$\$ | | | | | | |
| Meadowlark Drive | Minton Ct | Bernal Avenue | <i>শ</i> ্ৰু কৈ | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | \$\$ | | | | | | |
| W Lagoon Road | Bernal Avenue | Marilyn Kane Trail Head | 54 | Extend existing bicycle lanes to intersection with Bernal Avenue. Mark sharrows through Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail Head parking lot. | - | \$ | | | | | | |





Figure 4-19: West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown

4.2.16 West Las Positas Boulevard

The West Las Positas Boulevard creates a separated bikeway in the near-term as well as a series of pedestrian safety improvements near Hart Middle School and Fairlands Elementary School.

4.2.16.1 Issues and Opportunities

Issues and opportunities to be addressed by the project include:

- Addressing the need for separated bikeways to make West Las Positas Boulevard part of the all ages and abilities network
- Creating a continuous, east-west bikeway in north Pleasanton providing access to neighborhoods, employment centers, and schools while avoiding I-680 interchanges
- Improving safety and comfort for bicyclists and pedestrians at large intersections
- Providing Safe Routes to School improvements for Thomas S. Hart Middle School and Fairlands Elementary School with improved and more frequent pedestrian crossings

4.2.16.2 Recommendations

Table 4-17 details the project components. Figure 4-20 maps the proposed vision projects.



Example separated bikeway Source: City of Boulder



| | Table 4-17: West Las Positas Boulevard | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------|--|-----------------|-----------------|---|---------------------------|--------|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long- Term Proposal | Cost | | | | |
| W. Las Positas Boulevard | Foothill Road | Santa Rita Road | 570 | Install separated bikeway. Coordinate with intersection improvements at Willow Road | | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Santa Rita Road | | <i>ক</i> ্ষ্ঠ | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | \$ | | | | |
| W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Hopyard Road | | <i>5</i> ™ ₩ | Enhance or modify slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for bicyclists turning between W. Las Positas and Hopyard Road. | - | \$\$\$ | | | | |
| W. Las Positas Boulevard | ard Intersection with Fairlands Drive | | Ŕ | Enhance existing crosswalk with high-visibility striping ¹ | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Montpelier Court | | ķ | Install new marked crosswalk with median refuge and curb extensions ¹ | - | \$\$ | | | | |
| W. Las Positas Boulevard | s Santa Rita North Pimlico Road Drive Intersection | | 570 | Improve consistency of existing bicycle lane and shoulder striping between Santa Rita Road and Boardwalk Street. Provide bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools east of Boardwalk Street | - | \$\$ | | | | |

1. Prevailing speed, number of travel lanes, and presence of median are key factors in determining the need for crosswalk safety enhancements. In addition that, PHBs have specific volume warrants requirement per the CAMUTCD that must be met. Crosswalk installation and enhancements should be determined according to Appendix A Crosswalk Policy and engineering judgment.



Figure 4-20: W. Las Positas Boulevard



4.2.17 Vision Projects

The Vision Projects encompass additional long-term projects that (1) improve walking and bicycling facilities but do not substantially improve comfort for those who walk and bicycle and/or (2) due to constraints, require significant engineering studies, other feasibility studies, and/or capital costs. The Vision Projects received input from the community at multiple community workshops and Bicycle, Pedestrian and Trails Committee meetings. **Table 4-18** details the project components. **Figure 4-21** maps the proposed vision network projects.

| Table 4-18: Vision Network Projects | | | | | | | | |
|--|------------------------------------|------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------|--|--------------------|----------|--|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail | Hopyard Road | City Limit near Busch Road | £470 | Install 10' paved path on south bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner /equestrian use. Provide connection to future trails to the east in Livermore. | - | \$\$\$\$ | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail Continuation | Stoneridge Drive | El Charro Road | উক্ ঠ | Continue paving of Arroyo Mocho Trail to El Charro Road | - | \$\$\$\$ | |

| | Table 4-18: Vision Network Projects | | | | | | | |
|--|--|-----------------------------------|-------------------------|---------------------|-----------------------|---|----------|--|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail - Fairlands connector | West Las Positas | Arroyo Mocho Trail | \$ \$ \$ | - | In coordination with any future major redevelopment of the Walmart Neighborhood Market shopping center site at the southeast corner of West Las Positas and Santa Rita Road, provide a multi-use trail connecting from Fairlands Elementary School to the Arroyo Mocho trail. Consider new bicycle/pedestrian bridge for this connection. | \$\$\$\$ | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Dublin Canyon Road | Pleasanton Marriot Driveway | Canyon Meadow Circle | 640 | - | Improve/widen shoulder where necessary. Stripe buffered bicycle lanes | \$\$\$\$ | |
| Downtown Access Vision Projects | First Street | Vineyard Avenue | Bernal Avenue | 570 1 7 | - | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeway through lane reduction or parking removal | \$\$\$ | |
| Downtown Access Vision Projects | Second Street | Spring Street/ Kottinger Drive | Abbie Street | 640 | - | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | \$\$ | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Spring Street/ Kottinger Drive/ Concord Street | Main Street | Hearst Drive | 54 | - | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | \$\$ | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Neal Street | Main Street | Mirador Drive | 676 | - | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | \$\$ | |



| Table 4-18: Vision Network Projects | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|------------------------|-------------------|-----------------|--|---|----------|--|--|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Trail | Arroyo de la Laguna | Hopyard Road | 54 | - | Provide north bank: 10' paved bikeway, Use compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use. Provide connection between Tennis & Community Park and Pleasanton Sports & Recreation Park; improve bicycle/pedestrian signage to/from access points Haleakala Road, Tennis & Community Park, Hopyard Road | \$\$\$\$ | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Trail via Pleasanton Sports & Recreation Park | Hopyard Road | Omega Cir | 5. Q. X | Improve bicycle/pedestrian signage to/from Arroyo Mocho Trail, Pleasanton Canal Trail, Woodthrush Park Neighborhood | - | \$ | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Valley Avenue | Santa Rita Road | Stanley Boulevard | 540 | - | Close bicycle lane gaps | \$\$ | | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Intersection with the | Iron Horse Trail (sou | th segment) | ক া — | Install new trail crossing with ladder striping and PHB or signal | - | \$\$\$ | | |

| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost |
|--|---|--|---|--|--|--|----------|
| Iron Horse Trail | Iron Horse Trail Extension | Busch Road/Iron Horse Trail Terminus | Stanley Boulevard/Iron Horse Trail Path | 676 1 | Study the gap closure of the Iron Horse Trail between Busch Road and Stanley Avenue, including finalizing preferred alignment, cost estimates, and phasing/funding strategy | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use from Busch Road to Stanley Boulevard, including at Shadow Cliffs Regional Park Entrance. Provide intersection/trail crossing improvements at Busch Road and Valley/Stanley intersection, and railroad crossing. Coordinate with EBRPD and railroad. | \$\$\$\$ |
| Iron Horse Trail | Intersections with the Iron Horse Trail and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | 55 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Prepare trail feasibility study to improve the connection between the two Iron Horse Trail segments and the Arroyo Mocho Trail, considering grade-separated crossing(s). | Provide continuous connections between the two segments of Iron Horse Trail and the Arroyo Mocho Trail | \$\$\$\$ |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: W. Las Positas / Arroyo de la Laguna Trail Access Point | Arroyo de la Laguna | W. Las Positas | <i>ক</i> ক র্ম | Access gate and pathway from north side of W. Las Positas Road. | - | \$\$\$\$ |



| Table 4-18: Vision Network Projects | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|------------------------------------|---|-----------------|---|--|----------|--|--|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Pleasanton Canal Bridge Improvements | Alamo Canal Trail | Pleasanton Canal | <i>ক</i> কক | Change bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards, 55" height. (Coordinate with Zone 7) | - | \$\$\$\$ | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Adams Way/ Mirador Drive | Vineyard Avenue | Bernal Avenue | 55 | - | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | \$\$ | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Hopyard Road | I-580 Ramps | W Las Positas Boulevard | 55 | - | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeways | \$\$\$ | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension | Arroyo Del Valle | Near south end of Laguna Creek Lane | \$ && | - | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Bernal Avenue. Install new access points at Lylewood Drive, Bernal Avenue, and along Laguna Creek Lane. | \$\$\$\$ | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension | Intersection with Arroyo Del Valle | | র্ক ক্ট | - | Study and install a new bicycle/pedestrian bridge. | \$\$\$ | | |

| | | | Table 4-18: Vision Network Projects | | | | | | |
|--|--|---|--|--|---------------------|-----------------------|---|----------|--|
| | Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost | |
| | North-South Access Vision Projects | Chabot Canal | Owens Drive / Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo Mocho Trail | 555X | - | Install 10' paved path with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection Improvements at West Las Positas, Inglewood, Stoneridge, Gibraltar, Owens. Note this project requires a new bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Provide access between Arroyo Mocho Trail and Dublin/Pleasanton BART, and Hart Middle School. The project will require multiple mid-block crossings with enhancements. | \$\$\$\$ | |
| | North-South Access Vision Projects | Tassajara Canal | Rosewood Drive / Interstate 580 | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo Mocho Trail | র্ক ক্ট | - | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Rosewood, Owens, Stoneridge, West Las Positas. Note this project requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Study potential for crossing at I-580 to connect with Tassajara Creek Trail (EBRPD, regional trail) in Dublin. (Constraints, multiple mid-block crossings, current adjacent land uses are commercial office/industrial parks which turn backs to canal with no access points.) | \$\$\$\$ | |
| | North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Community Park Trail | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Johnson Drive North / Interstate 580 | <i>ক</i> ক র | - | Install 10' paved path on south and east banks with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use, Intersection trail crossing at Hopyard Road | \$\$\$\$ | |


| Table 4-18: Vision Network Projects | | | | | | | |
|--|---|---|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|---|----------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cost |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna | Arroyo Mocho | Arroyo Del Valle | <i>ক</i> ন্দ | - | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | \$\$\$\$ |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Bridge Improvements | Val Vista Community Park Trail & Arroyo de la Laguna | | <i>ক</i> কন্ট | - | Update bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards. Coordinate with Zone 7. | \$\$\$\$ |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Community Park Trail | Arroyo de la Laguna | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | <i>ক</i> ন্চ র্ম | - | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | \$\$\$\$ |

4.3 Walking and Bicycling Forecasts

With the implementation of the walking and biking project described in this chapter, increase in the mode share for walking and biking is anticipated. With the focus on all ages and abilities bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure, walking trips are expected to double by 2040. Biking is expected to increase modestly. However, it is possible and likely that the biking mode share may increase beyond that with robust, low-stress bikeways. **Table 4-19** presents estimates of the increase in walking and biking utilizing Alameda County Transportation Commission's bicycle and pedestrian forecasting tools.



| Table 4-19: Pleasanton Walking and Bicycling Mode Share Forecasts | | | | |
|---|----------------------------------|---|--|--|
| Mode Type | Existing Mode Split ¹ | Percent of All Trips for the Vision Network in 2040 ² | | |
| Walking Mode Share for All Trip | 7.7% | 14.2% | | |
| Bicycling Mode Share for All Trips | 0.8% | 1.1% | | |

1. Per the City of Pleasanton's Travel Demand Model (2015)

2. Per the Alameda CTC Demand Forecasting Tool and Alameda CTC Travel Demand Modal.



5. **Project Prioritization**

Prioritization of the projects in Chapter 4 is necessary to understand how the community would like to see city investments for walking and biking directed. Chapter 5 presents a methodology for prioritizing projects that weighs connectivity, demand, safety, safe routes to school functions, and feasibility to assign a relative priority score for each opportunity area corridor project. The prioritized list gives the city a clear framework for how to allocate discretionary funding for walking and bicycling projects. More information on those funding source and implementation is provided in **Chapter 7**. While this chapter provides a general road map of community priorities, in some cases, lower priority projects may be implemented sooner as discrete opportunities arise, such as through repaving projects or development-related improvements.

The prioritization methodology consits of a series of community-vetted criteria with associated weightings that were used to score each corridor project as well each individual project within the corridor. The projects were sorted in numerical order and therefore ranked based on how they deliver on the five prioritization criteria: connectivity, demand, safety, safe routes to school functions, and feasibility. Both the corridors and individual projects that make up the near-term and vision networks are ranked and scored as follows:

Connectivity, demand, safety, safe routes to school functions, and feasibility were used as criteria to prioritize projects

- **Corridor score**: The group score is the average score of each individual project within the corridors group. When sorted from highest score to lowest it presents the ranked order in which corridor projects are prioritized for implementation.
- **Individual project score**: This is the individual project score within each corridor. When sorted from highest score to lowest it presents the ranked order in which projects are prioritized for implementation within each corridor.

For example, Hopyard Road separated bikeway between West Las Positas Boulevard and Valley Avenue is organized under the Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown corridor grouping, the eighth highest priority project overall and the highest priority project with the group.



Project Prioritization | 5

Groups with a prioritization score of eight or more points are considered part of the near-term network. Those groups with a score below eight points are considered part of the vision network and are conisdered long-term improvements. Some roadways have nearterm priority projects with a series of phased long-term improvements; in those cases, the near-term projects are prioritized. **Table 5-1** presents the high priority groupings in ranked order. The full prioritized project list, including vision network projects, is presented in **Appendix C** and on **Figures 4-1, 4-2, and 4-3**, respectively.

The criteria and scoring used are described in the next section. The criteria and relative weight are based on numerous conversations with the public at community workshops; Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Trails Committee meetings; and conversations with city staff. Each criterion was assigned either three or four points, and projects were scored out of a total 18 points.

Table 5-1: Prioritized Project Corridors

| Rank | Project Corridor | Score |
|------|--|-------|
| 1 | West Las Positas Boulevard | 14.3 |
| 2 | Santa Rita Road | 13.9 |
| 3 | I-580 and I-680 Overcrossing Improvements | 13 |
| 3 | Foothill Road | 13 |
| 5 | Stanley Boulevard | 12 |
| 5 | Bernal Avenue | 12 |
| 5 | Stoneridge Drive | 12 |
| 8 | Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | 11.7 |
| 9 | Downtown Access | 11.3 |
| 10 | Arroyo de Laguna and Iron Horse Trails Connection Feasibility Study | 11 |
| 11 | Valley Avenue Alternatives | 10.5 |
| 12 | East Side Bicycle Boulevards | 10.1 |
| 13 | Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail via BART | 9.6 |
| 14 | Central Pleasanton Bicycle Boulevards | 9.6 |
| 15 | Sunol Boulevard | 9.3 |
| 16 | West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | 8.5 |
| 17 | Vision Projects | 8.5 |



5.1 Connectivity (4 Points)

This criterion evaluates a project's ability to create new connections or to enhance existing connections for bicyclists and pedestrians. Projects that provide a new, continuous connection or complete a network gap receive the highest score. Projects that improve an existing connection, expanding citywide connectivity for bicycles and pedestrians, receive a slightly lower score. Points are assigned as follows:

Bicycle

- 4 Points: Projects that provide a complete and continuous north-south or east-west, low-traffic stress backbone for the city's nearterm bicycle network.
- **3 Points**: Projects that provide at least ¹/₂ mile of a north-south or east-west, low-traffic stress backbone for the city's near-term bicycle network.
- **2 Points**: Projects that connect or improve the connection between two existing facilities and/or create a new, continuous facility but do not provide a low-stress facility.
- **1 Point**: Projects that reduce the impact of a gap but do not provide a low-stress facility.

Pedestrian

- **4 Points**: Projects that connect (i.e., provide a missing connection or close a gap) two existing facilities within $\frac{1}{8}$ mile of a transit station, school, or trail or Downtown.
- **3 Points**: Projects that connect (i.e., provide a missing connection or close a gap) two existing facilities within ¹/₄ mile of a transit station, school, or trail or Downtown.
- **2 Points**: Projects that improve an existing connection (i.e., enhance an existing connection, as through sidewalk widening or streetscape improvements) between two existing facilities within 1/8 mile of a transit station, school, or trail or within Downtown.



1 Point: Projects that improve an existing connection (i.e., sidewalk widening or streetscape improvements) between two existing facilities within 1/4 mile of a transit station, school, or trail or within Downtown.

5.2 Walking and Bicycling Demand (3 Points)

This criterion evaluates the ability of a bicycle or pedestrian project to attract new walking and bicycling trips, particularly for existing destinations in Pleasanton such as Downtown, the BART stations, and schools. For bicyclists, this was determined to occur with proposed facilities that feel more comfortable and accommodate a wider range of users of all ages and abilities. For pedestrians, this addresses projects within 1/2 mile of key destinations. Points are assigned as follows:

Bicycle

- **3 Points**: Protected bikeways (shared-use paths and separated bikeways) and other low traffic-stress bikeways (bicycle boulevards) on a well-used existing bicycling route.
- **2 Points**: Protected bikeways (shared-use paths and separated bikeways), buffered bicycle lanes, and other low traffic-stress bikeways (bicycle boulevards and bicycle routes or bicycle lanes on lower-stress roadways).
- **1 Point**: Medium to high traffic stress bikeway on a well-used existing bicycling route.

Pedestrian

- 3 Points: Projects within 1/8 mile of BART or ACE stations, Downtown, or schools OR within 1/4 mile of this destination and the project is a well-used⁵ existing walking route.
- 2 Points: Projects within 1/4 mile of BART or ACE stations, Downtown, or schools OR within 1/2 mile of BART or ACE stations, Downtown, or schools and the project is a well-used⁴ existing walking route.

⁵ Well-used is defined as a common walking route that is identified through feedback from the public, BPTC, or City staff or through observations and fieldwork.



1 Point: Project is a well-used² existing walking route OR within 1/2 mile of BART or ACE stations, Downtown, or schools.

5.3 Feasibility (3 points)

Projects that do not require easements, property acquisition, or additional pavement are prioritized to focus on cost-effective improvements. Political support is defined here as expressed interest by city officials and/or members of the public. Points are assigned as follows:

- **3 Points:** Projects that are feasible, have political support, are strong-contenders for grant funding, and are cost-effective.
- **2 Points:** Projects that have at least two of the following qualities: are feasible, have political support, are strong-contenders for grant funding, or are cost-effective
- **1 Point:** Projects that have at least one of the following qualities: are feasible, have political support, are strong-contenders for grant funding, or are cost-effective.

5.4 Immediate Safety Need (4 Points)

This criterion is based on the number of reported bicycle and pedestrian collisions on the roadway over the past five years, as documented in **Chapter 3** of the Plan. For off-street projects, such as paths, the methodology is based on potential for conflicts with motor vehicles. Generally, paths are considered safest when they have infrequent crossings with roadways and auto traffic. However, paths with trail crossings and an appropriate level of traffic control relative to the intersecting roadway typically offer a high degree of safety. As a result, this criterion prioritizes paths with one or more missing or unenhanced, uncontrolled trail crossings, particularly where the crossing occurs on a multi-lane roadway. This is intended to prioritize projects that will install or enhance new trail crossings with the appropriate traffic control.

Project Prioritization | 5

Points are assigned as follows:

On-Street Facilities

- **4 points**: Projects that improve bicycling or walking on the "safety priority" bicycling or walking networks, respectively,⁶ AND provide or improve a bicycle or pedestrian facility at a location with at least one severe or fatal⁷ injury collision .
- **3 Points**: Projects that provide or improve a bicycle or pedestrian facility at a location with at least one severe or fatal injury collision OR improve bicycling or walking on the "safety priority" bicycling or walking networks, respectively.
- **2 Points**: Projects that provide or improve a bicycle or pedestrian facility at a location with two or more bicycle or pedestrian collisions.
- **1 Point**: Projects that provide or improve a bicycle or pedestrian facility at a location with one bicycle or pedestrian collision.

Off-Street Facilities

- **3 points**: Trail or path with one or more uncontrolled crossings or are missing enhanced crossings of arterials.
- 2 Points: Trail or path with one or more uncontrolled crossings or are missing enhanced crossings of multi-lane collectors.
- **1 Point**: Trail or path with one or more uncontrolled crossings or are missing enhanced crossings of major driveways OR projects with one or more uncontrolled crossings at local streets with poor sightlines.

⁶ For bicyclists, 82 percent of all injury bicycle collisions occurred on one of the following nine roadways, which are therefore considered the "safety priority network" for bicycling in Pleasanton: Bernal Avenue, First Street, Hopyard Road, Las Positas Boulevard, Owens Drive, Santa Rita Road, Stoneridge Road, Valley Avenue, and Vineyard Avenue. This includes all injury collisions (fatal, severe, other visible injury, complaint of pain). Data per the Existing Conditions Chapter of the Draft Plan. For pedestrians, 74 percent of all pedestrian collisions occurred on the following 13 roadways, which are considered the "safety priority network" for walking in Pleasanton: Bernal Avenue, Chabot Drive, First Street, Gibraltar Avenue, Hacienda Drive, Hopyard Road, Las Positas Boulevard, Main Street, Owens Drive, Santa Rita Road, Stoneridge Road, Stoneridge Mall Road, and Valley Avenue.

⁷ Severe and fatal injuries are defined per the California Highway Patrol Collision Investigation Manual.



5.5 Safe Routes to School (4 Points)

This criterion further prioritizes bicycle and pedestrian projects that are common walking and bicycling routes to school and in close proximity to schools. Many schools in Pleasanton have safe routes to school curricula and many students walk or bicycle to school each day. In addition to the school proximity factors in other prioritization criteria, this criterion further prioritizes safety of school-aged students on those routes by giving more points to projects located near schools. Points are assigned as follows:

- **4 points**: Projects along a school frontage.
- **3 Points**: Projects within 1/8 mile of a school.
- **2 Points**: Projects within ¹/₄ mile of a school.
- **1 Point**: Projects within ¹/₂ mile of a school.



6. Support Programs

Infrastructural improvements are only one part of a comprehensive walking and biking program. Chapter 6 describes the existing support programs active in Pleasanton and provides targeted recommendations for continuing and enhancing those programs. Support programs consist of the so-called "E's": education, encouragement, enforcement, and evaluation programs that supplement engineering improvements. Maintenance, wayfinding, and bicycle parking also play important support roles. The support programs recommended for Pleasanton are listed below and described in more detail in the following sections:

- Safe Routes to School
- Education
- Enforcement
- Encouragement
- Evaluation
- Maintenance
- Wayfinding
- Bicycle Parking



6.1 Safe Routes to Schools

Providing safe routes for students to walk and bicycle to school has health and safety benefits in addition to reducing traffic congestion during pickup and drop-off. Safe Routes to School programs are therefore focused on educating and encouraging children to safely walk and bicycle to school. This chapter presents information on existing safe routes to school programming and identifies potential enhancements. Engineering is also an important component to provide safe, comfortable, and convenient facilities for students to walk and bicycle. Safe Routes to School infrastructure projects are not called out separately, as many of the corridor projects in this Plan focus on school access. **Table 6-1** describes the proposed projects outlined in **Chapter 4** that benefit schools.

| Table 6-1: Inventory of Projects Near Schools | | | | | |
|---|--|---|--|--|--|
| School | Proposed Project | Corridor ¹ | | | |
| Alisal Elementary | Mohr Avenue/Kolln Street Kolln Street to Santa Rita Road Santa Rita Road Black Avenue & Amador Valley Community Park | Central Pleasanton East Side Santa Rita Road Valley Avenue | | | |
| Amador Valley High School | Arroyo Dal Valle Trail Harvest Circle and Harvest Road Kolln Street to Santa Rita Road Santa Rita Road Black Avenue & Amador Valley Community Park Amador Valley Community Park | Arroyo Del Valle Central Pleasanton Downtown Santa Rita Road Valley Avenue Valley Avenue | | | |
| Donlon (Thomas H. Donlon) Elementary | Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Overcrossing | West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | | | |
| Fairlands Elementary | Santa Rita Road at West Las Positas BoulevardWest Las Positas Boulevard near Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road West Las Positas Boulevard | | | |



| Table 6-1: Inventory of Projects Near Schools | | | | | |
|---|---|---|--|--|--|
| School | Proposed Project | Corridor ¹ | | | |
| Foothill High School | Foothill Road Centennial Trail to Bernal West Las Positas Boulevard from Foothill Road to Santa Rita Road | Foothill Road West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown West Las Positas Boulevard | | | |
| Hart (Thomas S. Hart) Middle School | Mohr Avenue/Arroyo Mocho Trail Willow Road Pleasanton Canal Trail via Sports Park | Central Pleasanton Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | | | |
| Harvest Park Middle School | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road Greenwood Road Mohr Avenue/Arroyo Mocho Trail Greenwood Road & Walnut Grove Park | Central Pleasanton Central Pleasanton Central Pleasanton Valley Avenue | | | |
| Hearst (Phoebe Apperson Hearst) Elementary | Sunol Boulevard at First Street | Sunol Boulevard | | | |
| Lydiksen (George C. Lydiksen) Elementary | Foothill RoadSpringdale Avenue | Foothill Road West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | | | |
| Mohr (Henry P. Mohr) Elementary | Stoneridge Drive to MohrArroyo Mocho Trail to El Charro Road | East Side | | | |
| Pleasanton Middle School | Sunol Boulevard at First Street | Sunol Boulevard | | | |
| Valley View Elementary | None identified | - | | | |
| Village High School | Sunol Boulevard at First Street | Sunol Boulevard | | | |
| Vintage Hills Elementary | None identified | - | | | |
| Walnut Grove Elementary | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road Hopyard Road at Hansen Drive Hopyard Road at Walnut Avenue & Black Avenue Greenwood Road & Walnut Drove Park | Central Pleasanton Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown Valley Avenue | | | |

1. For more information on the proposed project, refer to the corresponding table in Chapter 4.



6.1.1 Existing Programs

The **Alameda County Safe Routes to School Program** provides education and encouragement programming for students at participating schools in Pleasanton. As of 2016, four elementary schools (Alisal, Fairlands, Mohr, and Lydiksen), and one middle school (Pleasanton) participate in the program. Schools participate in Walk and Roll to School Day and may also have other on-site programming. The city operates a Safe Routes to School traffic calming program called **Rides to School**, focused on multi-modal safety and circulation at schools. In operation for the last 15 years, it provides information on taking the bus and safe walking tips for parents and students. This includes a "school valet" program to facilitate auto circulation and student safety during pick-up and drop-off.



Rides to School has brochures with safe walking tips and information on carpooling and taking the bus to school. Walk and Roll to School Day is a major event for participating Pleasanton schools.



6.1.2 Recommended Enhancements

The following enhancements to the Safe Routes to School program are recommended for Pleasanton:

- 1. Encourage all schools in Pleasanton to participate in the Alameda County Safe Routes to School program
- 2. Advertise the Routes to School Maps available on the city's website to each school through the Rides to School program and update as needed based on input from the city and the local school community (and to be consistent with implementation efforts following this Plan) <u>http://dev.cityofpleasantonca.gov/gov/depts/cd/traffic/maps and information/routes to school map.asp</u>

6.2 Educational Programs

The City, BPTC, and the community identified multi-modal education programs as a priority for future program efforts. While a wide variety of educational programs on walking, bicycling, and driving issues are available, appropriate programs should be tailored to community interests and the ability of the city to deliver such programs. In some cases, Pleasanton may be able to partner with non-profits or volunteers to deliver high-quality educational programs. Education programs can also be a collaborative effort between the city and local public health organizations.

6.2.1 Existing Programs

Pleasanton currently sponsors some educational programming primarily through the Economic Development Department, and also partners with local advocacy groups such as Bike East Bay to deliver programming.



Pleasanton hosts an annual Bicycle Safety Festival that has a variety of educational and encouragement activities.



6.2.1.1 Walking and Bicycling Skills Training

Pleasanton typically hosts an annual bicycle safety event called the **Pleasanton Bicycle Safety Festival**. The Festival is primarily focused on youth education on bicycle safety and skills training through an obstacle course. The Festival includes a pedestrian safety component as well. The Pleasanton Police Department is an important sponsor and participant in the event. More information can be found here: http://dev.cityofpleasantonca.gov/gov/depts/cd/traffic/maps and information/routes to school map.asp

Pleasanton also works with Bike East Bay to conduct free **bicycle education and encouragement classes for people of all ages** with adult-focused and family-focused training workshops. Over 70 people attended the trainings in 2015. Bike East Bay also sponsors **bicycle rodeos** for children, which build walking and bicycling skills.

The Pleasanton **Police Department** hosts many other educational programs, including inclassroom education on traffic safety, and drinking and driving, focused on high-school aged drivers. The Police Department also has a diversion program for young bicyclists issued a vehicle code violation. Police personnel staff special event booths to distribute bicycle and pedestrian safety brochures on an ongoing basis. Events include Fairgrounds events, First Wednesdays, select Farmer's Market days, and city Open House events

6.2.1.2 Maps and Brochures

Pleasanton publishes an annual **bicycle safety brochure** that includes bicycle safety tips, dates for city-sponsored bicycle events, and a map of bicycle facilities in the city.

The city's Traffic Engineering Division provides a wide variety of other **informational brochures**

for the public, available on the city's website. Issues range from walking safety tips to information on specific traffic control devices, such as flashing beacons and roundabouts, to traffic calming information. For example, the city prepared an educational brochure on flashing yellow arrows, a newer traffic control device treatment unfamiliar to some: <u>http://www.cityofpleasantonca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=23870</u>.



Pleasanton publishes an annual bicycle map and event guide that includes bicycle safety tips, dates for City-sponsored bicycle events, and a map of bicycle facilities in the city.



6.2.2 Recommended Programs

The following additions and enhancement to the education program are recommended:

- 1. Continue to make the city's informational brochures available at civic buildings and provide to police to distribute for pedestrian or bicycle-related infractions.
- 2. Have the Pleasanton Police Department partner with the Bike East Bay educational and encouragement programs to provide officers with bicycle-specific trainings on the law, infrastructure, and enforcement best practices. Work with Bike East Bay to secure funding for these programs.
- 3. Increase and improve promotion for all bicycling programs, and continue to partner with community organizations and nonprofits, such as Bike East Bay, to provide bicycle educational classes for adults, youths, and families. These programs could include on- or off-the-bicycle safety trainings, bicycle mechanics classes, theft prevention workshops, social rides, learn-to-ride classes, and more. A list of bicycle education classes frequently held by Bike East Bay is available at https://bikeeastbay.org/education.
- 4. **Consider a yearly event and/or open house focused on adult multi-modal safety education** featuring tips and tricks for roadway safety targeted at pedestrians, drivers, and bicyclists; and how they can best interact with other roadway users. This could be centered around a BPTC meeting or another city meeting or event.

5. Encourage development of a sustained multi-modal safety education campaign using social media, online videos, bus shelters, yard signs, bumper stickers, radio messages, and billboard ads. One of the major issues identified by the community through the public outreach process was the need to educate drivers on proper behavior with bicyclists to maximize safety for all roadway users. The ad campaign could have separate ads to appeal to people who drive, bicycle, and walk, respectively. Seattle's safety focused materials include

videos and ads: <u>http://www.seattle.gov/visionzero/materials</u>, and the City of Fort Worth has videos that inform people of the new bicycle facilities in the community, such as separated bikeways:

<u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=N8k5FRIoTfQ</u>. Focal points of the campaign may include:

- o Driver safety tips for interacting with bicycles and pedestrians
- o Bicyclist safety tips for interacting with drivers and pedestrians
- o Pedestrian safety tips for interacting with drivers and bicyclists
- Examples of the walking and/or bicycling distance and preferred route to get between popular destinations. For example, a campaign could advertise the short amount of time it takes to walk to Downtown from a nearby residential neighborhood or from BART to local employers
- o Messages specific to safety trends identified through this Plan
- Messages related to new devices and treatment types recommended in this Plan such as pedestrian hybrid beacons, protected intersections, two stage turn boxes, and Class IV separated bikeways
- 6. Ensure residents are informed of the three-foot passing law, AB-1371, which requires drivers stay at least three feet away when passing bicyclists.



Example of a safety campaign from North Carolina: <u>http://www.watchformenc.org/</u>



6.3 Enforcement Programs

Enforcement tools can be very effective in improving safety for all roadway users. Successful enforcement programs rely on coordination between city staff and the Police Department.

6.3.1 Existing Programs

Current enforcement programs offered by the Pleasanton Police include the use of a **speed feedback trailer** and a **radar gun check-out** program. The radar-gun check out program is part of the Traffic Education and Monitoring (TEAM) effort to reduce speeds in neighborhoods. Residents who have a speed-related complaint collect data on alleged speeding. To become part of the TEAM three local residents must apply indicating the observed issues and their willingness to commit to collecting data on the speed issue. The Police Department is also currently involved in **school traffic enforcement** by providing resource officers, with one stationed at each school. Traffic officers monitor schools on a regular basis so they are aware of traffic safety and circulation issues. The Police Department assists the Traffic Engineering Division's annual collision review process. The Police Department also has **bicycle patrol officers** who receive some specialized training.

6.3.2 Recommended Programs

The following enhancements to existing enforcement programs are recommended:

- Coordinate with the Police Department to seek funding to train all officers in walking and bicycling safety issues, and enforcement principles on rules of the road. For example, the Madison, Wisconsin Department of Transportation has developed a DVD in collaboration with the Madison Police Department to train traffic officers in pedestrian and bicycle issues (for more information see <u>http://www.pedbikeinfo.org/cms/downloads/EDU.PedestrianSafetyEnforcementDVDs.pdf</u>.The Bicycle Transportation Alliance in Portland, Oregon offers Pedestrian Safety Enforcement Training (for more information see <u>https://btaoregon.org/pedestrian-safety/</u>.
- 2. **Institute a Bicycle Traffic School ticket diversion program** as allowed per California Vehicle Code Section 42005.3. This would reduce or remove the cost of a bicycle traffic ticket through attendance at a free bicycle education workshop, such as those offered by Bike East

Bay. These classes could be scheduled regularly with funding from the City or the Police Department and be available to both ticketed individuals and the public.

- 3. Coordinate the use of speed feedback trailer(s) between the Police Department and Community Development Department to assist in monitoring speeds near key pedestrian and bicycle destinations.
- 4. **Consider increasing traffic fines**. An increase in traffic fines has been shown to discourage driver violations against pedestrians in crosswalks. For example, in Salt Lake City, Utah, fines were increased from \$34 to \$70 for driver violations against pedestrians in crosswalks. A lowering of fines for pedestrian violations from \$70 to \$10 was also implemented. Variations on this include double fines in school zones and construction zones.
- 5. Consider education programs targeted at seniors who walk and drive. For example, Walk Wise, Drive Smart is a program aimed to improve the pedestrian environment not only for the growing number of senior citizen pedestrians and for all residents and visitors. It is a community program that holds educational workshops, walking audits, and feedback surveys. Activities are aimed at senior citizens, providing exercise at a pace and location comfortable to the participants, but open to all. For more information see http://www.walk-wise.org/ and http://www.walk-wis
- 6. Consider collaborating with the Police Department on pedestrian sting operations at areas of highest safety need. Pedestrian stings target motorists who dangerously violate the right-of-way of pedestrians crossing the street, and especially motorists who do not stop for a pedestrian when cars in the adjacent lane have stopped. Such operations can also target pedestrians who make unsafe crossings. Stings are most effective on roadways and intersections with high pedestrian volumes such as Main Street in Downtown Pleasanton. Pedestrian stings increase drivers' awareness of pedestrians at intersections; however, as the program is not an ongoing operation, changes in motorist behavior can be short-term. The cost of the program includes police officer staffing time. The Bend, Oregon Police Department received a \$3,200 "mini-grant" of federal funds to cover police officer overtime for six weeks.
- 7. **Consider developing an anti-bicycle theft program** similar to the City of San Francisco Police Department's Bicycle Anti-Theft Unit. The bicycle anti-theft program includes resources for bicycle owners such as a Twitter feed to post pictures of stolen bicycles, a bicycle registration, and informational videos, guides and forms for bicycle owners on security techniques. More information on the program can be found at <u>https://twitter.com/sfpdbiketheft</u>.



6.4 Encouragement Programs

Encouragement programs incentivize or make it easier for people to walk and bicycle, particularly those who do not do so today. These may be part of transportation demand management strategies for at-large employers.

6.4.1 Existing Programs

The city participates in many event-based encouragement programs, primarily organized by the Economic Development Department. **Bike to Work and Bike to School Day** are major events in Pleasanton, with the city sponsoring and coordinating Bike to Work Day energizer stations providing refreshments, encouragement, and bicycle information. In 2016, participants received free Bike to Work Day t-shirts and bicycle bags with items donated by local and regional sponsors. In 2015, over 300 students participated in Bike to School Day, and mini energizer stations and bicycle storage areas were provided for students. Many of the other city-sponsored educational programs also have an encouragement function in generating support and interest for bicycling, such as the **Bicycle Safety Festival**.

The city's **Commendable Commutes** program is a public/private partnership aimed at reducing drive-alone trips and promoting transit, walking and bicycling trips during peak commute hours. Services include on-site transportation information visits, free transit trips through the Try Transit Program, marketing materials, networking opportunities, local and regional transportation updates, and the guaranteed ride home program. The program also administers a survey. In 2013, the survey found approximately 1/5 of the residents and employees would be interested in bicycling to work. Among that group, approximately 25 percent cited better paths or routes for walking and bicycling as a major incentive to walk more.

6.4.2 Recommended Programs

The following additions to the encouragement programs are recommended:



- 1. Collaborate with employers and residential developers to **provide walking and bicycling financial incentives as part of transportation demand management (TDM) plans for new development** to encourage walking and bicycling for short-trips including commute, recreational, and utilitarian trips.
- 2. **Require new commercial development to include secure bicycle parking and shower/change rooms**. The 2013 Employee and Resident Transportation Survey found 11-12 percent of employees interested in bicycling more would be incentivized by those improvements.
- 3. **Consider other walking-focused events** such as organized walks around the city to special events, farmer's markets or similar, and continue existing events for bicycling such as **Bicycle to Market** events.
- 4. **Consider designating a Walk to Work Day** for residents and employees with a focus on those near BART stations, Pleasanton employers, and trails.
- 5. **Continue coordination with the Police Department and Bike East Bay on bicycle training and repair classes**. These are an excellent tool to increase community knowledge of bicycle maintenance issues and street riding skills. Local bicycle shops, bicycle clubs or community groups can offer a series of bicycle repair/training classes for youth and adults. Youth training classes can include a "build-a-bicycle" program, in which youth learn how to rebuild a used bicycle they may keep at the end of the program. Such classes are most helpful for beginner to intermediate bicyclists who would like to improve their understanding of bicycle maintenance and street riding skills.

6.5 Maintenance Programs

Maintaining existing walking and bicycling facilities is key to leveraging existing infrastructure and continuing to make Pleasanton a great place to walk and bicycle. Maintenance is not just addressing potholes and hazards, although those are important to good walking and bicycling facilities, but also dealing proactively with walking and bicycling infrastructure. Key to that is planning and designing for maintenance of new facilities, especially when those facility types may be new to the city, such as separated bikeways. Ongoing coordination with maintenance will also provide integration of bikeway projects into repaving projects.



6.5.1 Existing Programs

Currently, pedestrian-related signal equipment is maintained through monthly signal operation checks to ensure consistent functionality of pedestrian push buttons and countdown heads.

On-street bicycle facilities continue to be well-served by the city's high-scoring roadway pavement quality and ongoing maintenance and operations work. The city offers a See-Click-Fix program for hazard reporting.

Off-street facilities are more expensive and more difficult to maintain, particularly in terms of maintaining pavement quality. Trail maintenance, however, is often a source of comments from the public. The city does not have dedicated funding for resurfacing of trails operated by the city. On some trails with heavy use and poor pavement condition, the city must close the trails if they are considered unsafe for users. The city is currently undergoing a test of various paving treatments for Arroyo Mocho Trail to better understand a preferred trail design to maximize durability and minimize maintenance costs.

6.5.2 Recommended Programs

The following enhancements are recommended to the maintenance program:

- 1. **Integrate the city's high priority on-street bikeways with the existing pavement overlay program** to prioritize overlays on key bikeways through the city.
- 2. Work with Zone 7 Water Agency, which operates some canals and waterways in Pleasanton, and East Bay Regional Parks District to **pave and maintain trails** to accommodate the weight and needs of Zone 7 vehicles on shared maintenance/trail links.
- 3. Work across city departments to secure an ongoing funding source for path and trail maintenance and to ensure the walking and bicycling facilities are maintained as a part of ongoing operations and maintenance work.
- 4. **Consider lifecycle and maintenance costs** in the development and design of all bicycle and pedestrian projects.

- 5. **Create a program to regularly improve and repair conditions uniquely unfavorable to pedestrians** such as uneven sidewalks, broken asphalt in crosswalks, steep driveway cross-slopes, and missing or non-ADA-compliant curb ramps. Tree roots, regular use, seismic activity, and weather contribute to the deterioration of public infrastructure. This can create hazardous conditions and limit mobility for pedestrians.
- 6. Include pedestrian projects in the Capital Improvements Program.
- 7. Consider using development agreements to maintain walking and bicycling facilities fronting new development.
- 8. Inform property owners about the impact of overgrown shrubbery on pedestrian and bicyclist mobility. Overgrown vegetation limits or blocks the path of travel for pedestrians on the sidewalk or bicyclists traveling in the curb lane. Ask residents to trim any vegetation infringing on a clear travel path. Possibly organize a "Trim Your Shrubbery Day" with the help of neighborhood associations and environmental groups.
- 9. **Coordinate with maintenance crews to prioritize regularly sweeping and maintaining separated bikeways;** ensure that the placement of raised bikeway elements (e.g., pylons or armadillos) provides necessary clear widths for street sweepers.

6.6 Bicycle Parking Programs

Bicycle parking is needed citywide to provide safe, convenient, and secure places to leave a bicycle while shopping, going to school, getting on transit, or doing other activities. Lack of adequate, secure bicycle parking can be a major deterrent to riding a bicycle. For short trips, visible parking racks allowing bicycles to be secured with a U-lock are critical. For trips to work or other longer outings, more secure parking is needed, such as bicycle lockers or bicycle cages with limited access and typically requiring a special key or code to access them. This is important not only at civic and commercial uses but also residential uses, particularly in multi-family apartment buildings where space may be limited.

Bicycle parking facilities may be classified either as long-term (also known as Class I) or short-term (Class II). Class I parking is meant to be used for more than two hours and is typically used by employees at work, students at school, commuters at transit stations and residents at home. Class I facilities are secure and weather-protected: examples include bicycle lockers and "bicycle corrals" (fenced-in areas usually secured by lock and opened

by keys provided to users). Class II, or short-term parking, is meant for visitors, customers at stores and other users who normally park for less than two hours. The most common example of Class II parking is bicycle racks.

6.6.1 Existing Programs

Pleasanton does not currently have requirements for bicycle parking for all new development. The City of Pleasanton Housing Site Development Standards and Design Guidelines (2012) has bicycle parking requirements for secure bicycle parking at new residential development and short-term bicycle parking at retail and multi-family units; however, these requirements only apply to a limited number of development parcels in the city. The city does not maintain an inventory of locations of installed bicycle racks or lockers. There are secure bicycle lockers at both BART stations: there are 40 Bicycle Link lockers at Dublin/Pleasanton and 16 Bicycle Link lockers at West Dublin/Pleasanton. Both stations have many bicycle racks. The city has also recently installed bicycle racks in Downtown Pleasanton.

6.6.2 Recommended Programs

The following enhancements to the bicycle parking program are recommended:

- 1. Update the Pleasanton Municipal Code to provide citywide bicycle parking and end-of-trip facilities such as shower and lockers, requirements with all new development, using the parking generation factors from the Association of Pedestrian and Bicycle Professional's (APBP's) *Bicycle Parking Guideline*, 2nd edition.
- 2. Select, site, and install bicycle parking fixtures and facilities per the APBP *Bicycle Parking Guidelines*, 2nd edition. Bicycle racks should allow the bicycle frame and at least one wheel to be locked to the rack using a U-lock and should support the bicycle in at least two places, preventing it from falling over. Examples of recommended bicycle rack designs are presented in **Table 6-2**.
- 3. Require new developments to provide the location and amount of bicycle parking to the city's Traffic Engineering Division to allow for easy tracking and mapping. Also record the location of new bicycle racks installed by the city.
- 4. Create a bicycle corral pilot program to install several pilot projects in locations requested and supported by the community.



- 5. Create a long-term bicycle pilot project to install secure bicycle parking, such as bicycle lockers using the Bicycle Link system, at major destinations in Pleasanton such as Downtown.
- 6. Consider working with local artists and across city departments to create decorative branded racks for Downtown.

Figure 6-1 presents the known existing bicycle parking and support facilities in Pleasanton and shows key destinations in the city where bicycle parking should be located in the future.

| Table 6-2: Recommended Bicycle Rack Designs | | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|
| Design | Description | | | | |
| | Many variations of the displayed design are acceptable, including "Staple" and "Loop." Has two points of ground contact and supports the bicycle at two points. Can be installed in variable quantities to create a free-standing parking area. Square tubing is recommended because round tubing is more vulnerable to cutting. Appropriate for use in nearly any application. | | | | |

Support Programs | 6

Table 6-2: Recommended Bicycle Rack Designs

Design

Description



Image Source: www.ibiketo.ca

Has one point of ground contact and supports the bicycle at two points. Less prone to errors involving perpendicular parking than Inverted U racks. Square tubing is recommended because round tubing is more vulnerable to cutting. Cast metal rings are vulnerable to prying. Appropriate for use in nearly any application.



Short-Term and Long-Term Bicycle Parking Recommended at:

Schools Commercial Areas Parks City Boundary

 BART Station

 Image: Barry Station

 <tr

Figure 6-1 Existing and Future Bicycle Parking and End of Trip Facilities



6.7 Wayfinding

Wayfinding is important to provide reinforcement and education on the preferred walking and bicycling routes to use in the city. Wayfinding is proposed as a key element of the bicycle and pedestrian projects identified in **Chapter 4**, particularly facilities such as bicycle boulevards that often snake through residential communities. Wayfinding is important on both trails and on-street bicycle networks, particularly on bicycle boulevards. Good wayfinding is at an appropriate height for bicyclists and pedestrians. Signs confirm directions to nearby destinations and typically include estimated time or distance to those destinations. Wayfinding can also serve a branding function for Pleasanton.

6.7.1 Recommended Programs

Pleasanton does not currently have a wayfinding program in place; however, it is recommended that it develop a pedestrian and bicycle wayfinding program to provide information on preferred routes, facility types, and distances to key destinations.





Pleasanton could establish a branded wayfinding program similar to that developed by the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC) Transit Enhancement Plan and Wayfinding Guide, shown above.



6.8 Evaluation

To target investments to the most impactful types of engineering, education, encouragement, and enforcement projects, Pleasanton intends to monitor progress on the implementation of this Plan over time. In support of this, four performance measures are presented in **Table 6-32**. Each year, the city can document performance on achieving the goals of this Plan using the metrics described in **Table 6-3**. These goals provide consistency with the policies established in **Chapter 2**.

| Table 6-3: Performance Measures | | | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|--|
| Performance Measure | Corresponding Plan Goal(s) ¹ | Metric | Key Actions | | |
| 1. Construct the All Ages and Abilities network by 2030 and build out the Vision Network by 2040. | <u>Goal 1</u> : Provide a citywide network of bikeways, walkways, and trails that are accessible, safe, comfortable, and convenient for people of all ages and abilities who walk and bicycle. <u>Goal 2</u> : Use best practices and innovative but tested pedestrian and bicycle designs to build continuous, safe, and comfortable walking and bicycling facilities | Establish a construction pace of one corridor projects, including bicycle and pedestrian components, per year | Integrate projects into routine maintenance activities, such as paving projects and intersection Capital Improvement Program (CIP) projects Allocate staff to pursuing competitive grant funding for targeted sources, such as OBAG or HSIP (see Chapter 7 Implementation for more information) Apply "80/20" rule for walking and bicycling funding, so that 80 percent of funding covers the highest needs walking and bicycling facilities, as outlined in Chapter 5 Priority Projects, and 20 percent of funding is reserved for spot improvements/ quick response. Review environmental documents and proposed development plans for consistency with this Plan and the ability of those projects to help fund walking and bicycling projects. | | |



| Table 6-3: Performance Measures | | | | | |
|---|---|---|---|--|--|
| Performance Measure | Corresponding Plan Goal(s) ¹ | Metric | Key Actions | | |
| 2. Enhance citywide pedestrian and bicycle safety | <u>Goal 3:</u> Provide support across multiple city departments for education, encouragement, and enforcement programs to improve safety for all users and to increase the number of walking and bicycling trips. <u>Goal 5</u> : Improve traffic safety for all medee and specifically the most | Reduce total number of fatal and severe bicycle and pedestrian by 50 percent in 2030 and an additional 50% in 2040 Implement the programmatic recommendations in Chapter particularly those focused on multi-modal adult education by community feedback Build out the All Ages and Abilities bicycling and walk project prioritized by safety needs | | | |
| | vulnerable roadway users – bicyclists and pedestrians. | Increase participation and promotion of bicycle programs | Improve promotion and increase attendance at bicycle education and encouragement events and classes | | |
| 3. Encourage and facilitate a significant increase in active transportation mode share and trips. | <u>Goal 1</u> : Provide a citywide network of bikeways, walkways, and trails that are accessible, safe, comfortable, and convenient for people of all ages and abilities who walk and bicycle. <u>Goal 3</u> : Provide support across multiple city departments for education, encouragement, and enforcement programs to improve safety for all users and to increase the number of walking and bicycling trips. | Improve the percentage of <u>all</u> walking trips and bicycling trips by 2030 | Build out the All Ages and Abilities bicycling and walk projects Require bicycle and pedestrian counts to be routinely collected with all intersection turning movement counts, such as for all environmental documents and traffic studies Consider creating a GIS database of bicycle and pedestrian counts by location, including peak hour, weekday and weekend ADT, date, and source of data, as available Review and monitor bicycle and pedestrian commute mode share from American Community Survey (ACS), employer data, BART Mode of Access Study, and/or the California Household Travel Survey Survey residents, employees, and visitors to gauge if more women, children, and "interested but concerned" riders are bicycling in Pleasanton over time. | | |



| Table 6-3: Performance Measures | | | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Performance Measure | Corresponding Plan Goal(s) ¹ | Metric | Key Actions | | |
| 4. Encourage new walking and bicycling trips to schools and transit | <u>Goal 4</u> : Maximize multi-modal transportation options for people who live, work, and/or play in Pleasanton through enhancing walking and bicycling connections to transit, including BART, ACE, and bus connections, as well as parks, schools, shopping, and other key destinations. | Improve the percentage of walking and bicycling trips to school and transit by 2030 | Use the latest BART Mode of Access Study and Alameda County Safe Routes to School Program as a baseline Work with BART and local employers to monitor the percentage of riders walking and bicycling to transit, such as through the BART Mode of Access Survey and the city's Employer and Resident Transportation Survey Expand the number of schools participating in the Alameda County Safe Routes to School Program, as recommended in Chapter 6 Work with BART and local developers to develop walking and bicycling friendly development around the two area BART stations and integrate with the projects outlined in Chapter 5 Utilize transportation demand management (TDM) programs and the Citywide Traffic Impact Fee to support increasing the number of biking and walking trips to transit | | |

1. The five Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan goals are presented in **Chapter 2**.

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2016.

6.8.1 Recommended Programs

In addition to evaluating progress using the performance measures listed above, the City of Pleasanton can have their work and successes recognized nationally. The city has already achieved the designation of a Bronze-level Bicycle Friendly Community through the League of American Bicyclists, and could aim towards recognition as a Silver-level Bicycle Friendly Community. The city could also apply for recognition as a Walk Friendly Community through the Pedestrian and Bicycle Information Center.



7. Funding and Implementation

This chapter outlines the next steps for the Plan's implementation. The implementation will require coordination within the city and stakeholders in addition to funding from a variety of sources. This chapter provides an action plan for the city to make progress on the recommendations, information on the cost of the Plan, and information about funding sources.

7.1 Implementation Plan

Table 7-1 presents the Implementation Plan for the city. Many of the Implementation Plan elements will be completed on an ongoing basis, and the table outlines which should be initiated upon plan adoption with demonstrated progress in the next five years. The table also identifies contributions required by staff, a timeline for completion, as well as the relative cost and next steps for addressing each task.

| Table 7-1: Implementation Plan | | | | | | |
|--|---|-----------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|
| Task | Task | Lead Agency/ Partners | Timeline | Relative Cost | | |
| Annual Reporting to Stakeholders on Performance Measures | Provide annual report to the BPTC on how the city has progressed on each of the four performance measures in Chapter 6. Publicly notice the meeting to make sure that stakeholders citywide are informed. Include descriptions of funding, approval, and project development process within the annual reporting to facilitate citizen engagement | City Traffic Engineering, BPTC | Annual | \$ | | |

Funding & Implementation | 7

| Table 7-1: Implementation Plan | | | | | | | |
|--|---|--|---------------------------------|------------------|--|--|--|
| Task | Task | Lead Agency/ Partners | Timeline | Relative Cost | | | |
| Apply for and Secure Funding | Apply "80/20" rule for walking and bicycling funding, so that 80 percent of funding covers the highest need walking and bicycling facilities, as outlined in Chapter 5 Priority Projects, and 20 percent of funding are reserved for spot/ as needed improvements. Allocate funding or staff time to develop competitive grant applications to projects that will be highly competitive for funding, such as safety and complete streets projects with strong public support. Refer to Section 7.2 and Appendix D Funding Sources to identify available funding sources for each project in the prioritized project list. | City Traffic Engineering | Ongoing, 5 Years | \$\$ | | | |
| Build Out the Near-Term All Ages & Abilities Network | Integrate bikeway projects into repaving programs and prioritize the highest priority bikeway projects wherever possible Integrate pedestrian projects into the city's Capital Improvement Program based on the prioritized project list Partner with transit agencies (e.g. BART, ACE, and LAVTA) to improve access to transit, provide seamless transitions between transit facilities and the public right-of-way and bicycle network, and provide secure bicycle parking at transit stations and major bus stops | City Traffic Engineering, BART, ACE, and LAVTA | Ongoing, 5-10 Years | \$\$\$\$ | | | |
| Conduct Complete Streets and Trails Studies | Secure funding for trail feasibility studies called out in Chapter 5 Secure funding for Santa Rita Road complete streets study, as described in Chapter 5 Complete Foothill Road Bikeway Feasibility and I-580/I-680 Overcrossing Studies and look for funding to implement recommendations | City Traffic Engineering, EBRPD, Zone 7 | Ongoing, 5-10 Years | \$\$\$ | | | |
| Build Out the Vision All Ages & Abilities Network | • Opportunistically build out the bikeway and pedestrian projects, as adjacent parcels redevelop or as repaving or other maintenance projects occur on those roadways, insuring connections with existing facilities. | City Traffic Engineering and Engineering | Opportunistically, 10+ Years | \$\$-\$\$\$\$ | | | |



| Table 7-1: Implementation Plan | | | | | | | |
|---|--|---|------------------|------------------|--|--|--|
| Task | Task | Lead Agency/ Partners | Timeline | Relative Cost | | | |
| Educational, Encouragement, and Enforcement Program Coordination | Work with the city's Economic Development Department and the Alameda County Safe Routes to School Program to increase participation in safe routes to school programs Work with the city's Economic Development Department and Police Department to enhance and further development education, encouragement, and enforcement programs Apply for Bicycle Friendly Community Silver status and Walk Friendly Community programs with build out of the near-term All Ages & Abilities Network and investment in support programs | City Traffic Engineering and Economic Development, Alameda County Safe Routes to School Program | Ongoing, 5 Years | \$\$-\$\$\$ | | | |
| Bicycle Parking Program | Amend the city's Municipal Code to include bicycle parking requirements for short-term and long-term parking Establish corral and locker bicycle parking programs at key destinations, such as Downtown | City Traffic Engineering, Pleasanton Downtown Association | Ongoing, 5 Years | \$\$ | | | |
| Bicycle and Pedestrian Signals Program | Upgrade bicycle detection at locations where video detection is not present Ensure that signals provide sufficient green, yellow, and red time to allow bicyclists to clear the intersection per Section 4D.105 of the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD). Ensure that signals provide a walk speed of 3.5 feet per second or less and include pedestrian countdown signals | City Traffic Engineering | Ongoing, 5 Years | \$\$ | | | |
| Maintenance and Ongoing Operations | Develop a maintenance plan for city-operated trails and separated bikeways Coordinate with Operations Services to provide a well maintained bicycle and pedestrian network | City Traffic Engineering and Operations Services | Ongoing, 5 Years | \$\$ | | | |



7.2 Potential Funding Sources

To fund the projects and programs outlined in this Plan, the following funding strategies should be considered:

- Use Measure BB as a funding source through the Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) Capital Investment Plan (CIP), One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) program, and local allocations
- Include bikeway and pedestrian projects in the city's Traffic Impact Fee program(s)
- Require construction of bicycle and pedestrian facilities as part of new development
- Continue to include proposed bikeways and pedestrian improvements as part of roadway projects involving widening, overlays, or other improvements
- Where projects will be competitive, reserve staff time or funding resources to complete competitive grant applications, such as the Caltrans Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) or Alameda CTC applications
- Use existing funding sources as matching funds for regional or state funding
- Consider joint applications with other local and regional agencies such as the City of Dublin or Livermore, Alameda CTC, BART, and the East Bay Regional Park District for competitive statewide funding programs

Appendix E presents summaries of potential funding sources available to the city.

7.3 Cost of the Plan

Table 7-2 summarizes the cost to complete the Plan. These are planning-level cost estimates that include contingencies. The city will develop detailed estimates during the preliminary engineering stage as individual projects advance toward implementation.

For purposes of this Plan, conceptual construction costs for the proposed system were based on the following assumptions:


- New Class I facilities would be constructed on generally flat right-ofway with no grade separation and minimal grading needed given the existing topography within the city; cost of right-of-way acquisition is not included.
- Most new Class II bikeways would require minimal or no roadway improvements, such as roadway widening, unless otherwise called out in the project description
- New Class III bikeways would require sharrows and striping. Bicycle boulevards assume traffic calming measures would also be installed.
- New Class IV separated bikeways can vary substantially in cost, due to the wide variety of treatment types and materials used. It is assumed the city will primarily use striped buffers with plastic pylons

Costs are in 2016 dollars, excluding right-of-way costs.

7.4 Past and Future Expenditures

Over the past five years, the City of Pleasanton has spent approximately \$2.8 million on walking and bicycling facilities in the five year period from fiscal year 2011/12 through fiscal year 2015/16, and anticipates spending \$3 million on implementing priority walking and bicycling projects from the Master Plan over the next five years. The project completed in the past five years include annual projects, such as sidewalk ramp installation, sidewalk maintenance, and bicycle and pedestrian related improvements (including the Arroyo Mocho Trail). Other recently completed projects

| Table 7-2: Estim | ated Construct | ion Cost of the Vision I | Network |
|---|----------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|
| Facility Type | Length | Average Cost per Mile | Estimated Cost (2016 \$) |
| Shared-Use Paths and Trails | 16.6 miles | \$1,983,000 | \$32,988,000 |
| Separated Bikeways | 29.2 miles | \$933,000 | \$27,289,000 |
| Bicycle Lanes (with and without buffers) | 2.7 miles | \$303,000 | \$817,000 |
| Bicycle Boulevards | 15.0 miles | \$382,000 | \$5,719,000 |
| Bicycle Route Sharrows and Signage | 1.2 miles | \$94,000 | \$113,000 |
| Pedestrian Improvements | - | _ | \$3,019,000 |
| | | Total Construction Cost | \$69,945,000 |
| | | | |

Funding & Implementation | 7

include the I-580/Foothill Interchange, Bernal Avenue bicycle lane upgrades, I-680/Sunol Boulevard bicycle lane upgrades, and bicycle lanes on West Las Positas Boulevard near Fairlands Elementary School. Anticipated funding sources for future projects include Measures B and BB, Vehicle Registration Fees (VRF), and the Transportation Development Act (TDA).

7.5 Maintenance Costs

Signals and on-street pedestrian facilities are maintained by the city on a regular basis. Property owners are responsible for sidewalk maintenance. Multi-use path maintenance includes cleaning, resurfacing, and re-striping an asphalt path, repairing bridges and other structures, cleaning drainage systems, removing trash, and landscaping. While this maintenance effort may not be incrementally major, it does have the potential to accrue heavy expenses if it is not done periodically. **Table 7-3** presents the estimate maintenance costs for bicycling infrastructure.

| | Table 7-3: Citywide Conceptual Annual Maintenance Costs for Near-Term Buildout | | | | |
|---------------|--|---|--------------------------------------|--|--|
| Facility Type | Description | Length of Existing Plus Proposed Near-Term Segments | Estimated Cost (2016 \$) | | |
| Class I | Bicycle Path | 21.5 miles | \$280,000 | | |
| Class II | Bicycle Lane | 54.2 miles | \$25,000 | | |
| Class III | Bicycle Route/Boulevard | 7.2 miles | Sign Replacement (Every 10 Years) | | |
| Class IV | Separated Bikeway | 7.3 miles | \$95,000 | | |
| | | Total Annual Maintenance Costs | \$400,000 | | |

Costs are in 2016 dollars, excluding right-of-way costs. Cost do not include sign replacement and other maintenance that does not occur annually.

The estimated annual maintenance expenses for Class I bicycle paths is approximately \$13,000 per mile for landscaping work, including monthly trash collection, biannual weeding and asphalt cleaning, and annual tree pruning. If all of the proposed bicycle paths were implemented, there would be a total of nearly 22 miles of Class I facilities in the near-term. Thus, the annual maintenance cost for Class I facilities is estimated at about \$280,000.



For Class II bicycle lanes, the cost consists of maintaining pavement markings and striping. The estimated annual cost is \$25,000 for a near-term full build-out of nearly 55 miles of Class II facilities based on an annual cost of \$455 per mile in restriping (including the cost to restripe bicycle lanes and refresh stencils). This annual expense is in addition to sign replacement costs of about \$2,000 per sign. Signs need to be replaced roughly once every ten years.

Class III facilities will require maintenance of bicycle signs located along the bicycle route every ten years.

The annual maintenance cost for Class I facilities is estimated at about \$280,000.

The cost for maintaining Class IV facilities depends on the type of bikeway constructed. For grade-separated bikeways, maintenance costs are similar to sidewalk maintenance costs of approximately \$132,000 per mile every ten years. For bikeways separated by planter, cement, or bollard, the maintenance costs are similar to those of bicycle lanes (\$13,500/year).



Appendix A. Design Guidelines

New and enhanced bicycle and pedestrian facilities in Pleasanton should follow the latest best practice documents on active transportation. These include:

- NACTO Urban Streets Design Guide
- NACTO Urban Bikeway Guide
- Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Separated Bicycle Lane Planning and Design Guide
- MassDOT Separated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide
- Association of Bicycle and Pedestrian Professionals' (APBP) Bicycle Parking Guidelines, 2nd Edition

In addition to those guidelines, this chapter includes clarifying policies and preferred and minimum dimensions for select active transportation facilities. This includes a **Citywide Crosswalk Policy** (see **Section A.2**) to guide the installation, enhancement, and removal of crosswalks.

A.1 Travel Lane Widths

The City of Pleasanton uses 11 foot travel lane width as a minimum standard on roadways over 30 MPH. At turn pockets, the city will consider 10 foot pocket width.



A.2 Crosswalk Policy

A.2.1 Introduction

The Crosswalk Policy prescribes a formal, transparent, and consistent process for crosswalk implementation and improvement citywide. The city regularly receives requests to install marked crosswalks from residents, businesses, and institutions. However, designing a safe roadway crossing for pedestrians is a complex process; the installation of crosswalk striping alone does not necessarily constitute a safe pedestrian crossing.

A comprehensive pedestrian safety strategy contains a three-pronged approach including engineering, enforcement, and education programs. Sitespecific engineering improvements are included in **Chapter 4**, and enforcement and education program recommendations are housed in **Chapter 6**. This appendix provides more detailed guidance on when and how to mark, enhance, or remove crosswalks in order to create a clear, consistent, and citywide basis for making those decisions.

The Crosswalk Policy includes a toolbox of elements to improve crosswalk visibility and safety and provides guidance about the type of treatments appropriate on different kinds of roadways and under various conditions. The toolbox uses simple inputs that can be derived from a field survey, such as number of lanes, posted speed, and average daily traffic, to provide a candidate crosswalk treatment at mid-block and uncontrolled locations. While these treatments represent best practice, engineering judgment should be exercised in all cases.

The Crosswalk Policy should guide the city in making decisions about all types of crosswalks and should be consulted each time a crosswalk is considered for installation, enhancement, or removal. These include basic crosswalks (i.e., two stripes); crosswalks with special treatments, such as high visibility crosswalks, flashing beacons, and other special features; and crosswalks that remain unmarked due to safety concerns resulting from volume, speed, or sight distance issues.

Marked

Design Guidelines | A

Crosswalk Fundamentals A.3

This section outlines the types of crosswalks, where crossing the street is legal in California per the California Vehicle Code, and the steps the city should take in identifying locations for marked crosswalks.

A.3.1 **Types of Crosswalks**

Crosswalks are primarily classified by three characteristics:

- 1) Whether they are <u>marked</u> (demarcated with striping on the street) or unmarked (no striping). Marked crosswalks reinforce the location and legitimacy of a pedestrian crossing, but roadway characteristics and safety factors guide whether or not a crosswalk should be marked.
- 2) Whether they are controlled (by a traffic signal or stop-sign) or uncontrolled (with no intersection control). Controlled crosswalks typically provide maximum safety benefit in requiring vehicles to stop for pedestrians; however, these treatments are not appropriate on all roadways. On some roadways, uncontrolled crosswalks can be safe and the most appropriate treatment.
- 3) Whether they are located at an <u>intersection</u> (where two streets meet) or mid-block (between intersections). Mid-block crosswalks typically require additional considerations, as drivers may not expect to see pedestrians crossing in the middle of the block.









A.3.2 Legal Crosswalks

The California Vehicle Code defines where and how crossing the street is legal in California. In California, a legal crosswalk exists where a sidewalk meets a street at an intersection, regardless of whether the crosswalk is marked (i.e., with or without striping to denote the crosswalk). Motorists must yield the right-of-way in these scenarios. Pedestrians may legally cross any street, except at unmarked locations between immediately adjacent signalized crossings, or where crossing is expressly prohibited. Away from intersections and designated mid-block locations, pedestrians must yield the right-of-way to motorists.

These legal statutes are contained in the California Vehicle Code (CVC) as follows:

- Section 275 defines a legal crosswalk as:
 - That portion of a roadway included within the prolongation or connection of the boundary lines of sidewalks at intersections where the intersecting roadways meet at approximately right angles, except the prolongation of such lines from an alley across a street.
 - Any portion of a roadway distinctly indicated for pedestrian crossing by lines or other markings on the surface (such as a marked midblock crossing).
- Section 21950 describes right-of-way at a crosswalk:
 - The driver of a vehicle shall yield the right-of-way to a pedestrian crossing the roadway within any marked crosswalk or within any unmarked crosswalk at an intersection.
- Section 21955 describes where pedestrians may not cross a street:
 - Between adjacent intersections controlled by traffic control signal devices or by police officers, pedestrians shall not cross the roadway at any place except in a crosswalk.

Pleasanton Municipal Code 11.56.020 also defines when pedestrians must use crosswalks in business districts, such as downtown:

• No pedestrian shall cross a roadway other than by a crosswalk in any business district.



A.3.3 Advantages of Marked Crosswalks

Sidewalks and crosswalks are essential links within a pedestrian network. Whether commuting, running an errand, exercising, or wandering, pedestrians need safe and convenient crossing opportunities to reach their destinations. A marked crosswalk has three (3) primary functions:

- 1. To create reasonable expectations where pedestrians may cross a roadway
- 2. To improve predictability of pedestrian actions and movement
- 3. To channel pedestrians to designated crossing locations (often selected for their optimal sight distance)

Marked crosswalks can beneficial in their ability to:

- Help pedestrians find their way across complex intersections
- Typically designate the shortest crossing path
- Direct pedestrians to locations with the best driver-pedestrian visibility
- Assure pedestrians of their legal right to cross a roadway

Reinforcing the legitimacy of pedestrian crossings is particularly important function. Though **the** *California Vehicle Code* gives the right-of-way **to pedestrians at any marked or unmarked crosswalk** (as noted in **Section A.3.2**), drivers often fail to yield the right-of-way without the visual cue of a marked crosswalk. This can result in drivers failing to yield to pedestrians or pedestrians either waiting for a gap in traffic or asserting their right-of-way by stepping into the roadway.

A.3.4 Identifying Candidate Locations for Crosswalk Enhancements in Pleasanton

Identifying candidate locations for marked crosswalks involves two steps:

1. <u>Identify locations where people would like to cross the street, known as "desire lines"</u>. Where members of the public request crosswalks or city plans and projects uncover possible crosswalk installations or enhancements, **Figure A-1** should be consulted to determine if marking





a crosswalk is appropriate. This Plan also recommends new crosswalk installations and enhancement projects, as shown on **Figure 4-2**. As these projects are further developed, these potential crosswalk locations should be consulted against this Policy for consistency and also incorporate engineering judgment to determine the final crosswalk design and level of enhancement.

Identify where people can cross safely. The primary consideration in this step is adequate stopping sight distance. Of all road users, pedestrians have the highest risk of injury in a collision because they are the least protected. The crosswalk safety treatment toolboxes are presented in Section A.4 provide numerous options for enhancing pedestrian safety at uncontrolled crossings, with treatment selection based on the overall context of the crosswalk – including surrounding land uses, roadway characteristics, and user characteristics.

A.3.5 When to Install Marked Crosswalks

Once candidate locations are identified (either through the recommendations contained in this Plan, through studies, or through citizen requests), an engineering evaluation should be conducted to determine if a marked crosswalk should be installed at an uncontrolled or mid-block location, and if so, what visibility enhancements should be included in the design. Crossings should be marked where <u>all</u> of the following occur:

- Sufficient demand exists to justify the installation of a marked crosswalk
- Sufficient sight distance as measured by stopping sight distance calculations exists and/or sight distance will be improved prior to crosswalk marking
- Safety considerations do not preclude a marked crosswalk

Figures A-1 and **A-2** describe the overall procedures from the moment city staff receives a request for a new marked crosswalk (or considers removing an existing marked crosswalk) to the installation of the treatment. As described, the first steps to determine the appropriate location and treatment for the marked crosswalk include a staff field visit.

Design Guidelines | A

FIGURE A-1: Marked Crosswalk Placement Flowchart



Figure A-1: Marked Crosswalk Placement Flowchart





Feasability Analysis for Treatments at Uncontrolled Locations 20 pedestrians per hour (in any two hours, not necessarily consecutive) cross at the location* Location directly adjacent to a No pedestrian generator such as a school, park, bus stop, or hospital Direct pedestrians Yes expected to generate pedestrians No >> on a regular basis, or a location Yes on a route that connects two such Nearest appropriately pedestrian generators. marked or protected C crosswalk is at least **** 300 feet or more away No Is this a low speed (≤25MPH), low Direct pedestrians Yes volume roadway (≤9,000 ADT)? No > to the nearest Yes Pedestrians can be easily seen from a feasible stopping sight distance Direct pedestrians to the nearest marked Can the sight distance obstruction crosswalk or Yes be removed or the speed limit lowered? stop sign, signal, or Feasible grade separation Use the Pleasanton Pedestrian Toolbox (Section A.4) and engineering judgment to Note: For locations without pedestrian counts, consider whether location is directly adjacent to a pedestrian determine treatment generator such as a school, park, bus stop, or hospital and is expected to generate pedestrians on a regular basis, or is located on a route that connects two such pedestrian generators. options* VAQ *For more information see: Zeeger, C., et al. Safety Effects of Marked Versus Unmarked Crosswalks at Uncontrolled Locations: Final Report and Recommended Guidelines. Publication FHWA-RD-04-100,

FHWA, U.S. Department of Transportation, 2005.

Figure A-2: Feasibility Analysis for Treatments at Uncontrolled Locations

A-8



A.4 Uncontrolled Crossing Enhancement Toolbox

This section presents best practices for the installation of marked crosswalks at uncontrolled intersections and mid-block locations. Uncontrolled crossings require additional consideration during planning and design since traffic signals and stop signs are not provided, meaning that motorists must be able to recognize the pedestrian and yield accordingly. Thus, providing appropriate enhancements to improve the visibility and safety of pedestrians crossing the street at an uncontrolled location is critical for pedestrian safety.

A.4.1 Crosswalk Safety Research

Numerous studies of pedestrian safety at uncontrolled crossings establish safety guidelines for crosswalk design and placement. In the past, conflicting research led to a reluctance to mark crosswalks at locations that have since shown to be safe. For example, studies conducted in San Diego in the 1970s showed that pedestrian collision risk at marked, uncontrolled crosswalks was greater than at unmarked crossings. This led many cities to remove marked crosswalks, as they were suspected of providing a false sense of security that drivers would yield to pedestrians in the crosswalk. However, a more recent and comprehensive study⁸ by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) comprehensively reviewed crossing safety at 1,000 marked and 1,000 unmarked crosswalks in 30 U.S. cities, controlling for site context factors. The study concluded that site factors related to pedestrian-involved collisions included pedestrian average daily traffic (ADT), vehicle ADT, number of lanes, median type, and the region of the U.S. At uncontrolled locations on two-lane roads and multi-lane roads with ADT below 12,000 vehicles, FHWA found that the presence of a marked crosswalk alone, compared with an unmarked crosswalk, made no statistically significant difference in the pedestrian crash rate. However, on multi-lane roads with an ADT of greater than 12,000 vehicles (without a raised median) and 15,000 vehicles (with a raised median), the presence of a marked crosswalk was associated with a statistically significant higher rate of pedestrian collisions compared to sites with an unmarked crosswalk. The findings of this study have since been incorporated into the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).

⁸ Zeeger, C., J. Stewart, and H. Huang. *Safety Effects of Marked Versus Unmarked Crosswalks at Uncontrolled Locations*. Publication FHWA-RD-01-142, FHWA, U.S. Department of Transportation, 2001.



The FHWA Study and MUTCD guidelines should not encourage city officials to simply remove (or fail to install) marked crosswalks. Rather, they suggest adding crosswalk enhancements to the marked crosswalks to balance mobility needs with safety needs. These improvements include high-visibility striping, advanced yield signs, raised medians, traffic and pedestrian signals where warranted, curb extensions, adequate lighting, and tighter turn radii.

In the FHWA study, about 70 percent of the pedestrian crashes occurred at marked crosswalks on multi-lane roads. Of the pedestrian crashes at marked crosswalks, 17.6 percent were classified as multiple-threat collisions. Multiple-threat collisions occur as one car slows down to allow pedestrians to cross, but a second car approaching from behind in the adjacent lane may not see the pedestrian. The slowing vehicle blocks the sight line of both the pedestrian and the second motorist, leading to the pedestrian-vehicle collision. Multi-lane roadways are therefore not wellserved by unmarked or marked crosswalks alone. At these sites, the study concluded, engineers should consider countermeasures that provide additional safety to pedestrians and alert motorists to upcoming crosswalks. These countermeasures include advanced yield lines with corresponding signs informing motorists where to yield. Other more



Multiple threat conflicts on multi-lane roadways occur where a vehicle yielding to a pedestrian inhibits sight lines to another oncoming vehicle.

Multi-lane roadways are not wellserved by unmarked or marked crosswalks alone. substantial measures may also be considered, such as signalization, illumination, or raised medians.

These studies support the decisions presented in this plan, which proposes new marked crosswalks at single-lane crossings only. This plan also proposes appropriate additional treatments, including PHBs and flashing beacons, at specific multi-lane crossings with higher levels of ADT.

A.4.2 Treatment Selection

At uncontrolled locations, a marked crosswalk with striping only may not provide adequate visibility between pedestrians and drivers, especially at high volume, high speed, or multi-lane crossing locations. At those locations, appropriate additional enhancements should be based on:

- Site characteristics: presence of pedestrian desire lines, available sight distance and visibility, lighting
- Travel data: 85th percentile speeds, posted speed limits, and average daily traffic (ADT) volumes.
- Roadway geometrics: presence of median refuge islands

Geometric enhancements, such as median refuges and curb extensions, and traffic calming should always be considered.

Marked crosswalks alone **should not** be installed without enhancements on multi-lane streets (two or more lanes per direction) or any location that meets the following conditions⁹:

- Speeds equal to or greater than 40 miles per hour
- Average daily traffic volumes (ADT) greater than 12,000 without a raised median or pedestrian refuge island
- Average daily traffic volumes (ADT) greater than 15,000 with a raised median or pedestrian refuge island

The **Section A.4** Uncontrolled Treatment Toolbox outlines considerations for the use of enhancements in various contexts as summarized in the remainder of this section. This Toolbox may be used to identify potential treatments at a candidate uncontrolled crosswalk locations.

⁹ California MUTCD, Section 3B. 18.



A.4.3 **Crosswalk Treatment Selection at Uncontrolled Locations**

Once it has been determined that a marked crosswalk should be installed at an uncontrolled location, appropriate crosswalk treatments must be determined. The level of needed enhancement depends on roadway characteristics that can be classified into three levels. Table A-1 presents the recommended treatment level for locations based on average daily traffic, posted speed limit, and number of travel lanes. Recommended enhancements for crosswalks with high treatment levels include all recommended improvements at or below that level.

The table should be applied after the possibility for a road diet and/or installation of a median have been considered. Where there is excess roadway width to provide a median refuge at a proposed crosswalk location, the presence of a median may mean that no additional enhancements are needed to safely mark a crosswalk.

Road diets and median islands should always be considered before crosswalk enhancements, as research shows that the number of travel lanes and the presence of the median are the primary drivers of whether or not lighted enhancements are needed. Where there is excess capacity, a lane reduction may be appropriate and eliminate the need for other may enhancements to safely mark a crosswalk.

Level A enhancements represent minor interventions—appropriate as standalone enhancements for situations with lower speeds, traffic volumes, and road widths—and interventions that are beneficial at every uncontrolled crosswalk where feasibility analysis determines that a crossing should be marked.

Higher level enhancements represent more significant interventions that are needed on higher speed or volume roadways, wider roadways, and roadways where motorists are less likely to yield to pedestrians. These enhancements can and should be combined with lower level treatments (e.g. pair flashing beacons [Level B] with curb extensions [Level A]) to further improve safety. Tables A-2 – A-4 summarize the appropriate treatments based on level of enhancement needed.



| Vehicle ADT ≤ 9,000 | | 9,000 < Vehicle ADT ≤ 12,000 | | 12,000 < Vehicle ADT ≤ 15,000 | | Vehicle ADT ≥ 15,000 | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|------------|---------------------------------|------------|----------------------------------|-----------|----------------------|------------|-----------|------------|------------|-----------|------------|
| коасшау туре | ≤30 mph | 35 mph | ≥40 mph | ≤30 mph | 35 mph | ≥40 mph | ≤30 mph | 35 mph | ≥40 mph | ≤30 mph | 35 mph | ≥40 mph |
| Two Lanes | * | A | В | * | A | В | А | A | С | A | В | С |
| Three Lanes | * | A | В | * | В | В | В | В | С | В | С | С |
| 4+ Lanes with Raised Median | А | A | С | A | В | С | В | В | С | С | С | С |
| 4+ Lanes without Raised Median | A | В | С | В | В | С | С | С | С | С | С | С |

Notes:

• Fields with asterisks indicate only typical striping and signing required. While high-visibility crosswalks should be considered, use engineering judgement to determine if they are necessary. Similarly, engineering judgement should be used to determine if signage at these crossings can be further enhanced with pedestrian-activated flashing beacons.

- Level A: road diet, removal of sight-distance obstructions, split pedestrian crossover, curb extensions, advanced yield lines, advance warning signs, in-street pedestrian crossing sign, high-visibility markings, pedestrian-activated flashing beacons, raised-crosswalk, and pedestrian-scale lighting
- Level B: all Level A countermeasures, plus pedestrian-activated flashing beacons
- Level C: all Level B countermeasures, plus pedestrian overpass/underpass, pedestrian hybrid beacon, and pedestrian signal
- Speeds refer to posted speed limits.

A.4.4 Uncontrolled Crosswalk Treatment Options

The following tables provide additional information on the use and efficacy of the preferred pedestrian safety treatments associated with each level of enhancement. These treatments are grouped into three categories, as follows:



- Table A-2: Geometric Treatments
- Table A-3: Striping and Signage
- Table A-4: Lighted Enhancements

Within each table, treatments are categorized into three levels based on the level of safety concern they are meant to address: Level A (all roadways except those with very low volume, speed, and width), Level B (roadways with moderate safety concerns), and Level C (roadways with significant safety concerns). Categories of improvements are cumulative. For example, a roadway with Level B recommended treatment level should also include appropriate Level A treatments. Not all of these treatments are recommended for application at the locations identified in this document. For information on the use of these devices and crash reduction efficacy, refer to FHWA *Guide for Improving Pedestrian Safety at Uncontrolled Crossing Locations*. ¹⁰

¹⁰ <u>https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/innovation/everydaycounts/edc_4/guide_to_improve_uncontrolled_crossings.pdf</u>



| Table A-2: Unco | Table A-2: Uncontrolled Crossings – Geometric Treatments | | | | |
|---|--|---------|-----------------------|--|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Estimated Cost | | |
| <section-header><section-header><caption></caption></section-header></section-header> | Fewer travel lanes decrease roadway width and crosswalk length, reduce speeds, reduce left-turn and rear-end collisions, and often eliminate the multiple-threat collision. It takes an average pedestrian almost four seconds to cross each additional travel lane. More travel lanes than necessary can also increase vehicle travel speeds; research has shown that the severity of pedestrian collisions increases with vehicle travel speed. | Level A | \$20/LF ¹¹ | | |
| <section-header><caption></caption></section-header> | If objects impede sight-distance, this may result in an unsafe condition where motorists and pedestrians are unable to see each other. Items such as parked cars, signage, landscaping, fencing, and street furniture should be placed in a location that will not obstruct sight distance. | Level A | Varies ¹² | | |

¹¹ Cost includes removal of existing pavement markings and repainting.

¹² Items may be as low as \$250 (relocating a street sign) or as high as \$800 (relocating a tree).



| Table A-2: Uncontrolled Crossings – Geometric Treatments | | | | |
|--|--|---------|------------------------|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Estimated Cost | |
| <text></text> | Raised islands are placed in the center of the roadway separating opposing lanes of traffic with cutouts or ramps for accessibility along the pedestrian path. Median refuge islands are recommended where right-of-way allows and conditions warrant. Studies show medians are one of the most important safety enhancements available for crosswalks. They simplify complicated multi-lane crossings by breaking the crossings/conflicts into two stages. The minimum width for a median refuge island is six feet, which is wide enough for a parent with a stroller or bicycles. | Level A | \$130/LF ¹³ | |
| 2-4. Split Pedestrian Crossover (SPXO) | This measure is similar to traditional median refuge islands; the difference is that the crosswalks in the roadway are staggered such that a pedestrian crosses half of the street and then walks toward traffic to reach the second half of the crosswalk. This measure must be designed for accessibility by including rails and truncated domes to direct sight-impaired pedestrians along the path of travel. | Level A | \$130/LF | |

¹³ Cost includes new curb and concrete barrier. Assumes a 6 foot median.



| Table A-2: Unco | Table A-2: Uncontrolled Crossings – Geometric Treatments | | | | | |
|------------------------------|--|---------|------------------------|--|--|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Estimated Cost | | | |
| <image/> <caption></caption> | Curb extensions extend the curb and sidewalks further into the roadway, shortening the length of the crosswalk. They act as a traffic calming device by narrowing the effective width of the roadway and slowing turning speeds. Because they extend into the roadway, often past parallel-parked vehicles, they improve visibility for pedestrians. They also provide space for street furniture, landscaping, bicycle parking, and signs and signal poles. Curb extensions can be constructed with reduced curb radii and to accommodate ADA improvements, such as directional curb ramps. | Level A | \$140/LF ¹⁴ | | | |
| e.e. Raised Crosswalk | Raised crosswalks are speed tables (flat-topped speed humps) outfitted with crosswalk markings and signage, providing pedestrians with a level street crossing. By raising the level of the crossing, vehicles drive more slowly through the crosswalk and pedestrians are more visible to approaching motorists. | Level A | \$4,000/EA | | | |

¹⁴ Cost includes removal of existing curb, new curb, new sidewalk, and new bollards. Cost does not include curb ramps.



| Table A-2: Uncontrolled Crossings – Geometric Treatments | | | | |
|--|---|---------|----------------|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Estimated Cost | |
| <text></text> | This measure consists of a pedestrian or pedestrian/bicycle overpass or underpass of a roadway. It provides complete separation from motor vehicle traffic, normally where no other pedestrian facility is available, and connects off-road trails and paths across major barriers. Overpasses and underpasses should be used as a measure of last resort because of their cost and barriers to their effective/efficient use, with topographical and desire line considerations influencing their design. Personal security concerns must also be addressed in the design of these facilities. | Level C | \$150/SF | |

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2016.

| Table A-3: Unco | Table A-3: Uncontrolled Crossings – Striping and Signage | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|--|---------|-------------------|--|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Estimated Cost | | |
| <section-header></section-header> | Advanced yield lines, often referred to as "sharks teeth", should be striped at all marked, uncontrolled crosswalks on multi-lane roadways. They should be placed 20-30 feet in front of the crosswalk. Their intention is to identify where vehicles should stop when yielding to a pedestrian to maintain adequate sight lines. These should be implemented in conjunction with "Yield Here to Pedestrian" signs. | Level A | \$1,500/Crosswalk | | |
| 3-2. Advanced Warning Signs | Fluorescent-yellow-green signs can be posted in advance of crosswalks to increase driver awareness of an approaching pedestrian crossing. | Level A | \$1,000/EA | | |



| Table A-3: Uncontrolled Crossings – Striping and Signage | | | | | |
|--|--|---------|------------------|--|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Estimated Cost | | |
| 3-3. In-Street Pedestrian Crossing Sign | This measure involves posting regulatory pedestrian signage on lane edge lines and/or road centerlines. The in-street pedestrian crossing sign may be used to remind road users of laws regarding right-of-way at an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing. They can be installed on medians and may also be temporary signs, placed by school crossing guards during school hours. | Level A | \$400/EA | | |
| <image/> | High-visibility markings have documented safety benefits for uncontrolled crossings at all levels of roadway intensity and therefore should be considered at all crossings, even those without Level A recommendations. ¹⁵ Various striping patterns are available, such as triple four striping, as shown in the photo to the left, is recommended for use in future installations. The smooth space in the middle of triple four striping is more comfortable for pedestrians with spinal pain and reduces the need to walk on slippery surfaces in wet weather compared to the ladder design. | Level A | \$3500/Crosswalk | | |

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2016.

¹⁵ At lower-intensity crossings, engineering judgement should be used to determine suitability. For more information on high-visibility crosswalk research and marking, see the Pedestrian and Bicycle Information Center, "An Overview and Recommendations of High-Visibility Crosswalk Marking Styles" (2013). http://www.pedbikeinfo.org/cms/downloads/PBIC WhitePaper Crosswalks.pdf









| Table A-4: Uncontrolled Crossings – Beacon, Lighting, And Signal Treatments | | | | |
|---|---|---------|----------------|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Estimated Cost | |
| <section-header><caption></caption></section-header> | The PHB is a pedestrian-activated beacon that is a combination of a beacon flasher and a traffic control signal. When actuated, the PHB displays a yellow (warning) indication followed by a solid red indication. During the pedestrian clearance interval, the driver sees a flashing red "wig-wag" pattern until the clearance interval has ended and the beacon goes dark. The device is included in the 2014 California MUTCD for use at midblock locations. ¹⁶ See Chapter 4F of the 2014 California MUTCD for the appropriate warrants. | Level C | \$80,000/EA | |

¹⁶ Use of the device at side-street stop control locations currently requires separate permission from the California CTCDC (though this is under review).





| Table A-4: Uncontrolled Crossings – Beacon, Lighting, And Signal Treatments | | | |
|---|---|---------|----------------|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Estimated Cost |
| <image/> <image/> | A pedestrian signal is a conventional traffic control device with warrants for use based on the MUTCD. The pedestrian warrants were revised with the 2009 Federal and 2012 California MUTCD. | Level C | \$450,000/EA |

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2016.

A.5 Controlled Crosswalk Treatment Toolbox

Controlled crosswalks are ones where vehicles are required to come to a complete stop, typically at location with a stop sign or traffic signal. These crossings may not need enhancements beyond standard crosswalk markings (two parallel lines), as stop and signal control allocate right-of-way between roadway users and are generally considered to have the highest effectiveness. However, even with strong traffic control, crosswalk enhancements can be considered, particularly at locations with skewed intersections, with frequent pedestrian collisions, near schools, or with demonstrated low rates of compliance. This section presents pedestrian treatments at controlled locations to:

- Improve visibility between pedestrians and drivers
- Clarify right-of-way to drivers and pedestrians
- Provide additional safety measures for vulnerable populations such as the disabled, children, and the elderly



- Reduce conflicts between pedestrians and vehicles
- Reduce vehicular speeds at locations with potential pedestrian conflicts

All treatments identified in this chapter are required or allowed by the standards and specifications in the *California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices* (CA MUTCD).

A.5.1 Citywide Crossing Enhancements

As described in **Chapter 4**, this plan identifies several recommendations that the city can apply across Pleasanton to improve the safety and comfort of pedestrians at controlled crosswalks. These recommendations include:

- Ensure pedestrian walk speed of 3.5 feet/second at signalized crossings citywide with walk speeds as low 2.5 feet/second at select locations, such as near schools, parks and senior centers).
- Adding countdown signals at signalized intersections where they are missing.
- Enhance accessibility through installing directional curb ramps (two per corner) instead of diagonal ramps and ensuring that all are ADA compliant.
- Additional treatments , as described in Section A.5.2.

A.5.2 Operational Best Practices at Controlled Crosswalks

Preferred crossing treatments are those that should be provided at all stop-controlled and signalized intersections in Pleasanton where feasible and are based on best practices in pedestrian safety.¹⁷ New controlled intersections should be designed with these treatments included. Existing controlled intersections may require retrofits, which can be phased in over time. Preferred crossing treatments at controlled locations include:

¹⁷ See America Walks *Signalized Intersection Enhancements that Benefit Pedestrians* <u>http://americawalks.org/wp-content/upload/America-Walks-Signalized-Intersection-Enhancement-Report-Updated-8.16.2012.pdf</u> (2012).





- Marked crosswalks on all legs of the intersection that serve a key desire line
- Advanced stop bars in advance of each crosswalk
- Median refuge islands and thumbnails, as width and path of turn maneuvers allow
- Good and unobstructed sightlines
- Slip lane removal, where feasible, and mitigation for pedestrian safety where they remain with a raised crosswalk or protected right-turns
- Far-side bus stops, instead of locations on the near-side of the intersection or in front of mid-block crossings
- Minimized cycle lengths at signalized intersections
- Protected turn phasing instead of permitted across marked crosswalks

These improvements are further described in **Section A.5.3**.

A.5.3 Enhanced Crossing Treatments at Controlled Locations

This plan recommends additional crosswalk enhancements per **Chapter 4**. "Preferred" options refer to the typical treatments that should be implemented broadly. "Enhancements" may be important tools based on context, such as geometric opportunities. Enhanced options should be implemented in addition to the baseline "preferred" treatments. These enhanced treatments improve drivers' awareness of pedestrians by slowing traffic at the crosswalk through geometric changes, providing signal timing or phasing modifications, or enhancing striping or signing to improve visibility.

The following tables describe the preferred and optional enhanced pedestrian safety treatments that should be considered at all controlled crosswalks:

- Table A-5: Geometric Treatments
- Table A-6: Striping and Signage
- Table A-7: Signal Hardware and Operational Measures





| Table A-5: Controlled Intersections – Geometric Treatments | | | | |
|--|--|---------------------------------|------------------------|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost | |
| <text></text> | Fewer travel lanes decrease roadway width and crosswalk length, reduce speeds, reduce left-turn and rear-end collisions, and often eliminate the multiple-threat collision. An average pedestrian takes almost four seconds to cross each additional travel lane. Therefore, reducing the number of travel lanes minimizes the amount of time that pedestrians are in the crosswalk. More travel lanes than necessary can also increase vehicle travel speeds; research has shown that the severity of pedestrian collisions increases with vehicle travel speed. Where fewer travel lanes are not possible, travel lanes can be narrowed to as little as nine feet, especially left- and right-turn pockets. | Requires Additional Analysis | \$20/LF ¹⁸ | |
| <section-header><image/></section-header> | Median pedestrian islands provide a refuge for pedestrians to stand if they do not have sufficient time to cross a street. They can be enhanced with median pedestrian push buttons at signalized crossings. Median islands can be installed throughout a corridor or only at specific crosswalks. | Preferred | \$130/LF ¹⁹ | |

¹⁸ Cost includes removal of existing pavement markings and repainting. ¹⁹ Cost assumes 6 foot median and includes new curb and concrete barrier.



| Table A-5: Controlled Intersections – Geometric Treatments | | | |
|--|---|-----------|---------------------------|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost |
| <text></text> | If objects impede sight-distance, an unsafe condition may arise where motorists and pedestrians are unable to see each other. Items such as parked cars, signage, landscaping, fencing, and street furniture should be placed in a location that will not obstruct sight-distance. | Preferred | Varies ²⁰ |
| <section-header></section-header> | Free right-turns allow vehicles to turn right at high speeds. Since the vehicles are not typically controlled by the traffic signal in this circumstance, crosswalks across the turn lanes are usually uncontrolled crosswalks. Controlled right-turn movements are preferable for pedestrians because they require a vehicle to stop on red before turning right. Where "pork-chop" islands that channelize right-turns are necessary to provide acceptable turning radii, raised crosswalks are a pedestrian enhancement. | Preferred | \$25,000/EA ²¹ |

²⁰ Items may be as low as \$250 (relocating a street sign) or as high as \$800 (relocating a tree).

²¹ Assuming no electrical costs



| Table A-5: Controlled Intersections – Geometric Treatments | | | |
|--|--|-----------|--------------------------|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost |
| <section-header><caption></caption></section-header> | Far-side bus stops allow pedestrians to cross behind the bus, improving pedestrian visibility. Far side bus stops also enhance transit operations by providing a guaranteed merging opportunity for buses. Exceptions for far-side bus stops include considerations for bus routing, sufficient sidewalk area, and conflicts with parking, land uses, or driveways. | Preferred | \$1,000/EA ²² |
| 5-6. Curb Extensions | Curb extensions extend the curb and sidewalks farther into the roadway, shortening the length of the crosswalk. They act as a traffic calming device by narrowing the effective width of the roadway and slowing turning speeds. Because they extend into the roadway, often past parallel-parked vehicles, they improve visibility for pedestrians. They also provide space for street furniture, landscaping, bicycle parking, and signs and signal poles. Curb extensions can be constructed to accommodate ADA improvements, such as directional curb ramps. | Enhanced | \$140/LF ²³ |

²² Cost assumes no sidewalk or paving work

²³ Cost includes removal of existing curb, new bollards, curb, and sidewalk. Cost does not include curb ramps.



| Table A-5: Controlled Intersections – Geometric Treatments | | | |
|--|--|----------|------------------------|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost |
| 5-7. Reduced Turn Radius | Vehicles travel faster through turns with a large radius. Reducing the radius of a corner is an effective way of reducing vehicle speeds (particularly on non-truck routes where there is less of a need for wide radii). In suburban environments, turn radii generally do not need to exceed 30 feet. In urban environments turn radii can be 10 feet or less. Where on-street parking is permitted and/or bicycle lanes are present on one or both streets, consideration for further reductions of radii should occur, acknowledging that the effective radius is increased with on-street parking. Corner curb radii on multi-lane streets should acknowledge that trucks turning right can turn into two lanes. | Enhanced | \$175/LF ²⁴ |

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2016

²⁴ Cost includes removal of existing curb, new bollards, curb, and sidewalk. Cost does not include curb ramps.



| Table A-6: Controlled Intersections – Striping and Signage | | | |
|--|---|-----------|-----------------------|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost |
| <section-header><image/><text></text></section-header> | Signalized intersections do not necessarily have marked crosswalks. Marking a crosswalk across all approaches of an intersection improves pedestrian accessibility. At a four-way intersection, a closed crosswalk forces pedestrians to cross via three crosswalks instead of one. Crosswalks on all approaches can often be accommodated without a significant impact to traffic signal operations. | Preferred | \$15/LF ²⁵ |
| <text></text> | Advanced stop bars are placed five to seven feet in front of crosswalks. They keep vehicles from encroaching into the crosswalk when stopped at a red signal or stop sign. | Preferred | \$7.50/LF |

²⁵ Cost includes both lines of crossing.





| Table A-6: Controlled Intersections – Striping and Signage | | | |
|--|--|----------|------------------|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost |
| e.e. Fehr & Peers | High-visibility crosswalks at controlled locations are appropriate in areas with high pedestrian volumes, at crosswalks with skewed geometries, or near sensitive land uses (such as schools). | Enhanced | \$3500/Crosswalk |
| <section-header></section-header> | Textured pavement can be used in crosswalks or in intersections as an aesthetic enhancement. Because of its texture, it may also calm traffic by slowing vehicles before they cross an intersection. It can also make crosswalks more visible. Textured pavement can be made of brick or, alternatively, both concrete and asphalt can be stamped to look like brick or stone. At controlled locations, standard crosswalk striping should be provided in addition to the textured pavement. A smooth, non-slip surface is preferable. | Enhanced | \$15/SF |

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2016





| Table A-7: Controlled Intersections – Signal Hardware and Operational Measures | | | |
|--|--|-----------|-------------------|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost |
| 7-1. Adequate Crossing Times Image Source: Fehr & Peers | The 2014 California MUTCD requires a walking speed of 3.5 feet per second be assumed to determine crossing times as a default minimum (4.0 feet per second was previously the guidance). A speed slower than 3.5 feet per second can be used where slower pedestrians routinely use the crosswalk, such as locations near schools, parks, or senior centers. | Preferred | N/A ²⁶ |
| 7-2. Pedestrian Countdown Signal Image Source: Fehr & Peers | Pedestrian countdown signals give pedestrians "Walk" and "Don't Walk" signals with a second-by- second countdown for each phase. Research suggests that pedestrians are more likely to obey the "Don't Walk" signal when delivered using a countdown signal. The device has been shown to enhance safety for all road users. The 2014 California MUTCD requires that all pedestrian signals where the pedestrian change interval is more than seven seconds be countdown signals. | Preferred | \$500/EA |

²⁶ No construction costs associated with measure. Only preparation and implementation costs





| Table A-7: Controlled Intersections – Signal Hardware and Operational Measures | | | |
|--|---|-----------|--------------------------|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost |
| r-3. Pedestrian Signals and Push ButtonsFor an | Push buttons should be placed within five feet of each curb ramp, one per crosswalk, as mounting push buttons for different crosswalks on one pole can be confusing for blind pedestrians. | Preferred | \$1,000/EA ²⁷ |
| Fedestrian SignalsImage Source: Fehr & Peers | Accessible pedestrian signals (APS) and detectors provide information, such as "Walk" indications and direction of crossing, in non-visual formats to improve accessibility for blind pedestrians. Audible options for accessible pedestrian signals include audible tones and speech messages. Vibrotactile push-buttons are effective options that alleviate the impacts of noise created by audible pedestrian signals. They are also accessible to deaf pedestrians. APS should always be provided when two push buttons are located on one pole and where persons with disabilities are expected frequently at a crossing. | Enhanced | \$2,500/EA |

²⁷ Cost includes pole
的外带



| Table A-7: Controlled Intersections – Signal Hardware and Operational Measures | | | | | | | |
|--|--|-----------|-------------------|--|--|--|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost | | | | |
| 7-5. Pedestrian Recall | Pedestrian recall gives pedestrians a "Walk" signal at every cycle. No push-button or detection is necessary since a "Walk" signal will always be given. Pedestrian recalls are useful in areas with high levels of pedestrian activity. They demonstrate that an intersection is meant to serve both vehicles and pedestrians. In general, pedestrian recall should be used if pedestrians actuate a "Walk" signal 75 percent of the time during three or more hours per day. Recall can be used 24-hours a day or during peak hours for pedestrians (in which case push buttons should continue to be provided). Figure A-3 presents a decision flowchart for when to install pedestrian recall based. | Enhanced | N/A ²⁸ | | | | |
| T-6. Short Cycle Lengths | Long cycle lengths at signalized intersections result in long pedestrian wait times to cross a street. By shortening an intersection's cycle length, pedestrians do not have to wait as long to cross after pushing the button to request a "Walk" signal. | Preferred | N/A ²⁹ | | | | |

²⁸ No construction costs associated with measure. Only preparation and implementation costs

²⁹ No construction costs associated with measure. Only preparation and implementation costs

🐔 🔬 🚵

| | | esign Guide | elines A |
|-----------------------------|--|--|----------------------------------|
| Table A-7: Controlled Inter | rsections – Signal Hardware and Op | erational Measures | |
| reatment | Description | Level | Cost |
| tected Left-Turns | Where permitted left-turns are allowed, de | enoted | |
| | by a "Left Turn Yield on Green" sign, left-tu vehicles can conflict with pedestrians in the crosswalk. By making the left-turn protecte that it is allowed only with a green arrow, t "Walk" signal at a crosswalk occurs at the s time that through- and right-turning vehic | Irning e ed, so the same cles in the Preferred | \$20,000-50,000/EA ³⁰ |



Treatment 7-7. Protected Left-Turns

Image Source: Fehr & Peers

7-8. Protected Right-Turns



Image Source: Fehr & Peers

Protected right turns give vehicles that are turning right an exclusive phase that does not coincide with the pedestrian walk phase. This eliminates the pedestrian-vehicle conflict between permissive Enhanced rights and pedestrians in a crosswalk. Figure A-4 presents a decision flowchart to installing protected right-turns.

same direction receive a green light. This eliminates the risk of left-turning vehicle conflicts with the opposing crosswalk; since left-turns typically occur at a higher speed than right-turns, collisions of increased severity can be avoided by protecting left-turns. Figure A-4 presents a decision flowchart to installing protected left-turns.

\$20,000-50,000/EA³¹

³⁰ Assumes left turn lane is existing, so no roadway work is necessary. Only signal work.

³¹ Assumes right turn lane is existing, so no roadway work is necessary. Only signal work.



| Table A-7: Controlled Intersections – Signal Hardware and Operational Measures | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|----------|------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Treatment | Treatment Description | | | | | | | | |
| 7-9. Turning Vehicle Yield to Pedestrian Signs | Motorist-prompting signs communicate variations of the basic message of "Yield to Pedestrians", including "Yield to Pedestrians in Crosswalk", which are sometimes supplemented by signs with strong language, such as "State Law" or "It's the Law"; and "Turning Traffic Must Yield to Pedestrians." Figure A-4 presents a decision flowchart to installing yield to pedestrian signs. | Enhanced | \$700/EA | | | | | | |
| 7-10. Pedestrian Scramble | Provides an all red phase for vehicles while providing pedestrians with a walk indication. Pedestrians may cross the street orthogonally or diagonally. Figure A-4 presents a decision flowchart to installing pedestrian scrambles. | Enhanced | \$4,000/EA | | | | | | |





| Table A-7: Controlled Interse | Table A-7: Controlled Intersections – Signal Hardware and Operational Measures | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------------------|---|----------|--------------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost | | | | | | | |
| 7-11. Flashing Yellow | After a leading pedestrian interval (LPI), a flashing yellow turn arrow allows permissive turns but | | | | | | | | | |
| Image Source: Fehr & Peers | warns motorists of potential conflicts with pedestrians in the crosswalk. Figure A-4 presents a decision flowchart to installing flashing yellow arrows. | Enhanced | \$20,000- 50,000/EA ³² | | | | | | | |
| 7-12. No Right Turn on Red | When attempting to turn right on red, motorists must look left to see if the road is clear; motorists often do not look right before turning and may not see pedestrians to their right. Restricting right turns on red can reduce conflicts between vehicles and pedestrians. "Blank out" turn restriction signs (see 7-9 below) are more effective than conventional "No Right Turn on Red" signs. | Enhanced | \$1,500/EA ³³ | | | | | | | |

³² Assumes left turn lane is existing, so no roadway work is necessary. Only signal work.

³³ Cost includes 2 signs: one on mast arm and other on pole nearby

能林林



| Table A-7: Controlled Intersections – Signal Hardware and Operational Measures | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|----------|-----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Treatment | Description | Level | Cost | | | | | |
| <image/> | The ubiquity of conventional turn restriction signs, usually for "No Right Turn on Red," contributes to their disregard by motorists. Blank out turn restriction signs activate only when the specified movement is prohibited. The LED sign is also very visible. | Enhanced | \$2,000 ³⁴ | | | | | |
| The set of th | Animated eyes pedestrian signals feature eyes that move from side to side when a "Walk" signal is given. The signals remind pedestrians to look for turning vehicles before proceeding into the crosswalk. Research has indicated that animated eyes pedestrian signals reduce conflicts between vehicles and pedestrians. Source: <u>http://www.cers-</u> <u>safety.com/pedestriansignals.pdf</u> | Enhanced | \$2,000 ³⁵ | | | | | |

³⁴ Cost includes installation

³⁵ Cost includes installation





Source: Fehr & Peers, 2016.

³⁶ Cost includes pole





A.5.4 Selection Process for Enhancements at Signalized Locations

The following flow charts can be used for assessing the best signalized intersection treatment based on any remaining pedestrian/vehicle conflicts.

- **Figure A-3: Actuated Signals Pedestrian Option Flow Chart:** Use this flow chart at all actuated traffic signals. Chart A recommends different signal timing pedestrian recall treatments based on whether or not the signal is located in Downtown.
- Figure A-4: Left-Turns on Two-Way Streets Pedestrian Options Flow Chart: The first part of this flow chart is to determine if the pedestrian to vehicle conflict volume levels meet minimum pedestrian scramble considerations. If so, Figure A-6 should be used instead. If a pedestrian scramble is not warranted, this flow chart can be used to identify additional enhancements where there are conflicts between pedestrians and left turning vehicles is observed/ apparent from collision data.
- Figure A-5: Right Turns on Two-Way Streets or Left Turns on One-Way Streets Pedestrian Options Flow Chart: The first part of this flow chart is to determine if the pedestrian to vehicle conflict volume levels meet minimum pedestrian scramble considerations. If so, Chart D should be used instead. If not, use this flow chart for new and retrofit signal installations, and where a conflict between pedestrians and right turning vehicles (or left turning on one-way streets) is observed/ apparent from collision data.
- Figure A-6: Pedestrian Scramble Flow Chart: Use this flow chart to supplement Figure A-4 and Figure A-5 if the pedestrian to vehicle conflict volume levels meet minimum pedestrian scramble considerations.



Figure A-3: Actuated Signals Pedestrian Option Flow Chart





Figure A-4: Left-Turns on Two-Way Streets Pedestrian Options Flow Chart



Figure A-5: Right Turns on Two-Way Streets or Left Turns on One-Way Streets Pedestrian Options Flow Chart





Figure A-6: Pedestrian Scramble Flow Chart





A.6 Sidewalk Zones and Preferred Dimensions

The NACTO Urban Street Guide should be consulted when designing sidewalk, streetscape, and intersection improvements for pedestrians Pleasanton. Preferred treatments include tighten curb radii to reduce speeds at crosswalks, reduce pedestrian crossing distances, and allow for two curb ramps per corner.

Table A-8 presents the standard sidewalk dimensions in Pleasanton.

| Table A-8: Preferred Sidewalk Dimensions | | | | | | | | |
|---|-----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Location | Width | | | | | | | |
| Arterial | 6 feet ^{1,2} | | | | | | | |
| High pedestrian areas: for example near BART, Fairground Complex, Stoneridge Mall, Downtown | 8 feet ^{1,2} | | | | | | | |
| All Other Locations | 5 feet ² | | | | | | | |
| Typical Sidewalk Dimension in Residential Areas Adjacent to Parking ³ | 6' minimum | | | | | | | |
| Typical Sidewalk Dimension in Commercial Areas Adjacent to Parking ³ | 8' minimum | | | | | | | |

1. On arterials and other high volume roadways and/or where pedestrian volumes may be high, sidewalks shall be separated from the roadway. Additional buffer width from vehicles lanes may be needed to provide greater pedestrian protection and comfort.

2. Where a sidewalk is directly adjacent to moving traffic, a minimum two-foot buffer for street furniture and utilities should be provided in addition to the listed sidewalk dimensions, according to the NACTO Urban Street Design Guide.

3. Typical parking stalls are 9' x 19', alternatively a 9' x 17' space with a 2' overhang over planted areas or curbs where applicable



A.7 Pedestrians and Bicyclists at Interchanges

Interchanges are difficult to navigate and stressful for bicyclists and pedestrians due to the high speeds and volume of vehicles. New techniques have been developed for improved interchange design to better accommodate pedestrians and bicyclists with respect to safety and accessibility that prioritize pedestrian and bicyclist accommodation while effectively moving auto traffic. ITE's *Recommended Design Guidelines to Accommodate Pedestrians and Bicycles at Interchanges* presents preferred concepts for providing safe, comfortable connections for bicyclists and pedestrians through a variety of highway ramp geometries that are fully compliant with national design standards. The report should be consulted when considering enhancements at interchanges.

A.8 Bicycle Design Guidelines

Bike weaving zone provided through long on-ramp

Recommended bicycle and pedestrian improvements at an on ramp entered from long, single right lane

The bicycle facility designs included in this guide are important for creating

an all ages and abilities network in Pleasanton. Creating a network of facilities that are comfortable for users of all ages is a key step in encouraging the interested but concerned bicyclists to ride on the new bicycle routes. These design guidelines supplement the bicycle network recommendations presented in **Chapter 4** of the Plan and inform the development of all new and enhanced bikeway projects in Pleasanton.

This section presents preferred treatments and preferred and minimum dimensions for the bikeways that comprise the network, All Ages and Abilities network, which includes two new facilities for Pleasanton: separated bikeways and bicycle boulevards.



A.8.1 Bicycle Facility Selection

Selection of the most appropriate type of bicycle facility requires consideration of a variety of factors. On the All Ages and Abilities Network, this decision is critical, as the facility must be comfortable enough for bicyclists of a wide range of experience levels. Characteristics of the roadway, such as auto volumes, number of travel lanes, typical auto speeds, and available roadway width, are all important considerations that significantly influence bicyclist safety and comfort. While other engineering and feasibility considerations also influence the type of bicycle facility proposed, **Table A-9** presents the key bicycle facility selection criteria for the All Ages and Abilities Network. If the bikeway type does not meet these criteria, it likely is not comfortable enough to be considered part of the All Ages and Abilities Network.

| | Table A-9: All Ages and Abilities Bicycle Facility Select Based on Speed and Number of Travel Lanes | | | | | | | |
|-----------------|---|------------------------|---|-----------|--|--|--|--|
| Posted Speed | Bicycle Facility Type | Number of Travel Lanes | | | | | | |
| | | 2 | 3 | 4 or more | | | | |
| | Bicycle Routes | | | | | | | |
| | Bicycle Boulevards ³ | | | | | | | |
| 25MPH | Bicycle Lanes ² | | | | | | | |
| or less | Buffered Bicycle Lanes | | | | | | | |
| | Separated Bikeway | | | | | | | |
| | Path ¹ | | | | | | | |
| | Bicycle Routes | | | | | | | |
| | Bicycle Boulevards ³ | | | | | | | |
| 26-30 MPH | Bicycle Lanes ² | | | | | | | |
| | Buffered Bicycle Lanes | | | | | | | |
| | Separated Bikeway | | | | | | | |

Design Guidelines | A



| | Table A-9: All Ages and Abilities Bicycle Facility Select Based on Speed and Number of Travel Lanes | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------|---|---|------------------------|-----------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Posted Speed | Bicycle Facility Type | | Number of Travel Lanes | | | | | | |
| | | 2 | 3 | 4 or more | | | | | |
| | Path ¹ | | | | | | | | |
| | Bicycle Routes | | | | | | | | |
| | Bicycle Boulevards ³ | | | | | | | | |
| 31-34 | Bicycle Lanes ² | | | | | | | | |
| МРН | Buffered Bicycle Lanes | | | | | | | | |
| | Separated Bikeway | | | | | | | | |
| | Path ¹ | | | | | | | | |





Table A-9: All Ages and Abilities Bicycle Facility Select Based on Speed and Number of Travel Lanes

| Posted Speed | Bicycle Facility Type | Number of Travel Lanes | | | | | | |
|-----------------|---------------------------------|------------------------|---|-----------|--|--|--|--|
| | | 2 | 3 | 4 or more | | | | |
| | Bicycle Routes | | | | | | | |
| | Bicycle Boulevards ³ | | | | | | | |
| 35 MPH | Bicycle Lanes ² | | | | | | | |
| or more | Buffered Bicycle Lanes | | | | | | | |
| | Separated Bikeway | | | | | | | |
| | Path ¹ | | | | | | | |

Suggested treatment to accommodate people of all ages and abilities

1. According to the MassDOT Separated Bike Lane Planning & Design Guide, paths could be considered instead of dedicated bicycle facilities (e.g. separated bikeway) only where walking and biking demand is low and expected to remain low.

2. Assumes bicycle lane blockages are rare and that bicycle lanes are a minimum of six feet. If parking is present, assumes bicycle lane width and parking width is greater or equal to 14 feet. When there are four or more travel lanes, a median must be present.

3. Per NACTO Urban Bikeway Guide, 1,500 vehicles per day (VPD) is preferred with a maximum of 3,000 VPD. Above 3,000 VPD, bicycle lanes, separated bikeway, or volume-control traffic calming measures should be considered.

4. If the street is classified as residential or does not have a marked centerline, speed can be up to or equal to 30MPH.

Note: Additional roadway characteristics and engineering study should always be considered, particularly for separated bikeways. Facilities should be designed to preferred dimensions and best practices per the PBMP Design Guidelines. Guidance is based on Level of Traffic Stress criteria.

A.8.2 Separated Bikeways

This section defines the preferred cross-section and materials for separated bikeways in Pleasanton. The NACTO *Urban Bikeway Guide*, 2nd Edition, FHWA Protected Bicycle Lane Planning and Design Guide, and MassDOT Separated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide should also be consulted when planning for and designing separated bikeways in Pleasanton.



A.8.2.1 Preferred Design

A Class IV Separated Bikeway is an on-street bicycle facility that is physically separated from automobile traffic and also distinct from the sidewalk. These facilities offer a higher level of safety and comfort than bicycle lanes. While all Class IV facilities separate bicyclists from motor vehicle travel lanes, there are many different designs for these facilities. They may be at street level ("in roadway"), sidewalk level, or intermediate level. They are always separated from auto traffic by a raised element, such as plastic delineators, median islands, on-street parking, and/or landscaping. Pavement material, streetscape elements, or landscape may separate the facility from the sidewalk. Typically separated bikeways are located with the direction of traffic, one in each direction. Directional or "one-way" separated bikeways are located side-by-side, can be appropriate depending on the street context. For example, two-way separated bikeways may be preferred to provide trail connections or along a canal, park, or similarly long frontage with limited or no access across it, as it can reduce or remove conflicts with other vehicles or pedestrians.

The minimum width of the buffer is dependent on the type of buffer used. In Pleasanton, the preferred design of the separated bikeway is typically a striped buffer with flexible delineator posts. As additional funding becomes available, these can be replaced with concrete islands or landscape islands to provide high-quality streetscapes.



Figure A-7: Preferred Separated Bikeways Dimensions

The preferred separated bikeway design has a three to four feet striped buffer, with vertical barriers, and a 7 foot bicycle lane. The minimum striped buffer width is two feet with a five foot bicycle lane. A minimum of four feet of rideable surface must be clear of gutter pans. Posts are recommended to be placed consistently every 20 feet, on center and require low initial capital cost at \$8 per linear foot. As grant funding or developer funding is available, raised concrete buffers with decorative stamped pavement can be phased in with available funding. The separated bikeway must remain wide enough to allow for traditional street sweepers to routinely maintain the area.



A.8.2.2 Preferred Barrier Separation: Interim Design

The preferred interim design is a "paint and plastic" that will allow Pleasanton to build out its separated bikeway network sooner. Near-term design elements may include visually attractive free-standing landscape planter boxes. As larger funding sources become available, high-quality improvements, such as median islands and, where feasible, landscape islands, can replace the striped buffer and plastic posts.



"Armadillo" or "zebra" traffic separators



Rubber curb traffic separator



Design Guidelines | A

Flexible Delineator Posts

A.8.2.3 Preferred Barrier Separation: Long-Term or Grant-Funded Design

Reconfiguring streetscapes to use raised medians, on-street parking, curbs, bollards, planters, or other features to separate the bikeway is more expensive and labor-intensive. As such, these design options are considered for long-term or grant-funded implementation.



Bikeway separated by landscaping and raised concrete curb



A.8.2.4 Intersection Control

Separated bikeways require special design consideration at intersections to ensure that the facility is safe and comfortable for bicyclists. Signalized intersections require additional design treatment to ensure the turning automobiles do not conflict with bicycle traffic, as the separated bikeway places bicyclists to the right of turning vehicles. Preferred solutions include protected intersections or protected right and left turns to remove the right-hook conflict between bicyclists and autos. Separated bicycle lanes should continue up to an intersection to maximize protection for bicyclists and to truly be considered an "All Ages and Abilities" facility. A variety of design solutions are available at both signalized and unsignalized locations. For more information see, the FHWA *Separated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide*, MassDOT *Separated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide*, and the NACTO *Urban Bikeway Guide*, 2nd edition.

A.8.3 Protected Intersections

Protected intersections give bicyclists a head start at intersections, improve sight lines between drivers and bicyclists, and reduce pedestrian exposures to automobiles. They also facilitate left-turns for bicyclists. Protected intersections continue the separated bikeway all the way to the intersection and include additional islands that provide queuing space for turning bicyclists and refuge islands for pedestrians. They create predictability of movement, making them comfortable and intuitive.

For more information see, the FHWA Separated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide and MassDOT Separated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide.



Source: MassDOT Separated Bikeway Guide

A.8.4 Multi-Use Paths

The AASHTO Guide for the Development of Bicyclists, 4th Edition and the Bay Trail Design Guidelines (draft, 2016) should be consulted when planning for and designing trails in Pleasanton. The following section provide general information and focuses on trail crossing design guidance.

A.8.4.1 Typical Design

Class I Paths or Multi-Use Paths provide a completely separate right-of-way for bicyclists and pedestrians. In most cases, paths provide the most comfortable option for people walking and bicycling as paths are separated from the roadway and typically have few intersections with autos. Where paths intersect the roadway network, trail crossings are critical. An unsafe trail crossing can diminish the value to the trail itself and has the highest collision rate. For these reasons, it is important to minimize vehicle and pedestrian cross-flow at crossings to improve the safety of path users. Paths that intersect many driveways and roadways have a high collision potential for cyclists, because drivers exiting driveways or traveling on intersecting roads often do not look for cyclists approaching in the opposite direction of traffic. Thus the city should consider warning signs and pavement markings wherever driveways and side-streets must cross Class I Paths, such as the intersection of the

Bay Trail and Morton Avenue. The preferred dimension for multi-use paths is 10 to 14 feet wide. The minimum *Figure A-8: Preferred Path Dimensions* dimension for a path to be considered multi-use is 8 feet wide with shoulders.









A.8.4.2 Preferred Crossing Design

The preferred crossing design consists of high-visibility ladder striping or "triple-four" striping. Providing a consistent trail crossing design in Pleasanton will provide a consistent message to drivers, pedestrians, and bicyclists alike. The preferred crossing design consists of high-visibility ladder striping or "triple-four" striping, which consists of three 4' segments, two dashed lines on the outside, with a clear space in the center to direct pedestrian traffic. Where the volume of trail users is high, the crosswalk should be widened. A bicyclist and pedestrian pavement legends with arrows may be placed within the triple-four striping to indicate to bicyclists and pedestrians that

they share the space, indicate the preferred directional path of travel and reinforce the validity of bicyclists riding through the crossing. The preferred trail crossing design also includes wide curb ramps oriented parallel to the crosswalk, to orient those with mobility impairments as well as bicyclists directly into the marked crossing. Trail crossing enhancements, such as signals and lighted enhancements, should be considered in accordance with the Citywide Crosswalk Policy contained in **Section A.2**.



Trail Crossing Signage



Modified triple-four striping with bicycle legends



A.8.5 Buffered and Standard Bicycle Lanes

The NACTO *Urban Bikeway Guide*, 2nd Edition should be consulted whenever designing bicycle lanes or buffered bicycle lanes in Pleasanton. The following section provides general guidance, definition of terms, and preferred dimensions and practices for Pleasanton.

A.8.5.1 Typical Design

A Class II bicycle lane is typically a six foot dedicated area for bicyclists designated by striping, signage, and pavement markings for the use of bicyclists. Bicycle lanes improve bicyclist safety by reducing interactions between cyclists and traffic, and by facilitating predictable behavior. Unlike Class IV Separated Bikeways, bicycle lanes have no physical barrier between bicyclists and motorized traffic. Bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes are not necessarily All Ages and Abilities bikeways. They can be when speeds are 30MPH or less and on multi-lane roadway separated with a median. On wider and higher speed roadways, separated bikeways are needed to provide All Ages and Abilities bicycle facilities.

A striped buffer space separating the bicycle lane from the adjacent motor vehicle travel lane and/or parking lane distinguishes buffered bicycle lanes. Buffered bicycle lanes feature painted buffers of typically 2 feet or more in width, marked with two solid white lines and interior diagonal cross hatching. The buffers do not include a raised separation, but that can be phased in with special consideration at intersections to provide separated bikeways. The recommended striped buffer width is 3 feet next to a 6 foot bicycle lane. The minimum striped buffer width is 1.5 feet next to a 5 foot bicycle lane.

Design Guidelines | A





Figure A-9: Bicycle Lanes Preferred Width



Figure A-10: Buffered Bicycle Lanes Preferred Width

A.8.5.2 Typical Design Elements

In addition to those described above, green "skip" striping should be applied at conflict zones and major driveways where cars will frequently turn or merge across the bicycle lane. This includes slip lanes, right-turn pockets, and large commercial driveways with heavy turnover. All green paint should be the city-preferred Celtic Green, and the use of any other shade must receive explicit approval. Where right-turn lanes or pockets are added, such as at signalized intersections or at freeway ramps, the bicycle lane should remain adjacent to the curb until approximately 200 feet or less before



the intersection, at which point, the bicycle lane should transition with colorized green markings to between the through and right travel lanes. Bicycle lanes should always be striped up to the stop bar/crosswalk and should not drop to allow for turn pockets to be added.





Buffered bicycle lane with wayfinding signage

Green skip-striping at intersection where cars may merge across or into the bicycle lane

A.8.5.3 Design Issues to Consider

The minimum width of a bicycle lane should be five feet against a curb or adjacent to a parking lane, with six feet as the preferred standard width. The NACTO Urban Bikeway Guide recommends a minimum four-foot riding surface against a longitudinal seam, and a three-foot minimum rideable surface against a gutter is required per the CA MUTCD. Poor pavement quality and inconsistent striping or disappearing lanes are also design issues of concern for bicycle lanes and other on-street facilities.







Poor pavement quality ahead of a bicycle lane

A.8.6 Bicycle Boulevards

The NACTO *Urban Bikeway Guide*, 2nd Edition should be consulted whenever planning for or designing bicycle boulevards in Pleasanton. This section provides general guidance on bicycle boulevards and discusses opportunities to enhance the city's existing Traffic Calming Program to accommodate bicycle boulevards.

A.8.6.1 Typical Design

Bicycle boulevards are low-volume, low-speed streets that are shared between bicyclists and autos. These are comfortable for bicyclists due to the low number of interactions with automobile traffic. Typically, these are located as alternative routes to higher speed collector and arterial roadways. Bicycle boulevards have sharrows, wayfinding signage, enhanced facilities at crossings of major arterials, and traffic calming measures where appropriate. Bicycle boulevards are intended for local/residential streets with low speeds and volumes. Maintaining low volumes and speeds on these streets is critical, as many of these routes serve children, who have less experience riding, as bicycle routes to school. Bicycle boulevards should have the right-of-way with two-way stops at





Figure A-11: Bicycle Boulevard Typical Design

intersections with residential or local streets, and stop signs should be minimized along bicycle boulevards.

A.8.6.2 Standard Bicycle Boulevard Elements

Sharrows should be striped on bicycle boulevards, typically centered on the effective travel lane width. Sharrows should be marked at the beginning of blocks in each direction and every 150-200 feet thereafter. Wayfinding is also an important element of bicycle boulevards. This is because in taking advantage of quieter streets, bicycle boulevards often involve some turns. Wayfinding confirms that bicyclists are on the preferred path and provide information about how to get to nearby destinations that may be a few blocks away on the major street. Sharrows can also help with



wayfinding. They can also be striped through intersections to designate the preferred route, which is helpful where the bikeway turns. Wayfinding signs also help brand the city's bicycle network, and inform cyclists by identifying intersecting bikeways and travel times to nearby destinations.



Bicycle route wayfinding with destinations and distances



Enhanced crossing of arterial via median refuge traffic diverter

A.8.6.3 Potential Traffic Calming Enhancements

Consideration of enhancing bicycle boulevard streets should be based on roadway volumes and speeds. To be an All Ages and Abilities bikeway, speeds and volumes should be low. The NACTO *Urban Bikeway Guide* establishes volume and speed thresholds for bicycle boulevards. These treatments benefit bicyclists while also helping to create "quiet" streets for residents and other road users.









Chicane



Traffic circle on bicycle boulevard

A.8.6.4 Potential Intersection Treatments

Where bicycle boulevards intersect major roadways, crossing can be difficult, depending on the type of traffic control provided. At most locations along Pleasanton's proposed bicycle boulevard network, traffic signals are already in place, which make crossing easy and comfortable. At intersections with minor streets or where the bicycle boulevard turns, it may be appropriate to give traffic control priority to the bicycle boulevard (assuming this does not increase speed of auto traffic or induce cut-through traffic). Consideration should be given to the overall spacing of stop signs along the route to avoid bicyclists having to stop every few blocks.

A.8.7 Bicycle Routes

Bicycle routes may be appropriate where no dedicated bicycle facility can be provided or on low-volume roadways. When implemented, they should include sharrow markings to indicate that it is a bicycle route and the preferred bicycle positioning in the roadway. The use of Bicyclists May Use Full Lane signs are recommended. Bicycle routes differ from bike boulevards in that bike boulevards are streets that are specially-designed to cater to bicyclists, with significant impediments to auto travel, whereas bicycle routes are just streets that have low enough auto volumes and speeds to justify indicating to bicyclists that it is a reasonably safe street to ride on.



A.8.8 Other Intersection Treatments

Other treatments that can be implemented at intersections include bicycle boxes and two stage turn boxes. Two-stage turn boxes facilitate bicyclist left turns, allowing them to cross the intersection in two stages, making an "L" through the intersection. First the bicyclist proceeds straight with traffic, and a green box provides them a space to queue ahead of opposing traffic that has a red signal. When the cross-street receives a green signal, the bicyclists proceeds straight with traffic. Bike boxes are similar to advanced stop bars and provide a designated space for bicyclists to queue ahead of traffic. This discourages right-hook collisions between drivers and bicyclists, and can also provide a space for bicyclists to make two stage turns. Consideration should be given to installation of "No Right Turn on Red" restrictions to avoid motorists encroaching into the bike space.



Bicycle box



Design Guidelines | A

Two stage turn boxes

A.8.9 Bicycle Parking

Bicycle parking fixtures should be purchased, installed, and sited per the design guidelines in the APBP Bicycle Parking Guidelines, 2nd Edition.

ACTC Requirements | B

Appendix B. Alameda CTC Checklist

| Table B-1: Alameda CTC Bicycle Master Plan Guidelines Addressed in this Plan | | | | | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Requirement | Chapter | | | | | | |
| Introduction which summarizes plan's purpose or vision and goals. | Chapter 2 | | | | | | |
| A description of how the plan has been coordinated with the Countywide Transportation Plan and its component modal plans. | Chapter 1 | | | | | | |
| Designate and map an "all ages and abilities" bikeway network. | Chapter 4 | | | | | | |
| A map and description of major barrier/gap closure projects (bridges, freeway crossings, major arterial crossings, etc.). | Chapter 4 | | | | | | |
| A description of which design guidelines the jurisdiction uses for bikeway geometry, striping, and traffic control devices. | Appendix A | | | | | | |
| A description of which design guidelines the jurisdiction uses for the development of bicycle parking and wayfinding. | Chapter 6 | | | | | | |
| Infrastructure cost estimates developed for individual projects or network segments (planning-level cost estimates acceptable). | Chapter 7 | | | | | | |
| Estimates of maintenance (including repaving of bikeway and trail network) and staffing costs over life of plan. | Chapter 7 | | | | | | |
| Description of ongoing data collection plans such as counts, facility inventory, etc. | Chapter 6 | | | | | | |
| The estimated number of existing bicycle trips and pedestrian trips in the plan area, both in absolute numbers and as a percentage of all trips, and the estimated increase in the number of bicycle trips and pedestrian trips resulting from implementation of the plan. | Chapter 3 | | | | | | |
| The number and location of collisions, serious injuries, and fatalities suffered by bicyclists and pedestrians in the plan area, both in absolute numbers and as a percentage of all collisions and injuries, and a goal for collision, serious injury, and fatality reduction after implementation of the plan. | Chapter 3 | | | | | | |
| A map and description of existing and proposed land use and settlement patterns which must include, but not be limited to, locations of residential neighborhoods, schools, shopping centers, public buildings, major employment centers, and other destinations. | Chapter 3, Figure 3-1 | | | | | | |
| A map and description of existing and proposed bicycle transportation facilities. | Chapter 3, Chapter 4 Figure 3-6 Figure 4-3 Figure 4-4 | | | | | | |



| Table B-1: Alameda CTC Bicycle Master Plan Guidelines Addressed in this Plan | | | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Requirement | Chapter | | | | | |
| A map and description of existing and proposed end-of-trip bicycle parking facilities. | Chapter 6, Figure 6-1 | | | | | |
| A description of existing and proposed policies related to bicycle parking in public locations, private parking garages and parking lots and in new commercial and residential developments. | Chapter 3 | | | | | |
| A map and description of existing and proposed bicycle transport and parking facilities for connections with and use of other transportation modes. These must include, but not be limited to, parking facilities at transit stops, rail and transit terminals, ferry docks and landings, park and ride lots, and provisions for transporting bicyclists and bicycles on transit or rail vehicles or ferry vessels. | Chapter 3, Chapter 6 Figure 6-1 | | | | | |
| A description of proposed signage providing wayfinding along bicycle and pedestrian networks to designated destinations. | Chapter 6 | | | | | |
| A description of the policies and procedures for maintaining existing and proposed bicycle and pedestrian facilities, including, but not limited to, the maintenance of smooth pavement, freedom from encroaching vegetation, street sweeping, maintenance of traffic control devices including striping and other pavement markings, and lighting. | Chapter 6 | | | | | |
| A description of bicycle and pedestrian safety, education, and encouragement programs conducted in the area included within the plan, efforts by the law enforcement agency having primary traffic law enforcement responsibility in the area to enforce provisions of the law impacting bicycle and pedestrian safety, and the resulting effect on accidents involving bicyclists and pedestrians. | Chapter 6 | | | | | |
| A description of the extent of community involvement in development of the plan, including disadvantaged and underserved communities. | Chapter 1 | | | | | |
| A description of how the active transportation plan has been coordinated with neighboring jurisdictions, including school districts within the plan area, and is consistent with other local or regional transportation, air quality, or energy conservation plans, including, but not limited to, general plans and a Sustainable Community Strategy in a Regional Transportation Plan. | Chapter 1 | | | | | |
| A description of the projects and programs proposed in the plan and a listing of their priorities for implementation, including the methodology for project prioritization and a proposed timeline for implementation. | Chapter 4, Chapter 5, Chapter 6, Chapter 7 | | | | | |
| A description of past expenditures for bicycle and pedestrian facilities and programs, and future financial needs for projects and programs that improve safety and convenience for bicyclists and pedestrians in the plan area. Include anticipated revenue sources and potential grant funding for bicycle and pedestrian uses. | Chapter 7 | | | | | |
| A description of steps necessary to implement the plan and the reporting process that will be used to keep the adopting agency and community informed of the progress being made in implementing the plan. | Chapters 7 | | | | | |



Appendix C. Prioritized Project List and Scoring

| | TABLE C-1 PROPOSED NEAR-TERM AND LONG-TERM PROJECTS BY PRIORITIZATION SCORE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|-------------------|--|---|---|-----|-----------|----------|----------|----------------------------|-----------|---------------------------|-------------|--------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | omectivit | by Delug | and Soft | Feasibility Feasibility | es school | pins ⁵⁰⁰⁰ mies | 8 | Instel Costs |
| | | South end of Santa Rita frontage | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | Realign existing path on east side of Main Street and south side of the railroad. Add bike/pedestrian crossing gate at the railroad crossing | / / | | | / | | | / | | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road/Main Street | Road | Stanley Boulevard | to School | - | from Santa Rita frontage road southbound. | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 4 15 | 13.90 | 0.1 | \$188,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road | Boulevard | | to School | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | 2 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 13 | 13.90 | | \$4,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Pita Poad | Alical Elementany | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Provide crosswalk, bicycle rack, accessibility, and pathway improvements nea | r | 1 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 4 12 | 12.00 | | \$282.000 | |
| | Santa Nita Noau | Alisal Liemental y | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | | | 1 | 2 | | 5 | 4 15 | 13.50 | | \$283,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Francisco Street | | | to School Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | Enhance existing crosswalk with PHB or signal se Enhance or modify slip lanes to improved pedestrian safety and support | - | 1 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 11 | 13.90 | | \$144,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | | to School | bicyclists turning onto/off of Santa Rita Road. | | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 11 | 13.90 | | \$25,000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Montpelier Court | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Install new marked crosswalk with median refuge and curb extensions | - | 2 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 4 14 | 13.70 | | \$124,000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Fairlands Drive | | Pedestrian | Enhance existing crosswalk with high-visibility striping | - | 2 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 3 13 | 13.70 | | \$52,000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Hopyard Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | S Modify or enhance slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for bicyclists turning between W. Las Positas and Hopyard Road | | 2 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 12 | 13.70 | | \$25,000 | |
| Mart Las Dasitas Davisuard | W/ Les Desites Devieured | Internetien with Conte Dite Deed | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 11 | 12 70 | | ć25.000 | |
| west Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Santa Rita Road | | to School | Crossings, bike rack, and access improvements on Highland Oaks Drive and | | Z | Z | | 3 | 2 11 | 13.70 | | \$25,000 | |
| Footbill Pood Complete Streets | Footbill Pood | Lydiksen Elementary School Safe | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Driftwood Way. Coordinate with Muirwood Drive and West Las Positas | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 4 12 | 12.00 | | ¢00.000 | |
| Footinii Road Complete Streets | | Routes to School Projects | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Boulevaru improvements | | 2 | 3 | | 3 | 4 12 | 15.00 | | \$99,000 | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Intersection with Oak Creek Drive | | School Redestrian Safe Routes to | Enhance existing crosswalk with ladder striping and RRFB | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 12 | 13.00 | | \$155,000 | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Intersection with Highland Oaks Driv | e | School | per Appendix A Crosswalk Policy. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 11 | 13.00 | | \$151,000 | |
| I-580 and I-680 Overcrossing | All I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Prenare hicycle and nedestrian improvements feasibility study | Implement Feasibility Study recommendations | з | 3 | 3 | 3 | 1 13 | 13.00 | | \$150,000 | |
| Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Main Street | | Pedestrian | Install traffic signal | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 3 13 | 12.00 | | \$450,000 | |
| Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Kottinger Drive | | Pedestrian | Enhance or modify slip lanes Enhance crosswalk with RREBs: Widen sidewalk on east side to improve path | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 12 | 12.00 | | \$25,000 | |
| Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Community Park Path | | Bicycle, Pedestrian | connection | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 11 | 12.00 | | \$194,000 | |
| Stanley Boulevard | Valley Avenue/Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Stanley Boulevard | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | bicycle/pedestrian circulation; stripe crosswalks as trail crossings and stripe green bicycle lanes on approaches and through the intersection; Install two es stage bicycle turn boxes and install cyclist detection from sidewalk/paths • Medium-term improvement is to construct a protected intersection | crosswalk at Valley Avenue/Stanley Boulevard; Remove NB slip lane or install upgrades to allow for improved bike/pedestrian circulation; Construct a protected intersection and widen underpass to provide protected bike lanes on Valley Avenue | 2 | 2 | 4 | 3 | 0 11 | 12.00 | | \$154,000 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Hopyard Road | W Las Positas Boulevard | Black Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian | Convert existing bicycle lanes to separated bikeways | Enhance uncontrolled crosswalks across Willow with high visibility striping and median refuges | 4 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 3 16 | 11.70 | 1.1 | \$465,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Willow Pood | Intersection with Cibraltar Drive | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Poduco curb radius | | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 4 12 | 11 70 | | \$27.000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | WINOW KOAU | Intersection with W Las Positas | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Reduce curb radius Reduce curb radii and install improvements to support bicyclists turning | | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 4 12 | 11.70 | | \$27,000 | |
| Downtown | Willow Road | Boulevard | | Routes to School | onto/off-of Willow Mark high-visibility crosswalk with median refuge and utilize Annendix A | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 11.70 | | \$27,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Crosswalk Policy to determine if volumes warrant RRFBs. Provide cut through | 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Hansen Drive | | School | to Hopyard Road frontage on the east side. Enhance or modify slip lanes at stop controlled crosswalks, high visibility christian installing median refuges transition and track from surficient to | | 2 | 2 | 4 | 3 | 0 11 | 11.70 | | \$73,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Black Avenue | | Routes to School | intersection. | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 11 | 11.70 | | \$45,000 | |
| | | | | | Modify westbound approach. Enhance or modify slip lane; modify intersection to allow right turns at the intersection. Install curb extension on southeast corner of intersection. Rebuild northeast corner and refuse on | | | | | | | | | | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | Intersection with Del Valle | | | east crosswalk to improve accessibility for pedestrians and bicyclists. Improve | 2 | | | | | | 44 70 | | <u> </u> | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Parkway/Division Street | | Pedestrian | connection to the Arroyo Valle Trail Modify or enhance slin lanes or install ungrades to allow for improved | | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 11 | 11.70 | | \$94,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe | bike/pedestrian circulation. Improve connection to the Sports Park, Tennis | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Routes to School Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Park, and the Pleasanton Canal Trail, including wayfinding. | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 0 11 | 11.70 | | \$113,000 | |
| Downtown | Willow Road | Intersection with Inglewood Drive | | School | Install new high-visibility crosswalk with RRFB or PHB and median refuge | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 11.70 | | \$58,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Golden Road | | Pedestrian | Restripe existing crosswalk as high visibility crosswalk | - | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 9 | 11.70 | | \$4,000 | |
| Downtown Accor- | Old Bornal Avenue | Dernal Avenue | Bornal Court | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Stripe bicycle lanes. Close 500' sidewalk gap on west side. Compete with | | 4 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 4 10 | 11.20 | 0.1 | ¢100.000 | |
| Downtown Access | | Derrial Avenue | bernai Court | | רכנכוג איפוועם טוגענים טטעופיארס נרפאנוחפחנ. | - Install 10' concrete pedestrian/bike path with 6' decomposed granite | 4 | S | 3 | 2 | 4 16 | 11.30 | 0.1 | \$138,000 | |
| Downtown Accors | Southern Pacific Railroad/Alameda County | Castlewood Drive | Remal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Trail Eastibility Study to convert old railroad right of you to shared was activ | multi-use path. Install intersection and trail crossing improvements. | л | 3 | 2 | r | 2 15 | 11 20 | 1.0 | \$1 947 000 | |
| Downtown Access | manaportation corridor | | Jenial Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. Compete with Peters Avenue bicycle | e | 4 | J | <u> </u> | ۷ | 3 13 | 11.30 | 1.0 | ,047,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Old Bernal Avenue | Bernal Court | Main Street | to Transit | boulevard treatment. | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 3 | 4 13 | 11.30 | 0.4 | \$59,000 | |

| TABLE C-1 PROPOSED NEAR-TERM AND LONG-TERM PROJECTS BY PRIORITIZATION SCORE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|---|-------------------------------------|---|---|--|---|--------------|-------|-------|---------------------------|----------|-------------------|------------------|--------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connectivity | Deman | Sater | Feasibility Sale Poule | s school | hins score Hilese | | Inneed costs |
| Downtown Access | Angela Street | Pleasanton Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Bicycle boulevard treatment | - | 3 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 1 12 | 11.30 | 1.2 | \$430,000 | |
| | | | | Bicvcle. Pedestrian. Safe Route | s Evaluate traffic circle or all-way stop control to facilitate bicycle turning | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Access | Angela Street | Intersection with Pleasanton Avenue | | to Transit Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | movements and pedestrian access to the ACE Station and Downtown | - | 2 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 1 11 | 11.30 | | \$22,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | St. John Street | Old Bernal Avenue | to Transit | crosswalk improvements. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 11 | 11.30 | 0.4 | \$143,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with Old Bernal Avenue | | to Transit | s Narrow intersection with curb extension/pocket park, mark high-visibility crosswalks | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 11.30 | | \$119,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with St. Marys Street | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Mark new high-visibility crosswalk and install curb extensions | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 11.30 | | \$237,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with W Angela Street | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Mark new high-visibility crosswalk | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 2 10 | 11.30 | | \$4,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with Rose Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Mark new high-visibility crosswalk | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 19 | 11.30 | | \$14,000 | |
| Downtown Access | St John Street | | Main Street | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete in tandem with Peters Avenue bicycle | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 | з | 0 7 | 11 30 | 0.1 | \$36,000 | |
| Arroug de Laguna and Iron Horro | St John Street | Division Street (Arroya Del Valle | Man Street | Disuela Dadastrian Cofe Doute | Study feasibility of paving trail and providing connections to the biking and walking actuarity. Study construction for bidge between Arrays Del Valle | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | J | 0 / | 11.50 | 0.1 | \$30,000 | |
| Trails Connection Feasibility Study | Arroyo Del Valle Trail | Parkway Intersection | Shadow Cliffs Regional Park | to School | Parkway and the Downtown roadway network | Implement improvements and crossing identified in Study | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 2 11 | 11.00 | | \$0 | |
| | | | | | Restripe existing NB bicycle lane as buffered bicycle lane and close gaps: (1) at signals, bring bicycle lane up to intersection, and (2) at roundabouts, continue striping to within 50' of intersection and install bicycle ramps up to sidewalk; stripe sharrows through roundabouts; mark all crosswalk at roundabouts. | t 2 | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Sunol Boulevard | Bicycle, Pedestrian | Close bicycle lane gaps westbound between Case and Sunol. | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeways | 4 | 2 | 4 | 2 | 3 15 | 10.50 | 1.2 | \$294,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | to School Project | Northway Road | | to School | Elementary School. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 3 | 4 13 | 10.50 | | \$196,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Alameda Drive | Santa Rita Road | to School | s install Wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools and Kolin Street bicycle boulevard and widen path | | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | 0.3 | \$169,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Black Avenue | Amador Valley Community Park | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | S | Widen sidewalk on northside of Black Avenue to create Class I Path next to Amador Valley Community Park | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 10.50 | | \$211,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Black Avenue | Intersection with Loganberry Way | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Evaluate installation of new marked crosswalk on east side of intersection per the Appendix A Crosswalk Policy. | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 10.50 | | \$13,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Northway Road (at both West and East intersections) | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Enhance or modify slip lanes for pedestrian and bicycle boulevard safety at both intersections with Northway Road/Valley Avenue. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 12 | 10.50 | | \$25.000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Walnut Grove Park Path/Harvest Park Middl | le Northway Boad | Greenwood Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. Complete in tandem with Alameda | | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10 50 | 0.4 | \$34,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Canary Drive - Raven Road - Crestline Road - Woodthrush Road - Skylark Way - Existing Path on south side of the Sports Park | - Greenwood Road | Honward Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 11 | 10.50 | 1.0 | \$358.000 | |
| | | | | Ricycla Radactrian Safa Pouta | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. | v | 5 | 5 | 0 | - | 5 11 | 10100 | 1.0 | <i>\$556,666</i> | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Northway Road | Valley Avenue | Walnut Grove Park Path | to School | improvements. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 3 11 | 10.50 | 0.1 | \$36,000 | |
| | | Harvest Park Middle School | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Complete in tandem with Northway Road and Walnut Grove Park/Harvest | | | | | | | | | 4 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Alameda Drive | Path/Greenwood Road | Amador Valley Community Park Path | to School | Park improvements. Park of Central Pleasanton Bicycle Boulevard project: improve connection between Neurost Park Path and Alemada Drive reduce species distances of | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.50 | 0.2 | \$72,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Alameda Drive | Intersection with Greenwood Road | | to School | school crosswalks through curb extensions and reduced curb radii | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.50 | | \$120,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Intersection at Francisco Street/Santa Rita Road | 3 | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Widen sidewalk on west side of Santa Rita Road to improve connection between the Park and the proposed PHB/signal at Francisco Street. | | 2 | 3 | 1 | 1 | 29 | 10.50 | | \$20,000 | |
| Vallov Avenue Alternatives | Omogo Circle | Parksida Driva | Arrova Macha Trail Connection | to School, Safe Routes to | Install bicycle/pedestrian cut through and wayfinding at end of Parkside Drive | | 4 | 1 | 0 | 2 | 0 0 | 10 50 | | \$28,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue | Intersection with Busch Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | Install stripe crossbike/trail crossing and wide curb ramps for path extension. Install wayfinding and utilize the existing sidewalks on Valley Avenue to direct s north/westbound bicyclists to Quarry Lane intersection and south/eastbound bicyclists to Boulder Street. | Install missing crosswalks across Valley Avenue. Add crosswalk(s) across Valley Avenue at existing signal when Iron Horse Trail extension. | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 8 | 10.50 | | \$28,000 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Arroyo Mocho Trail Access Improvements from Parkside Drive | Hopyard Road | Omega Circle | Pedestrian Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Work with community and EBRPD to provide access at Marilyn Court, Anastacia Court, and/or Glenda Court s | | 0 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 37 | 10.50 | | \$15,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Sports Park Drive | Parkside Drive | Omega Circle | to School, Safe Routes to Transit | Consider bicycle boulevard on Parkside Drive or two-way separated bikeway on Sports Park Drive | - | 3 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 0 7 | 10.50 | 0.9 | \$322,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Dennis Drive | Intersection with Carrisa Court | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Restripe existing crosswalk as high-visibility | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.10 | | \$4,000 | |
| Fast Side Bicycle Boulevards | Martin Avenue | At Amaral Park | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Install wayfinding between Martin Avenue Path, Amaral Park, Mohr Elementary School, and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.10 | 01 | \$8,000 | |
| East Side Diguela Doulourada | Guzman Darkway | Amaral Dark /Dennis Daire | Arrovo Mocho Troil /Staadida D | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Install separated bikeways between Amaral Park/Dennis Drive and Stoneridge | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 | - 1 | 2 10 | 10.10 | 0.1 | \$46,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Guzilidii Pdi KWdy | Aniarai Parky Dennis Drive | Arroyo would trail/Stoneridge Drive | 10 301001 | Drive/Arroy0 Mocho Irall; | - | 5 | э | U | T | 5 10 | 10.10 | 0.1 | Ş40,000 | |

| TABLE C-1 PROPOSED NEAR-TERM AND LONG-TERM PROJECTS BY PRIORITIZATION SCORE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|--|-------------------------------|---|--|---|-----|-----------|----------|----------|--------------------|---------------------|----------|-----------------|----------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Naar-Term Pronosal | I ong-Term Proposal | | nectivity | Demand | Satety | reasibility Routes | settool settoore | 15cole | s / | d Costs |
| | | | | | | | | | | | Sate Pr | ofect Group | All Mile | | Estimate |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Reduce curb radii at Valley. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment. | | 3 3 | 2 | · | 2 | 3 13 | 9.60 | | \$18,000 | , |
| Arrova Macha Trail to Downtown | | | | Riguela Radastrian Safa Routa | Bicycle boulevard treatment; Install wayfinding to destinations and routes | | | | | | | | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Mohr Avenue | Harvest Road | to School | Arroyo Mocho, and Iron Horse Trail. | | 3 3 | 2 | <u> </u> | 2 | 3 13 | 9.60 | 0.9 | \$322,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Boad | Intersection with Canary Drive | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Consider traffic circle at Canary Drive. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment | | 3 3 | . 0 |) | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 | |
| | | intersection with currently prive | | | bulevalu d'edition. | | | | | | 5 11 | 5.00 | | <i>Ş</i> 22,000 | |
| | | | | | Evaluate need to modify traffic control, as none exists today. Evaluate traffic circle and addition of yield/stop control to facilitate bicyclist turning | | | | | | | | | | |
| Arrovo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Bicvcle. Pedestrian. Safe Route | movements between Greenwood and Harvest Roads. If traffic control is s added, evaluate converting the all-way stop at Ridgewood Road to side-stree | | | | | | | | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Harvest Road | | to School | stop only to reduce the need for bikes to stop on the bicycle boulevard. | - | 3 3 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 | |
| | | | | | Bicycle boulevard treatment OR remove existing on-street parking and stripe | | | | | | | | | | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s buffered bicycle lanes (to Kamp Drive); install median refuge at IHT Crossing. | | | | | | | | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arrovo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Mohr Avenue | Kolln Street | Iron Horse Trail | to School Bicycle, Redestrian, Safe Route | Complete with Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard. | - h | 3 3 | 0 | | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$62,000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Alameda Drive | | to School | extensions and reduced curb radii | - | 2 3 | . 0 | J | 2 | 3 10 | 9.60 | | \$168,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard | | | | | _ | | 0.00 | | 6407.000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arrovo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Greenwood Road | Arroyo Del Valle Trail | to School Bicycle. Pedestrian. Safe Route | treatment. s Reduce crossing distances at Del Valle Parkway intersection with bulb-outs | - | 2 3 | 0 | | 2 | 3 10 | 9.60 | 0.3 | \$107,000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Intersection with Del Valle Parkway | | to School | and median refuge | - | 3 3 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 3 10 | 9.60 | | \$121,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Sutter Gate Avenue Gate to Arroyo Mocho Trail | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Bicycle boulevard treatment; improve gate/access at Sutter Gate for bicyclists including those with trailers | - | 3 3 | . 1 | | 2 | 1 10 | 9.60 | 0.7 | \$261,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Moni Avenue | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Consider installing traffic circle or all-way stop control at Mohr. Complete | | | | | <u> </u> | 1 10 | 5.00 | 0.7 | \$201,000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Mohr Avenue | | to School | with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 3 3 | 0 | | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Harvest Circle | Trail | | to School | provide access | - | 3 2 | . 0 | J | 1 | 39 | 9.60 | | \$31,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | | Improve trail Wayfinding (Arroyo Mocho and Iron Horse Trails) and widen | | | | | | | | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Sutter Gate Avenue and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | Pedestrian | curb ramp Bicycle boulevard treatment to Arroyo Mocho Trail connector entrance | - | 3 3 | 0 | | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | is Install wide trail curb ramp onto sidewalk at opening in wall with wayfinding | | | | | | | | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Ross Gate Way/Laramie Gate Circle | Mohr Avenue | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | to School | signage | - | 3 2 | 0 | | 2 | 1 8 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$82,000 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Stripe bicycle lanes between Santa Rita Road and Kolln Street. Complete with | 1 | | | | | | | | 400.000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arrovo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Monr Avenue | Santa Rita Road | Kolin Street | to School | Monr Avenue bicycle boulevard. Improve trail Wavfinding (Arrovo Mocho and Iron Horse Trails) and widen | - | 2 2 | 1 | | 2 | 0 / | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$88,000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Laramie Gate Circle and Iron Horse Trail | | | Pedestrian | curb ramp | Connect to Iron Horse Trail | 2 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 6 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Intersection with Iron Horse Trail | | Pedestrian | Restripe existing trail crossing as high-visibility trail crossing. Complete with Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard | | 2 1 | 1 | | 2 | 0 6 | 9.60 | | \$4,000 | |
| bicycle boulevarus | Woll Avenue | | | recestrian | | | 2 1 | | | 2 | 0 0 | 5.00 | | Ş4,000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens Drive | Intersection with W Las Positas Boulevard | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Install crosswalks across W Last Positas Boulevard and modify signal to allow nedestrian crossing. Complete with Ithaca Way improvements | | 3 7 | 3 | ł | 2 | 1 11 | 9.60 | | \$3,000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens brive | boulevaru | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s | Reduce curb radius and remove acceleration lane. Install protected | J 2 | J | | | <u> </u> | 5.00 | | \$3,000 | |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Willow Road | | to Transit | - | intersection at Owens Drive/Willow Road. | 2 3 | 4 | | 1 | 0 10 | 9.60 | | \$65,000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens Drive | Between Owens Court and Willow Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S Mark crosswalk with signal or PHR | | 1 3 | . 1 | 1 | 2 | 0 10 | 9 60 | | \$148.000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens brive | Noad | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | | | 1 5 | | | 2 | 0 10 | 5.00 | | \$148,000 | |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Hacienda Drive | | to Transit | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | 2 3 | 3 | <u> </u> | 2 | 0 10 | 9.60 | | \$25,000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail via BART | Ithaca Way | Owens Drive | Iron Horse Trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Bicycle boulevard treatment, wayfinding to Iron Horse Trail | _ | 2 2 | 2 | , | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | 0.1 | \$36.000 | |
| in britti | indea way | | | to manufe | Service Sourceare reactively, waymaning to not Horse Han | | | | | | | | 011 | \$50,000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | Intersection with W Las Positas | | Ricycle Pedestrian Safe Route | Install cut through to provide access between Owens Drive/W Las Positas s Boulevard and the Iron Horse Trail. Complete with Ithaca Way improvement | | | | | | | | | | |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Boulevard/Ithaca Way | | to Transit | Coordinate with W. Las Positas Boulevard separated bikeway project | - | 2 1 | . 3 | 5 | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | | | | | | | | | | |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Iron Horse Trail | | to Transit | Improve trail wayfinding and widen curb ramp | - | 2 2 | 3 | | 2 | 0 9 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 | |
| | | | | | Install new bicycle ramp to sidewalk at the western Club Sport/Double Tree | | | | | | | | | | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Johnson Drive | Contonnial Trail | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s driveway, mark high visibility crosswalk to new ramp on west side of driveway | Y | 4 1 | 1 | , | 2 | 0 9 | 0.60 | | ¢10.000 | |
| νια ύΑΓΓΙ | | | | | Enhance or modify slip lane , stripe bicycle lane and right-turn pocket on | | 4 1 | 1 | | ۷ | <u>u 8</u> | 9.00 | | \$19,000 | |
| | | ه ده سایه از از | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s southbound approach; continue northbound Bicycle lane to the intersection; | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Intersection with Bernal Avenue/First Street | t | to Transit, Safe Routes to School | stripe bicycle boxes and/or two stage left turns to support bicycle turning movement | Separated bikeway on northbound approach | 2 2 | 0 | J | 3 | 4 11 | 9.30 | 0.10 | \$61 000 | |
| Sanor Boulevalu | | 5 | | 501001 | novement | separated silveway on northoodild approach | - 2 | 0 | | | | 5.50 | 0.10 | 201,000 | |
| | | | | | | Install sidewalk/path on the north and south sides of Sunol Boulevard | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | ror us by dicyclists and stripe nign-visibility crosswalks across all on- ramps. Convert buffered bicycle lanes to separated bikewavs with | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Close gap with buffered Class II Bicycle Lanes; restripe existing bicycle lanes a | s raised islands through interchange. Remove both high-speed slip | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Ricycle Padastrian Safa Pourto | buffered bicycle lanes; transition bicycle lane from curbside to between | lanes westbound and bring right-turns into the intersection. | | | | | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Castlewood Drive | Sycamore Road | to Transit | Ramps | Feasibility Study | 3 2 | . 0 | J | 3 | 0 8 | 9.30 | 0.6 | \$147,000 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| | TABLE C-1 PROPOSED NEAR-TERM AND LONG-TERM PROJECTS BY PRIORITIZATION SCORE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|---|---|--|---|--|--|---|---------|----------|---------|--------------------------------|----------------|-------------------|------------------------------------|-------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connect | with Dec | nand 55 | tent Fessibility Sale Po | Project Scipol | ouping score with | a ^{ge®} Li ^{ght} | Inted Costs |
| | | | | | | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeway through lane | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Access Vision Projects | First Street | Vineyard Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | reduction, conversion of two way left turn lane, or parking removal | 3 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 4 16 | 8.50 | 0.8 | \$338,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail - Fairlands connector | W. Las Positas | Arroyo Mocho trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | In coordination with any future major redevelopment of the Walmart Neighborhood Market shopping center site at the southeast corner of West Las Positas and Santa Rita Road, provide a multi-use trail connecting from Fairlands Elementary School to the Arroyo Mocho trail. Consider new bicycle/pedestrian bridge for this connection. | 2 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 2 8 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$369,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail Continuation | Stoneridge Drive | El Charro Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Continue paving of Arroyo Mocho Trail to El Charro Road | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 0.6 | \$1,049,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail | Hopyard Road | City Limit near Busch Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian | Install 10' paved path on south bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use. Provides connection to future trails to the east in Livermore. | · | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 7 | 8.50 | 2.8 | \$6,080,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Trail Pleasanton Canal Trail via Pleasanton Sports | Arroyo de la Laguna | Hopyard Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s - s Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from Arroyo Mocho Trail, Pleasanton | North bank: 10' paved bikeway, Compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use, Provides connection Tennis & Community Park and Pleasanton Sports & Recreation Park; Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from access points Haleakala Road, Tennis & Community Park, Hopyard Road | 3 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.7 | \$1,293,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | & Recreation Park Intersection with the Iron Horse Trail (south | Hopyard Road | Omega Circle | to School Pedestrian. Bicycle. Safe Route | Canal Trail, Woodthrush Park Neighborhood | - | 2 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 0 4 | 8.50 | | \$84,000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | segment) | | | to Transit | Install new trail crossing with ladder striping and PHB or signal | - | 4 | 1 | 3 | 3 | 0 11 | 8.50 | | \$148,000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Iron Horse Trail Extension | Busch Road/Iron Horse Trail Terminu | Stanley Boulevard/Iron Horse Trail Is Path | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | Study the gap closure of the Iron Horse Trail between Busch Road and Stanler s Avenue, including finalizing preferred alignment, cost estimates, and phasing/funding strategy | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use from Busch Road to Stanley Boulevard, including at Shadow Cliffs Regional Park Entrance. y Provide intersection / trail crossing improvements at Busch Road and Valley/Stanley intersection, and railroad crossing. Coordinate with EBRPD and railroad. | 3 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 11 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$923,000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station Area and Parking Lot | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | BART and Iron Horse Trail access improvements in the draft Iron Horse Trail s Feasibility Study. Requires coordination with East Bay Regional Park District, BART, and the City of Dublin | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 09 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$1,000,000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Intersections with the Iron Horse Trail and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | Prepare trail feasibility study to improve the connection between the two Iro is Horse Trail segments and the Arroyo Mocho Trail, considering grade- separated crossing(s). | n Provide continuous connections between the two segments of Iron Horse Trail and the Arroyo Mocho Trail | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 09 | 8.50 | | \$250,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Community Park Trail | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Johnson Drive North / Interstate 580 | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | Install 10' paved path on south and east banks with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use, Intersection / trail crossing at Hopyard Road | 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 1 11 | 8.50 | 1.0 | \$1,847,000 | |
| | | | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo | | | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Rosewood, Owens, Stoneridge, West Las Positas. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Study potential for crossing at I- 580 to connect with Tassajara Creek Trail (EBRPD, regional trail) in Dublin. (Constraints, multiple mid-block crossings, current adjacent land uses are commercial office / industrial parks which turn backs to | | | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Tassajara Canal | Rosewood Drive / Interstate 580 | Mocho Trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | canal with no access points.) | 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 0 10 | 8.50 | 1.3 | \$2,823,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Chahot Canal | Owens Drive / Dublin/Pleasanton BABT Station | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo Mocho Trail | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | s - | path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection Improvements at West Las Positas, Inglewood, Stoneridge, Gibraltar, Owens. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Provides access between Arroyo Mocho Trail and Dublin/Pleasanton BART, and Hart Middle School. Will require multiple mid-hock crossings | 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 | 0 9 | 8 50 | 14 | \$3.040.000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | chabot canar | | | | | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection | | | | 1 | | 8.50 | 1.4 | \$3,040,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension | Arroyo Del Valle | Near south end of Laguna Creek Land | e Bicycle, Pedestrian | | improvements at Bernal Avenue. Install new access points at Lylewood Drive, Bernal Avenue, and along Laguna Creek Lane. | 3 | 2 | 2 | 1 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 1.8 | \$3,909,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna | Arroyo Mocho | Arroyo Del Valle | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 1.1 | \$2,389,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension | Intersection with Arroyo Del Valle | | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | Study and install a new bicycle/pedestrian bridge. | 2 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 1_7 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$500,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Pleasanton Canal Bridge Improvements Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: W. | Alamo Canal Trail | Pleasanton Canal | Bicycle, Pedestrian | Change bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards, 55" height. (Coordinate with Zone 7) | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 06 | 8.50 | | \$44,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Las Positas / Arroyo de la Laguna Trail Acces Point | s Arroyo de la Laguna | W. Las Positas | Bicycle, Pedestrian | Access gate and pathway from north side of W. Las Positas Road. | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 06 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$115,000 | |

| | | TABLE | C-1 PROPOSED NEAR-TER | M AND LONG-TERM PI | ROJECTS BY PRIORITIZATION SCORE | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|---|---|--|---|-----------|----------|---------|--------------|-------------|------------------|-----------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connectiv | vity Dem | ind sat | en restinity | Professione | uping score Mile | s. |
| | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val | Val Vista Community Park Trail & | | | | Update bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards. Coordinate with | | | | | | | / | / |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Vista Bridge Improvements | Arroyo de la Laguna | | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | Zone 7. | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 5 | 8.50 | | \$44,000 |
| North South Accors Vision Brojects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val | Arrovo do la Laguna | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Ricycla Dadactrian | | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil / | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 5 | 8 E0 | 0.4 | \$720.000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | | Alloyo de la Lagulla | Johnson Drive / Stonendge Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian Safe Route | - | decomposed granice side path for pedesthan runner requestion use | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 3 | 8.30 | 0.4 | \$735,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Muirwood Avenue | Springdale Avenue | Fastwood Way | to Transit, Safe Routes to School | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | | 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 13 | 8 50 | 12 | \$430.000 |
| Downtown | Mail Wood Avenue | Springadie Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Conduct Feasibility Study of a grade-separated I-680 crossing connecting Val | | 5 | 5 | - | 2 | + 15 | 0.50 | 1.2 | \$450,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 | | | to Transit, Safe Routes to | Vista Park and Muirwood Park. Complete in tandem with Arroyo de Laguna | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Overcrossing | Muirwood Drive | Denker Drive | School | Trail Feasibility Study | Install grade-separated I-680 crossing | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 8.50 | | \$150,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Improve BART path and wayfinding to BART and the West Dublin/Pleasanton | | | | | | | | | . , |
| Downtown | Stoneridge Mall Road | Intersection with BART Driveway | | to Transit | BART to Downtown bikeway | | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 8.50 | | \$4,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Foothill Road | Dublin Canyon Road | Stoneridge Drive | to Transit | Repair/repave asphalt sidewalk/path | - | 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 09 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$883,000 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | IS Bicycle boulevard treatment. Install enhanced crosswalk with RRFB and | | | | | | | | | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | to Transit, Safe Routes to | extend median to provide a refuge wide enough for bicyclists at Stonedale | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Springdale Avenue | Stonedale Drive | Muirwood Drive | School | Drive/Springdale Avenue. | - | 3 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 2 9 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$237,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | Stoneridge Mall Road/Stoneridge | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. Install cut through between Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mall Road intersection and Stonedale Drive for bicyclists and spedestrians. Stripe ladder crosswalk across Stonedale Drive to provide access | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Stonedale Drive | Drive Intersection | Springdale Avenue | to Iransit Biguela Dedectrian Cafe Deute | to Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mail Road Intersection. | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$77,000 |
| Nest Dubin/Pleasanton BART to | Stoporidgo Drivo | Drive | | to Transit | Boviow ability to install east log marked crosswalk at signal | | 2 | 2 | 1 | 2 | 0 0 | 8 E0 | | ¢4.000 |
| Downtown | Stonendge brive | Drive | | | neview ability to install east leg marked trosswark at signal | • | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.30 | | \$4,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Connection over Arrovo de Laguna | End of Minton Court | Meadowlark Park Path | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Connect Meadowlark Park/Minton Court connection with Centennial Trail and Arroyo Valley Trail via I-680 grade separation. Complete in tandem with Val Vista Park /Muirwood Park I-680 Crossing Feasibility Study | d Shared-use path with overcrossing of Arroyo de la Laguna to connect Bicycle houlevards | Δ | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 7 | 8 50 | 0.19 | \$411.000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | connection over Arroyo de Laguna | | Weadowlark Fark Fath | Bicycle Pedestrian Safe | Extend existing bicycle lanes to intersection with Bernal Avenue Mark | | 4 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 / | 0.50 | 0.15 | \$411,000 |
| Downtown | W Lagoon Road | Bernal Avenue | Marilyn Kane Trail Head | Routes to School | sharrows through Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail Head parking lot. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$21,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Arroyo de Laguna/Centennial Trail | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Connect Centennial Trail to Meadowlark Park/Minton Court bicycle | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Connection | Centennial Irail | Bernal Avenue | Routes to School | boulevard/paths. | Path connecting Muirwood Drive and Foothill Knolls Drive Path | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 06 | 8.50 | | \$60,000 |
| west Dublin/Pleasanton BARI to | Meadowlark Drive | Minton Court | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Install biovole boulevard treatment | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8 50 | 0.4 | ¢142.000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton RAPT to | | Winton Court | Demai Avellue | Bioucle Dedectrian Safa | Trail Eastibility Study and for coordination with Alameda County and property | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 0 | 6.50 | 0.4 | \$145,000 |
| Downtown | County Parcel Trail Connection | Muirwood Drive | Meadowlark Drive | Routes to School | owner | Shared-use path to connect Bicycle boulevard treatments | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.28 | \$608 000 |
| 50 | county rateer than connection | | measoman brive | | o miei | shared use pair to connect bicycle boulevara reachents | 5 | - | U | 1 | 0 0 | 0.50 | 0.20 | 2000,000 |
| | ТАВ | LE C-2 PROPOSED NEAR-T | ERM AND LONG-TERM PRO | DJECTS BY PRIORITIZA | ATION SCORE - SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROJECT SU | BSET | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|--|---|-----------------------------------|---|---|---|-----|---------|---------|---------|---------------|--------------|---------------|---------------|-------|
| | | | | | | | | nectini | ity Del | and sat | aty asibility | es school | score | _ / | costs |
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | COM | | | 53te At | oroipet St. | ouping Milear | | nated |
| | | | | | | | / / | | | / / | | ` /°` | / . | ⁴⁵ | |
| | | South end of Santa Rita frontage | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | Realign existing path on east side of Main Street and south side of the railroad. Add bike/pedestrian crossing gate at the railroad crossing | | | | | | | | | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road/Main Street | Road | Stanley Boulevard | to School Biovela, Badastrian, Safa Bouta | - | from Santa Rita frontage road southbound. | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 4 15 | 13.90 | 0.1 | \$188,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road | Boulevard | | to School | s Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | 2 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 13 | 13.90 | | \$4,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road | Alisal Elementary | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Provide crosswalk, bicycle rack, accessibility, and pathway improvements near Santa Rita Road frontage road and Nevis Street. | r - | 1 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 4 13 | 13.90 | | \$283,000 | |
| Santa Pita Poad | Intersection with Francisco Street | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | S | | 1 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 11 | 12.00 | | \$144,000 | |
| | intersection with Francisco Street | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | s Enhance or modify slip lanes to improved pedestrian safety and support | | 1 | | | 5 | 2 11 | 13.50 | | \$144,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | | to School | bicyclists turning onto/off of Santa Rita Road. Install Separated bikeway. Coordinate with intersection improvements at | - | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 11 | 13.90 | | \$25,000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Foothill Road | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | Willow Road | - | 4 | 3 | 4 | 3 | 4 18 | 13.70 | 2.7 | \$7,007,000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Montpelier Court | | School | Install new marked crosswalk with median refuge and curb extensions | - | 2 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 4 14 | 13.70 | | \$124,000 | |
| | | | | | Improve consistency of existing bicycle lane and shoulder striping between | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Santa Rita Road and Boardwalk Street. Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | | 42.70 | 4.7 | ¢604.000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Santa Rita Road | North Pimlico Drive Intersection | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools east of Boardwalk Street s | | 2 | | 3 | 3 | 4 14 | 13.70 | 1.7 | \$601,000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Santa Rita Road | | to School | Enhance or modify slip lanes Crossings, bike rack, and access improvements on Highland Oaks Drive and | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 11 | 13.70 | | \$25,000 | |
| | | Lydiksen Elementary School Safe | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Driftwood Way. Coordinate with Muirwood Drive and West Las Positas | | | | | | | | | 400.000 | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Routes to School Projects | | School, Bicycle Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Boulevard Improvements | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 12 | 13.00 | | \$99,000 | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Intersection with Oak Creek Drive | | School Pedestrian Safe Routes to | Enhance existing crosswalk with ladder striping and RRFB Assess demand to enhance existing crosswalk with ladder striping and PHB | • | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 12 | 13.00 | | \$155,000 | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Intersection with Highland Oaks Driv | e | School | per Appendix A Crosswalk Policy. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 11 | 13.00 | | \$151,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Willow Road | Intersection with Gibraltar Drive | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Reduce curb radius | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 4 12 | 11.70 | | \$27,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Willow Road | Intersection with W Las Positas | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Boutes to School | Reduce curb radii and install improvements to support bicyclists turning | _ | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 11 70 | | \$27,000 | |
| Downtown | WINOW Road | boulevalu | | Notices to School | Mark high-visibility crosswalk with median refuge and utilize Appendix A | - | 2 | | | 2 | 4 12 | 11.70 | | \$27,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Hansen Drive | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Crosswalk Policy to determine if volumes warrant RRFBs. Provide cut through to Hopyard Road frontage on the east side. | - - | 2 | 2 | 4 | 3 | 0 11 | 11.70 | | \$73,000 | |
| | | | | | Enhance or modify slip lanes at stop controlled crosswalks, high visibility | | | | | | | | | | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Black Avenue | | Routes to School | intersection. | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 11 | 11.70 | | \$45,000 | |
| Dublin/Diascanton PART to | | | | Redestrian Risycle Safe | Modify or enhance slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for improved hite (redestrian signalation), Improve connection to the Sports Park Tappic | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Routes to School | Park, and the Pleasanton Canal Trail, including wayfinding. | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 0 11 | 11.70 | | \$113,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Willow Road | Intersection with Inglewood Drive | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Install new high-visibility crosswalk with RRFB or PHB and median refuge | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 11.70 | | \$58,000 | |
| Arrous de Laguns and Iron Horse | | Division Street (Arroya Dal Valla | | Disusla Dadastrian Safa Dauta | Study feasibility of paving trail and providing connections to the biking and | | | | | | | | | | |
| Trails Connection Feasibility Study | Arroyo Del Valle Trail | Parkway Intersection | Shadow Cliffs Regional Park | to School | Parkway and the Downtown roadway network | Implement improvements and crossing identified in Study | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 2 11 | 11.00 | | \$0 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Walnut Grove Elementary School Safe Route to School Project | es Harvest Road, Black Avenue, Northway Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Improve accessibility, bike racks, pathways, and access around Walnut Grove Elementary School. | | 2 | 3 | 1 | 3 | 4 13 | 10.50 | | \$196.000 | |
| | Anne den Mellen Community Denk Deth | Alexande Deixe | Carta Dita Danal | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Install wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools and Kolln Street bicycle | | 2 | 2 | | 2 | 1 12 | 10.50 | 0.2 | ¢1.00.000 | |
| valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Alameda Drive | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s | - Widen sidewalk on northside of Black Avenue to create Class I Path | 2 | 3 | | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | 0.3 | \$169,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Black Avenue | Amador Valley Community Park | Santa Rita Road | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | - s Evaluate installation of new marked crosswalk on east side of intersection per | next to Amador Valley Community Park | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 10.50 | | \$211,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Black Avenue | Intersection with Loganberry Way | | to School | the Appendix A Crosswalk Policy. | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 10.50 | | \$13,000 | |
| | Northway Road (at both West and East | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Enhance or modify slip lanes for pedestrian and bicycle boulevard safety at | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | intersections) | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | to School | both intersections with Northway Road/Valley Avenue. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 12 | 10.50 | | \$25,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Walnut Grove Park Path/Harvest Park Middl | le Northway Board | Creanwood Pood | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. Complete in tandem with Alameda | | 2 | 2 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | 0.4 | ¢24.000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | School Path | Northway Road | Greenwood Road | to School | Drive and Northway Road. | | 2 | 3 | | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | 0.4 | \$34,000 | |
| | Canary Drive - Raven Road - Crestline Road - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Velley Avenue Alternation | Woodthrush Road - Skylark Way - Existing | Commend D | Hannah Dan 1 | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | | 2 | 2 | ć | 2 | | 40 | | 6250.000 | |
| vailey Avenue Alternatives | Path on south side of the Sports Park | Greenwood Road | Hopyard Road | to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 11 | 10.50 | 1.0 | \$358,000 | |
| | | | | Ricycle Pedestrian Safe Pouto | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. | < compared with the second s | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Northway Road | Valley Avenue | Walnut Grove Park Path | to School | improvements. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 3 11 | 10.50 | 0.1 | \$36,000 | |
| | | Harvest Park Middle School | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. s Complete in tandem with Northway Road and Walnut Grove Park/Harvest | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Alameda Drive | Path/Greenwood Road | Amador Valley Community Park Path | to School | Park improvements. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.50 | 0.2 | \$72,000 | |

| | TAE | LE C-2 PROPOSED NEAR-T | ERM AND LONG-TERM PR | OJECTS BY PRIORITIZ | ATION SCORE - SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROJECT SUI | BSET | | | | | | | |
|--|-----------------------------------|--|-------------------------------------|--|---|--|---|-----------|-------------------|----------------------|----------------|----------------|------------------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | omecivity | Demand | tessiphility safe | Project Scipol | pinescore mean | s calmed cost |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Alameda Drive | Intersection with Greenwood Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Part of Central Pleasanton Bicycle Boulevard project: improve connection es between Harvest Park Path and Alameda Drive; reduce crossing distances of school crosswalks through curb extensions and reduced curb radii | | 2 | 3 (|) 2 | 3 10 | 10.50 | | \$120,000 |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Intersection at Francisco Street/Sant Rita Road | ta | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | es Widen sidewalk on west side of Santa Rita Road to improve connection between the Park and the proposed PHB/signal at Francisco Street. | - | 2 | 3 1 | . 1 | 29 | 10.50 | | \$20,000 |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Omega Circle | Parkside Drive | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School, Safe Routes to Transit Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S Install bicycle/pedestrian cut through and wayfinding at end of Parkside Drive connecting to the Sports Park and at the path spur to the Arroyo Mocho Trail. | | 4 | 1 0 |) 3 | 0 8 | 10.50 | | \$28,000 |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Sports Park Drive | Parkside Drive | Omega Circle | to School, Safe Routes to Transit Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Consider bicycle boulevard on Parkside Drive or two-way separated bikeway on Sports Park Drive | - | 3 | 1 0 |) 3 | 0 7 | 10.50 | 0.9 | \$322,000 |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Dennis Drive | Intersection with Carrisa Court | | School | Restripe existing crosswalk as high-visibility | | 3 | 3 (|) 2 | 4 12 | 10.10 | | \$4,000 |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Kolln Street | Mohr Avenue | School Street | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | access to BART, Arroyo Mocho Trail, and Iron Horse Trail (northbound) and science to BART, Arroyo Mocho Trail, and Iron Horse Trail (northbound). es Install wayfinding between Martin Avenue Path, Amaral Park, Mohr | | 3 | 2 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.10 | 1.0 | \$358,000 |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Martin Avenue | At Amaral Park | Arrovo Mocho Trail /Stoneridge Driv | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route re to School | Elementary School, and Arroyo Mocho Trail es Install separated bikeways between Amaral Park/Dennis Drive and Stoneridge Drive/Arroyo Mocho Trail: | · · · | 2 | 3 (|) 2 | 3 10 | 10.10 | 0.1 | \$8,000 |
| | | | | | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to Amador Valley High School . Use sharrows and wayfinding signs to identify the preferred route between the School Street intersection and the signal at Santa Rita Road, which are | | | | | | | | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | School Street | Kolln Street | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | offset. Add bicycle cut through with signal detection at Valley Avenue. Complete with Kolln Street bicycle boulevard treatments. | - | 2 | 2 (|) 2 | 4 10 | 10.10 | 0.3 | \$107,000 |
| Fast Side Birycle Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Iron Horse Trail | Martin Avenue | Bicycle Safe Routes to School | Extend existing Class I path on north side of the street; Stripe trail crossing at all cross-streets: Kamp Drive, Courtney Avenue, and Martin Avenue; Install wavfinding between Iron Horse Trail and Martin Avenue nath | | | 3 (|) 2 | 0 8 | 10.10 | 0.5 | \$934.000 |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | Martin Wende | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Reduce curb radii at Valley. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 3 | 3 2 | 2 | 3 13 | 9.60 | 010 | \$18,000 |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Greenwood Road | Mohr Avenue | Harvest Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Bicycle boulevard treatment; Install wayfinding to destinations and routes es such as Downtown, Alameda Drive/Northway Road bicycle boulevard, BART, Arroyo Mocho, and Iron Horse Trail. es Consider traffic circle at Canary Drive. Complete with Greenwood bicycle | | 3 | 3 2 | 2 | 3 13 | 9.60 | 0.9 | \$322,000 |
| | | intersection with canary prive | | | Evaluate need to modify traffic control, as none exists today. Evaluate traffic circle and addition of yield/stop control to facilitate bicyclist turning movements between Greenwood and Harvest Roads. If traffic control is | | 5 | <u> </u> | <u>, 2</u> | J 11 | 5.00 | | \$22,000 |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Harvest Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | es added, evaluate converting the all-way stop at Ridgewood Road to side-street stop only to reduce the need for bikes to stop on the bicycle boulevard. | | 3 | 3 0 |) 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Macho Trail to Downtown | Mohr Avenue | Kolln Street | Iron Horse Trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment OR remove existing on-street parking and stripe es buffered bicycle lanes (to Kamp Drive); install median refuge at IHT Crossing. Complete with Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard. as Peduce crossing distances of school crosswalls at Alameda Drive through cuch | | 3 | 3 (|) 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$62,000 |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Alameda Drive | | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | extensions and reduced curb radii es Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard | - | 2 | 3 (|) 2 | 3 10 | 9.60 | | \$168,000 |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Greenwood Road | Arroyo Del Valle Trail | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | treatment. es Reduce crossing distances at Del Valle Parkway intersection with bulb-outs and median refuge | · · | 2 | 3 (|) <u>2</u>) 1 | 3 10 3 10 | 9.60 9.60 | 0.3 | \$107,000 \$121,000 |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Mohr Avenue | Sutter Gate Avenue Gate to Arroyo Mocho Trail | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Bicycle boulevard treatment; improve gate/access at Sutter Gate for bicyclists including those with trailers es Consider installing traffic circle or all-way stop control at Mohr. Complete | - | 3 | 3 1 | 2 | 1 10 | 9.60 | 0.7 | \$261,000 |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road Harvest Circle | Intersection with Mohr Avenue Intersection with Arroyo Del Valle Trail | | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment. es Install raised crosswalk across Harvest Circle aligning to daylight the trail and provide access | - - | 3 | 3 0 |) 2) 1 | 1 9 3 9 | 9.60 9.60 | | \$22,000 \$31,000 |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Ross Gate Way/Laramie Gate Circle | Mohr Avenue | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment to Arroyo Mocho Trail connector entrance. es Install wide trail curb ramp onto sidewalk at opening in wall with wayfinding signage | | 3 | 2 (|) 2 | 1 8 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$82,000 |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Santa Rita Road | Kolin Street | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | es Stripe bicycle lanes between Santa Rita Road and Kolln Street. Complete with Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard. | | 2 | 2 1 | 2 | 0 7 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$88,000 |
| Sunol Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Intersection with Bernal Avenue/Firs Street | st | ысусіе, Редеstrian, Safe Route to Transit, Safe Routes to Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Ennance or modify silp lane, stripe bicycle lane and right-turn pocket on southbound approach; continue northbound Bicycle lane to the intersection; 25 | Separated bikeway on northbound approach | 2 | 2 (|) 3 | 4 11 | 9.30 | 0.10 | \$61,000 |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail Continuation | Stoneridge Drive | El Charro Road | to School | Continue paving of Arroyo Mocho Trail to El Charro Road | - | 3 | 3 (|) 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 0.6 | \$1,049,000 |

| | | TABLE C-2 PROPOSED NE | AR-TERM AND LONG-TERM | I PROJECTS BY PRIORITI | ZATION SCORE - SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROJECT S | UBSET | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|-----------------------|-------------------------|---|---|--|-----|----------|-------|---------|-----------------|------------------------|-----------------|-------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | comectiv | berni | and sat | sty ressibility | sectore rolectecore | bing score mies | 8 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rou | ites | North bank: 10' paved bikeway, Compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use, Provides connection Tennis & Community Park and Pleasanton Sports & | / / | | | | | / / | | |
| ast-West Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Trail | Arroyo de la Laguna | Hopyard Road | to School | - | Recreation Park; Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from access | 3 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.7 | \$1,293,000 |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Trail via Pleasanton S & Recreation Park | ports Hopyard Road | Omega Circle | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rou to School | Ites Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from Arroyo Mocho Trail, Pleasanton Canal Trail, Woodthrush Park Neighborhood | - | 2 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 0 4 | 8.50 | | \$84,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rou to Transit, Safe Routes to | ites | | | | | | | | | |
| Jowntown | Muirwood Avenue | Springdale Avenue | Eastwood Way | School | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment. | | 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 13 | 8.50 | 1.2 | \$430,000 |
| /est Dublin/Pleasanton BART to owntown | Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Overcrossing | Muirwood Drive | Denker Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rou to Transit, Safe Routes to School | tes Conduct Feasibility Study of a grade-separated I-680 crossing connecting Va Vista Park and Muirwood Park. Complete in tandem with Arroyo de Laguna Trail Feasibility Study | Install grade-separated I-680 crossing | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 8.50 | | \$150,000 |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to owntown | Springdale Avenue | Stonedale Drive | Muirwood Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rou to Transit, Safe Routes to School | ites Bicycle boulevard treatment. Install enhanced crosswalk with RRFB and extend median to provide a refuge wide enough for bicyclists at Stonedale Drive/Springdale Avenue. | | 3 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 2 9 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$237,000 |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Connection over Arroyo de Laguna | End of Minton Court | Meadowlark Park Path | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Connect Meadowlark Park/Minton Court connection with Centennial Trail a Arroyo Valley Trail via I-680 grade separation. Complete in tandem with Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Crossing Feasibility Study | nd Shared-use path with overcrossing of Arroyo de la Laguna to connect Bicycle boulevards | 4 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 7 | 8.50 | 0.19 | \$411,000 |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | · | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Extend existing bicycle lanes to intersection with Bernal Avenue. Mark | | | | | | - | | | |
| owntown | W Lagoon Road | Bernal Avenue | Marilyn Kane Trail Head | Routes to School | sharrows through Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail Head parking lot. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$21,000 |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Jowntown | Arroyo de Laguna/Centennial Trail Connection | Centennial Trail | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Connect Centennial Trail to Meadowlark Park/Minton Court bicycle boulevard/paths. | Path connecting Muirwood Drive and Foothill Knolls Drive Path | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 06 | 8.50 | | \$60,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Meadowlark Drive | Minton Court | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.4 | \$143,000 |
| Nest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | County Parcel Trail Connection | Muirwood Drive | Meadowlark Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Trail Feasibility Study and/or coordination with Alameda County and proper owner | ty Shared-use path to connect Bicycle boulevard treatments | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.28 | \$608.000 |

| | TABLE C-3 PROPOSED NEAR | -TERM AND LONG-TERM I | PROJECTS BY PRIORITIZA | TION SCORE - SAFE ROL | ITES TO TRANSIT PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------|---|--|---|-----|--------------------|-------|---------------------|-----------|-------------|---------|------------------|
| | | | | | | | | | itt | mi | att it | 1, 20 ,00 | / / | |
| | | | | | | | | ر می ^{رن} | a del | [1 ⁰] e | ate sible | utes schoor | core | |
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | / | com | - Y | | 400 8 | act SC | ing 5 | e ^{nde} |
| | | | | | | | | Ž | | | 53 | Profe / | TOUP. N | |
| | | | | | | | / / | | / / | / / | / / | | | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Modify or enhance slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for bicyclists turning | • | | | | | | | | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Hopyard Road | | to Transit Bicyclo, Bodostrian, Safo Bouto | between W. Las Positas and Hopyard Road | | 2 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 1 | 13.70 | | \$25,0 |
| Improvements | All I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings | - | - | to Transit | Prepare bicycle and pedestrian improvements feasibility study | Implement Feasibility Study recommendations | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 1 1 | 13.00 | | \$150,0 |
| P | | | | | | ····· | | | - | | | | | |
| | | | | | Near-term improvements include: install trail wayfinding and shared path | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | markings; enhance or modify slip lane; install upgrades to allow for improved bicycle/nedestrian circulation; strine crosswalks as trail crossings and strine | Close 200' sidewalk gap on east side of Valley Avenue and install east crosswalk at Valley Avenue/Stanley Boulevard: Remove NB slin lane | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | green bicycle lanes on approaches and through the intersection; Install two | or install upgrades to allow for improved bike/pedestrian circulation; | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s stage bicycle turn boxes and install cyclist detection from sidewalk/paths | Construct a protected intersection and widen underpass to provide | | | | | | | | |
| Stanley Boulevard | Valley Avenue/Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Stanley Boulevard | | to Transit | Medium-term improvement is to construct a protected intersection | protected bike lanes on Valley Avenue | 2 | 2 | 4 | 3 | 0 1 | . 12.00 | | \$154,0 |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | | Consider designating east sidewalk as a path and provide wayfinding directing | g pockets for autos at each intersection; use remaining space to add | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Willow Road | Owens Drive | W Las Positas Boulevard | Bicycle, Safe Routes to Transit | less-experienced bicyclists to use the path. Maintain existing bicycle lanes. | raised buffer to existing bicycle lanes to create separated bikeways | 4 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 3 1 | 5 11.70 | 1.2 | \$101,0 |
| Downtown Access | Old Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bernal Court | to Transit | Peters Avenue bicycle boulevard treatment. | | 4 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 4 1 | i 11.30 | 0.1 | \$198.0 |
| | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | +===;= |
| 1 | | | | | | Install 10' concrete pedestrian/bike path with 6' decomposed granite | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Assors | Southern Pacific Railroad/Alameda County | Castlowood Drive | Pornal Avonue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | multi-use path. Install intersection and trail crossing improvements. | 4 | 2 | 2 | 2 | · · · | | 10 | 61 047 0 |
| Downtown Access | | Castlewood Drive | berrial Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | reasionity study to convert one railroad right-of-way to shared-use path s Stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. Compete with Peters Avenue bicycle | e | 4 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 3 1 | 11.30 | 1.0 | \$1,847,0 |
| Downtown Access | Old Bernal Avenue | Bernal Court | Main Street | to Transit | boulevard treatment. | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 3 | 4 1 | 11.30 | 0.4 | \$59,0 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Access | Angela Street | Pleasanton Avenue | Bernal Avenue | to Transit | Bicycle boulevard treatment | - | 3 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 1 1 | 11.30 | 1.2 | \$430,0 |
| | | | | Ricycle Pedestrian Cafe Pourte | s. Evaluate traffic circle or all-way stop control to facilitate bioyole turning | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Access | Angela Street | Intersection with Pleasanton Avenue | e | to Transit | movements and pedestrian access to the ACE Station and Downtown | - | 2 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 1 1 | . 11.30 | 1 | \$22.0 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete in tandem with Peters Avenue | | | | | | | | | . , |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | St. John Street | Old Bernal Avenue | to Transit | crosswalk improvements. | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 1 | . 11.30 | 0.4 | \$143,0 |
| Downtown Access | Potors Avonuo | Interraction with Old Down I Ave | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Narrow intersection with curb extension/pocket park, mark high-visibility | | 2 | 2 | ~ | 2 | | | | 6440.0 |
| Downtown Access | Feleis Avenue | Intersection with Old Bernal Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Li USSWalkS S | - | 2 | 5 | U | 2 | 3 1 | , 11.30 | | \$119,0 |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with St. Marys Street | | to Transit | Mark new high-visibility crosswalk and install curb extensions | | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 1 | 11.30 | | \$237,0 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with W Angela Street | | to Transit | Mark new high-visibility crosswalk | • | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 2 1 | 11.30 | | \$4,0 |
| Downtown Access | Paters Avenue | Intersection with Rose Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S Mark new high-visibility crosswalk | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 1 0 | 11 30 | | \$14.0 |
| Downtown Access | reters Avenue | intersection with tose Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete in tandem with Peters Avenue bicycle | 2 | 2 | | 0 | 5 | 1 3 | 11.50 | | Ş14,0 |
| Downtown Access | St John Street | Peters Avenue | Main Street | to Transit | boulevard treatment. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 3 | 0 7 | 11.30 | 0.1 | \$36,0 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Omogo Circle | Parksida Driva | Arroya Masha Trail Connection | to School, Safe Routes to | Install bicycle/pedestrian cut through and wayfinding at end of Parkside Drive | | 4 | 1 | 0 | 2 | 0 0 | 10.50 | | 628.0 |
| valley Avenue Alternatives | Omega Circle | Parkside Drive | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | Transit | connecting to the sports Park and at the path spur to the Arroyo Mocho Trail. Install stripe crossbike/trail crossing and wide curb ramps for path extension | - | 4 | | 0 | 3 | 0 8 | 10.50 | | \$28,0 |
| | | | | | Install wayfinding and utilize the existing sidewalks on Valley Avenue to direct | t Install missing crosswalks across Valley Avenue. Add crosswalk(s) | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s north/westbound bicyclists to Quarry Lane intersection and south/eastbound | across Valley Avenue at existing signal when Iron Horse Trail | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue | Intersection with Busch Road | | to Transit | bicyclists to Boulder Street. | extension. | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 8 | 10.50 | | \$39,0 |
| | | | | bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S Consider hicycle houlevard on Parkside Drive or two-way separated bikeway | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Sports Park Drive | Parkside Drive | Omega Circle | Transit | on Sports Park Drive | - | 3 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 0 7 | 10.50 | 0.9 | \$322,0 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | Intersection with W Las Positas | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Install crosswalks across W Last Positas Boulevard and modify signal to allow | | - | - | - | - | | | | |
| VIB BART | Owens Drive | Boulevard | | to Transit Bicycle Pedestrian Cafe Poute | pedestrian crossing. Complete with Ithaca Way improvements. | - Reduce curb radius and remove acceleration land. Install protected | 3 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 1 1 | 9.60 | | \$3,0 |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Willow Road | | to Transit | - | intersection at Owens Drive/Willow Road. | 2 | 3 | 4 | 1 | 0 1 | 9.60 | | \$65.0 |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | Between Owens Court and Willow | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | · · · · · · | | | | - | | | | ,,0 |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Road | | to Transit | Mark crosswalk with signal or PHB | <u> </u> | 1 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 0 1 | 9.60 | | \$148,0 |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s | | _ | - | | | _ | | | |
| via BART Centennial Trail to Iron Horro Trail | Owens Drive | Intersection with Hacienda Drive | | to Transit Biovela Padastrian Cofe Doute | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 1 | 9.60 | | \$25,0 |
| via BART | Ithaca Way | Owens Drive | Iron Horse Trail | to Transit | Bicycle boulevard treatment, wavfinding to Iron Horse Trail | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | 0.1 | \$36.0 |
| | | | | | | | ~ | | ٤. | 4 | | 5.00 | 5.1 | <i>230,0</i> |
| | | | | | Install cut through to provide access between Owens Drive/W Las Positas | | | | | | | | | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | Intersection with W Las Positas | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Boulevard and the Iron Horse Trail. Complete with Ithaca Way improvements | 5. | - | | - | - | | | | • |
| Via BAKI Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens Drive | Boulevard/Ithaca Way | | CO I ransit Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Pouto | coordinate with W. Las Positas Boulevard separated bikeway project | - | 2 | 1 | 3 | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | | \$15,C |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Iron Horse Trail | | to Transit | Improve trail wayfinding and widen curb ramp | - | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 9 | 9.60 | | \$15.0 |
| | | | | | | | - | | - | - | | 2.50 | | +=5,0 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Johnson Drive | Contonnial Trail | Owens Drive | Disusla Cafa Doutoo to To | String huffored biguela lange | Concepted billoways | 2 | 2 | 4 | 2 | 0 | 0.00 | 0.0 | 640C 0 |
| | זטוווזטוו עוואפ | Centenniai Ifall | OWENS DIVE | bicycle, sale Routes to Transit | Surpe puttered picycle idnes | separated Dikeways | 3 | | 1 | 2 | υξ | 9.60 | 0.8 | \$196,0 |
| 1 | | | | | Install new bicycle ramp to sidewalk at the western Club Sport/Double Tree | | | | | | | | | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s driveway, mark high visibility crosswalk to new ramp on west side of driveway | 4 | | | | | | | | |
| via BART | Johnson Drive | Centennial Trail | | to Transit | intersection: install wayfinding to Centennial trail | | 4 | 1 | 1 | 2 | 0 8 | 9.60 | | \$19.0 |

| | TABLE C-3 PROPOSED NEAR | -TERM AND LONG-TERM I | PROJECTS BY PRIORITIZAT | ION SCORE - SAFE ROU | JTES TO TRANSIT PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|-------------------------------------|---|--|---|--|-----|-----------|---------|----------|---------------------------|--------------|------------------|-------------|---------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connectiv | ity Dem | and Sale | Fessibility 5ale Poule | school Grout | pine score Miles | s siline | a costs |
| | | | | | Enhance or modify slip lane , stripe bicycle lane and right-turn pocket on | | / / | | | | | / / | / , | | |
| | | Intersection with Bernal Avenue/Fir | st | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit Safe Routes to | s southbound approach; continue northbound Bicycle lane to the intersection; strine bicycle boxes and/or two stage left turns to support bicycle turning | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Street | | School | movement | Separated bikeway on northbound approach | 2 | 2 | 0 | 3 | 4 11 | 9.30 | 0.10 | \$61,000 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Sycamore Road | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle Safe Routes to Transit | Buffered bicycle lanes | Senarated hikeways | 3 | 2 | 1 | 3 | 0 9 | 9 30 | 0.9 | \$221.000 | |
| Sunoi Boulevaru | Sunor Boulevalu | Sycamore Road | Bernar Avenue | bicycle, sale noutes to mansit | | Separated bikeways | 5 | 2 | | 5 | 0 5 | 5.50 | 0.5 | \$221,000 | |
| Grad Parland | Core Berland | Configured Drive | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Close gap with buffered Class II Bicycle Lanes; restripe existing bicycle lanes a buffered bicycle lanes; transition bicycle lane from curbside to between es through and right lane no further than 150' back from the NB and SB On- | Install sidewalk/path on the north and south sides of Sunol Boulevard for us by bicyclists and stripe high-visibility crosswalks across all on- ramps. Convert buffered bicycle lanes to separated bikeways with s raised islands through interchange. Remove both high-speed slip lanes westbound and bring right-turns into the intersection. Coordinate with recommendations of I-580/I-680 Improvements | 2 | | | | | 0.20 | 0.6 | 64.47.000 | |
| | Intersection with the Iron Horse Trail (south | Castlewood Drive | Sycamore Road | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | is | Feasibility Study | 3 | 2 | | 3 | 0 8 | 9.50 | 0.0 | \$147,000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | segment) | | | to Transit | Install new trail crossing with ladder striping and PHB or signal | - | 4 | 1 | 3 | 3 | 0 11 | 8.50 | | \$148,000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Iron Horse Trail Extension | Busch Road/Iron Horse Trail Termin | Stanley Boulevard/Iron Horse Trail Js Path | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | Study the gap closure of the Iron Horse Trail between Busch Road and Stanley s Avenue, including finalizing preferred alignment, cost estimates, and phasing/funding strategy Implement the wayfinding, trail enhancements, and bicycle and pedestrian | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use from Busch Road to Stanley Boulevard, including at Shadow Cliffs Regional Park Entrance. y Provide intersection / trail crossing improvements at Busch Road and Valley/Stanley intersection, and railroad crossing. Coordinate with EBRPD and railroad. | 3 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 11 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$923,000 | |
| | | | | | BART and Iron Horse Trail access improvements in the draft Iron Horse Trail | | | | | | | | | | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station Area and Parking Lot | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | Is Feasibility Study. Requires coordination with East Bay Regional Park District, BART, and the City of Dublin | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$1.000.000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Intersections with the Iron Horse Trail and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | Prepare trail feasibility study to improve the connection between the two Irons s Horse Trail segments and the Arroyo Mocho Trail, considering grade- separated crossing(s). | n Provide continuous connections between the two segments of Iron Horse Trail and the Arroyo Mocho Trail | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.50 | - | \$250,000 | |
| | | Owens Drive / Dublin/Pleasanton | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | ıs | Install 10' paved path with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection Improvements at West Las Positas, Inglewood, Stoneridge, Gibraltar, Owens. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Provides access between Arroyo Mocho Trail and Dublin/Pleasanton BART, and Hart Middle School. Will | | | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Chabot Canal | BART Station | Mocho Trail | to Transit Bicycle, Redestrian, Safe Route | - | require multiple mid-block crossings. | 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 | 09 | 8.50 | 1.4 | \$3,040,000 | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | to Transit, Safe Routes to | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Muirwood Avenue | Springdale Avenue | Eastwood Way | School | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 13 | 8.50 | 1.2 | \$430,000 | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit Safe Routes to | s Conduct Feasibility Study of a grade-separated I-680 crossing connecting Val Vista Park and Muirwood Park. Complete in tandem with Arroyo de Laguna | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Overcrossing | Muirwood Drive | Denker Drive | School | Trail Feasibility Study | Install grade-separated I-680 crossing | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 8.50 | | \$150,000 | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Improve BART path and wayfinding to BART and the West Dublin/Pleasanton | | | | | | | | | ** *** | |
| Downtown | Stoneridge Mall Road | Intersection with BART Driveway | | to Transit | BART to Downtown bikeway | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 8.50 | | \$4,000 | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | West Dublin/Pleasanton BART | | | Designate east sidewalk as Class I path, widen path as feasible with concrete | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Stoneridge Mall Road | Driveway | Stoneridge Drive | Bicycle, Safe Routes to Transit | sidewalk or decomposed granite, particularly at intersections. | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 8.50 | 0.6 | \$51,000 | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Footbill Boad | Dublin Canvon Road | Stoneridge Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S Renair/renave_asphalt_sidewalk/nath | | 2 | з | 2 | 2 | 0 9 | 8 50 | 0.5 | \$883.000 | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Bicycle boulevard treatment. Install enhanced crosswalk with RRFB and | | - | 2 | | - | | 2.30 | | +,-00 | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | to Transit, Safe Routes to | extend median to provide a refuge wide enough for bicyclists at Stonedale | | | | | | | | | 4444 | |
| Downtown | Springdale Avenue | Stonedale Drive | Muirwood Drive | School | Drive/Springdale Avenue. | - | 3 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 29 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$237,000 | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | Stoneridge Mall Road/Stoneridge | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. Install cut through between Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mall Road intersection and Stonedale Drive for bicyclists an s pedestrians. Stripe ladder crosswalk across Stonedale Drive to provide access | d s | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown West Dublin/Pleasanton RART to | Stonedale Drive | Drive Intersection | Springdale Avenue | to Transit Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Poute | to Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mall Road intersection. | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 09 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$77,000 | |
| Downtown | Stoneridge Drive | Drive | | to Transit | Review ability to install east leg marked crosswalk at signal | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | | \$4,000 | |
| | | | | | | | | - | | - | - | | | | |

| | | TABLE C-4 PROPOSED | NEAR-TERM AND LONG- | TERM PROJECTS BY PR | IORITIZATION SCORE - BICYCLE PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--|--|---------------------|--|--|---|----------|------------|---------------|---------|----------------------------------|------------------------|-----------------|-------------------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | comectivit | N Deman | d Saleh | Feasibility Sale Route | stonod school score | pins score Hier | \$ |
| | | | | | | Peolige existing each as each side of Main Street and south side of the | / / | | | | | | | |
| | | South end of Santa Rita frontage | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes | ; | Realign existing path on east side of Main Street and south side of the railroad. Add bike/pedestrian crossing gate at the railroad crossing | | | | | | | | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road/Main Street | Road | Stanley Boulevard | to School Bicycle, Bedestrian, Safe Bouter | - - | from Santa Rita frontage road southbound. | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 4 15 | 13.90 | 0.1 | \$188,000 |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road | Boulevard | | to School | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | 2 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 13 | 13.90 | | \$4,000 |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road | Alisal Flementary | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes | Provide crosswalk, bicycle rack, accessibility, and pathway improvements near Santa Rita Road frontage road and Nevis Street. | - | 1 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 4 13 | 13.90 | | \$283.000 |
| | | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Routes | | | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | | | | | | \$200,000 |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Francisco Street | | | to School Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Routes | Enhance existing crosswalk with PHB or signal Enhance or modify slip lanes to improved pedestrian safety and support | - | 1 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 11 | 13.90 | | \$144,000 |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | | to School | bicyclists turning onto/off of Santa Rita Road. | - | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 11 | 13.90 | | \$25,000 |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Hopyard Road | | to Transit | between W. Las Positas and Hopyard Road | | 2 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 12 | 13.70 | | \$25,000 |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Santa Rita Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes | s Enhance or modify slin lanes | | 2 | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 11 | 13 70 | | \$25,000 |
| West Las Positas boulevaru | W. Las Fositas boulevaru | intersection with santa filta fload | | | Crossings, bike rack, and access improvements on Highland Oaks Drive and | - | 2 | | | | | 15.70 | | Ş23,000 |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Lydiksen Elementary School Safe Routes to School Projects | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School, Bicycle | Driftwood Way. Coordinate with Muirwood Drive and West Las Positas Boulevard Improvements | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 12 | 13.00 | | \$99.000 |
| I-580 and I-680 Overcrossing | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes | | | | | | | | | | |
| Improvements | All I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings | - Intersection with Kottinger | - | to Transit | Prepare bicycle and pedestrian improvements feasibility study Enhance crosswalk with RREBs: Widen sidewalk on east side to improve path | Implement Feasibility Study recommendations | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 1 13 | 13.00 | | \$150,000 |
| Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Community Park Path | | Bicycle, Pedestrian | connection | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 11 | 12.00 | | \$194,000 |
| | | | | | Near-term improvements include: install trail wayfinding and shared path markings; enhance or modify slip lane; install upgrades to allow for improved bicycle/pedestrian circulation; stripe crosswalks as trail crossings and stripe green bicycle lanes on approaches and through the intersection; Install two | Close 200' sidewalk gap on east side of Valley Avenue and install east crosswalk at Valley Avenue/Stanley Boulevard; Remove NB slip lane or install upgrades to allow for improved bike/pedestrian circulation; | | | | | | | | |
| Stanley Boulevard | Valley Avenue/Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Stanley Boulevard | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to Transit | stage bicycle turn boxes and install cyclist detection from sidewalk/paths Medium-term improvement is to construct a protected intersection | Construct a protected intersection and widen underpass to provide protected bike lanes on Valley Avenue | 2 | 2 | 4 | 3 | 0 11 | 12.00 | | \$154.000 |
| Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | I-680 Interchange | Stanley Avenue | Bicycle | Buffered bicycle lanes. Transition bicycle lanes from curbside to between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the intersection | Separated bikeways with raised islands | 4 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 4 16 | 12.00 | 3.7 | \$907,000 |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Honvard Road | W Las Positas Boulevard | Black Avenue | Bicycle Pedestrian | Convert existing hirvele lanes to senarated hikeways | Enhance uncontrolled crosswalks across Willow with high visibility strining and median refuges | 4 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 3 16 | 11 70 | 11 | \$465.000 |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | Intersection with W Las Positas | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Reduce curb radii and install improvements to support bicyclists turning | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Bernal Avenue | Willow Road Tawny Drive | Boulevard Norton Way | Touriga Drive | Routes to School Bicycle | onto/off-of Willow | - Bicycle boulevard treatment | 2 | 2 | <u>1</u> 1 | 2 3 | <u>4 12</u> 0 8 | 11.70 | 0.1 | \$27,000 \$36,000 |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | | 0 | • | Separated bikeways with lane width reduction; gateway treatments at BART | | | | | | | | | |
| via BART Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Owens Drive | Hopyard Road | Ithaca Way | Bicycle Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | entrance Enhance or modify slip lanes at stop controlled crosswalks, high visibility striping, installing median refuges, transition cycle track from curbside to between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the | - | 4 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 0 13 | 9.60 | 1.6 | \$685,000 |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Black Avenue | | Routes to School | intersection. | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 11 | 11.70 | | \$45,000 |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | Modify or enhance slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for improved bike/pedestrian circulation. Improve connection to the Sports Park, Tennis Park, and the Pleasanton Canal Trail, including wayfinding. | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 0 11 | 11.70 | | \$113,000 |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail via BART | Johnson Drive | Centennial Trail | Owens Drive | Bicvcle. Safe Routes to Transit | Stripe buffered bicycle lanes | Separated bikeways | 3 | 2 | 1 | 2 | 0 8 | 9.60 | 0.8 | \$196.000 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes | s Stripe bicycle lanes. Close 500' sidewalk gap on west side. Compete with | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown Access | Old Bernal Avenue Southern Pacific Railroad/Alameda County | Bernal Avenue | Bernal Court | to Transit Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route: | Peters Avenue bicycle boulevard treatment. | - Install 10' concrete pedestrian/bike path with 6' decomposed granite multi-use path. Install intersection and trail crossing improvements. | 4 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 4 16 | 11.30 | 0.1 | \$198,000 |
| Downtown Access Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail via BART | Transportation Corridor Owens Drive | Castlewood Drive | Bernal Avenue | to Transit Bicycle | Trail Feasibility Study to convert old railroad right-of-way to shared-use path Separated bikeways with road diet reduction. If a road diet is infeasible, stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. Consider widening sidewalk to provide directional paths on either side of this short segment if lane reduction is infeasible. | Provides route avoiding the Sunol Boulevard crossing of I-680. | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | <u> 3 15 </u> 0 9 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$1,847,000 \$85,000 |
| Downtown Assocs | Old Barnal Avanua | Bornal Court | Main Ctreat | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes | S Stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. Compete with Peters Avenue bicycle | 2 | 2 | | | 2 | 4 12 | 11.20 | 0.4 | ć50.000 |
| Downtown Access | | Bernar Court | Main Street | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes | S | - | Z | 2 | 2 | 5 | 4 15 | 11.50 | 0.4 | \$59,000 |
| Downtown Access | Angela Street | Pleasanton Avenue | Bernal Avenue | to Transit | Bicycle boulevard treatment | · · | 3 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 1 12 | 11.30 | 1.2 | \$430,000 |
| Downtown Access | Angela Street | Intersection with Pleasanton Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to Transit Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes | Evaluate traffic circle or all-way stop control to facilitate bicycle turning movements and pedestrian access to the ACE Station and Downtown Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete in tandem with Peters Avenue | - | 2 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 1 11 | 11.30 | | \$22,000 |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | St. John Street | Old Bernal Avenue | to Transit | crosswalk improvements. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 11 | 11.30 | 0.4 | \$143,000 |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with Old Bernal Avenue | | to Transit | crosswalks | | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 11.30 | | \$119,000 |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with St. Marys Street | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to Transit | ; Mark new high-visibility crosswalk and install curb extensions | <u>.</u> | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 11.30 | | \$237,000 |

mated costs

| | | TABLE C-4 PROPOSED | NEAR-TERM AND LONG- | TERM PROJECTS BY PR | NORITIZATION SCORE - BICYCLE PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|--|-----------------------------------|--|--|---|---|-------------|-------|----------|----------------------------|---------------------------|----------------|-----------|---------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connectivit | Deman | d satety | Feasibility Sale Poules | setool setool croub | Inscore Milese | | strated costs |
| Downtown Accord | Deters Avenue | Intersection with W/ Angelo Street | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S Mark pour high visibility oroganually | | 2 | 2 | | 2 | 2 10 | 11.20 | / | £4.000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with W Angela Street | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s | | Z | 3 | 0 | 3 | 2 10 | 11.30 | | \$4,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with Rose Avenue | | to Transit Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Mark new high-visibility crosswalk s Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete in tandem with Peters Avenue bicycle | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 1 9 | 11.30 | | \$14,000 | |
| Downtown Access | St John Street | Peters Avenue | Main Street | to Transit | boulevard treatment. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 3 | 0 7 | 11.30 | 0.1 | \$36,000 | |
| Arroyo de Laguna and Iron Horse Trails Connection Feasibility Study | Arroyo Del Valle Trail | Division Street/Arroyo Del Valle Parkway Intersection | Shadow Cliffs Regional Park | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | study reasionity of paving train and providing connections to the bixing and s walking networks. Study opportunity for bridge between Arroyo Del Valle Parkway and the Downtown roadway network | Implement improvements and crossing identified in Study | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 2 11 | 11.00 | | \$0 | |
| | | | | | Restripe existing NB bicycle lane as buffered bicycle lane and close gaps: (1) ar signals, bring bicycle lane up to intersection, and (2) at roundabouts, continue striping to within 50° of intersection and install bicycle ramps up to sidewalk; stripe sharrows through roundabouts; mark all crosswalk at roundabouts. | t 2 | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue Walput Grove Elementary School Safe Boute | Bernal Avenue | Sunol Boulevard | Bicycle, Pedestrian Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Boute | Close bicycle lane gaps westbound between Case and Sunol. | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeways | 4 | 2 | 4 | 2 | 3 15 | 10.50 | 1.2 | \$294,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | to School Project | Northway Road | | to School | Elementary School. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 3 | 4 13 | 10.50 | | \$196,000 | |
| Downtown Access Vision Projects | Second Street | Spring Street/ Kottinger Drive | Abbie Street | Bicycle | - | Bicycle boulevard treatment | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 1 9 | 8.50 | 0.4 | \$143,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Division Street | Del Valle Derkugu | Ct. Manu Street | Diavela | Stripe sharrows and install bicycle route signage; install wayfinding to Downtown; work with neighbors to not place trash cans in roadway shoulder. Consider Rose Avenue/Fair Street as an alternative bicycle boulevard route to Downbewer | | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 8 | 11 70 | 0.4 | £27.000 | |
| Downtown | Division Street | Der valle Farkway | St. Wary Street | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Install wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools and Kolln Street bicycle | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 8 | 11.70 | 0.4 | \$27,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Alameda Drive | Santa Rita Road | to School | boulevard and widen path Improve existing shared-use path on west side of street. Remove bollards, | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | 0.3 | \$169,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Honvard Poad | Plack Avenue | Del Valle Parkway | Picyclo | install with wide curb ramps, wayfinding and improved crossings. Spot | | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 11 | 11 70 | 0.5 | \$112,000 | |
| | | black Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s | Widen sidewalk on northside of Black Avenue to create Class I Path | 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 2 11 | 11.70 | 0.5 | \$112,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Black Avenue | Amador Valley Community Park | Santa Rita Road | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | - s Evaluate installation of new marked crosswalk on east side of intersection per | next to Amador Valley Community Park | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 10.50 | | \$211,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Black Avenue Northway Road (at both West and Fast | Intersection with Loganberry Way | | to School Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Boute | the Appendix A Crosswalk Policy. s. Enhance or modify slip lanes for pedestrian and bicycle boulevard safety at | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 10.50 | | \$13,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | intersections) | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | to School | both intersections with Northway Road/Valley Avenue. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 12 | 10.50 | | \$25,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Walnut Grove Park Path/Harvest Park Middl School Path | le Northway Road | Greenwood Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. Complete in tandem with Alameda Drive and Northway Road. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | 0.4 | \$34,000 | |
| | Canary Drive - Raven Road - Crestline Road - Woodthrush Road - Skylark Way - Existing | | | Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Route | s | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Path on south side of the Sports Park | Greenwood Road | Hopyard Road | to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 11 | 10.50 | 1.0 | \$358,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | St. Mary Street | Division Street | Main Street | Bicycle | Stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. Complete with Division Street bicycle route. | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 8 | 11.70 | 0.4 | \$27,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanten PAPT to | | | | | Convert evicting biovele lange to constant dikeways, including intersection | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | W Las Positas Road | Hopyard Road | Willow Road | Bicycle | improvements. See West Las Positas project. | - | 4 | 3 | 4 | 3 | 4 18 | 11.70 | 0.4 | \$180,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Willow Road | Owens Drive | W Las Positas Boulevard | Bicycle, Safe Routes to Transit | Consider designating east sidewalk as a path and provide wayfinding directing less-experienced bicyclists to use the path. Maintain existing bicycle lanes. | Remove a travel lane in each direction, and add dedicated left-turn ; pockets for autos at each intersection; use remaining space to add raised buffer to existing bicycle lanes to create separated bikeways | 4 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 3 16 | 11.70 | 1.2 | \$101,000 | |
| | | | | Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Boute | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. | 4 | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Northway Road | Valley Avenue | Walnut Grove Park Path | to School | improvements. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 3 11 | 10.50 | 0.1 | \$36,000 | |
| | | Harvest Park Middle School | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. s Complete in tandem with Northway Road and Walnut Grove Park/Harvest | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Alameda Drive | Path/Greenwood Road | Amador Valley Community Park Path | to School | Park improvements. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.50 | 0.2 | \$72,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Alameda Drive | Intersection with Greenwood Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Part of Central Pleasanton Bicycle Boulevard project: improve connection s between Harvest Park Path and Alameda Drive; reduce crossing distances of school crosswalks through curb extensions and reduced curb radii | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.50 | | \$120,000 | |
| | | Intersection at Francisco Street/Santa | a | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Widen sidewalk on west side of Santa Rita Road to improve connection | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Rita Road | | to School Ricycle, Redectrian, Safe Davita | between the Park and the proposed PHB/signal at Francisco Street. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 1 | 29 | 10.50 | | \$20,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Omega Circle | Parkside Drive | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | to School, Safe Routes to Transit | s Install bicycle/pedestrian cut through and wayfinding at end of Parkside Drive connecting to the Sports Park and at the path spur to the Arroyo Mocho Trail. Install stripe crossbike/trail crossing and wide curb ramps for path extension. | - | 4 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 0 8 | 10.50 | | \$28,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue | Intersection with Busch Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s north/westbound bicyclists to Quarry Lane intersection and south/eastbound bicyclists to Boulder Street. | across Valley Avenue at existing signal when Iron Horse Trail extension. | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 8 | 10.50 | | \$39,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Kolin Street | Mohr Avenue | School Street | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment. Add wayfinding to Downtown (southbound) an access to BART, Arroyo Mocho Trail, and Iron Horse Trail (northbound). | d - | 3 | 2 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.10 | 1.0 | \$358,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Kolln Street | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | Add bicycle cut through with signal detection at Valley Avenue. Complete with Kolln Street bicycle boulevard treatments. | · | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 3 9 | 10.10 | | \$45,000 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| | | TABLE C-4 PROPOSED | NEAR-TERM AND LONG- | TERM PROJECTS BY PR | RIORITIZATION SCORE - BICYCLE PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|--|--------------------------------------|--|---|--|---|------------|-----------|----------|--------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------|--------------|--------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connectivi | ity Detri | and safe | oy Fessibility Sale Pour | estonod sectore project score | ouping score with | | -simed coats |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | School Street | Kolln Street | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to Amador Valley High School . Use sharrows and wayfinding signs to identify the preferred route between the School Street intersection and the signal at Santa Rita Road, which are offset. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 4 10 | 10.10 | 0.3 | \$107,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Iron Horse Trail | Martin Avenue | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | Extend existing Class I path on north side of the street; Stripe trail crossing at all cross-streets: Kamp Drive, Courtney Avenue, and Martin Avenue; Install wayfinding between Iron Horse Trail and Martin Avenue path | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 8 | 10.10 | 0.5 | \$934,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Spring Street/ Kottinger Drive/ Concord Street | Main Street | Hearst Drive | Bicycle | - | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | 3 | 2 | 1 | 1 | 1 8 | 8.50 | 1.6 | \$572,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Neal Street | Main Street | Mirador Drive | Bicycle | - | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | 3 | 2 | 1 | 1 | 1 8 | 8.50 | 0.7 | \$250,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Valley Avenue | Santa Rita Road | Stanley Boulevard | Bicycle Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | - | Close bicycle lane gaps | 2 | 2 | 4 | 2 | 2 12 | 8.50 | 1.1 | \$235,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Sports Park Drive | Parkside Drive | Omega Circle | to School, Safe Routes to Transit | Consider bicycle boulevard on Parkside Drive or two-way separated bikeway on Sports Park Drive | | 3 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 0 7 | 10.50 | 0.9 | \$322,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Dublin Canyon Road | Pleasanton Marriot Driveway | Canyon Meadow Circle | Bicycle | - | Improve/widen shoulder where necessary. Stripe buffered bike lanes | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 1.0 | \$213,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Martin Avenue | At Amaral Park | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Install wayfinding between Martin Avenue Path, Amaral Park, Mohr Elementary School, and Arroyo Mocho Trail | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.10 | 0.1 | \$8,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Guzman Parkway | Amaral Park/Dennis Drive | Arroyo Mocho Trail /Stoneridge Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route e to School | Install separated bikeways between Amaral Park/Dennis Drive and Stoneridge Drive/Arroyo Mocho Trail; | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 3 10 | 10.10 | 0.1 | \$46,000 | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | I-580 | Castlewood Drive | Bicycle | Prepare bikeway feasibility study focused on providing continuous, protected bikeways. Coordinate with County to address portions outside of Pleasanton. | Separated bikeways | 4 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 4 17 | 13.00 | 4.9 | \$12,907,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Reduce curb radii at Valley. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 3 13 | 9.60 | | \$18,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Mohr Avenue | Harvest Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment; Install wayfinding to destinations and routes s such as Downtown, Alameda Drive/Northway Road bicycle boulevard, BART, Arroyo Mocho, and Iron Horse Trail. | - | 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 3 13 | 9.60 | 0.9 | \$322,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Canary Drive | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Consider traffic circle at Canary Drive. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Harvest Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Evaluate need to modify traffic control, as none exists today. Evaluate traffic circle and addition of yield/stop control to facilitate bicyclist turning movements between Greenwood and Harvest Roads. If traffic control is is added, evaluate converting the all-way stop at Ridgewood Road to side-street stop only to reduce the need for bikes to stop on the bicycle boulevard. | | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Bicycle boulevard treatment OR remove existing on-street parking and stripe s buffered bicycle lanes (to Kamp Drive); install median refuge at IHT Crossing. | | | | | | | | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Biovele Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Kolln Street | Iron Horse Trail | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Complete with Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard. s Reduce crossing distances of school crosswalks at Alameda Drive through curb subsciences and softward such soft | | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$62,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Greenwood Road | Arrovo Del Valle Trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | est Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | 2 | 3 | | 2 | 3 10 | 9.60 | 0.3 | \$108,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Intersection with Del Valle Parkway | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Is Reduce crossing distances at Del Valle Parkway intersection with bulb-outs and median refuze | | 3 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 3 10 | 9.60 | 0.0 | \$121.000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Adams Way/Mirador Drive | Vinevard Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle | - | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 4 10 | 8.50 | 0.8 | \$286,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Hopyard Road | I-580 Ramps | W Las Positas Boulevard | Bicycle | - | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeways | 3 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 2 14 | 8.50 | 0.6 | \$254,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Sutter Gate Avenue Gate to Arroyo Mocho Trail | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Bicycle boulevard treatment; improve gate/access at Sutter Gate for bicyclists including those with trailers | - | 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 1 10 | 9.60 | 0.7 | \$261,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Mohr Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Consider installing traffic circle or all-way stop control at Mohr. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Harvest Circle | Intersection with Arroyo Del Valle Trail | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | is Install raised crosswalk across Harvest Circle aligning to daylight the trail and provide access | - | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 3 9 | 9.60 | | \$31,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Ross Gate Way/Laramie Gate Circle | Mohr Avenue | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment to Arroyo Mocho Trail connector entrance. Is Install wide trail curb ramp onto sidewalk at opening in wall with wayfinding signage | | 3 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 1 8 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$82,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Santa Rita Road | Kolln Street | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | es Stripe bicycle lanes between Santa Rita Road and Kolln Street. Complete with Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard. | | 2 | 2 | 1 | 2 | 0 7 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$88,000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with W Las Positas Boulevard | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Install crosswalks across W Last Positas Boulevard and modify signal to allow pedestrian crossing. Complete with Ithaca Way improvements. | - | 3 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 1 11 | 9.60 | | \$3,000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Willow Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | - | Reduce curb radius and remove acceleration lane. Install protected intersection at Owens Drive/Willow Road. | 2 | 3 | 4 | 1 | 0 10 | 9.60 | | \$65,000 | |

| | | TABLE C-4 PROPOSED | D NEAR-TERM AND LONG | -TERM PROJECTS BY P | RIORITIZATION SCORE - BICYCLE PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------|--|----------------------|--|---|---|---|-----------|---------|---------|------------------------------|-------------|---------------|-------------|
| roject Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connectio | ind Det | hand 55 | ten Fessibilit Sate Po | utes school | storphe score | 1400 E3 |
| | • | | • | | | • | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Close gaps in existing bicycle facility with bicycle lane or sharrows where dedicated spaces cannot be provided. Stripe bicycle lanes between Old Santa Rita Road and Stoneridge Drive and Valley Avenue and Francisco Street NB. Stripe sharrows centered on the travel lane or remove parking where there is not enough space for a bicycle lane between Sutter Gate Avenue and Mohr Avenue to Valley Avenue NB; . At intersections, transition bicycle lanes from curbside to between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the intersection. Install a bicycle boulevard on the Santa Rita Frontage Road between Francisco Street and Stanley Avenue; direct bicyclists traveling on Santa Rita Road north of Stanley Avenue and south of Francisco Street to use bicycle boulevard through wayfinding Install wayfinding encouraging use of sidewalk between the end of the Santa Rita Road frontage road near Jensen Street to Stanley Boulevard. Prepare complete streets study to provide continuous, protected bicycle facilities and pedestrian safety and comfort improvements, including parking inventory and utilization to understand where parking can be removed; closing the existing gap in the Iron Horse Trail in the most direct way; | 3 | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | improving the 1-580 interchange biking and walking improvements; improving nedestrian environment and crosswalks; and addressing safe routes to schoo | 3 | | | | | | | | |
| ta Rita Road | Santa Rita Road/Main Street | 1-580 | Del Valle Parkway | Bicycle | considerations. Coordinate with the Iron Horse Trail improvements project | Separated Bikeway; streetscape and crosswalk improvements | 4 | 3 | 4 | 3 | 3 17 | 13.90 |) 3.3 | \$1,396,000 |
| ennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail. | Owens Drive | Between Owens Court and Willow Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rout to Transit | 25 Mark crosswalk with signal or PHB | - | 1 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 0 10 | 9.60 | | \$148.000 |
| annial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | nouu | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rout | | | - | | | | 0 10 | 5100 | | ¢1 10,000 |
| RT | Owens Drive | Intersection with Hacienda Drive | | to Transit Bicycle Redestrian Safe Rout | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 9.60 | | \$25,000 |
| ART | Ithaca Way | Owens Drive | Iron Horse Trail | to Transit | Bicycle boulevard treatment, wayfinding to Iron Horse Trail | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | 0.1 | \$36,000 |
| tennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens Drive | Intersection with W Las Positas | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rout | Install cut through to provide access between Owens Drive/W Las Positas es Boulevard and the Iron Horse Trail. Complete with Ithaca Way improvements Coordinate with W. Las Positas Boulevard senarated bikway project | | 2 | 1 | 3 | 2 | 1 9 | 9 60 | | \$15,000 |
| ennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | boalerardy made may | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rout | esonamate with w. Las rositas bodievara separatea bikeway project | | 2 | | | | 1 3 | 5100 | | ¢10,000 |
| ART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Iron Horse Trail | | to Transit | Improve trail wayfinding and widen curb ramp Close bicycle lane gaps wherever feasible, which may include some segments of bicycle route with sharrows in the near-term. Include frontage road as a bicycle boulevard, and provide bits crossings to access both and of the | | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 09 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 |
| a Rita Road | Del Valle Parkway | 1-580 | | Bicycle | frontage road. | Install Separated Bikeway | 4 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 4 17 | 13.90 |) | \$369,000 |
| ey Boulevard | Stanley Boulevard | Valley Avenue | First Street | Bicycle | Separated bikeway and transition bicycle lanes from curbside to between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the intersection | | 3 | 3 | 4 | 3 | 0 13 | 12.00 | 0 0.6 | \$243,000 |
| | | | | | Install new bicycle ramp to sidewalk at the western Club Sport/Double Tree | | | | | | | | | |
| ennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Johnson Drivo | Contonnial Trail | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rout | es driveway, mark high visibility crosswalk to new ramp on west side of driveway | , | 4 | 1 | 1 | 2 | 0 ° | 0.60 | | \$10,000 |
| | Johnson Drive | Centenniai frai | | | | - | 4 | | | 2 | 0 8 | 5.00 | | \$19,000 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| eridge Drive | Stoneridge Drive | Foothill Road | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle | Medium-term improvement is to construct a protected intersection | Separated bikeways with raised islands | 4 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 1 12 | 12.00 |) 3.1 | \$760,000 |
| | | | | Bicvcle. Pedestrian. Safe Rout | Enhance or modify slip lane , stripe bicycle lane and right-turn pocket on es southbound approach: continue northbound Bicycle lane to the intersection: | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Intersection with Bernal Avenue/Firs | st | to Transit, Safe Routes to | stripe bicycle boxes and/or two stage left turns to support bicycle turning | | | | | | | | | |
| Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Street | | School | movement | Separated bikeway on northbound approach | 2 | 2 | 0 | 3 | 4 11 | 9.30 | 0.10 | \$61,000 |
| | | | - ··· | | - <i>m</i> - 111 - 1 | | | | | | | | | 4444 |
| Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Sycamore Road | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Safe Routes to Transi | Buffered bicycle lanes | Separated bikeways | 3 | 2 | 1 | 3 | 0 9 | 9.30 | 0.9 | \$221,000 |
| Poulauard | Sunal Paulauard | Castlewood Drive | Supervise Dand | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rout | Close gap with buffered Class II Bicycle Lanes; restripe existing bicycle lanes as buffered bicycle lanes; transition bicycle lane from curbside to between es through and right lane no further than 150' back from the NB and SB On- | Install sidewalk/path on the north and south sides of Sunol Boulevard for us by bicyclists and stripe high-visibility crosswalks across all on- ramps. Convert buffered bicycle lanes to separated bikeways with a raised islands through interchange. Remove both high-speed slip lanes westbound and bring right-turns into the intersection. Coordinate with recommendations of I-580/I-680 Improvements Coachility Study. | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 | 0.20 | 0.6 | ¢147.000 |
| n boulevalu | Sunor Dullevalu | Castlewood DITVE | Sycamore Road | | namps | | 3 | ۷ | | 3 | 0 8 | 9.30 | 0.0 | ş147,000 |
| untown Access Vision Project- | First Street | Vinevard Avenue | Remal Avenue | Riguela Rodostrian | | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeway through lane | 2 | 2 | А | n | A 44 | 0 50 | 0.0 | 6330.000 |
| vittown Access Vision Projects | First Street | Vineyard Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | reduction, conversion of two way left turn lane, or parking removal | 3 | 3 | 4 | 2 | 4 16 | 8.50 | 0.8 | \$338,000 |

| | | TABLE C-4 PROPOSEI | D NEAR-TERM AND LONG-1 | FERM PROJECTS BY PI | RIORITIZATION SCORE - BICYCLE PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------------------------|---|---|--|---|---|---|---|----------|----------|--------|-----------------|------------|------------|------------------|--------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | / | connecti | with Der | nand 5 | hery Fessibilit | A sto nool | e oinscore | INIE258 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | 50 | Pros | GIOUT | • | Estime |
| | | | | | | In coordination with any future major redevelopment of the Walmart Neighborhood Market shopping center site at the southeast corner of West Las Positas and Santa Rita Road, provide a multi-use trail | | | | / | / | | | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail - Fairlands connector | W. Las Positas | Arroyo Mocho trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | trail. Consider new bicycle/pedestrian bridge for this connection. | 2 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 2 8 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$369,0 |)00 |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail Continuation | Stoneridge Drive | El Charro Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s Continue paving of Arroyo Mocho Trail to El Charro Road | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 0.6 | \$1,049,0 | 000 |
| | | | | | Install 10' paved path on south bank with compacted soil / decomposed | | | | | | | | | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail | Hopyard Road | City Limit near Busch Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian | to future trails to the east in Livermore. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 7 | 8.50 | 2.8 | \$6,080,0 | 000 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s | North bank: 10' paved bikeway, Compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use, Provides connection Tennis & Community Park and Pleasanton Sports & Recreation Park; Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from access | | | | | | | | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Trail Pleasanton Canal Trail via Pleasanton Sports | Arroyo de la Laguna | Hopyard Road | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | - s Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from Arroyo Mocho Trail, Pleasanton | points Haleakala Road, Tennis & Community Park, Hopyard Road | 3 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.7 | \$1,293,0 | 00 |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | & Recreation Park | Hopyard Road | Omega Circle | to School | Canal Trail, Woodthrush Park Neighborhood | - | 2 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 0 4 | 8.50 |) | \$84,0 | 100 |
| Iron Horse Trail | segment) | | | to Transit | s Install new trail crossing with ladder striping and PHB or signal | | 4 | 1 | 3 | 3 | 0 11 | 8.50 |) | \$148,0 | 000 |
| | | | Stanley Boulevard/Iron Horse Trail | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | Study the gap closure of the Iron Horse Trail between Busch Road and Stanle s Avenue, including finalizing preferred alignment, cost estimates, and | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use from Busch Road to Stanley Boulevard, including at Shadow Cliffs Regional Park Entrance. y Provide intersection / trail crossing improvements at Busch Road and Valley/Stanley intersection, and railroad crossing. Coordinate with | | | | | | | | | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Iron Horse Trail Extension | Busch Road/Iron Horse Trail Termin | us Path | to Transit | phasing/funding strategy | EBRPD and railroad. | 3 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 11 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$923,0 |)00 |
| Iron Horse Trail | Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station Area and Parking Lot | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | Implement the wayfinding, trail enhancements, and bicycle and pedestrian BART and Iron Horse Trail access improvements in the draft Iron Horse Trail s Feasibility Study. Requires coordination with East Bay Regional Park District, BART, and the City of Dublin | | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$1,000.0 | 000 |
| | i on the cot | | | | Prepare trail feasibility study to improve the connection between the two Iro | n . | | | | | 0 5 | 0.00 | 012 | <i>\$1,000,0</i> | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Intersections with the Iron Horse Trail and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | s Horse Trail segments and the Arroyo Mocho Trail, considering grade- separated crossing(s). | Provide continuous connections between the two segments of Iron Horse Trail and the Arroyo Mocho Trail | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 09 | 8.50 |) | \$250,0 |)00 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Community Park Trail | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Johnson Drive North / Interstate 580 | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | Install 10' paved path on south and east banks with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use, Intersection / trail crossing at Hopyard Road | 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 1 11 | 8.50 |) 1.0 | \$1,847,0 | 000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Tassajara Canal | Rosewood Drive / Interstate 580 | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo Mocho Trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Rosewood, Owens, Stoneridge, West Las Positas. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Study potential for crossing at I- 580 to connect with Tassajara Creek Trail (EBRPD, regional trail) in Dublin. (Constraints, multiple mid-block crossings, current adjacent land uses are commercial office / industrial parks which turn backs to canal with no access points.) | 3 | 3 | 22 | 2 | 0 10 |) 8.50 |) 1.3 | \$2,823,0 | 000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Chabot Canal | Owens Drive / Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo Mocho Trail | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | S | Install 10' paved path with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection Improvements at West Las Positas, Inglewood, Stoneridge, Gibraltar, Owens. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Provides access between Arroyo Mocho Trail and Dublin/Pleasanton BART, and Hart Middle School. Will require multiple mid-hock crossings | 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 | 0 9 | 8 50 |) 14 | \$3.040.0 | 000 |
| North South Access Vision Projects | chubot cului | DATI Station | | | | require maniple ma block crossings. | 5 | | | | 0 5 | 0.50 | , 1.4 | <i>\$3,040,0</i> | 00 |
| | | | | | Review ability to reduce auto travel lanes to provide minimum 6' bicycle | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue | Hopyard Road | Koll Center Parkway/ Road 12 | Bicycle | lanes; Stripe bicycle lanes continuously up to intersections | Separated bikeways | 3 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 |) 10.5 | 0 1.0 | \$213,0 | 00 |
| | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: | | | | | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Bernal Avenue. Install new access points at | | | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension | Arroyo Del Valle | Near south end of Laguna Creek Lane | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | Lylewood Drive, Bernal Avenue, and along Laguna Creek Lane. | 3 | 2 | 2 | 1 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 1.8 | \$3,909,0 | 100 |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue | Koll Center Parkway/ Road 12 | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle | Separated bikeway to 500' north of Koll Center; buffered bicycle lanes SB; stripe sharrows northbound | Install separated bikeways and separated bikeway intersection improvements | 3 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 |) 10.5 | 0 0.4 | \$245,(| 000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna | Arroyo Mocho | Arroyo Del Valle | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 |) 1.1 | \$2,389,0 | 000 |
| | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: | | | Disusta Dadast ' | | | 2 | 2 | ~ | | | 0 | | A | 200 |
| INORTH-SOUTH ACCESS VISION Projects | Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension | intersection with Arroyo Del Valle | | Bicycle, Pedestrian | • | study and install a new bicycle/pedestrian bridge. | 2 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 1 7 | 8.50 | v 0.1 | \$500,0 | 100 |

| | | TABLE C-4 PROPOSE | D NEAR-TERM AND LONG | -TERM PROJECTS BY PI | RIORITIZATION SCORE - BICYCLE PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|--|-----------------------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------------|--|--|---|----------|---------|---------|--------------------------|-------------|------------------|-------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connecti | ity Dem | and sat | en reasibility estimates | school Grou | pine score miles | \$ |
| | | | | | Install Separated bikeway. Coordinate with intersection improvements at | | | | | / | | / / | | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Foothill Road | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | Willow Road | | 4 | 3 | 4 | 3 | 4 18 | 13.70 | 2.7 | \$7,007,000 |
| | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: | | | | Change bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards, 55" height. (Coordinate | | | | | | | | | 4 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Bridge Improvements | Alamo Canal Trail | Pleasanton Canal | Bicycle, Pedestrian | with Zone 7) | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8.50 | | \$44,000 |
| | | | | | Improve consistency of existing bicycle lane and shoulder striping between Santa Rita Road and Boardwalk Street. Provide bicycle boulevard treatment | | | | | | | | | 4 |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Santa Rita Road | North Pimlico Drive Intersection | Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools east of Boardwalk Street | - | 2 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 4 14 | 13.70 | 1./ | \$601,000 |
| | Les Positas / Arroyo de la Laguna Corridor: W. | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Point | Arrovo de la Laguna | W Las Positas | Bicycle Pedestrian | Access gate and nathway from north side of W. Las Positas Poad | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8 50 | 0.1 | \$115,000 |
| North South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val | Val Vista Community Park Trail & | ••• Las r Usitas | Dicycle, redestillan | Access Bace and pathway non north side of w. Las Positas Road. | Indate bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards. Coordinate with | 2 | 4 | 0 | 4 | 0 0 | 0.30 | 0.1 | JIIJ,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Vista Bridge Improvements | Arrovo de la Laguna | | Bicycle. Pedestrian | - | Zone 7. | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 5 | 8.50 | | \$44.000 |
| | | ., | | ., | | | - | - | - | - | | | | + · · / |
| | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val | | | | | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil / | | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Vista Community Park Trail | Arroyo de la Laguna | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.4 | \$739,000 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | | | | | | | | | |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | to Transit, Safe Routes to | | | | | | | | | | |
| owntown | Muirwood Avenue | Springdale Avenue | Eastwood Way | School | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 13 | 8.50 | 1.2 | \$430,000 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Conduct Feasibility Study of a grade-separated I-680 crossing connecting Val | | | | | | | | | |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 | | | to Transit, Safe Routes to | Vista Park and Muirwood Park. Complete in tandem with Arroyo de Laguna | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Overcrossing | Muirwood Drive | Denker Drive | School | Trail Feasibility Study | Install grade-separated I-680 crossing | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 8.50 | | \$150,000 |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Improve BART path and wayfinding to BART and the West Dublin/Pleasanton | | - | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 10 | 0.50 | | ** *** |
| Jowntown | Stoneridge Mall Road | Intersection with BART Driveway | | to Iransit | BART to Downtown bikeway | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 8.50 | | \$4,000 |
| | Footbill Road | Dublin Canvon Road | Stoperidge Drive | to Transit | Benair/renave asnhalt sidewalk/nath | | 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 0 9 | 8 50 | 0.5 | ¢883.000 |
| Jowntown | | Dubin Canyon Road | Stonendge Drive | Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Boute | Repair/repair aspiration succession aspiration aspirati | • | 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.30 | 0.3 | \$885,000 |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | to Transit Safe Routes to | extend median to provide a refuge wide enough for hicyclists at Stonedale | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Springdale Avenue | Stonedale Drive | Muirwood Drive | School | Drive/Springdale Avenue. | - | 3 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 2 9 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$237.000 |
| | | | | Disult Dedetries Cefe Deve | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. Install cut through between Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mall Road intersection and Stonedale Drive for bicyclists and | d | | | | | | | | |
| Vest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Stanadala Driva | Stoheridge Mail Road/Stoheridge | Springdalo Avonuo | to Transit | to Stonoridge Drive (Stonoridge Mall Read intersection | | 4 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 0 | 8 E0 | 0.2 | ć77.000 |
| /est Dublin/Pleasanton_BART to | Stonedale Drive | Intersection with Stoneridge Mall | Springuale Avenue | Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Boute | | • | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.30 | 0.2 | \$77,000 |
| lowntown | Stoneridge Drive | Drive | | to Transit | Review ability to install east leg marked crosswalk at signal | | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | | \$4,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Connect Meadowlark Park/Minton Court connection with Centennial Trail and Arroyo Valley Trail via I-680 grade separation. Complete in tandem with Val | d Shared-use path with overcrossing of Arroyo de la Laguna to connect | | | | | | | | \$ 1,000 |
| Downtown | Connection over Arroyo de Laguna | End of Minton Court | Meadowlark Park Path | Routes to School | Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Crossing Feasibility Study | Bicycle boulevards | 4 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 7 | 8.50 | 0.19 | \$411,000 |
| /est Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Extend existing bicycle lanes to intersection with Bernal Avenue. Mark | | | | | | | | | |
| owntown | W Lagoon Road | Bernal Avenue | Marilyn Kane Trail Head | Routes to School | sharrows through Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail Head parking lot. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$21,000 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| vest Jublin/Pleasanton BART to | Arroyo de Laguna/Centennial Trail | Contonnial Trail | Remail Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Connect Centennial Trail to Meadowlark Park/Minton Court bicycle | Path connecting Multiwood Drive and Feetbill Knolls Drive Dath | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 6 | 8 50 | | ¢60.000 |
| UWIIIUWN | Connection | Centenniai Traii | bernal Avenue | Ricycle Redestrian Safe | boulevaru/patns. | Paul connecting inuirwood Drive and Foothill Knolls Drive Path | 3 | 2 | U | 1 | υb | 8.50 | | 200,000 |
| | Meadowlark Drive | Minton Court | Bernal Avenue | Routes to School | Install bicycle boulevard treatment | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8 50 | 0.4 | \$143.000 |
| Jowntown | INEGGOWING N DI IVE | Winton Court | bernar Avenue | הסמנפי נס סנווסטו | | - | 2 | 2 | U | 4 | 0 0 | 0.30 | 0.4 | \$145,000 |
| Nest Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Trail Feasibility Study and/or coordination with Alameda County and property | , | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | County Parcel Trail Connection | Muirwood Drive | Meadowlark Drive | Routes to School | owner | Shared-use path to connect Bicycle boulevard treatments | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 06 | 8.50 | 0.28 | \$608,000 |

| | TABLE C-5 PROPOSE | D NEAR-TERM AND LONG- | TERM PROJECTS BY PRIO | RITIZATION SCORE - PE | DESTRIAN PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|-----------------------|---|---|---|----------|----------|----------|-----------------------|--------------------|---------------------|------------------------|----------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | CON | ectivity | Jenand | Satery Feasibility | Project Score | stouping score with | ense | E-Inneed Costs |
| | | | | | | Peolign switching path on east side of Main Street and couth side of the | | / | <u> </u> | | | | / | / |
| | | South end of Santa Rita frontage | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s | railroad. Add bike/pedestrian crossing gate at the railroad crossing | | | | | | | | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road/Main Street | Road | Stanley Boulevard | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Boute | - | from Santa Rita frontage road southbound. | 2 3 | 3 | 3 | 4 1 | 5 13.90 | 0.1 | \$188,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road | Boulevard | | to School | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | 2 2 | 3 | 3 | 3 1 | 3 13.90 |) | \$4,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Santa Rita Road | Alisal Elementary | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Provide crosswalk, bicycle rack, accessibility, and pathway improvements near Santa Rita Road frontage road and Nevis Street | - | 1 2 | 3 | 3 | 4 1 | 3 1390 |) | \$283.000 | |
| | | Alisa Elementary | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | s | - | 1 2 | | 5 | 4 1 | <u> </u> | , | \$285,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Francisco Street | | | to School Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | Enhance existing crosswalk with PHB or signal s Enhance or modify slip lanes to improved pedestrian safety and support | - | 1 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 1 | 1 13.90 |) | \$144,000 | |
| Santa Rita Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | | to School | bicyclists turning onto/off of Santa Rita Road. | - | 2 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 1 | 1 13.90 |) | \$25,000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Montpelier Court | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Install new marked crosswalk with median refuge and curb extensions | | 2 3 | 2 | 3 | 4 1 | 4 13.70 |) | \$124.000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Fairlands Drive | | Pedestrian | Enhance existing crosswalk with high-visibility striping | | 2 3 | 2 | 3 | 3 1 | 3 13.70 |) | \$52,000 | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Hopvard Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Modify or enhance slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for bicyclists turning between W. Las Positas and Hopvard Road | | 2 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 1 | 2 13.70 |) | \$25.000 | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | S | | | | | | | • | | |
| West Las Positas Boulevard | W. Las Positas Boulevard | Intersection with Santa Rita Road | | to School | Enhance or modify slip lanes Crossings, bike rack, and access improvements on Highland Oaks Drive and | - | 2 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 1 | 1 13.70 |) | \$25,000 | |
| | | Lydiksen Elementary School Safe | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Driftwood Way. Coordinate with Muirwood Drive and West Las Positas | | | | | | | | | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Routes to School Projects | | School, Bicycle Pedestrian. Safe Routes to | Boulevard Improvements | - | 2 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 1 | 2 13.00 |) | \$99,000 | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Intersection with Oak Creek Drive | | School | Enhance existing crosswalk with ladder striping and RRFB | - | 2 3 | 0 | 3 | 4 1 | 2 13.00 |) | \$155,000 | |
| Foothill Road Complete Streets | Foothill Road | Intersection with Highland Oaks Driv | e | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Assess demand to enhance existing crosswalk with ladder striping and PHB per Appendix A Crosswalk Policy. | - | 2 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 1 | 1 13.00 |) | \$151,000 | |
| I-580 and I-680 Overcrossing | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s | | | | | | | | | |
| Improvements Bernal Avenue | All I-580 and I-680 Overcrossings Bernal Avenue | - Intersection with Main Street | | to Transit Pedestrian | Prepare bicycle and pedestrian improvements feasibility study Install traffic signal | Implement Feasibility Study recommendations | 2 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 1 | 3 13.00 3 12.00 |) | \$150,000 \$450,000 | |
| Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Kottinger Drive | | Pedestrian | Enhance or modify slip lanes | - | 2 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 1 | 2 12.00 |) | \$25,000 | |
| Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Community Park Path | | Bicycle, Pedestrian | connection | - | 2 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 1 | 1 12.00 |) | \$194,000 | |
| Stanley Boulevard | Valley Avenue/Bernal Avenue | Intersection with Stanley Boulevard | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | markings; enhance or modify slip lane; install upgrades to allow for improved bicycle/pedestrian circulation; stripe crosswalks as trail crossings and stripe green bicycle lanes on approaches and through the intersection; Install two s stage bicycle turn boxes and install cyclist detection from sidewalk/paths • Medium-term improvement is to construct a protected intersection | Close 200' sidewalk gap on east side of Valley Avenue and install east crosswalk at Valley Avenue/Stanley Boulevard; Remove NB slip lane or install upgrades to allow for improved bike/pedestrian circulation; Construct a protected intersection and widen underpass to provide protected bike lanes on Valley Avenue | 2 2 | 4 | 3 | 0 1 | 1 12.00 |) | \$154,000 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Honvard Road | W Las Positas Boulevard | Black Avenue | Bicycle Pedestrian | Convert existing hicycle lanes to senarated hikeways | Enhance uncontrolled crosswalks across Willow with high visibility striping and median refuges | 4 3 | 4 | 2 | 3 1 | 6 11.70 | 11 | \$465.000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Поруата Коас | W Las Positas Doulevalu | black Avenue | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | convert existing bicycle lanes to separated bikeways | | + J | 4 | 2 | 5 1 | <u> </u> | / 1.1 | \$405,000 | |
| Downtown Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Willow Road | Intersection with Gibraltar Drive | | School Bicycle Pedestrian Safe | Reduce curb radius Reduce curb radii and install improvements to support bicyclists turning | - | 2 2 | 2 | 2 | 4 1 | 2 11.70 |) | \$27,000 | |
| Downtown | Willow Road | Boulevard | | Routes to School | onto/off-of Willow | - | 2 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 1 | 2 11.70 |) | \$27,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Pedestrian Safe Routes to | Mark high-visibility crosswalk with median refuge and utilize Appendix A Crosswalk Policy to determine if volumes warrant RREBs. Provide cut through | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Hansen Drive | | School | to Hopyard Road frontage on the east side. | - | 2 2 | 4 | 3 | 0 1 | 1 11.70 |) | \$73,000 | |
| | | | | | Enhance or modify slip lanes at stop controlled crosswalks, high visibility striping installing median refuges transition cycle track from curbside to | | | | | | | | | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Black Avenue | | Routes to School | intersection. | - | 2 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 1 | 1 11.70 |) | \$45,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | Intersection with Del Valle | | | Modify westbound approach. Enhance or modify slip lane; modify intersection to allow right turns at the intersection. Install curb extension on southeast corner of intersection. Rebuild northeast corner and refuge on east crosswalk to improve accessibility for pedestrians and bicyclists. Improve | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Parkway/Division Street | | Pedestrian | connection to the Arroyo Valle Trail | - | 2 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 1 | 1 11.70 |) | \$94,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Routes to School | Modify or enhance slip lanes or install upgrades to allow for improved bike/pedestrian circulation. Improve connection to the Sports Park, Tennis Park, and the Pleasanton Canal Trail, including wayfinding. | - | 2 3 | 3 | 3 | 0 1 | 1 11.70 |) | \$113,000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Willow Road | Intersection with Inglewood Drive | | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School | Install new high-visibility crosswalk with DDER or DHR and median refuge | | 2 2 | 0 | n | 2 1 | 0 11.70 | | \$58.000 | |
| Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | intersection with highewood DHVe | | 501001 | instan new ingrevisionity crosswark with thre of end and medial refuge | - | 2 3 | 0 | 2 | 5 1 | , 11.70 | , | 000,000 | |
| Downtown | Hopyard Road | Intersection with Golden Road | | Pedestrian Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Pourts | Restripe existing crosswalk as high visibility crosswalk | - | 2 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 9 | 11.70 |) | \$4,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Old Bernal Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bernal Court | to Transit | Peters Avenue bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 4 3 | 3 | 2 | 4 1 | 6 11.30 | 0.1 | \$198,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Southern Pacific Railroad/Alameda County Transportation Corridor | Castlewood Drive | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Trail Feasibility Study to convert old railroad right-of-way to shared-use path | Install 10' concrete pedestrian/bike path with 6' decomposed granite multi-use path. Install intersection and trail crossing improvements. Provides route avoiding the Sunol Boulevard crossing of I-680. | 4 3 | 3 | 2 | 3 1 | 5 11.30 |) 1.0 | \$1,847,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Old Bernal Avenue | Bernal Court | Main Street | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Stripe sharrows and sign as bicycle route. Compete with Peters Avenue bicycle boulevard treatment | - | 2 2 | 2 | 2 | Δ 1 | 3 11 20 | 0.4 | \$59.000 | |
| 20town Access | Sid Demai Avenue | Schlar Court | mani Jucci | to manate | Source a callent. | | <u> </u> | 2 | 3 | 4 I | , 11.30 | . 0.4 | <i>\$33,</i> 000 | |

| | TABLE C-5 PROPOSED | D NEAR-TERM AND LONG-1 | TERM PROJECTS BY PRIORI | TIZATION SCORE - PE | DESTRIAN PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|--|--------------------------------------|--|---|--|---|-----------|--------|----------|-------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------|-----------|--------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connectiv | by Den | and sate | H Festivity | stonol school ofersore Group | Ins score will set | | Innaed Costs |
| Downtown Access | Angela Street | Pleasanton Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Bicycle boulevard treatment | | 3 | 3 | 2 | 3 | 1 12 | 11.30 | 1.2 | \$430,000 | |
| | Annala Church | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Evaluate traffic circle or all-way stop control to facilitate bicycle turning | | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | | 11 20 | | 632,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Angela Street | Intersection with Pleasanton Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete in tandem with Peters Avenue | - | Z | 3 | 2 | | 1 11 | 11.50 | | \$22,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | St. John Street | Old Bernal Avenue | to Transit Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | crosswalk improvements. s Narrow intersection with curb extension/pocket park, mark high-visibility | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 11 | 11.30 | 0.4 | \$143,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with Old Bernal Avenue | | to Transit Riguela, Reductrian, Safa Routa | crosswalks | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 11.30 | | \$119,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with St. Marys Street | | to Transit | Mark new high-visibility crosswalk and install curb extensions | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 11.30 | | \$237,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with W Angela Street | | to Transit | s Mark new high-visibility crosswalk | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 2 10 | 11.30 | | \$4,000 | |
| Downtown Access | Peters Avenue | Intersection with Rose Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | s Mark new high-visibility crosswalk | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 1 9 | 11.30 | | \$14,000 | |
| Downtown Access | St John Street | | Main Street | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Bicycle boulevard treatment. Complete in tandem with Peters Avenue bicycle | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 | 3 | 0 7 | 11 30 | 0.1 | \$36,000 | |
| Downtown Access | St John Street | | Main Street | | Study feasibility of paving trail and providing connections to the biking and | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | | 0 / | 11.50 | 0.1 | \$30,000 | |
| Arroyo de Laguna and Iron Horse Trails Connection Feasibility Study | Arroyo Del Valle Trail | Division Street/Arroyo Del Valle Parkway Intersection | Shadow Cliffs Regional Park | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | s walking networks. Study opportunity for bridge between Arroyo Del Valle Parkway and the Downtown roadway network | Implement improvements and crossing identified in Study | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 2 11 | 11.00 | | \$0 | |
| | | | | | Restripe existing NB bicycle lane as buffered bicycle lane and close gaps: (1) a signals, bring bicycle lane up to intersection, and (2) at roundabouts, continue striping to within 50' of intersection and install bicycle ramps up to sidewalk; stripe sharrows through roundabouts; mark all crosswalk at roundabouts. | t 2 | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Sunol Boulevard | Bicycle, Pedestrian | Close bicycle lane gaps westbound between Case and Sunol. | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeways | 4 | 2 | 4 | 2 | 3 15 | 10.50 | 1.2 | \$294,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | to School Project | Northway Road | | to School | Elementary School. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 3 | 4 13 | 10.50 | | \$196,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Alameda Drive | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Install wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools and Kolln Street bicycle boulevard and widen path | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | 0.3 | \$169,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Black Avenue | Amador Valley Community Park | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | - | Widen sidewalk on northside of Black Avenue to create Class I Path next to Amador Valley Community Park | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 10.50 | | \$211,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Black Avenue | Intersection with Loganberry Way | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Is Evaluate installation of new marked crosswalk on east side of intersection per the Appendix A Crosswalk Policy. | - - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 10.50 | | \$13.000 | |
| | Northway Road (at both West and East | Intersection with Valley Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Enhance or modify slip lanes for pedestrian and bicycle boulevard safety at | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | | ¢25.000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Walnut Grove Park Path/Harvest Park Middl | le | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. Complete in tandem with Alameda | - | 2 | J | 0 | | 4 12 | 10.50 | | , | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | School Path | Northway Road | Greenwood Road | to School | Drive and Northway Road. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10.50 | 0.4 | \$34,000 | |
| | Canary Drive - Raven Road - Crestline Road - Woodthrush Road - Skylark Way - Existing | | | Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Route | м с | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Path on south side of the Sports Park | Greenwood Road | Hopyard Road | to School | Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 11 | 10.50 | 1.0 | \$358,000 | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Complete in tandem with Alameda Drive and Walnut Grove Park/Harvest Parl | k | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Northway Road | Valley Avenue | Walnut Grove Park Path | to School | improvements. Bicycle boulevard treatment with wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 3 11 | 10.50 | 0.1 | \$36,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Alameda Drive | Harvest Park Middle School Path/Greenwood Road | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | es Complete in tandem with Northway Road and Walnut Grove Park/Harvest Park improvements. | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.50 | 0.2 | \$72.000 | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Part of Central Pleasanton Bicycle Boulevard project: improve connection to between Harvest Park Path and Alameda Drive; reduce crossing distances of | | | - | - | | | | - | . , | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Alameda Drive | Intersection with Greenwood Road | | to School | school crosswalks through curb extensions and reduced curb radii | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.50 | | \$120,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | Intersection at Francisco Street/Santa Rita Road | а | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Is Widen sidewalk on west side of Santa Rita Road to improve connection between the Park and the proposed PHB/signal at Francisco Street. | | 2 | 3 | 1 | 1 | 29 | 10.50 | | \$20,000 | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School, Safe Routes to | s Install bicycle/pedestrian cut through and wayfinding at end of Parkside Drive | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Omega Circle | Parkside Drive | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | Transit | connecting to the Sports Park and at the path spur to the Arroyo Mocho Trail. | - | 4 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 0 8 | 10.50 | | \$28,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Valley Avenue | Intersection with Busch Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | Install wayfinding and utilize the existing sidewalks on Valley Avenue to direct s north/westbound bicyclists to Quarry Lane intersection and south/eastbound bicyclists to Boulder Street. | Install missing crosswalks across Valley Avenue. Add crosswalk(s) across Valley Avenue at existing signal when Iron Horse Trail extension. | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 0 8 | 10.50 | | \$39,000 | |
| | Arroyo Mocho Trail Access Improvements | | | | Work with community and EBRPD to provide access at Marilyn Court | | | | | | | | | | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | from Parkside Drive | Hopyard Road | Omega Circle | Pedestrian Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Anastacia Court, and/or Glenda Court | - | 0 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 37 | 10.50 | | \$15,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Sports Park Drive | Parkside Drive | Omega Circle | to School, Safe Routes to Transit | Consider bicycle boulevard on Parkside Drive or two-way separated bikeway on Sports Park Drive | | 3 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 07 | 10.50 | 0.9 | \$322,000 | |
| East Side Pievele Pouleverde | Donnis Drivo | Interraction with Corrige Court | ~ | Pedestrian, Safe Routes to | Postring ovirting crosswalk as high vicibility | | 3 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 4 13 | 10.10 | - | \$4.000 | |
| | | mitersection with Carrisa Court | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Install wayfinding between Martin Avenue Path, Amaral Park, Mohr | - | 3 | 3 | U | | 4 12 | 10.10 | | \$4,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Martin Avenue | At Amaral Park | | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Elementary School, and Arroyo Mocho Trail Is Install separated bikeways between Amaral Park/Dennis Drive and Stoneridge | - | 2 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 10.10 | 0.1 | \$8,000 | |
| East Side Bicycle Boulevards | Guzman Parkway | Amaral Park/Dennis Drive | Arroyo Mocho Trail /Stoneridge Drive | e to School | Drive/Arroyo Mocho Trail; | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 3 10 | 10.10 | 0.1 | \$46,000 | |

| | TABLE C-5 PROPOSED | NEAR-TERM AND LONG- | TERM PROJECTS BY PRIOF | RITIZATION SCORE - PE | DESTRIAN PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|--|-------------------------------|---|---|--|----------|------------|--|-------|----------------------------|-----------|------------------|-----------------|-------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | Cor | nectivity | Demand | Salet | Feasibility Feasibility | esto nool | uping score with | s ^{ge} | mared costs |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | ero Gro | | | ESUL |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Greenwood Pood | Interception with Valley Avenue | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | s Reduce curb radii at Valley. Complete with Greenwood bicycle boulevard | // | 2 3 | , | · <u>·</u> | 2 | 2 12 | 0.60 | / | ¢19.000 | ĺ |
| | | Intersection with valley Avenue | | | Bicycle boulevard treatment; Install wayfinding to destinations and routes | - | 5 | | <u>-</u> | 2 | 3 13 | 9.00 | | \$18,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Mohr Avenue | Harvest Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | es such as Downtown, Alameda Drive/Northway Road bicycle boulevard, BART, Arrovo Mocho. and Iron Horse Trail. | <u>.</u> | 3 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 3 13 | 9.60 | 0.9 | \$322,000 |) |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Consider traffic circle at Canary Drive. Complete with Greenwood bicycle | | 2 | | | | 2 11 | 0.00 | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Koad | Intersection with Canary Drive | | to School | boulevard treatment. | - | 3 3 | 3 | <u> </u> | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | | \$22,00U | |
| | | | | | Evaluate need to modify traffic control, as none exists today. Evaluate traffic circle and addition of yield/stop control to facilitate bicyclist turning | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | movements between Greenwood and Harvest Roads. If traffic control is | | | | | | | | | | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Harvest Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | es added, evaluate converting the all-way stop at Ridgewood Road to side-street stop only to reduce the need for bikes to stop on the bicycle boulevard. | | 3 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 |) |
| | | | | | Bicycle houlevard treatment OR remove existing on-street parking and strine | | | | | | | | | | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es buffered bicycle lanes (to Kamp Drive); install median refuge at IHT Crossing. | | | | | | | | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Mohr Avenue | Kolln Street | Iron Horse Trail | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Complete with Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard. es Reduce crossing distances of school crosswalks at Alameda Drive through curt | - | 3 3 | 3 |) | 2 | 3 11 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$62,000 | - |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Alameda Drive | | to School | extensions and reduced curb radii | - | 2 3 | 3 | <u>J</u> | 2 | 3 10 | 9.60 | | \$168,000 | 4 |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Greenwood Road | Arroyo Del Valle Trail | to School | treatment. | - | 2 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 10 | 9.60 | 0.3 | \$107,000 | (|
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Harvest Circle and Harvest Road | Intersection with Del Valle Parkway | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | Reduce crossing distances at Del Valle Parkway intersection with bulb-outs and median refuge | <u>.</u> | 3 3 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 3 10 | 9.60 | | \$121.000 | , |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | Sutter Gate Avenue Gate to Arroyo | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Bicycle boulevard treatment; improve gate/access at Sutter Gate for bicyclists | | | | | | | 0.00 | | ¢264.000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Monr Avenue | | Santa Rita Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Consider installing traffic circle or all-way stop control at Mohr. Complete | - | 3 3 | 3 | <u> </u> | 2 | 1 10 | 9.60 | 0.7 | \$261,000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arrovo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Greenwood Road | Intersection with Mohr Avenue | | to School Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Route | with Greenwood bicycle boulevard treatment. | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | 3 3 | 3 |) | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | | \$22,000 | - |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Harvest Circle | Trail | | to School | provide access | - | 3 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 39 | 9.60 | | \$31,000 | , |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown Bicycle Boulevards | Sutter Gate Avenue and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | Pedestrian | Improve trail Wayfinding (Arroyo Mocho and Iron Horse Trails) and widen curb ramp | - | 3 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 |) |
| Arrovo Mocho Trail to Downtown | | | | Ricycle Redectrian Safe Route | Bicycle boulevard treatment to Arroyo Mocho Trail connector entrance. | | | | | | | | | | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Ross Gate Way/Laramie Gate Circle | Mohr Avenue | Arroyo Mocho Trail Connection | to School | signage | | 3 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 1 8 | 9.60 | 0.2 | \$82,000 | , |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Mohr Avenue | Santa Rita Road | Kollo Street | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Stripe bicycle lanes between Santa Rita Road and Kolln Street. Complete with | | , | , | 1 | 2 | 0 7 | 9 60 | 0.2 | \$88,000 | 1 |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Woll Avenue | Santa Nita Noau | Kom Street | | Improve trail Wayfinding (Arroyo Mocho and Iron Horse Trails) and widen | - | 2 4 | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | 2 | | 5.00 | 0.2 | 988,000 | • |
| Bicycle Boulevards Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Laramie Gate Circle and Iron Horse Trail | | | Pedestrian | curb ramp Restripe existing trail crossing as high-visibility trail crossing. Complete with | Connect to Iron Horse Trail | 2 2 | 2 |) | 2 | 0 6 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 | - |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Mohr Avenue | Intersection with Iron Horse Trail | | Pedestrian | Mohr Avenue bicycle boulevard. | | 2 : | 1 | 1 | 2 | 0 6 | 9.60 | | \$4,000 | 4 |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | Intersection with W Las Positas | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Install crosswalks across W Last Positas Boulevard and modify signal to allow | | | | | | | | | | |
| via BART Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens Drive | Boulevard | | to Transit Bicycle Pedestrian Safe Route | pedestrian crossing. Complete with Ithaca Way improvements. | - Reduce curb radius and remove acceleration lane Install protected | 3 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 1 11 | 9.60 | | \$3,000 | - |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Willow Road | | to Transit | - | intersection at Owens Drive/Willow Road. | 2 3 | 3 | 4 | 1 | 0 10 | 9.60 | | \$65,000 |) |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail via BART | Owens Drive | Between Owens Court and Willow Road | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | Nark crosswalk with signal or PHB | - | 1 3 | 3 . | 4 | 2 | 0 10 | 9.60 | | \$148,000 |) |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens Drive | Intersection with Hacienda Drive | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Enhance or modify slip lanes | _ | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 9 60 | | \$25.000 | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | Owens brive | Intersection with hacienda Drive | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | - | 2 . | , . | <u>, </u> | 2 | | 5.00 | | 929,000 | |
| via BART | Ithaca Way | Owens Drive | Iron Horse Trail | to Transit | Bicycle boulevard treatment, wayfinding to Iron Horse Trail | - | 2 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | 0.1 | \$36,000 | - |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horro Trail | | Intersection with Willos Positos | | Ricycle Pedectrian Safa Pouto | Install cut through to provide access between Owens Drive/W Las Positas | | | | | | | | | | |
| via BART | Owens Drive | Boulevard/Ithaca Way | | to Transit | Coordinate with W. Las Positas Boulevard separated bikeway project | • | 2 | 1 | 3 | 2 | 1 9 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 |) |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail via BART | Owens Drive | Intersection with Iron Horse Trail | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit | Improve trail wayfinding and widen curb ramp | - | 2 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 9 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 | , |
| | | | | | Install now bioyole ramp to sidewalk at the wortern Club Sport/Double Trac | | | | | | | | | | |
| Centennial Trail to Iron Horse Trail | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es driveway, mark high visibility crosswalk to new ramp on west side of driveway | | | | | | | | | | |
| via BART | Johnson Drive | Centennial Trail | | to Transit | intersection; install wayfinding to Centennial trail Enhance or modify slip lane , stripe bicycle lane and right-turn pocket on | · · | 4 3 | 1 | 1 | 2 | 0 8 | 9.60 | | \$19,000 | - |
| | | Internetion with Devel Assess | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es southbound approach; continue northbound Bicycle lane to the intersection; | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Street | SL | School | stripe bicycle boxes and/or two stage left turns to support bicycle turning movement | Separated bikeway on northbound approach | 2 2 | 2 | 0 | 3 | 4 11 | 9.30 | 0.10 | \$61,000 | J |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Close gap with buffered Class II Bicycle Lanes; restripe existing bicycle lanes as buffered bicycle lanes; transition bicycle lane from curbside to between through and right lane no further than 150' back from the NB and SB On- | Install sidewalk/path on the north and south sides of Sunol Boulevard for us by bicyclists and stripe high-visibility crosswalks across all on- ramps. Convert buffered bicycle lanes to separated bikeways with raised islands through interchange. Remove both high-speed slip lanes westbound and bring right-turns into the intersection. Coordinate with recommendations of I-580/I-680 Improvements | | | | | | | | | |
| Sunol Boulevard | Sunol Boulevard | Castlewood Drive | Sycamore Road | to Transit | Ramps | Feasibility Study | 3 2 | 2 | <u>)</u> | 3 | 0 8 | 9.30 | 0.6 | \$147,000 |] |

| | TABLE C-5 PROPOSED | NEAR-TERM AND LONG- | TERM PROJECTS BY PRIOR | ITIZATION SCORE - PE | EDESTRIAN PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|---|--|--|----|-----------|----------|-----------------|-----------|-----------------|---------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | 50 | mectivity | Jemand e | aten Fessibilit | tesschool | pins score mies | se naved cost |
| | | | | | | | | | | / */ | Pr0. 610 | | - ESTIN |
| | | | 1 | | | Install buffered bicycle lanes or separated bikeway through lane | | | // | | | | |
| Downtown Access Vision Projects | First Street | Vineyard Avenue | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian | • | reduction, conversion of two way left turn lane, or parking removal | 3 | 3 4 | 2 | 4 16 | 8.50 | 0.8 | \$338,000 |
| | | | | | | In coordination with any future major redevelopment of the Walmart Neighborhood Market shopping center site at the southeast corner of West Las Positas and Santa Rita Road, provide a multi-use trail connecting from Enited Elementary School to the Argune Macha | | | | | | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail - Fairlands connector | W. Las Positas | Arroyo Mocho trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | trail. Consider new bicycle/pedestrian bridge for this connection. | 2 | 3 0 | 1 | 2 8 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$369,000 |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail Continuation | Stoneridge Drive | El Charro Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School | es Continue paving of Arroyo Mocho Trail to El Charro Road | - | 3 | 3 0 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 0.6 | \$1,049,000 |
| | | | | | Install 10' paved path on south bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use. Provides connection | 1 | | | | | | | 44 444 444 |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail | Hopyard Road | City Limit near Busch Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian | to future trails to the east in Livermore. | - | 2 | 2 0 | 1 | 2 7 | 8.50 | 2.8 | \$6,080,000 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es | North bank: 10' paved bikeway, Compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use, Provides connection Tennis & Community Park and Pleasanton Sports & Recreation Park; Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from access | | | | | | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Trail Pleasanton Canal Trail via Pleasanton Sports | Arroyo de la Laguna | Hopyard Road | to School Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | - es Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from Arroyo Mocho Trail, Pleasanton | points Haleakala Road, Tennis & Community Park, Hopyard Road | 3 | 2 0 | 0 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.7 | \$1,293,000 |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | & Recreation Park | Hopyard Road | Omega Circle | to School Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Bout | Canal Trail, Woodthrush Park Neighborhood | - | 2 | 1 0 | 1 | 0 4 | 8.50 | | \$84,000 |
| Iron Horse Trail | segment) | | | to Transit | Install new trail crossing with ladder striping and PHB or signal | - | 4 | 1 3 | 3 | 0 11 | 8.50 | | \$148,000 |
| | | | Stanley Boulevard/Iron Horse Trail | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | Study the gap closure of the Iron Horse Trail between Busch Road and Stanley es Avenue, including finalizing preferred alignment, cost estimates, and | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use from Busch Road to Stanley Boulevard, including at Shadow Cliffs Regional Park Entrance. y Provide intersection / trail crossing improvements at Busch Road and Valley/Stanley intersection, and railroad crossing. Coordinate with | | | | | | | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Iron Horse Trail Extension | Busch Road/Iron Horse Trail Termin | us Path | to Transit | phasing/funding strategy Implement the wavfinding, trail enhancements, and bicycle and pedestrian | EBRPD and railroad. | 3 | 3 3 | 2 | 0 11 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$923,000 |
| | Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station Area and | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | BART and Iron Horse Trail access improvements in the draft Iron Horse Trail es Feasibility Study. Requires coordination with East Bay Regional Park District, | | | | | | | | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Parking Lot | | | to Transit | BART, and the City of Dublin Prepare trail feasibility study to improve the connection between the two Iro | - n | 4 | 3 0 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$1,000,000 |
| Iron Horse Trail | Intersections with the Iron Horse Trail and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit | es Horse Trail segments and the Arroyo Mocho Trail, considering grade- separated crossing(s). | Provide continuous connections between the two segments of Iron Horse Trail and the Arroyo Mocho Trail | 2 | 2 3 | 2 | 09 | 8.50 | | \$250,000 |
| | | | | | | Install 10' paved path on south and east banks with compacted soil / | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Community Park Trail | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Johnson Drive North / Interstate 580 |) Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use, Intersection / trail crossing at Hopyard Road | 3 | 3 2 | 2 | 1 11 | 8.50 | 1.0 | \$1,847,000 |
| | | | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arrovo | | | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Rosewood, Owens, Stoneridge, West Las Positas. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Study potential for crossing at I- 580 to connect with Tassajara Creek Trail (EBRPD, regional trail) in Dublin. (Constraints, multiple mid-block crossings, current adjacent land uses are commercial office / industrial parks which turn backs to | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Tassajara Canal | Rosewood Drive / Interstate 580 | Mocho Trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | canal with no access points.) | 3 | 3 2 | 2 | 0 10 | 8.50 | 1.3 | \$2,823,000 |
| | | Owens Drive / Dublin/Pleasanton | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | es | Install 10' paved path with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection Improvements at West Las Positas, Inglewood, Stoneridge, Gibraltar, Owens. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Provides access between Arroyo Mocho Trail and Dublin/Pleasanton BART, and Hart Middle School. Will | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Chabot Canal | BART Station | Mocho Trail | to Transit | - | require multiple mid-block crossings. | 3 | 3 2 | 1 | 0 9 | 8.50 | 1.4 | \$3,040,000 |
| | Centennial/Arrovo de Laguna Corridor: | | | | | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Bernal Avenue. Install new access points at | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension | Arroyo Del Valle | Near south end of Laguna Creek Lan | e Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | Lylewood Drive, Bernal Avenue, and along Laguna Creek Lane. | 3 | 2 2 | 1 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 1.8 | \$3,909,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna | Arroyo Mocho | Arroyo Del Valle | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | 3 | 30 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 1.1 | \$2,389,000 |
| | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: | Intersection with Arroyo Del Valle | | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - Change bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards, 55" height. (Coordinate | Study and install a new bicycle/pedestrian bridge. | 2 | 3 0 | 1 | 1 7 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$500,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Bridge Improvements Centennial/Arrovo de Laguna Corridor W | Alamo Canal Trail | Pleasanton Canal | Bicycle, Pedestrian | with Zone 7) | - | 2 | 2 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8.50 | | \$44,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Las Positas / Arroyo de la Laguna Trail Acces | S Arrovo de la Laguna | W Las Positas | Bicycle Pedestrian | Access gate and nathway from north side of W. Las Dositas Boad | | 2 | 2 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8 50 | 0.1 | \$115.000 |
| north south necess vision ridjects | | | 203 1 031003 | Sicycle, i caestilali | Access Bace and partition north side of W. Las Positas Road. | - | 4 | ~ 0 | 2 | 5 0 | 0.00 | 0.1 | JII3,000 |

| | TABLE C-5 PROPOSED NEAR-TERM AND LONG-TERM PROJECTS BY PRIORITIZATION SCORE - PEDESTRIAN PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|---|-----------------------------------|----------------------------------|---|---|--|---|-----------|-----------|---------|--------------------------|----------------|------------------|-----------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connectiv | dity Dent | and 5at | en Fessibilit Gate Ro | Profest School | uping score will | 2 ¹⁶ |
| | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val | Val Vista Community Park Trail & | | | | Update bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards. Coordinate with | | | | | | | / | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Vista Bridge Improvements | Arroyo de la Laguna | | Bicycle, Pedestrian | | Zone 7. | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 5 | 8.50 | | \$44,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Community Park Trail | Arroyo de la Laguna | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian | - | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.4 | \$739,000 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | | | | | | | | | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | to Transit, Safe Routes to | | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Muirwood Avenue | Springdale Avenue | Eastwood Way | School | Provide bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 3 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 4 13 | 8.50 | 1.2 | \$430,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to Transit, Safe Routes to | es Conduct Feasibility Study of a grade-separated I-680 crossing connecting Val Vista Park and Muirwood Park. Complete in tandem with Arroyo de Laguna | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Overcrossing | Muirwood Drive | Denker Drive | School | Trail Feasibility Study | Install grade-separated I-680 crossing | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 8.50 | | \$150,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Improve BART path and wayfinding to BART and the West Dublin/Pleasanton | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Stoneridge Mall Road | Intersection with BART Driveway | | to Transit | BART to Downtown bikeway | - | 2 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 10 | 8.50 | | \$4,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BARI to | 5 1110 1 | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | | 2 | 2 | - | - | | 0.50 | 0.5 | ¢000.000 |
| Downtown | Foothill Road | Dublin Canyon Road | Stoneridge Drive | to Iransit | Repair/repave asphalt sidewalk/path | - | 2 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$883,000 |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Bicycle boulevard treatment. Install ennanced crosswalk with RRFB and | | | | | | | | | |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Caringdala Avanua | Stanadala Driva | Muinueed Drive | to Transit, Safe Routes to | Extend median to provide a reruge wide enough for Dicyclists at Stonedale | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 2 0 | 0 50 | 0.5 | \$227.00C |
| Downtown | Springuale Avenue | Stolledale Drive | Multwood Drive | SCHOOL | Drive/springuale Avenue. | • | 3 | | U | 2 | 2 9 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$257,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | Stoneridge Mall Road/Stoneridge | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. Install cut through between Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mall Road intersection and Stonedale Drive for bicyclists and es pedestrians. Stripe ladder crosswalk across Stonedale Drive to provide access | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Stonedale Drive | Drive Intersection | Springdale Avenue | to Transit | to Stoneridge Drive/Stoneridge Mall Road intersection. | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 09 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$77,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | Intersection with Stoneridge Mall | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Stoneridge Drive | Drive | | to Transit | Review ability to install east leg marked crosswalk at signal | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | | \$4,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Connect Meadowlark Park/Minton Court connection with Centennial Trail and Arroyo Valley Trail via I-680 grade separation. Complete in tandem with Val | Shared-use path with overcrossing of Arroyo de la Laguna to connect | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | Connection over Arroyo de Laguna | End of Minton Court | Meadowlark Park Path | Routes to School | Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Crossing Feasibility Study | Bicycle boulevards | 4 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 7 | 8.50 | 0.19 | \$411,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Extend existing bicycle lanes to intersection with Bernal Avenue. Mark | | | | | | | | | |
| Downtown | W Lagoon Road | Bernal Avenue | Marilyn Kane Trail Head | Routes to School | sharrows through Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail Head parking lot. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 06 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$21,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | Arroyo de Laguna/Centennial Trail | Contennial Trail | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Connect Centennial Trail to Meadowlark Park/Minton Court bicycle | Path connecting Mulawood Drive and Eoothill Kools Drive Path | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 6 | 8 50 | | \$60.00C |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | connection | centenilla Itali | Seria Avenue | Bicycle Pedestrian Safe | boaceara paris. | rath connecting with wood brive and roothin knois brive rath | J | | U | 1 | 0 0 | 0.50 | | 300,000 |
| Downtown | Meadowlark Drive | Minton Court | Bernal Avenue | Routes to School | Install bicycle boulevard treatment. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 06 | 8,50 | 0.4 | \$143 000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe | Trail Feasibility Study and/or coordination with Alameda County and property | | - | | Ŭ | - | 0 | 0.00 | 0.1 | <u></u> |
| Downtown | County Parcel Trail Connection | Muirwood Drive | Meadowlark Drive | Routes to School | owner | Shared-use path to connect Bicycle boulevard treatments | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.28 | \$608.000 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| | | TABLE C-6 PROPOSE | D NEAR-TERM AND LONG | -TERM PROJECTS BY I | PRIORITIZATION SCORE - TRAIL PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------------------------|---|--|--|--|--|---|---|----------|---------|---------|-------------------------|----------------|------------------|----------------------------------|------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | connecti | ity Den | and sat | Fessibility Sale Pou | Project School | uping score with | 2 ⁵⁸ 12 ⁵¹ | ated Costs |
| | | | | | I Study feasibility of paving trail and providing connections to the biking and | | / | / | / | / | / | _/ | / | | |
| Arroyo de Laguna and Iron Horse | | Division Street/Arroyo Del Valle | Charless Cliffe Designed Design | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es walking networks. Study opportunity for bridge between Arroyo Del Valle | | 4 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 2 11 | 11.00 | | ćo | |
| Trails Connection Feasibility Study | Arroyo Del Valle Trail Walnut Grove Elementary School Safe Route | Parkway Intersection In Harvest Road, Black Avenue. | Shadow Cliffs Regional Park | to School, Trail Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | Parkway and the Downtown roadway network as Improve accessibility, bike racks, pathways, and access around Walnut Grove | Implement improvements and crossing identified in Study | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 2 11 | 11.00 | | ŞŬ | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | to School Project | Northway Road | | to School, Trail | Elementary School. | - | 2 | 3 | 1 | 3 | 4 13 | 10.50 | | \$196,000 | |
| Vallov Avonuo Altornativos | Amador Valloy Community Park Path | Alamada Drivo | Santa Dita Poad | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Install wayfinding to trails, parks, and schools and Kolln Street bicycle | | 2 | 2 | 1 | 2 | 4 12 | 10 50 | 0.2 | \$160,000 | |
| valley Avenue Alternatives | | Alameda Drive | Santa Kita Koau | | | | 2 | 3 | T | 2 | 4 12 | 10.30 | 0.3 | \$105,000 | |
| | | Intersection at Francisco Street/Santa | 3 | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Widen sidewalk on west side of Santa Rita Road to improve connection | | | 2 | | | 2 0 | 10.50 | | 400.000 | |
| valley Avenue Alternatives | Amador Valley Community Park Path | | | to School, Trail | between the Park and the proposed PHB/signal at Francisco Street. | | 2 | 3 | T | 1 | 2 9 | 10.50 | | \$20,000 | |
| Valley Avenue Alternatives | Arroyo Mocho Trail Access Improvements from Parkside Drive | Hopyard Road | Omega Circle | Pedestrian, Trail | Work with community and EBRPD to provide access at Marilyn Court, Anastacia Court, and/or Glenda Court | | 0 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 37 | 10.50 | | \$15,000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Sutton Coto Auguro and Auguro Marka Taril | | | Dedestaise Tasil | Improve trail Wayfinding (Arroyo Mocho and Iron Horse Trails) and widen | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 1 0 | 0.60 | | ¢15.000 | |
| Arroyo Mocho Trail to Downtown | Sutter Gate Avenue and Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | redestrian, frall | Improve trail Wayfinding (Arroyo Mocho and Iron Horse Trails) and widen | | 3 | 3 | U | 2 | т 9 | 9.60 | | \$13,000 | |
| Bicycle Boulevards | Laramie Gate Circle and Iron Horse Trail | | | Pedestrian, Trail | curb ramp | Connect to Iron Horse Trail | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 9.60 | | \$15,000 | |
| Fast-West Access Vision Projects | Arrovo Mocho Trail - Fairlands connector | W las Positas | Arrovo Mocho trail | Bicycle Pedestrian Trail | | In coordination with any future major redevelopment of the Walmart Neighborhood Market shopping center site at the southeast corner of West Las Positas and Santa Rita Road, provide a multi-use trail connecting from Fairlands Elementary School to the Arroyo Mocho trail. Consider new bicycle/pedestrian bridge for this connection | 2 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 2 8 | 8 50 | 0.2 | \$369.000 | |
| | | | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | 25 | ······ | | | - | | | | | ,, | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail Continuation | Stoneridge Drive | El Charro Road | to School, Trail | Continue paving of Arroyo Mocho Trail to El Charro Road | - | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 0.6 | \$1,049,000 | |
| | | | | | granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use. Provides connection | | | | | | | | | | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Arroyo Mocho Trail | Hopyard Road | City Limit near Busch Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trail | to future trails to the east in Livermore. | - | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 7 | 8.50 | 2.8 | \$6,080,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Trail Pleasanton Canal Trail via Pleasanton Sports | Arroyo de la Laguna | Hopyard Road | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route to School, Trail Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Route | es Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from Arroyo Mocho Trail, Pleasanton | North bank: 10' paved bikeway, Compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use, Provides connection Tennis & Community Park and Pleasanton Sports & Recreation Park; Improve bike/pedestrian signage to/from access points Haleakala Road, Tennis & Community Park, Hopyard Road | 3 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.7 | \$1,293,000 | |
| East-West Access Vision Projects | & Recreation Park Intersection with the Iron Horse Trail (south | норуага коаа | Omega Circle | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | Canal Trail, Woodthrush Park Neighborhood | - | 2 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 0 4 | 8.50 | | \$84,000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | segment) | | | to Transit, Trail | Install new trail crossing with ladder striping and PHB or signal | - | 4 | 1 | 3 | 3 | 0 11 | 8.50 | | \$148,000 | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Iron Horse Trail Extension | Busch Road/Iron Horse Trail Terminu | Stanley Boulevard/Iron Horse Trail s Path | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit, Trail | Study the gap closure of the Iron Horse Trail between Busch Road and Stanler es Avenue, including finalizing preferred alignment, cost estimates, and phasing/funding strategy Implement the wayfinding, trail enhancements, and bicycle and pedestrian | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use from Busch Road to Stanley Boulevard, including at Shadow Cliffs Regional Park Entrance. y Provide intersection / trail crossing improvements at Busch Road and Valley/Stanley intersection, and railroad crossing. Coordinate with EBRPD and railroad. | 3 | 3 | 3 | 2 | 0 11 | 8.50 | 0.5 | \$923,000 | |
| | | | | | BART and Iron Horse Trail access improvements in the draft Iron Horse Trail | | | | | | | | | | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Publin/Pleasanton BART Station Area and Parking Lot | | | redestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit, Trail | es reasonity study. Requires coordination with East Bay Regional Park District, BART, and the City of Dublin | - | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.50 | 0.2 | \$1,000,000 | |
| | Intersections with the Iron Horse Trail and | | | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route | Prepare trail feasibility study to improve the connection between the two Iro | n Provide continuous connections between the two segments of Iron | | | | | | | | | |
| Iron Horse Trail | Arroyo Mocho Trail | | | to Transit, Trail | separated crossing(s). | Horse Trail and the Arroyo Mocho Trail | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 0 9 | 8.50 | | \$250,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Community Park Trail | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Johnson Drive North / Interstate 580 | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trail | - | Install 10' paved path on south and east banks with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use, Intersection / trail crossing at Hopyard Road | 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 1 11 | 8.50 | 1.0 | \$1,847,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Tassajara Canal | Rosewood Drive / Interstate 580 | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo Mocho Trail | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trail | - | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Rosewood, Owens, Stoneridge, West Las Positas. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Study potential for crossing at I- 580 to connect with Tassajara Creek Trail (EBRPD, regional trail) in Dublin. (Constraints, multiple mid-block crossings, current adjacent land uses are commercial office / industrial parks which turn backs to canal with no access points.) | 3 | 3 | 2 | 2 | 0 10 | 8.50 | 1.3 | \$2,823,000 | |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Chabot Canal | Owens Drive / Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station | W. Las Positas Boulevard / Arroyo Mocho Trail | Pedestrian, Bicycle, Safe Route to Transit, Trail | 25 | Install 10' paved path with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection Improvements at West Las Positas, Inglewood, Stoneridge, Gibraltar, Owens. Requires bridge at Arroyo Mocho. Provides access between Arroyo Mocho Trail and Dublin/Pleasanton BART, and Hart Middle School. Will require multiple mid-block crossines. | 3 | 3 | 2 | 1 | 0 9 | 8,50 | 1.4 | \$3,040.000 | |
| | | | | × · · | | | - | - | | | | | | | |

| | | TABLE C-6 PROPOSI | ED NEAR-TERM AND LONG | G-TERM PROJECTS BY | PRIORITIZATION SCORE - TRAIL PROJECT SUBSET | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|---|------------------------------------|--|---|---|---|--------|-----------|---------|----------------|----------|---------------------------|-------------|
| Project Title | Location | Cross Street 1 | Cross Street 2 | Project Type | Near-Term Proposal | Long-Term Proposal | | cometi | and Deuts | and 5at | en fessibility | s school | pine ^{score} wie | 8 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension | Arroyo Del Valle | Near south end of Laguna Creek Lar | ne Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trail | | Install 10' paved bikeway with compacted soil/decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner use. Install intersection improvements at Bernal Avenue. Install new access points at Lylewood Drive, Bernal Avenue, and along Laguna Creek Lane. | 3 | 2 | 2 | 1 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 1.8 | \$3,909,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna | Arroyo Mocho | Arroyo Del Valle | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trail | | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | 3 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 0 8 | 8.50 | 1.1 | \$2,389,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Arroyo de la Laguna Trail - South Extension Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: | Intersection with Arroyo Del Valle | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trail | - Change bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards, 55" height. (Coordinate | Study and install a new bicycle/pedestrian bridge. | 2 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 1 7 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$500,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Pleasanton Canal Bridge Improvements Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: W. Las Positas / Arroyo de la Laguna Trail Acces | Alamo Canal Trail | Vi las Positas | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Irail | Access gate and pathway from porth side of W. Las Positas Read | | 2 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$44,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Bridge Improvements | Val Vista Community Park Trail & Arroyo de la Laguna | | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trail | - | Update bridge railings to meet Caltrans standards. Coordinate with Zone 7. | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.1 | \$44,000 |
| North-South Access Vision Projects | Centennial/Arroyo de Laguna Corridor: Val Vista Community Park Trail | Arroyo de la Laguna | Johnson Drive / Stoneridge Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trail Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Rout | - | Install 10' paved path on east bank with compacted soil / decomposed granite side path for pedestrian/runner/equestrian use | 2 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 5 | 8.50 | 0.4 | \$739,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Overcrossing | Muirwood Drive | Denker Drive | to Transit, Safe Routes to School, Trail | Vista Park and Muirwood Park. Complete in tandem with Arroyo de Laguna Trail Feasibility Study | Install grade-separated I-680 crossing | 4 | 3 | 0 | 2 | 3 12 | 8.50 | | \$150,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Connection over Arroyo de Laguna | End of Minton Court | Meadowlark Park Path | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School, Trail | Connect Meadowlark Park/Minton Court connection with Centennial Trail and Arroyo Valley Trail via I-680 grade separation. Complete in tandem with Val Vista Park/Muirwood Park I-680 Crossing Feasibility Study | d Shared-use path with overcrossing of Arroyo de la Laguna to connect Bicycle boulevards | 4 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 07 | 8.50 | 0.19 | \$411,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | Arroyo de Laguna/Centennial Trail Connection | Centennial Trail | Bernal Avenue | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School, Trail | Connect Centennial Trail to Meadowlark Park/Minton Court bicycle boulevard/paths. | Path connecting Muirwood Drive and Foothill Knolls Drive Path | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 06 | 8.50 | | \$60,000 |
| West Dublin/Pleasanton BART to Downtown | County Parcel Trail Connection | Muirwood Drive | Meadowlark Drive | Bicycle, Pedestrian, Safe Routes to School, Trail | Trail Feasibility Study and/or coordination with Alameda County and property owner | / Shared-use path to connect Bicycle boulevard treatments | 3 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 6 | 8.50 | 0.28 | \$608,000 |



Appendix D. Funding Sources

There are numerous funding sources at the federal, state, regional, county and local levels that are potentially available to the City of Pleasanton to implement the projects and programs in the *Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan*. Below is a description of the most promising funding programs available for the proposed projects.

D.1.1 Federal Funding Sources

D.1.1.1 Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act)

The FAST Act provides funding for roads, transit, safety, and environmental enhancements. The FAST Act, signed into law in December 2015, supplanted the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21). Relative to MAP-21, the FAST Act makes more federal-aid highway funding available to locally-owned transportation infrastructure and also increases overall spending for the Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) program. This legislation also preserved the Safe Routes to School program, with funding for projects that improve pedestrian and bicycle access and safety around primary and middle schools.

Cities, counties, and transit operators can apply for FAST Act funds, although a local match is required for these funds. There are several bicyclerelated programs funded through the FAST Act. These include the following:

- <u>Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program</u> The STBG, formerly known as the Surface Transportation Program, provides block grant funds that are used for roads, bridges, transit capital, and bicycle projects. Eligible bicycle projects include bicycle transportation facilities, bicycle-parking facilities, equipment for transporting bicycles on mass transit facilities, bicycle activated traffic control devices, preservation of abandoned railway corridors for bicycle trails, and improvements for highways and bridges. Cities, counties, metropolitan planning organizations (MPO), and transit operators can apply for STBG funds. An 11.5 percent local match is required for these funds when used for bicycle projects.
- <u>Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP)</u> MAP-21 bundled three funding programs Transportation Enhancements program, the Safe Routes to School program, and the Recreational Trails Program into one Transportation Alternatives Program. The FAST Act preserved



TAP, slightly increased its annual funding through 2019 (up to \$850 million/year) and made it a set-aside program within the STBG program. TAP is the most prominent funding source for walking and bicycling infrastructure projects. However, up to half of TAP grants can be diverted to other purposes by state and local governments. Within TAP, funding for the Recreational Trails Program is preserved at the 2009 level and is effectively a set-aside of the TAP.

- <u>Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ)</u> CMAQ funds are available for projects that will help attain National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) identified in the 1990 Federal Clean Air Act Amendments. Projects must be located within jurisdictions in non-attainment areas. Eligible projects include bicycle facilities intended for transportation purposes, bicycle route maps, bicycle-activated traffic control devices, bicycle safety and education programs, and bicycle promotional programs. Cities, counties, MPO, state, and transit operators can apply for CMAQ funds. A 20 percent local or state match is required for these funds.
- <u>Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)</u> HSIP was created by MAP-21 and preserved in the FAST Act. While walking and cycling projects are eligible activities for HSIP funding, the FAST Act does prohibit using HSIP funding for non-construction activities, such as education and enforcement. The Caltrans Division of Local Assistance (DLA) manages California's local agency share of HSIP funds. Local HSIP projects must be identified on the basis of crash experience, crash potential, crash rate, or other data-supported means.
- <u>Section 405 National Priority Safety Programs</u> The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) administers a new non-motorized safety funding program. Of the \$280 million allocated to the program, approximately \$14 million will be awarded to States on an annual basis to decrease bicycle and pedestrian crashes with motor vehicles. Eligible states must have bicycle and pedestrian fatalities that constitute more than 15 percent of all fatal crashes, including California. Unlike HSIP, funding may be used for training law enforcement officials, organizing enforcement campaigns, or increasing awareness of bicycle and pedestrian laws.
- <u>National Highway Performance Program (NHPP)</u> NHPP funding provides support for the condition and performance of the National Highway System (NHS), for the construction of new facilities on the NHS, and to ensure that investments of Federal-aid funds in highway construction are directed to support progress toward the achievement of performance targets established in a State's asset management plan for the NHS. A 20 percent local or state match is required for these funds. States may transfer up to 50% of NHPP funding to the STBG program, TAP, CMAQ, or other programs each year.
- <u>Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA)</u> The TIFIA program allows Congress to provide credit assistance to largescale surface transportation projects. Under MAP-21, most projects needed to meet a minimum cost of \$50 million to be eligible for credit assistance. Under the FAST Act, this threshold is reduced to \$10 million for projects involving local governments. This change may allow active transportation projects to more easily take advantage of these credit and innovative financing mechanisms.
- <u>Highway Research and Development (HRD) Program</u> The HRD program funding, continued under the FAST Act, funds strategic investment in research activities that address current and emerging highway transportation needs. As such, HRD funding can be used to



improve bicycle safety through education, police enforcement, and traffic engineering. Cities, counties, and state agencies can apply for these funds. A 20 percent state or local match is required for these funds.

D.1.1.2 Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF)

The Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) uses offshore drilling royalties paid by energy companies to provide matching grants for state and local parks and recreation projects, among other uses. The LWCF state assistance program provides matching grants to help states and local communities protect parks and recreation resources, including off-street bicycle paths.

• California Department of Parks and Recreation LWCF application webpage: <u>http://www.parks.ca.gov/?page_id=21360</u>

D.1.2 Statewide Funding Sources

D.1.2.1 Active Transportation Program (ATP), including Safe Routes to School

California's Active Transportation Program (ATP) was created in 2013 by Senate Bill 99 and Assembly Bill 101. Its purpose is to encourage increased use of active modes of transportation, including walking and bicycling. The ATP consolidated previously-existing funding programs, including the federal Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP), state Bicycle Transportation Account (BTA), and the federal and state Safe Routes to School programs. Program funding is divided into three components. Half of ATP funding is awarded through a statewide competitive program. Ten percent of funding is awarded through the small urban and rural area competitive program. Forty percent of funding is awarded to Metropolitan Planning Organizations, such as MTC, through the large urbanized area competitive program. The ATP Cycle 3 call-for-projects closed in June 2016.

California ATP Webpage: <u>http://www.catc.ca.gov/programs/ATP.htm</u>

D.1.2.2 Transportation Development Act (TDA), Article 3

TDA Article 3 is perhaps the most readily available source of local funding for bicycle projects. TDA funds are derived from a statewide quarter-cent retail sales tax. This tax is returned to the county of origin and distributed to the cities and county on a population basis. Under TDA Article 3, two percent of each entity's TDA allocation is set aside for pedestrian and bicycle projects; this generates approximately \$3 million in the Bay Area



annually. Eligible projects include the design and construction of walkways, bicycle paths and bicycle lanes, and safety education programs. According to MTC Resolution 875, these projects must be included in an adopted general plan or bicycle plan and must have been reviewed by the relevant city or county bicycle advisory committee.

• MTC's Procedures for the TDA Article 3 program: <u>http://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/fund-invest/investment-strategies-commitments/transit-21st-century/funding-sales-tax-and-0</u>

D.1.2.3 Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant Program

The Caltrans Division of Transportation Planning offers Sustainable Transportation Planning Grants to provide funding to support transportation planning (not construction or environmental review). The grants are intended to strengthen the economy, promote equity, and protect the environment. Eligible projects include safe routes to school plans, streetscape plans, complete street plans, and safety enhancement plans. The program requires a 20% local match. Grants are available in amounts from \$100,000 to \$500,000.

• Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant Program: <u>http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/grants.html</u>

D.1.2.4 California State Parks Recreational Trails Program (RTP)

The Recreational Trails Program (RTP) provides funds for recreational trails and trails-related projects, including Class I Bicycle Paths. The program is administered at the state level by the California Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) and the Caltrans Active Transportation Program (ATP). While DPR does not anticipate conducting another cycle before 2018, the agency does intend to create a new application guide in 2017 to incorporate updated information based on the FAST Act. Applicant, including cities and towns, are responsible for obtaining a match amount that is at least 12% of the total project cost.

• PR RTP application site: <u>http://www.parks.ca.gov/?page_id=24324</u>

D.1.2.5 California Cap-and-Trade Funding

The Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (AB 32) directed the California Air Resources Board (ARB) to institute programs to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The Cap-and-Trade Program, a key element of the ARB's plan to reduce emissions, funds several programs that support the goals



of AB 32. Several of these programs relate to transportation and mode shift. The Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC), for one, provides funding to support active transportation and complete streets initiatives, among other project types. Applications for FY 2015-2016 AHSC funding were due in June 2016.

 Cap-and-trade auction proceed-funded programs, including AHSC: <u>http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/ggrfprogrampage.htm#Transportation</u>

D.1.2.6 Highway Safety Improvement Program

The Caltrans Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) focus on funding countermeasures applied at locations with documented collisions and safety issues. HSIP uses a cost-benefit ratio as a primary factor in the awarding of applications. Because both of these programs focus on roadway safety, projects with documented collision history – through frequency of collision but particularly collision severity – are typically ranked higher. Roadways with documented bicycle and pedestrian collision history, as discussed in **Chapter 3** of this Plan, may be well-qualified for HSIP applications, particularly since many of the proposed projects would improve bicyclist and pedestrian safety at a lower cost than many of the highway projects also eligible for HSIP.

Successful projects have included:

- Separated bikeways
- Median refuges and curb extensions
- Curb, gutter, and sidewalk
- Paved shoulders
- Upgraded traffic signals with pedestrian countdown signals and pedestrian-scale lighting
- Bicycle lane striping
- Crosswalk striping
- In-pavement flashers and flashing beacons at crossings



More information is available online: http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/hsip.htm

D.1.3 Regional Funding Sources

D.1.3.1 Transportation for Livable Communities

MTC created the Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) program in 1998. MTC uses this program to finance pedestrian, bicycle and streetscape improvements near public transit in cities around the Bay Area. The purpose of TLC is to support community-based transportation projects that bring new vibrancy to downtown areas, commercial cores, neighborhoods and transit corridors, making them places where people want to live, work and visit. Pedestrian- and transit-friendly developments are hallmarks of the program. MTC awarded the most recent round of TLC capital grants in July 2010.

MTC's TLC program: http://mtc.ca.gov/whats-happening/news/mtc-awards-44-million-new-grants-promote-livable-communities

D.1.3.2 Bay Trail Grants

The San Francisco Bay Trail Project—a non-profit organization administered by the Association of Bay Area Governments—provides grants to plan, design, and construct segments of the Bay Trail. The amount, and even availability, of Bay Trail grants vary from year to year, depending on whether the Bay Trail Project has identified a source of funds for the program. As of 2016, the Bay Trail Project is not currently offering grants, but may in the future.

D.1.3.3 One Bay Area Grants (OBAG)

Currently in its second funding round, OBAG uses federal funds to maintain MTC's commitments to regional transportation priorities while also advancing the Bay Area's land-use and housing goals. Cities and counties can use these OBAG funds to invest in bicycle and pedestrian improvements and Safe Routes to School projects, among other uses. MTC distributes OBAG funds to county Congestion Management Agencies in each Bay Area county. The CMAs are then responsible for selecting eligible projects within each county.

• MTC's OBAG program: <u>http://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/invest-protect/focused-growth/one-bay-area-grants</u>



D.1.3.4 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA)

TFCA is a grant program administered by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) and funded through a surcharge on motor vehicles registered in the Bay Area. The Air District offers funding to public agencies for trip reduction, bicycle parking and bikeway, and clean air vehicle projects. A sub-program of the TFCA is the Bikeways, Roads, Lanes and Paths program, which offers funding for bicycle parking and bikeway projects (Class I-IV). Funding will be offered on a first-come, first-served basis until the funds (total: \$3.84) are spent.

Funding for bicycle projects is also available through the TFCA's County Program Manager Fund. Under that sub-program, 40 percent of TFCA revenues collected in each Bay Area county is returned to that county's congestion management agency (CMA) for allocation (the Alameda County CMA in Alameda County's case). Applications are made directly to the CMAs, but must also be approved by the BAAQMD.

- TFCA Bikeways, Roads, Lanes and Paths: <u>http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/public-agencies/bikeways-roads-lanes-paths</u>
- TFCA County Program Manager Fund: <u>http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/public-agencies/county-program-manager-fund</u>

D.1.4 Countywide Funding Sources

D.1.4.1 Measure WW

In 2008, Contra Costa and Alameda County voters approved EBRPD's Measure WW, the "Regional Open Space, Wildlife, Shoreline and Parks Bond." This extension of a similar 1988 bond measure allocates \$33 million specifically to trail projects in the county. In addition, the measure will provide \$48 million directly to cities, the county and special park and recreation districts for their park and recreation needs, including trails and other nonmotorized transportation projects.

Measure WW: <u>http://www.ebparks.org/about/planning/ww</u>

D.1.4.2 Alameda County Measure BB Bicycle and Pedestrian Program

Measure BB is a special sales tax that was passed with 70 percent approval in 2014, building on the original Measure B half-cent tax passed in 1986. Measure BB provides \$8 billion in funding (from 2015 to 2045) to support the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan of the Alameda County



Transportation Commission. Among other goals, the 2014 plan aims to provide clean transportation by expanding bicycle and pedestrian paths. As part of the 2014 plan, local agencies and transit jurisdictions receive Measure BB direct local distributions to support local transportation investments.

Eight percent of net revenues from Measure BB are set aside for bicycle and pedestrian improvements through the Alameda CTC Bicycle and Pedestrian Program. Three percent of overall revenues are set aside for regional trail gap closure projects (including the Bay Trail), three percent of net revenues are allocated to local jurisdictions as direct local funding, and two percent of net revenues are allocated to the Measure BB Bicycle and Pedestrian Countywide Discretionary Fund (CDF), which supports planning, projects and programs, including a competitive grant program. The CDF has funded 41 projects, totaling \$9.5 million to date, and Alameda CTC has completed four funding cycles.

- Alameda County Measure BB: <u>http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/17260</u>
- Alameda County Bicycle and Pedestrian Program: <u>http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/3429</u>

D.1.5 Local Funding Sources

A variety of local sources may be available for funding bikeway improvements; however, their use is often dependent on political support.

D.1.5.1 Roadway Construction and New Development

As development and roadway projects occur, changes to walking and bicycling facilities should always be considered. This may include closing sidewalk gaps, providing enhanced streetscape, and installing bicycle facilities. To ensure that development projects and roadway construction projects include the recommendations in this Plan, it is important that the review process includes a designated bicycle and pedestrian coordinator or city staff familiar with walking and bicycling issues. Planned roadway improvements in Pleasanton should always consult this Plan to assist in building out the walking and bicycling network in the city.



D.1.5.2 Impact Fees

Cities across the country charge developer impact fees, typically tied to trip generation and traffic impacts as a result of proposed projects. The city of Pleasanton's Impact Fee Program is being developed to achieve the city's objectives to fund important transportation infrastructure throughout the city. The impact fee program in its current draft contains a number of bicycle and pedestrian improvement projects.

D.1.5.3 Open Space District

Local Open Space Districts may float bonds that go to acquiring land or open space easements, which may also provide for some improvements to the local trail and bikeway system.

D.1.5.4 Capital Improvement Plan

The Capital Improvement Plan synthesizes the information for the entire network: cost estimates, funding sources, and rankings, into a plan for the next 10 years. The Capital Improvement Program is a planning document that the city may use to formulate its budget, but it does not preclude "opportunistic projects." Opportunistic projects are unanticipated projects where the city may incorporate bicycle and pedestrian facilities, even if the projects occur out of sequence. Examples include street resurfacing to include bicycle lanes, signal upgrades for pedestrians, or install a new pedestrian hybrid beacon and crosswalk.

D.1.5.5 Other Funding Sources

Local sales taxes, developer or public agency land dedications, private donations, and fund-raising events are other local options to generate funding for bikeway projects. Creation of these potential sources usually requires substantial local support.

Funding Sources | D



Appendix E. Related Plan Documents

The PBMP Update should be consistent with local or regional transportation, air quality, or energy conservations plans. Bicycle network maps for Alameda County and the cities of Dublin and Livermore were reviewed and considered in developing Pleasanton's recommended network, in order to promote a coordinated regional bicycle system. A summary of adopted planning documents, and their relationship to this Plan, is below.

E.1.1.1 Regional Bicycle Plan for the San Francisco Bay Area

MTC updated the *Regional Bicycle Plan for the San Francisco Bay Area* in 2009. The purpose of the plan is to direct MTC's regional transportation funds for high-priority facilities that serve regional bicycle trips and update the regional bicycle network. The MTC Plan details the length and completion cost of the regional bikeways by county.

E.1.1.2 Plan Bay Area Regional Transportation Plan

The Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) is the comprehensive regional planning agency and Council of Governments for the nine counties and 101 cities of the San Francisco Bay region. Motivated by the California Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of 2008, ABAG developed Plan Bay Area in July 2013, as regional transportation plan that guides the Bay Area in a long-range plan to significantly reduce greenhouse gases by 2040. The focus of this plan is to devote most (87%) of funding to operate and maintain the existing transportation network, with the remaining budget aimed at next-generation transit projects and other programs that support reducing GHG emissions.

E.1.1.3 BART Bicycle Plan

The goal of the BART Bicycle Plan (2012) is to attract more bicycle users and fewer cars to the system. The Plan outlines the specific strategies needed to encourage passengers to bicycle and creates a Bicycle Investment Tool that BART staff and other transit agencies can use to select the most effective improvements. With a singular goal to double the share of BART riders that bicycle by 2022, the recommended strategies include better cyclist circulation, plentiful bicycle parking, improved bicycle access beyond BART; optimized bicycle accommodations on the train, and more bicycle-supportive policies and programs.



E.1.1.4 Alameda Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plans

The Alameda County Transportation Commissions (Alameda CTC) adopted the *Countywide Bicycle Plan and Countywide Pedestrian Plan* in 2012. The bicycle network map shows proposed Class I, II, and III facilities in Pleasanton, including key countywide routes. The Pedestrian Plan creates a Pedestrian Vision System that focuses on areas to prioritize access to transit, access to central business districts and other commercial areas, and the trails network.

E.1.1.5 Alameda County Multi-Modal Arterials Plan

Alameda CTC is leading the Alameda County Multi-Modal Arterials Plan (MAP, draft 2016) to reexamine all arterials in the county from a complete streets perspective. The MAP develops complete streets typologies and priority networks for each travel mode on arterials countywide, and then makes recommendations for complete streets improvements based on the highest priority modes for each corridor, as established through the typologies and priority networks. Example improvements include dedicated transit facilities, Class IV separated bikeways, and pedestrian streetscape improvements.

E.1.1.6 City of Livermore General Plan

The City of Livermore's Proposed Bikeways and Trails Network map in their General Plan shows existing Class II bicycle lanes and proposed Class I bikeway along Vineyard Avenue into Pleasanton as well as existing bicycle lanes and proposed trails to Pleasanton along Jack London Boulevard.

E.1.1.7 Dublin Bicycle Master Plan

The Dublin Bicycle Master Plan, adopted in 2014, sets forth several recommendations for trail and on-street facilities that directly connect to Pleasanton. The Dublin Bikeways Master Plan identifies the need for pedestrian and bicycle links connecting to Pleasanton at Foothill Blvd, the Dublin/Pleasanton Bart Station, and the Fallon Rd interchange.



E.1.1.8 Livermore Area Recreation and Parks District Master Plan

The 2015 Livermore Area Recreation and Parks District Master Plan identifies a proposed multi-use trail connection with the city of Pleasanton at the Arroyo Mocho near El Charro and Busch Roads. The "Local Plans" section summarizes planning documents that discuss existing conditions and/or future infrastructure improvements for walking and bicycling in the city of Pleasanton and adjacent planning areas such as Happy Valley. Specifically, goals, policies and programs from existing city plans and code regulations that relate to non-motorized transportation are listed to inform the policies for the initial Pleasanton Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan.

E.1.1.9 Pleasanton General Plan 2005-2025

The 2005 Pleasanton Plan 2025 (the General Plan) provides a blueprint for conservation and development of the city. Most recently amended in January 2015, the Alternative Transportation Modes section has a goal of providing a multi-modal transportation system which creates alternatives to the single occupancy automobile.

E.1.1.10 Downtown Specific Plan

The 2002 Downtown Specific Plan, recently updated in 2013, is the primary regulatory guide for the preservation and development of Pleasanton's Central Business District. Many of the Plan's objectives, such as the creation of mini public plazas and traffic calming improvements, encourage pedestrian access and a vibrant public life in the downtown area.

E.1.1.11 Downtown Design Guidelines

The City of Pleasanton's Downtown Design Guidelines, updated in 2014, offer design standards for projects in the commercial and residential area to complement the existing and historic built environment. This set of guidelines encourage pedestrian-oriented activity throughout the downtown district by addressing architectural styles, parking area designations, signage and the general appearance of the area. General criteria include building facades and entrances that meet the sidewalk, the continuity of commercial storefronts and other pedestrian-scaled elements.



E.1.1.12 City of Pleasanton Community Trails Master Plan

The July 1993 Pleasanton Community Trails Plan was developed as a long-ranging planning tool to guide future trail development and to assist the city in review of new development. The objective of the Pleasanton Community Trails Master Plan is to "Provide the citizens of Pleasanton with a city-wide network of trails and routes that are, as much as possible, accessible to a variety of users, including, but not limited to, pedestrian, bicyclists, equestrians, and the physically disabled." It was revised in April 2002.

E.1.1.13 Downtown Parks and Trails System Master Plan

The goal of the 2002 Master Plan for the Downtown Parks and Trails Plan is to provide a coordinated set of recommendations for community facilities including public parks and trails sites in the area between Bernal Ave, Stanley Blvd, Main St, and First St. The trails focus of the plan is on the Alameda Transportation Corridor (the former Southern Pacific Railroad Right of Way, also referred to as the Regional Trail Corridor).

The Master Plan recommends developing the 75-100' Regional Trail Corridor so that it can become an amenity with a park-like character, capable of supporting a variety of uses. The Master plan proposes accommodating users on separate paths – a paved path for pedestrian, bicycle, and skate use and an unpaved trail suitable for joggers and equestrians. The plan provides detailed design guidelines covering dimensions, materials and facilities.

E.1.1.14 Specific Plans

E.1.1.14.1 Happy Valley Specific Plan

Adopted in 1998, This document sets forth the planning policies for the Happy Valley area, a community of rural housing and a residential golf course development located partially in the southern area of Pleasanton and in an unincorporated section of Alameda County. This document serves as an extension of the Pleasanton General Plan.



E.1.1.14.2 Vineyard Avenue Corridor Specific Plan

Adopted in 1999, the Specific Plan for the Vineyard Avenue Corridor serves as a regulatory guide for the vineyard and residential area in southeast Pleasanton, south of the Shadow Cliffs Recreation Area. The Circulation Element includes an objective of providing alternatives to motor vehicle travel through the Plan area through an integrated system of pedestrian, bicycle and equestrian trails. Vineyard Avenue, the main artery for the area, is planned as a 36-foot rural road consisting of two 12-foot travel lanes, two six-foot bicycle lanes/shoulders, and a six-foot separated pedestrian/equestrian trail along the north side of the street. The *Vineyard Avenue Specific Plan* also references the City Traffic Calming Program to mitigate the impacts of cut-through traffic on the residential streets. Multiple trails are also part of the area Plan.

E.1.1.14.3 Downtown Specific Plan

Last amended in 2014, the Downtown Specific Plan and Design Guidelines for preserving and enhancing the character of Downtown Pleasanton. The two stated transportation goals for Downtown are to improve access for autos while maintaining the pedestrian and economic vitality of Downtown and to encourage the use of bicycling, trails, and other non-auto modes to alleviate congestion in Downtown. The Plan specifically calls out enhancing sidewalks, controlling crosswalks with stop-control, and installing curb extension to improve pedestrian access. Bicycling is seen as an important alternative to automobile trips to Downtown, and trails connections to and through Downtown are supported.



E.1.1.14.4 Stoneridge Drive Specific Plan

Last amended in 2010, the amendment deals with the Staples Ranch development, which is the last undeveloped site in the Specific Plan area. The

site is located east of El Charro Road, south of I-580, and north of West Las Positas Boulevard, near the Dublin, Pleasanton, and Livermore city limits. This area is adjacent to the Arroyo Mocho waterway is planned to have a neighborhood park, community park, an auto mall, and a continuing care community.

E.1.1.14.5 East Pleasanton Specific Plan

The draft 2016 East Pleasanton Specific Plan plans for the areas generally bounded by Valley Avenue, Stanley Boulevard, and Stoneridge Drive on the eastern city limit. Trails are envisioned throughout the area, including an extension of the Iron Horse Trail south parallel to Valley Avenue, east on Busch Road, and south on El Charro Road, connecting to Stanley Boulevard. Bicycle lanes and enhanced pedestrian streetscape are planned for El Charro Road where it will be widened.



E.1.1.14.6 Bernal Property Specific Plan

Adopted in 2006, the Plan spells outs a vision for developing a 318 acre public land portion of the larger 516 acre Bernal Property for public and quasi public uses. The area is bordered by Arroyo de Laguna to the west, Bernal Avenue to the north, and the railroad tracks to the south, and extends on either side of I-680. Some of these improvements have already been built in Phase 1, such as portions of Laguna Creek Lane (aligns with Pleasanton Avenue) and the Marilyn Murphy Kane Trail. Phase II focuses on the development of remaining open space into parks and pathway network.

E.1.1.14.7 North Sycamore Specific Plan

This Plan addressed development in annexed portion of Pleasanton on Sycamore Creek Way, near Sunol Boulevard. The build out of the Specific Plan is largely complete as of 2014, with residential mostly complete and commercial development yet to be constructed.



Appendix F. Safe Routes to School Projects from 2010 Plan

Existing Conditions

A. Canal trail adjacent to school property is locked.



B. Adjacent intersections have marked crosswalks, curb-cuts, MUTCD school signage. Some curbs lack truncatd domes and are not ADA-accessible.



C. Mid-block crossing on Sandalwood Drive is not ADA-accessible.



D. Bike racks on west side entrance of school are underutilized, while bike racks on east side entrance are at full capacity.



E. The intersection of West Las Positas Blvd and Muirwood Drive is difficult for pedestrians to cross and has fast vehicular traffic.





Recommendations

- A. Provide pedestrian and bicycle access to adjacent canal trail. Long-term improvement : pave canal trail
- B. Install ADA-accessible truncated domes.
- C. Stripe high-visiblity crosswalk. Install ADA-accessible curb-cut with truncated dome.
- D. Add an additional bicycle rack to northeast entrance to school.
- E. Refer to traffic calming improvements in Figure 6-2



LYDIKSEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL **Bicycle and Pedestrian Issues and Opportunities**

Figure 6-1

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL LYDIKSEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL





RECOMMENDED PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS FOR WEST LAS POSITAS BOULEVARD AND MUIRWOOD DRIVE

FIGURE 6-2
Existing Conditions

- A. Main School Entrance, Santa Rita Frontage Rd
- A-1. The main driveway reaches full capacity during peak times.



A-2. Students lock their bicycles to a chain link fence in the front of school.



A-3. Sidewalk curbs in front of school are not ADA-accessible.







ALISAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL **Existing Bicycle and Pedestrian Issues**

Proposed Improvements

A.1 Install a loop detector on Santa Rita Frontage Road at the main driveway exit from the school that will prompt a signal change at Santa Rita Road and Black Avenue when cars are backed up on Frontage Road



To ease congestion during drop-off and pick-up times, a second unloading area can be designated in the center travel lane.



A.2 A potential secure bicycle rack location in the front of the school







Install ADA-accessible truncated domes at curbs in front of the school at Black Avenue and Santa Rita Frontage Road

C



B By moving parking spaces 5' out from the chain-link fence, the pedestrian pathway to Nevis Street can be extended along length of parking lot to connect with the school's main entrance



C Intersection of Francisco Street and Kolln Street:

Crosswalks should be marked with highvisibility yellow paint. Curb ramps should be installed on the east side of Kolln Street, and truncated domes should be installed at all curbs to be ADA-accessible.

D Intersection of Francisco Street and Santa Rita Road: Install a traffic signal to ease congestion along Santa Rita Frontage Road and surrounding area.

ALISAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Proposed Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements

Figure 6-4

Existing Conditions

A. Curb ramps at the intersection of Harvest Road and Northway Road are not ADA-accessible.



B. Bicycle racks located behind school with dumpsters are heavily used, but access and visibility is constrained.



C. Parking signs on north side of Black Avenue adjacent to school are outdated.



- D. Side gate entrance to school is locked.
- E. Pedestrian pathway blocked by gate.





fp FEHR & PEERS TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS SF08-0373\graphics\SR2S\0373-4 Walnut Grove



Proposed Improvements

A. Install ADA-accessible truncated domes at curb ramps at the intersection of Harvest Road and Northway Road.



- B. Current bike rack location may discourage students from bicycling to school. Add racks to other locations that are more accessible and visible to the street and/or Walnut Grove Park.
- C. Old street signs should be removed.
- D. Side gate entrance could be unlocked during drop-off and pick-up hours to improve pedestrian access along Black Avenue.
- E. Construct 4'-5' concrete path around gate to connect pathway to front entrance of school.



Designate Northway Road a Class III bike route and install sharrows and signage. Continue bike route through Harvest Park and on to Alameda Drive to provide connection to Amador Valle Park and points east.

NOT TO SCALE

WALNUT GROVE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Bicycle and Pedestrian Issues and Opportunities Figure 6-5